
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Pensions 
Committee 

 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 26 MARCH 
2014 
 

Time: 5.30 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 3A - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
Councillors on the Committee 
 
Philip Corthorne (Chairman) 
Michael Markham (Vice-Chairman) 

Janet Duncan 
Raymond Graham 
Paul Harmsworth 

David Simmonds 
 
 
 
Advisory Members 
 
John Holroyd 
Andrew Scott 

  
Published: Monday 17 March 2014 

 
 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in Braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

 Contact:  Khalid Ahmed 
Tel: 01895 2574880833 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: kahmed@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=125&MId=1602&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

This Committee 
 

To discharge the functions of the Pensions Committee aimed at improving market 
governance across the Pension Fund and the operational effectiveness of Investment 
Strategy. 
 

Terms of Reference 
 

The Constitution defines the terms of reference of the Pensions Committee as: 
 

1. To maintain a business plan for its activity and evaluates progress against this plan. 
 
2. To monitor financial risks, including all investment risks relative to liabilities, within 

the Pension Committee’s risk framework, and reports any issues or breaches to the 
Pension Committee. 

 
3. To keep asset allocation under review within range guidelines set by the Pension 

Committee. Within these range guidelines, the Sub-Committee has delegated 
authority to: 

• Increase or decrease the allocation to equities, bonds or property 
• Increase or decrease the amounts / proportions of assets in manager mandates 
• Increase or decrease the level of currency hedging in place 
• Select investments for, or dispose of existing investments in, the “opportunity fund” 

(5% of assets), using the feeder fund. 
 
4. To consider the framework for the allocation of new money among managers.  

Similarly, in the event that assets need to be realised, the Sub-Committee also 
considers this matter. 

 
5. To formally review annually the mandates of the managers, and their adherence to 

their expected investment process and style. This ensures that the explicit written 
mandate of each of the Fund’s managers is consistent with the Fund’s overall 
objective and is appropriately defined in terms of performance target, risk parameters 
and timescale. 

 
6. To consider the need for any changes to the investment managers’ mandates (e.g. 

in relation to continuing appropriateness of benchmarks and operating guidelines). 
 
7. To consider the need for any changes to the Fund’s investment manager 

arrangements (e.g. replacement, addition, termination) and makes recommendations 
to the Pension Committee.  

 
8. In the event of a proposed change of managers, to evaluate the credentials of 

potential managers. To make recommendations to the Pension Committee in respect 
of any change of managers. 

 



 

 

9. To monitor the investment advice from their investment consultant and investment 
adviser at least annually. To also review their own decision making process at the 
same time.  

 
10. To be responsible for maintenance of the Fund’s Statement of investment Principles 

(SIP). 
 
11. To carry out any additional tasks delegated to it by the Pension Committee. 



 

 

Agenda 
 
 
 

 
CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
1 Apologies for Absence  

 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting  
 

3 Minutes of the meeting -11 December 2013 1 - 4 
 

4 To confirm that items marked Part I will be considered in public and 
those marked Part II will be considered in private 

 
 

 
PART I - Members, Public and Press 
5 Review on Performance Measurement of the Pension Fund 5 - 66 

 

6 Retirement Performance Statistics and Costs of Early Retirements 
Monitor 

67 - 68 
 

7 Pensions Administration Performance 69 - 72 
 

8 2013 Actuarial Valuation Results 73 - 152 
 

9 Deloitte Annual Audit Plan 153 - 176 
 

10 London Pensions Common Investment Vehicle (CIV) Proposals 177 - 180 
 

11 Local Government Pension Scheme - April 2014 181 - 198 
 

12 Revision Statement of Investment Principles 199 - 222 
 

 
PART II - Members Only 



 

 

13 Report from Investment Sub-Committee 223 - 232 
 

14 Corporate Governance & Socially Responsible Investment 233 - 236 
 

 



Minutes 
 
PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 
11 December 2013 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 3A - Civic 
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 Committee Members Present: 
Councillors Philip Corthorne (Chairman), Beulah East, Raymond Graham, Michael 
Markham and David Simmonds. 
 
LBH Officers Present: 
Tunde Adekoya, Ken Chisholm, Nancy LeRoux and Khalid Ahmed. 
 
Also Present: 
Scott Jamieson (Advisors) 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Janet Duncan, Paul Harmsworth (Councillor Beulah East substituting),  
John Holroyd (Advisory Member), Andrew Scott (Advisory Member) and Catherine 
McFadyen (Fund Actuary).  
 

22. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE 
THIS MEETING  
 

Action by 

 Councillor Corthorne declared a Non-Pecuniary Interest in all Agenda 
Items, because he was a member of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. He remained in the room. 
 

 

23.    MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF 24 SEPTEMBER 2013 
 

 

 Agreed as an accurate record. 
 

 

24.    TO CONFIRM THAT ITEMS MARKED PART I WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THOSE MARKED PART II WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE   
 

 

 That Agenda Items 9 and 10 be considered in private for the reasons 
stated on the agenda and the rest of the items be considered in public. 
 

 

25.    REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT OF THE PENSION 
FUND   
 

Action by 

 Consideration was given to the report on the review of the fund 
manager performance for the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension 
Fund for the period ending 30 September 2013.  The Committee was 
informed that the total value of the Fund’s investments at 30 
September was £698m, however the Fund’s value had increased to 
around £713m up to the end of November 2013. 
 
Reference was made to the performance of the Fund for the quarter to 
30 September 2013, showing and underperformance of 0.8%, with a 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



  
return of 2.44% compared to the benchmark of 2.5%. The 
underperformance by Macquarie had slightly skewed the whole fund 
position.     
 
Discussion took place on this underperformance of Macquarie and 
Members were assured that returns on this long term investment would 
come in future years. Officers would provide further information on 
Macquarie’s approach at the next meeting. 
 
Reference was made to Kempden International and their performance 
in relation to the benchmark of 11.16%. Officers reported that this 
benchmark was based on income based investments.  
 
RESOLVED:  
1. That the report and the performance of the Fund Managers   

be noted.  

 
 
 
 

Nancy Le 
Roux 

 
 
 

 
26. 

 
2013 ACTUARIAL VALUATION RESULTS 
 
The Committee noted the non-attendance at the meeting of the Fund 
Actuary. 
 
The report provided Members with a summary of the 2013 valuation 
results which indicated that the funding level was now 72% which was 
decrease from the 77.6% 2010 valuation. This had resulted in the 
deficit increasing from £163m as at 31 March 2010 to £266m as at 31 
March 2013. Members were informed that this deterioration of the 
funding position was largely due to the fall in gilt yields. 
 
The Committee was informed that Hillingdon’s results were similar to 
other London Boroughs who had Hymans Robertson as an actuary, 
however, it was hoped that once the new 2014 scheme came into 
effect and contribution stabilisation methods were enforced, that 
standardised assumptions would be used across the whole scheme. 
 
Discussion took place on the potential merger with other Pension 
Funds and officers indicated that this would be an option in the long 
term. 
 
RESOLVED:  
1. That the report be noted. 

 

 
27. 

 
RETIREMENT PERFORMANCE STATISTICS AND COST OF EARLY 
RETIREMENTS MONITOR 
 
Consideration was given to the report which summarised the number of 
early retirements in the second quarter of 2013/14. 
 
The report also provided Members with an update on the current 
situation on the cost to the fund of early retirements.   
 
RESOLVED:  

1. That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

 

Page 2



  
28.    PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE  

 
Consideration was given to the report which summarised the pension 
administration performance across key areas of work for the period 1 
July 2013 to 30 September 2013. Members were informed that there 
had been a marked and ongoing fall in Capita’s overall performance 
and the report provided details on the specific management actions 
which were underway to address this poor performance. 
 
Members were informed that average performance over the quarter 
had deteriorated significantly compared to the previous quarter, with a 
reduction of 17.7% from the previous performance of 94.16%. Officers 
reported that the continuing downward trend was of concern.  
 
Reference was made to the suggested management action which 
would be taken to address the performance issues. Two recent 
experienced ex Local Government Pension Fund Managers had 
recently been appointed who would be tasked with driving forward 
improvements. 
 
Officers reported by regular monitoring reports would be submitted to 
the Committee    
 
RESOLVED:  
1.  That the contents of the report be noted. 

 

Action By: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nancy Le 
Roux 

29. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REPORT FROM INVESTMENT SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
This item was discussed as a Part II item without the press or public 
present as the information under discussion contained confidential or 
exempt information as defined by law in the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985.  This was because it discussed ‘information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)’ (paragraph 3 of the 
schedule to the Act). 
 
RESOLVED:  
1.  That the contents of the report be noted. 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE 
INVESTMENT 
 
This item was discussed as a Part II item without the press or public 
present as the information under discussion contained confidential or 
exempt information as defined by law in the Local Government (Access 
to Information) Act 1985.  This was because it discussed ‘information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information)’ (paragraph 3 of the 
schedule to the Act).  
 
RESOLVED:  
1.  That the contents of the report be noted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Page 3



  
 The meeting, which commenced at 5.30 pm, closed at 6.15 pm. 
 These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 

resolutions please contact Khalid Ahmed on 01895 250833.  Circulation of these 
minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 

 

Page 4



REVIEW ON PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT OF THE 
PENSION FUND

Contact Officers Tunde Adekoya, 01895 556350

Papers with this report Northern Trust Executive Report
WM Local Authority Quarter Reports 

Private Equity Listing
Private Equity reports from Adams Street and LGT

SUMMARY

This report provides a summary of fund manager performance for the quarter ending 31
December 2013. Full details of Manager performance over the quarter are contained in 
the attached Northern Trust report. The total value of the fund’s investments as at the 31
December was £718m.

RECOMMENDATION

That the content of this report be noted.

1. PERFORMANCE

The performance of the Fund for the quarter to 31 December 2013 showed a relative
underperformance of (0.18)%, with a return of 3.02% compared to the benchmark of 
3.21%. One year figures show returns of 14.04%, 1.12% relatively better than the 
benchmark.

Performance Attribution Relative to Benchmark
Value

£m
Q4 2013 

%
1 Year 

%
3 Years 

%
5 Years 

%
Since 

Inception %
Barings 63.4 0.87 - - - (0.85)
JP Morgan 76.5 1.80 (1.09) - - 1.00
Kempen 46.9 (5.75) - - - (10.37)
Macquarie 6.0 2.75 1.26 (11.24) - (10.22)
M&G Investments 24.4 (0.51) 1.53 0.38 - 0.21
Newton 23.4 (2.08) - - - (3.55)
Ruffer 84.8 0.49 10.83 4.60 - 5.53
SsgA 143.4 (0.04) (0.16) (0.01) (0.01) 0.01
UBS TAA 11.9 (3.76) - - - (6.00)
UBS 145.3 0.99 8.54 3.73 1.72 1.29
UBS Property 53.4 0.09 (0.36) (0.30) (1.15) (0.64)
Private Equity 36.8 - - - - -
Total Fund 718.4 (0.18) 1.12 0.70 (0.01) 0.04

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



1.1 Manager: Barings Asset Management
Performance Objective: The fund aims to achieve an absolute return of 4% in excess of 
cash based on the 3 month Libor.
Approach: Focus on identifying and exploiting unrecognized growth opportunities.
Performance: In the quarter under review, Barings mandate returned 2.00% which 
compares favorably against the target of the 3 Month LIBOR +4% per annum, which
posted 1.12%. However in the period since inception in April 2013 they returned 2.22%
which is (0.85%) relatively below the target of 3.09%.

1.2 Manager: JP Morgan
Performance Objective: The investment objective of the company is to achieve a return 
of +3% over Libor 3 Month rate.
Approach: The aim of the portfolio is to be diversified across various corporate bonds with 
an average quality of BBB+ and derivatives may be used to achieve fund objectives.
Performance: To incorporate an element of risk adjusted return, the benchmark has been 
set to include outperformance of an absolute benchmark, in this case 3 Month Libor, by a 
further 3%. In relation to this benchmark JP Morgan have relatively outperformed since 
inception (Nov 2011) by 1.00%. In the quarter under review, JP Morgan relatively 
outperformed by 1.80 % with a return of 2.69 % against benchmark return of 0.87%.

1.3 Manager: Kempen International
Performance Objective: Seek to outperform their benchmark index by 2% per annum 
over rolling three year periods.
Approach: To earn a higher total return than its benchmark, MSCI World Total Return 
Index, including reinvestment of net dividends.
Performance: In the quarter under review, the Kempen mandate, produced a positive
return with 0.12% versus 6.22% for the MSCI All World Index +2%, but relatively 
underperformed its' benchmark by (5.75)%. This  translates into a since inception (January 
2013) return of 5.82% compared to the benchmark return of 18.07% and a relative
underperformance of (10.37)%. Q4, 2013 poor performance can be attributed to a 
combination of sector allocation (overweight utilities and cash underweight Information 
technology) and negative stock selection within sectors (e.g. Energy, Telecom and 
Industrials).

1.4 Manager: Macquarie
Performance Objective: Seek to outperform their benchmark index by 3% per annum 
over rolling three year periods.
Performance: Macquarie in contrast to their last quarter, outperformed the benchmark by 
2.78% with a return of 3.65% against benchmark return (3 Month Libor+3% p.a) of 0.87%.
Over the last twelve months Macquarie relatively outperformed the benchmark by 1.26%
with a return of 4.83% compared to the benchmark of 3.53%. However, three years and 
since inception returns of (7.91)% and (6.84)% led to relative underperformance figures of 
(11.24)% and (10.22)% respectively.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014

Page 6



1.5 Manager: M&G
Performance Objective: The investment objective of the Prudential/M&G UK Companies 
Financing Fund LP is to seek to maximise returns consistent with prudent investment 
management. The Fund aims to provide an absolute return of Libor +4-6% (net of fees). 
Additional returns may be achieved through equity participation or success fees.
Approach: The objective of the Fund is to create attractive levels of current income for
investors, while maintaining relatively low volatility of Net Asset Value. The fund was set 
up to provide medium to long term debt financing to mid-cap UK companies with strong 
business fundamentals that are facing difficulties refinancing existing loans in the bank
market.

Relative Performance
Q4 2013

%
1 Year 

%
3 Years 

%
5 Years

%
Since 

Inception %
Performance 0.60 6.13 5.16 - 4.99
Benchmark 1.12 4.53 4.77 - 4.77
Relative Return (0.51) 1.53 0.38 - 0.21

During the fourth quarter of 2013, M&G produced a 0.60% return, about (0.51)% less than 
the 3 Month LIBOR +4% p.a. Over the last year the account registers 6.13% against 
4.53%; whilst since inception (May 2010), the portfolio returned 4.99% pa against the 
benchmark of 4.77% pa. 

1.6 Manager: Newton
Performance Objective:  To outperform the FTSE World Index by over 2% p.a. over 
rolling five year periods. 
Approach: Increasing income and capital growth over the long term by investing in shares 
(i.e. equities) and similar investments of companies listed or located throughout the world. 
Performance: During the fourth quarter of 2013 Newton posted a 3.31% return compared 
to 5.50% for the FTSE World Index +2%, leading to a relative underperformance of 
(2.08)%. Since inception (January 2013) Newton have delivered a return of 10.94%
against the benchmark of 15.03%, producing a relative underperformance of (3.55)%.

1.7 Manager: RUFFER 
Performance Objective: The overall objective is to preserve the Client’s capital over 
rolling twelve month periods, and secondly to grow the Portfolio at a higher rate (after fees) 
than could reasonably be expected from the alternative of depositing the cash value of the 
Portfolio in a reputable United Kingdom bank.
Approach: Ruffer applies active asset allocation that is unconstrained, enabling them to 
manage market risk and volatility. The asset allocation balances “investments in fear”,
which should appreciate in the event of a market correction and protect the portfolio value,
with “investments in greed”, assets that capture growth when conditions are favourable. 
There are two tenets that Ruffer believes are central to absolute return investing which are 
to be agnostic about market direction and also to remove market timing from the portfolio.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014

Page 7



Performance: The Ruffer portfolio returned 0.62% over the quarter under review, which 
was relatively 0.49% more than its benchmark of 3 Month Libor. Driven by Q4's return all 
longer periods show high absolute and relative returns.  As a result, over the last twelve 
months they have posted a return of 11.40% against 0.52% for the target, resulting in the 
highest relative outperformance of all mandates at 10.83%. While since the inception in 
May 2010, 11 out of 14 quarters show positive returns and lead to figures of 6.33% versus 
0.75% per annum, which translates as a relative return of 5.53%.

1.8 Manager: SSgA
Performance Objective: To replicate their benchmark indices
Approach: The calculation of the index for passive funds assumes no cost of trading. In 
order to simply match the index, it is necessary to trade intelligently in order to minimise 
costs, and where possible, make small contributions to return in order to mitigate the 
natural costs associated with holding the securities in the index. Activities which SSgA 
employ to enhance income include; tactical trading around index changing events and 
stock lending. They also aim to alleviate costs by efficient trading through internal and 
external crossing networks.

Relative Performance
Q4 2013

%
1 Year 

%
3 Years 

%
5 Years

%
Since 

Inception %
Performance 3.68 16.29 8.25 12.06 13.50
Benchmark 3.72 16.48 8.26 12.07 13.49
Relative Return (0.04) (0.16) (0.01) (0.01) 0.01

The SSGA passively managed portfolio produced a return of 3.68% in the quarter which 
was 4 basis points below the benchmark; further analysis confirms the passive nature with
all categories aligned with their respective indices. So over the year they produce a
16.29% return, which is 16 basis points behind relative target, while over 3 years the per 
annum return falls to 8.25%, 1 basis point behind its benchmark. Since inception
(November 2008) a return of 13.50% pa is also1 basis point short of the benchmark.

1.9 Manager: UBS Tactical Asset Allocation
Performance Objective: Outperform the Barclays Capital US Inflation Linked Index.
Performance: The UBS Tactical mandate during the quarter under review returned 
(7.93)% compared to benchmark of (4.34)%, translating to a relative underperformance of 
(3.76)%. Since inception (June 2013) returns was no better at (15.25)% against 
benchmark of (9.83)% .

1.10 Manager: UBS  
Performance Objective: To seek to outperform their benchmark index by 2% per annum, 
over rolling three year periods.
Approach: UBS follow a value-based process to identify businesses with good prospects 
where, for a variety of reasons, the share price is under-estimating the company’s true 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014

Page 8



long term value. Ideas come from a number of sources, foremost of which is looking at the 
difference between current share prices and UBS’s price target for individual stocks. The 
value-based process will work well in market environments where investors are focussing 
on long term fundamentals. 

Relative Performance: 
Q4 2013

%
1 Year 

%
3 Years 

%
5 Years

%
Since 

Inception %
Performance 6.51 31.12 13.49 16.27 10.61
Benchmark 5.46 20.81 9.41 14.31 9.21
Relative Return 0.99 8.54 3.73 1.72 1.29

Performance for the quarter was positive and ahead of the benchmark with the largest 
contributions to out-performance coming from overweight positions in Darty, BP and 
Carnival. UBS has again, outperformed the benchmark all through one, three and five year 
periods. This resulted in the since inception performance relative return increasing to 
1.29% from 1.26% in Q3, 2013.

1.11 Manager: UBS Property
Performance Objective: To seek to outperform their benchmark index by 0.75% per 
annum over rolling three year periods.
Approach: UBS take a top down and bottom up approach to investing in property funds. 
Initially the top down approach allocates sector and fund type based on the benchmark. 
The bottom up approach then seeks to identify a range of funds which are expected to 
outperform the benchmark.

Relative Performance: 
Q4 2013

%
1 Year 

%
3 Years 

%
5 Years

%
Since 

Inception %
Performance 4.39 9.07 5.44 4.23 0.19
Benchmark 4.30 9.46 5.75 5.44 0.83
Excess Return 0.09 (0.36) (0.30) (1.15) (0.64)

The UBS Property portfolio produced a return of 4.39%, in contrast to last quarter this was 
9 basis points above the IPD UK PPFI All Balanced Funds index figure of 4.30%.
Underperformance continues to be seen in all long periods, with one, three and five years
showing positive returns of 9.07%, 5.44% and 4.23 % respectively. But these were 
(0.36)%, (0.30)% and (1.15)% below their benchmarks. Since inception, in March 2006, 
the funds loses value with a figure of 0.19% against benchmark of 0.83% return, meaning 
the underperformance is now (64) basis points.

2. ABSOLUTE RETURNS FOR THE QUARTER

Opening 
Balance

Net 
Investment

Appreciation
£000’s

Income 
Received

Closing 
Balance

Active 
Management 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014

Page 9



£000’s £000’s £000’s Contribution
£000’s

Barings 62,112 11 1,242 - 63,365 544
JP 
Morgan 74,497 - 2,002 - 76,499 1,351

Kempen 46,782 30 54 - 46,866 (2,871)
Macquarie 6,613 (895) 253 - 5,971 159
M&G 22,253 1,972 145 - 24,370 (126)
Newton 22,637 - 749 - 23,386 (506)
Ruffer 84,242 (1) 242 284 84,767 415
SSgA 138,355 - 5,092 - 143,447 (55)
SSgA 
Drawdown 1 - - - 1 -

UBS 136,436 - 7,906 970 145,311 1,409
UBS 
Property 51,141 - 1,699 548 53,388 50

UBS TAA 12,966 (20) (1,054) 27 11,919 (454)

The above table provides details on the impact of manager performance on absolute asset 
values over the quarter based on their mandate benchmarks.

3. Other Items

At the end of December 2013, £23.8m (book cost) had been invested in Private Equity,
which equates to 3.32% of the fund against the target investment of 5.00%. This level is 
within the limits of the over-commitment strategy of 8.75%. In terms of cash movements 
over the quarter, Adams Street called £298k and distributed £934k, whilst LGT called 
£396k and distributed £1,017k. This trend is set to continue in the next few years as the 
fund’s investments in private equity climbs up the “J-Curve” and more distributions will be 
received as the various funds mature.

The securities lending programme for the quarter resulted in income of £13.7k. Offset 
against this was £4.8k of expenses leaving a net figure earned of £8.9k. The fund is 
permitted to lend up to 25% of the eligible assets total and as at 31 December 2013 the
average value of assets on loan during the quarter totalled £25.2m representing
approximately 12.5% of this total.

The passive currency overlay agreed by Committee was put in place at the end of January 
2011 with 100% Euro hedge. The latest quarterly roll occurred on the 6 February 2014 and 
yielded a realised gain of £262k.

For the quarter ending 31 December 2013, Hillingdon returned (0.18) %, underperforming 
against the WM average of 3.70% by (3.88) %. The one year figure also, shows an under-
performance of (0.96) %, returning 14.04% against the WM average return of 15.0%.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014

Page 10



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

These are set out in the report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications arising directly from the report

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

Page 13



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
  

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 R

ep
or

t
3

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l O
ve

rv
ie

w

6 8 11 12 14 16 17 18 21

Pl
an

 C
om

m
en

ta
ry

Sc
he

m
e 

&
 M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce

B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et

C
om

bi
ne

d 
Fu

nd
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce

C
om

po
ne

nt
 R

et
ur

ns
 - 

E
qu

ity

C
om

po
ne

nt
 R

et
ur

ns
 -

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e

C
om

po
ne

nt
 R

et
ur

ns
 -

O
th

er
 A

ss
et

s

Po
lic

y 
A

ttr
ib

ut
io

n
B

y 
M

an
ag

er

M
an

ag
er

 F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

A
pp

en
di

x
41

B
en

ch
m

ar
ks

42
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

of
 R

is
k 

Fo
rm

ul
ae

43
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

of
 R

is
k 

Fo
rm

ul
ae

 c
on

td

44
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

of
 E

qu
ity

 C
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s

45
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

of
 F

ix
ed

 In
co

m
e 

C
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s

46
D

is
cl

ai
m

er

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

P
ag
e
2
of
46

Page 14



M
ar

ke
t C

om
m

en
ta

ry
4t

h 
Q

ua
rt

er
, 2

01
3

E
qu

ity
 In

de
x 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 (i
n 

G
BP

)

-1
0%0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

Th
re

e
 M

o
n

th
s

Ye
a

r 
To

 D
a

te
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

Th
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
Fi

ve
 Y

e
a

rs

Th
re

e
M

o
n

th
s

Y
e

a
r 

To
D

a
te

O
n

e
Y

e
a

r
Th

re
e

Y
e

a
rs

Fi
v
e

Y
e

a
rs

FT
SE

 A
ll 

Sh
a

re
5.

5
20

.8
20

.8
9.

4
14

.3

FT
: 

W
o

rld
5.

2
22

.4
22

.4
8.

8
12

.4

FT
: W

o
rld

 e
x 

U
K

5.
2

22
.7

22
.7

8.
8

12
.3

FT
: 

A
W

I N
o

rt
h

 A
m

e
ric

a
7.

5
28

.3
28

.3
12

.9
14

.5

FT
: D

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 E
u

ro
p

e
 e

x 
U

K
5.

8
26

.5
26

.5
8.

3
10

.0

FT
: D

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 A
sia

 P
a

c
 x

 J
p

-1
.1

2.
4

2.
4

2.
2

14
.8

FT
 A

W
: 

Ja
p

a
n

0.
1

24
.9

24
.9

4.
0

4.
7

M
SC

I E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a

rk
e

ts
 G

D
-0

.4
-4

.1
-4

.1
-3

.6
11

.9

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 H
ist

or
y

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 R
et

ur
ns

%

B
ar

ga
in

 h
un

te
rs

 r
ev

el
le

d 
in

 s
om

e 
of

 t
he

 e
ar

lie
st

 s
ea

so
na

l s
al

es
 o

n 
re

co
rd

 a
s 

re
ta

ile
rs

 j
os

tle
d 

fo
r 

C
hr

is
tm

as
 c

us
to

m
. T

he
 F

ed
 s

ta
rt

ed
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

its
 s

tim
ul

us
; 

cu
tti

ng
 m

on
th

ly
 p

ur
ch

as
es

 b
y 

$1
0b

n 
in

 D
ec

em
be

r 
an

d 
ra

is
in

g 
its

 j
ob

 m
ar

ke
t 

ou
tlo

ok
 f

or
 2

01
4.

 E
m

er
gi

ng
an

d 
A

si
an

 m
ar

ke
ts

 r
es

po
nd

ed
 c

al
m

ly
 t

o 
th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
ea

sy
 m

on
ey

 l
ar

ge
ly

 d
ue

 t
o 

th
e 

hi
nt

s 
m

ad
e 

in
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

m
on

th
s

th
at

 th
is

 w
as

 c
om

in
g.

 T
he

 O
E

C
D

 r
ed

uc
ed

 it
s 

gl
ob

al
 o

ut
lo

ok
 f

or
 2

01
4 

fr
om

 4
%

 to
 3

.6
%

 b
la

m
in

g 
a 

sl
ow

do
w

n 
in

 E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
,

th
e 

st
al

em
at

e 
en

du
re

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
U

S 
de

bt
 c

ei
lin

g 
an

d 
th

e 
ta

pe
rin

g 
of

 F
ed

 s
tim

ul
us

. D
is

ap
po

in
tin

g 
gr

ow
th

 in
 th

e 
E

ur
oz

on
e 

an
d 

Ja
pa

n,
bo

th
 s

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 w
ea

k 
ex

po
rt

s 
ov

er
 Q

3,
 w

ill
 l

im
it 

th
e 

fin
al

 g
lo

ba
l 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
fig

ur
es

 f
or

 2
01

3.
 G

lo
ba

lly
, 

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

ga
in

ed
m

os
t 

va
lu

e 
ov

er
 t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
 a

nd
 I

nd
us

tr
ia

ls
 w

as
 t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
be

st
 p

er
fo

rm
er

 o
nc

e 
ag

ai
n,

 l
ea

di
ng

 a
 p

ac
k 

of
 s

ec
to

rs
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 H
ea

lth
C

ar
e 

an
d 

C
on

su
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 s

tr
on

gl
y.

 T
ho

se
 t

w
o 

la
tte

r 
se

ct
or

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
st

an
d 

ou
t 

hi
gh

 p
er

fo
rm

er
s 

of
 2

01
3.

 U
til

iti
es

ag
ai

n 
lo

st
 m

os
t 

va
lu

e 
ov

er
 t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
 b

ut
 B

as
ic

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 w

as
 t

he
 w

or
st

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

se
ct

or
 o

f 
th

e 
ye

ar
. 

T
he

 p
ric

e 
of

 c
ru

de
 o

il
fu

tu
re

s 
en

de
d 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

up
 s

lig
ht

ly
 a

t 
$1

10
 p

er
 b

ar
re

l. 
T

he
 F

T
SE

 W
or

ld
 w

as
 u

p 
by

 5
.2

%
 (

G
B

P)
 o

ve
r 

qu
ar

te
r 

fo
ur

 2
01

3 
an

d 
is

ah
ea

d 
by

 2
2.

4%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 (
G

B
P)

.

T
he

 E
ur

oz
on

e 
is

 l
oo

ki
ng

 e
nv

io
us

ly
 a

t 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 s

uc
ce

ss
 s

to
ry

 i
n 

th
e 

U
K

 a
s 

gl
ob

al
 i

nv
es

to
rs

 s
ee

k 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 B
rit

is
h

re
co

ve
ry

. 
T

he
 O

E
C

D
 u

pg
ra

de
d 

its
 U

K
 g

ro
w

th
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
fr

om
 0

.8
%

 t
o 

1.
4%

 f
or

 2
01

3 
an

d 
fr

om
 2

.7
%

 t
o 

3.
6%

 f
or

 2
01

4.
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 t
he

 s
tr

in
g 

of
 f

lo
ta

tio
ns

 i
n 

20
13

, 
SA

G
A

 t
he

 +
50

s 
tr

av
el

 a
ge

nt
 a

nd
 i

ns
ur

er
 l

oo
ks

 s
et

 t
o 

co
m

e 
to

 m
ar

ke
t 

in
 a

 d
ea

l 
w

or
th

£3
bn

. B
T

 s
ho

ck
ed

 b
y 

w
in

ni
ng

 th
e 

rig
ht

s,
 a

t h
ug

e 
ex

pe
ns

e,
 to

 s
ho

w
 U

E
FA

 f
oo

tb
al

l a
s 

th
ey

 b
at

tle
 S

ky
 f

or
 b

ro
ad

ba
nd

 c
us

to
m

er
s.

 B
T

sh
ar

es
 f

ar
ed

 b
et

te
r 

th
an

 th
os

e 
of

 S
ky

 in
 th

e 
af

te
rm

at
h.

 U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t f

el
l a

ga
in

 to
 7

.4
%

 in
 th

e 
th

re
e 

m
on

th
s 

to
 O

ct
ob

er
, t

he
 lo

w
es

t
si

nc
e 

A
pr

il 
20

09
. 

T
he

 P
ou

nd
 r

os
e 

vs
 t

he
 D

ol
la

r 
to

 i
ts

 s
tr

on
ge

st
 l

ev
el

 i
n 

m
or

e 
th

an
 t

w
o 

ye
ar

s 
he

lp
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
re

co
ve

ry
 o

f
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t. 
B

as
ic

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 r

ev
er

te
d 

to
 b

ei
ng

 w
ea

ke
st

 s
ec

to
r 

ov
er

 t
he

 q
ua

rt
er

 a
nd

 y
ea

r. 
T

el
ec

om
s 

an
d 

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

ga
in

ed
m

os
t v

al
ue

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
an

d 
th

e 
fo

rm
er

 w
as

 a
ls

o 
th

e 
to

p 
pe

rf
or

m
er

 o
f 

20
13

. T
he

 F
T

SE
 A

ll 
Sh

ar
e 

w
as

 u
p 

5.
5%

 (
G

B
P)

 o
ve

r 
th

e
fo

ur
th

 q
ua

rt
er

 a
nd

 r
em

ai
ns

 a
he

ad
 o

ve
r 

on
e 

ye
ar

, n
ow

 b
y 

20
.8

%
 (

G
B

P)
.

D
es

pi
te

 t
he

 e
m

er
ge

nc
e 

fr
om

 r
ec

es
si

on
, 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
co

un
tr

ie
s 

lik
e 

Sp
ai

n 
ar

e 
st

ru
gg

lin
g 

to
 g

et
 b

ac
k 

to
 p

re
-c

ris
is

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

s
co

ns
um

er
s 

ar
e 

bu
rd

en
ed

 w
ith

 h
ig

h 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

an
d 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
de

bt
. 

Po
rt

ug
al

 u
nv

ei
le

d 
a 

di
gi

ta
l 

cl
oc

k 
co

un
tin

g 
do

w
n 

to
 t

he
pl

an
ne

d 
ex

it 
fr

om
 i

ts
 E

U
R

 7
8b

n 
ba

ilo
ut

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

bu
t 

th
e 

IM
F 

ha
s 

w
ar

ne
d 

th
at

 t
he

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 r

ef
or

m
s 

to
 i

ts
 e

co
no

m
y 

w
ill

 t
ak

e
lo

ng
 h

ar
d 

ye
ar

s 
to

 i
m

pl
em

en
t. 

U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

in
 G

re
ec

e 
pu

sh
ed

 h
ig

he
r 

to
 2

7.
4%

, 
m

or
e 

th
an

 d
ou

bl
e 

th
e 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
E

ur
oz

on
e

av
er

ag
e 

of
 1

1.
6%

. I
re

la
nd

 b
ec

am
e 

th
e 

fir
st

 E
ur

oz
on

e 
m

em
be

r 
st

at
e 

to
 le

av
e 

its
 r

es
cu

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
an

d 
gr

ow
th

 o
f 

2%
 is

 f
or

ec
as

t f
or

ne
xt

 y
ea

r 
de

sp
ite

 h
ig

h 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

hi
gh

 t
ax

es
 a

nd
 s

al
ar

y 
cu

ts
. 

Q
3 

E
ur

oz
on

e 
G

D
P 

dr
op

pe
d 

to
 0

.1
%

 a
s 

bo
th

 F
ra

nc
e 

an
d

G
er

m
an

y 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

to
 s

lo
w

 a
nd

 I
ta

ly
 e

nt
er

ed
 i

ts
 n

in
th

 c
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

of
 r

ec
es

si
on

. 
T

he
 F

T
SE

 D
ev

el
op

ed
 E

ur
op

e 
ex

 U
K

in
de

x 
re

tu
rn

ed
 5

.8
%

 (
G

B
P)

 o
ve

r 
qu

ar
te

r 
fo

ur
 a

nd
 2

6.
5%

 (
G

B
P)

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
.

W
al

l 
St

re
et

 l
ed

 g
lo

ba
l 

m
ar

ke
ts

 h
ig

he
r 

to
 e

nd
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
si

gn
s 

th
e 

U
S 

is
 p

ic
ki

ng
 u

p.
 F

or
d 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
its

qu
ar

te
rly

 d
iv

id
en

d 
25

%
 a

fte
r 

en
jo

yi
ng

 a
 s

al
es

 b
oo

m
 a

t 
ho

m
e 

an
d 

de
sp

ite
 f

al
lin

g 
E

ur
op

ea
n 

an
d 

So
ut

h 
A

m
er

ic
an

 s
al

es
 i

m
pa

ct
in

g
pr

of
ita

bi
lit

y 
ta

rg
et

s.
 A

 s
ec

on
d 

ba
tc

h 
of

 s
ou

gh
t a

fte
r 

Fa
ce

bo
ok

 s
ha

re
s 

w
or

th
 $

4b
n 

w
ill

 c
om

e 
to

 m
ar

ke
t, 

po
ss

ib
ly

 in
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
fo

r 
a

la
rg

e 
ac

qu
is

iti
on

. I
n 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
se

ct
or

, T
w

itt
er

's 
sh

ar
e 

pr
ic

e 
ha

d 
do

ub
le

d 
a 

m
on

th
 a

fte
r 

its
 I

PO
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r. 
S&

P 
an

al
ys

is
 s

ug
ge

st
s

th
at

 U
S 

ba
nk

s 
m

ay
 y

et
 h

av
e 

to
 s

pe
nd

 $
10

0b
n 

to
 s

et
tle

 c
la

im
s 

on
 b

ad
 s

ub
pr

im
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

. 
H

ew
le

tt-
Pa

ck
ar

d 
sh

ar
es

 s
ur

pr
is

ed
 b

y
re

po
rt

in
g 

hi
gh

er
 t

ha
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
ha

vi
ng

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 w

el
l 

in
 t

he
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

. 
T

he
 3

rd
 U

S 
G

D
P 

es
tim

at
e 

w
as

 r
ev

is
ed

up
 s

ha
rp

ly
 to

 4
.1

%
 f

or
 Q

3,
 u

p 
fr

om
 2

.5
%

 in
 Q

2.
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
an

d 
In

du
st

ria
ls

 m
ad

e 
th

e 
bi

gg
es

t 
ga

in
s 

ov
er

 Q
4 

an
d 

U
til

iti
es

 w
as

 th
e

w
or

st
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
se

ct
or

. 
In

du
st

ria
ls

 l
ed

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 C

on
su

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ov

er
 t

he
 y

ea
r. 

T
he

 F
T

SE
 N

or
th

 A
m

er
ic

a 
in

de
x 

re
tu

rn
ed

7.
5%

 (
G

B
P)

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
fo

ur
th

 q
ua

rt
er

 a
nd

 2
8.

3%
 (

G
B

P)
 f

or
 th

e 
ye

ar
.

Ja
pa

n'
s 

C
PI

 r
et

ur
ne

d 
its

 h
ig

he
st

 r
ea

di
ng

 i
n 

15
 y

ea
rs

 g
iv

in
g 

th
e 

st
ro

ng
es

t 
si

gn
 y

et
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

w
ar

 w
ith

 d
ef

la
tio

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 w

on
.

In
du

st
ria

l 
ou

tp
ut

 i
s 

al
so

 s
ho

w
in

g 
a 

st
ea

dy
 i

nc
re

as
e 

to
 e

nd
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

la
ud

ed
 t

he
ir 

su
cc

es
s 

w
ith

 c
la

im
s 

th
at

 a
"g

oo
d 

cy
cl

e 
ha

s 
be

gu
n"

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
st

ea
dy

 d
om

es
tic

 d
em

an
d.

 S
on

y 
is

 o
ne

 f
or

m
er

 f
la

gs
hi

p 
fir

m
 n

ot
 s

ha
rin

g 
th

is
 g

oo
d 

fo
rt

un
e 

as
 it

cu
t 

pr
of

it 
fo

re
ca

st
s 

fo
r 

20
13

 b
y 

40
%

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

ne
t 

lo
ss

es
 o

ve
r 

qu
ar

te
rs

 t
w

o 
an

d 
th

re
e.

 S
am

su
ng

's 
C

FO
 p

ro
m

is
ed

 a
 m

od
es

t 
ris

e 
in

di
vi

de
nd

 t
o 

ab
ou

t 
1%

 o
f 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

sh
ar

e 
pr

ic
e.

 T
he

 F
T

SE
 J

ap
an

 r
et

ur
ne

d 
0.

1%
 (

G
B

P)
 f

or
 q

ua
rt

er
 f

ou
r 

an
d 

th
e 

FT
SE

 D
ev

el
op

ed
A

si
a 

Pa
ci

fic
 e

x 
Ja

pa
n 

re
tu

rn
ed

 -
1.

1%
 (

G
B

P)
. 

T
he

 W
or

ld
 B

an
k 

ha
s 

w
ar

ne
d 

th
at

 s
ud

de
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 a
dv

an
ce

d 
ec

on
om

y 
in

te
re

st
ra

te
s 

co
ul

d 
le

ad
 t

o 
an

 a
br

up
t 

co
nt

ra
ct

io
n 

of
 f

un
di

ng
 t

o 
em

er
gi

ng
 m

ar
ke

ts
, 

ca
us

in
g 

in
st

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

do
m

es
tic

 f
in

an
ci

al
cr

is
es

. 
C

hi
na

 e
nd

ed
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

w
ea

kl
y 

as
 s

to
ck

s 
re

co
rd

ed
 t

he
ir 

w
or

st
 l

os
in

g 
st

re
ak

 i
n 

20
 y

ea
rs

. 
C

hi
ne

se
 G

D
P 

sl
ow

ed
 t

o 
7.

7%
 f

ro
m

7.
8%

 i
n 

Q
3.

 T
ur

ke
y'

s 
co

rr
up

tio
n 

cr
is

is
 d

ee
pe

ne
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 s
ac

ki
ng

 o
f 

ha
lf 

th
e 

ca
bi

ne
t 

by
 P

rim
e 

M
in

is
te

r 
E

rd
og

an
 w

hi
ch

 s
en

t 
th

e
Li

ra
 t

o 
a 

re
co

rd
 l

ow
 v

s 
U

SD
. 

T
ha

ila
nd

 h
as

 s
ee

n 
m

as
s 

pr
ot

es
ts

 i
n 

th
e 

st
re

et
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
op

po
si

tio
n 

pa
rt

y 
qu

it 
pa

rli
am

en
t.

Pe
ac

ef
ul

 p
ro

te
st

s 
in

 U
kr

ai
ne

 h
av

e 
tu

rn
ed

 v
io

le
nt

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

a 
la

ck
 o

f 
pr

og
re

ss
. 

R
us

si
a'

s 
lo

ng
 t

er
m

 g
ro

w
th

 f
or

ec
as

t 
is

 d
ow

n 
to

 j
us

t
2.

5%
 a

nn
ua

lly
 t

o 
20

30
 p

ro
m

pt
in

g 
qu

es
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 P
re

si
de

nt
 P

ut
in

's 
ec

on
om

ic
 m

od
el

. 
G

ol
d 

w
as

 d
ow

n 
fr

om
 l

as
t 

qu
ar

te
r 

en
di

ng
 t

he
ye

ar
 a

t 
$1

,2
00

 p
er

 o
un

ce
. 

T
he

 M
SC

I 
E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 i
nd

ex
 r

et
ur

ne
d 

-0
.4

%
 (

G
B

P)
 f

or
 t

he
 f

ou
rt

h 
qu

ar
te

r 
an

d 
-4

.1
%

 (
G

B
P)

 f
or

th
e 

ye
ar

.

P
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

t R
is

k 
&

 A
n

a
ly

tic
a

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
ag
e
3
of
46

Page 15



M
ar

ke
t C

om
m

en
ta

ry
4t

h 
Q

ua
rt

er
, 2

01
3

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
In

de
x 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 (i
n 

G
BP

)

-1
0%-5
%0%5%10
%

Th
re

e
 M

o
n

th
s

Ye
a

r 
To

 D
a

te
O

n
e

 Y
e

a
r

Th
re

e
 Y

e
a

rs
Fi

ve
 Y

e
a

rs

Th
re

e
M

o
n

th
s

Y
e

a
r 

To
D

a
te

O
n

e
Y

e
a

r
Th

re
e

Y
e

a
rs

Fi
v
e

Y
e

a
rs

FT
SE

 A
ll 

St
o

c
k 

In
d

e
x

-1
.4

-3
.9

-3
.9

4.
5

3.
9

FT
SE

 A
ll 

St
o

c
k 

0-
5 

Yr
. G

ilt
s

-0
.3

-0
.6

-0
.6

1.
7

2.
3

FT
SE

 A
ll 

St
o

c
k 

5-
15

 Y
r. 

G
ilt

s
-1

.9
-5

.0
-5

.0
4.

6
4.

5

FT
SE

 A
ll 

St
o

c
k 

>
 1

5 
Yr

. G
ilt

s
-1

.8
-5

.9
-5

.9
6.

9
4.

8

M
L 

ST
G

 N
-G

ilt
s 

A
ll 

St
o

c
ks

-0
.1

0.
8

0.
8

7.
0

8.
1

FT
SE

 In
d

e
x 

Li
n

ke
d

-0
.9

0.
5

0.
5

6.
7

7.
1

FT
SE

 In
d

e
x 

Li
n

ke
d

 5
+

 y
rs

-0
.9

0.
6

0.
6

7.
6

7.
5

JP
M

 G
BI

 G
lo

b
a

l
-3

.5
-6

.3
-6

.3
-0

.7
-0

.5

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 H
ist

or
y

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 R
et

ur
ns

 %

G
lo

ba
l 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 a
cc

el
er

at
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 f
in

al
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 
20

13
 w

ith
 e

co
no

m
ic

 o
ut

pu
t 

ex
pa

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
fif

te
en

th
 s

uc
ce

ss
iv

e
m

on
th

 a
s 

th
e 

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
G

lo
ba

l 
M

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

&
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

PM
I 

re
ad

 5
4.

2 
at

 t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

D
ec

em
be

r. 
O

ve
ra

ll,
 r

ec
or

de
d 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
fo

r
20

13
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
 w

as
 f

as
te

r 
th

an
 i

n 
20

12
. 

In
 J

ap
an

, 
th

e 
up

w
ar

d 
tr

en
d 

in
 c

on
su

m
er

 p
ric

es
 a

nd
 e

xi
t 

fr
om

 i
ts

 m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

 p
er

io
d 

of
de

fla
tio

n 
co

nt
in

ue
d,

 a
s 

th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
C

PI
 e

xc
ee

de
d 

1%
 f

or
 t

he
 f

irs
t 

tim
e 

in
 5

 y
ea

rs
. 

T
he

 B
an

k 
of

 J
ap

an
's 

la
te

st
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 T
an

ka
n

su
rv

ey
, 

a 
po

ll 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
co

nf
id

en
ce

 t
ha

t 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
e 

pe
rc

ei
ve

d 
he

al
th

 o
f 

th
e 

do
m

es
tic

 e
co

no
m

y,
 s

oa
re

d 
to

 i
ts

 h
ig

he
st

 l
ev

el
 i

n 
si

x
ye

ar
s,

 a
nd

 d
es

pi
te

 e
co

no
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 s

lo
w

in
g 

to
 0

.5
%

 i
n 

Q
3 

fr
om

 0
.9

%
 i

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 q

ua
rt

er
, 

m
an

y 
an

al
ys

ts
 c

on
cl

ud
e 

th
at

 P
rim

e
M

in
is

te
r 

Sh
in

zo
 A

be
's 

st
im

ul
us

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
(k

no
w

n 
as

 A
be

no
m

ic
s)

 a
re

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
to

 h
av

e 
th

e 
de

si
re

d 
ef

fe
ct

. 
C

hi
na

's 
th

ird
 q

ua
rt

er
 G

D
P

gr
ow

th
 w

as
 7

.8
%

 y
ea

r-
on

-y
ea

r, 
up

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
qu

ar
te

r's
 7

.5
%

 e
xp

an
si

on
, 

in
du

st
ria

l 
ou

tp
ut

, 
re

ta
il 

sa
le

s 
an

d 
ex

po
rt

s 
w

er
e 

al
l 

up
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 f

ro
m

 a
 y

ea
r 

ag
o,

 a
nd

 e
ve

n 
th

ou
gh

 t
he

 H
SB

C
 c

om
po

si
te

 p
ur

ch
as

in
g 

m
an

ag
er

s 
in

de
x 

(P
M

I)
 r

et
re

at
ed

 f
ro

m
 5

0.
8 

in
N

ov
em

be
r 

to
 5

0.
5 

fo
r 

D
ec

em
be

r, 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

 h
as

 r
em

ai
ne

d 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

ne
ut

ra
l 

50
 m

ar
k,

 i
nd

ic
at

in
g 

ex
pa

ns
io

n,
 f

or
 f

iv
e 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e

m
on

th
s.

 O
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
an

d 
ye

ar
 to

 d
at

e 
th

e 
JP

M
 G

lo
ba

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

on
d 

in
de

x 
ha

s 
de

cl
in

ed
 -

3.
5%

 a
nd

-6
.3

%
, w

hi
le

 th
e 

B
ar

cl
ay

s 
C

ap
ita

l G
lo

ba
l A

gg
re

ga
te

 C
or

po
ra

te
 B

on
d 

in
de

x 
fe

ll 
-1

.0
%

 a
nd

 -
1.

5%
 (

al
l G

B
P)

.

D
at

a 
sh

ow
ed

 f
ur

th
er

 s
ig

ns
 o

f 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 U
K

 e
co

no
m

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
Q

4.
 T

he
 U

K
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ra

te
 f

el
l 

to
 7

.4
%

, 
its

lo
w

es
t 

le
ve

l 
si

nc
e 

20
09

, 
an

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 j

ob
le

ss
 r

at
e 

ha
vi

ng
 b

ee
n 

lin
ke

d 
to

 f
ut

ur
e 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
m

ov
em

en
ts

, 
th

is
 a

nd
 t

he
 f

as
t 

im
pr

ov
in

g
ec

on
om

ic
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

ha
s 

th
e 

sp
ot

lig
ht

 f
irm

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
B

an
k'

s 
M

on
et

ar
y 

Po
lic

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 (
M

PC
). 

D
es

pi
te

 t
he

 h
ei

gh
te

ne
d 

sp
ec

ul
at

io
n 

th
at

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ar
e 

ed
gi

ng
 e

ve
r 

cl
os

er
, G

ov
er

no
r 

M
ar

k 
C

ar
ne

y 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

gu
ar

de
d,

 i
nf

or
m

in
g 

m
ar

ke
ts

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
7%

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

th
re

sh
ol

d 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 a
ut

om
at

ic
al

ly
 l

ea
d 

to
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

ris
e.

 A
fte

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r, 
D

ec
em

be
r's

 i
nf

la
tio

n 
ra

te
, 

as
 m

ea
su

re
d 

by
 t

he
C

on
su

m
er

 P
ric

es
 I

nd
ex

, w
as

 r
ev

ea
le

d 
to

 h
av

e 
fa

lle
n 

to
 2

%
, t

he
 f

irs
t t

im
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
t o

r 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

se
t t

ar
ge

t o
f 

2%
si

nc
e 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

09
. T

he
 O

ff
ic

e 
fo

r 
N

at
io

na
l S

ta
tis

tic
s 

co
nf

irm
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

ec
on

om
y 

gr
ew

 b
y 

0.
8%

 in
 th

e 
th

ird
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 
20

13
, w

hi
ch

w
as

 t
he

 f
as

te
st

 r
at

e 
fo

r 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.
 T

he
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

PM
I 

en
de

d 
20

13
 a

t 
57

.3
, 

w
ith

 o
ut

pu
t 

ris
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
ni

nt
h 

su
cc

es
si

ve
 m

on
th

 i
n

D
ec

em
be

r. 
T

he
 U

K
 h

ou
si

ng
 m

ar
ke

t 
pi

ck
ed

 u
p 

sp
ee

d 
ov

er
 t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
, 

w
ith

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ou

tp
ut

 r
is

in
g 

at
 t

he
 f

as
te

st
 p

ac
e 

in
 m

or
e 

th
an

si
x 

ye
ar

s 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
an

d 
th

e 
H

al
ifa

x 
re

po
rt

in
g 

th
at

 h
ou

se
 p

ric
es

 r
os

e 
by

 1
.1

%
 i

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

m
on

th
, a

nd
up

 7
.7

%
 a

nn
ua

lly
. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, 

ne
w

 h
ou

si
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ju

m
pe

d 
5.

8%
 i

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 f

ro
m

 S
ep

te
m

be
r's

 l
ev

el
. 

C
on

se
qu

en
tly

, 
in

 a
n 

en
de

av
ou

r
to

 c
oo

l 
th

e 
ho

us
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t, 
H

M
 T

re
as

ur
y 

an
no

un
ce

d 
th

at
 f

ro
m

 2
01

4 
ho

m
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
w

ill
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 b
e 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 t

he
 F

un
di

ng
 f

or
Le

nd
in

g 
Sc

he
m

e.
 T

he
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
10

-y
ea

r 
gi

lt 
yi

el
d 

se
ttl

ed
 a

t 
3.

02
%

 a
t 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 q

ua
rt

er
, 

up
 f

ro
m

 2
.7

2%
 a

t 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 Q
3.

 T
he

FT
SE

 A
ll 

St
oc

k 
G

ilt
 I

nd
ex

 r
et

ur
ne

d 
-1

.4
%

 f
or

 t
he

 q
ua

rt
er

 a
nd

 -
3.

9%
 y

ea
r 

to
 d

at
e 

w
hi

le
 t

he
 M

L 
St

er
lin

g 
N

on
 G

ilt
s 

In
de

x 
re

tu
rn

ed
-0

.1
%

 a
nd

 +
0.

8%
 (

al
l G

B
P)

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

ds
.

T
he

 e
ur

oz
on

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

0.
1%

 in
 th

e 
th

ird
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 
20

13
, l

ow
er

 th
an

 t
he

 0
.3

%
 r

ec
or

de
d 

in
 t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
qu

ar
te

r. 
T

he
re

gi
on

's 
in

fla
tio

n 
ra

te
 f

el
l 

to
 0

.9
%

 i
n 

N
ov

em
be

r, 
w

el
l 

be
lo

w
 t

he
 t

ar
ge

t 
of

 2
.0

%
, 

an
d 

th
e 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
C

en
tr

al
 B

an
k 

(E
C

B
), 

ci
tin

g
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 e
co

no
m

ic
 w

ea
kn

es
s,

 c
ut

 t
he

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
to

 a
 r

ec
or

d 
lo

w
 o

f 
0.

25
%

 f
ro

m
 0

.5
%

. D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r, 

cr
ed

it 
ra

tin
gs

ag
en

cy
 S

ta
nd

ar
d 

&
 P

oo
rs

 c
ut

 F
ra

nc
e'

s 
cr

ed
it 

ra
tin

g 
by

 o
ne

 n
ot

ch
 t

o 
A

A
 a

nd
 t

he
 N

et
he

rla
nd

s' 
cr

ed
it 

ra
tin

g 
by

 o
ne

 n
ot

ch
 t

o 
A

A
+.

Su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

, t
he

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
U

ni
on

 h
ad

 it
s 

cr
ed

it 
ra

tin
g 

tr
im

m
ed

 to
 A

A
+ 

fr
om

 A
A

A
. F

ra
nc

e'
s 

ec
on

om
y 

is
 w

or
ry

in
g,

 w
ith

 G
D

P 
ne

ga
tiv

e
in

 t
he

 t
hi

rd
 q

ua
rt

er
 a

t 
-0

.1
%

. 
B

y 
co

nt
ra

st
 i

n 
G

er
m

an
y,

 c
on

su
m

er
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 h
it 

a 
si

x-
ye

ar
 h

ig
h 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r, 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

gr
ew

at
 t

he
 f

as
te

st
 r

at
e 

si
nc

e 
20

11
, 

an
d 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
fe

ll 
fo

r 
th

e 
fir

st
 t

im
e 

in
 f

iv
e 

m
on

th
s 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r. 

E
ls

ew
he

re
, 

Sp
ai

n 
em

er
ge

d 
fr

om
re

ce
ss

io
n 

as
 t

hi
rd

 q
ua

rt
er

 G
D

P 
re

co
rd

ed
 0

.1
%

, 
an

d 
Ir

el
an

d 
ex

ite
d 

fr
om

 i
ts

 b
ai

lo
ut

 r
es

cu
e,

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
eu

ro
zo

ne
 n

at
io

n 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e
le

nd
in

g 
de

al
 p

ut
 i

n 
pl

ac
e 

by
 a

 g
ro

up
 o

f 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

le
nd

er
s,

 k
no

w
n 

as
 t

he
 t

ro
ik

a.
 T

he
 M

ar
ki

t 
co

m
po

si
te

 p
ur

ch
as

in
g 

m
an

ag
er

s' 
(P

M
I)

in
de

x 
sa

w
 E

ur
oz

on
e 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
re

co
rd

 t
he

 s
tr

on
ge

st
 g

ro
w

th
 i

n 
ov

er
 t

w
o-

an
d-

a-
ha

lf 
ye

ar
s,

 e
nd

in
g 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

at
 5

2.
7,

 a
 3

1-
m

on
th

hi
gh

. 
 G

er
m

an
 1

0-
ye

ar
 b

un
d 

yi
el

ds
 r

os
e 

fr
om

 1
.7

8%
 t

o 
1.

93
%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
pe

rio
d.

 T
he

 i
T

ra
xx

 E
ur

op
e 

5y
r 

C
D

S 
in

de
x,

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

of
12

5 
in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ra

de
 e

nt
iti

es
 a

cr
os

s 
6 

se
ct

or
s,

 ti
gh

te
ne

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
ov

er
 th

e 
qu

ar
te

r, 
fr

om
 9

4.
6 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 S
ep

te
m

be
r, 

cl
os

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 a
t

61
.9

. T
he

 J
PM

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t B
on

d 
In

de
x 

re
tu

rn
ed

 +
0.

3 
an

d 
+2

.8
%

 f
or

 Q
4 

an
d 

th
e 

ye
ar

 to
 d

at
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y,

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
B

ar
cl

ay
C

ap
ita

l E
ur

o 
A

gg
re

ga
te

 C
re

di
t I

nd
ex

 w
as

 u
p 

at
 +

0.
5%

 a
nd

 +
5.

0%
 (

al
l E

U
R

) 
fo

r 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

ds
.

U
S 

m
ar

ke
ts

 w
er

e 
pl

ea
se

d 
to

 o
bs

er
ve

 a
 m

in
im

al
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

U
S 

ec
on

om
y 

fr
om

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t s

hu
td

ow
n 

ea
rly

 in
 th

e 
qu

ar
te

r. 
W

he
n 

a
la

st
-m

in
ut

e 
C

on
gr

es
si

on
al

 d
ea

l 
w

as
 s

tr
uc

k 
to

 e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

de
bt

 c
ei

lin
g 

ah
ea

d 
of

 t
he

 1
7 

O
ct

ob
er

 d
ea

dl
in

e,
 t

he
 w

he
el

s 
of

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t

be
ga

n 
tu

rn
in

g 
ag

ai
n,

 a
nd

 t
he

 e
co

no
m

ic
 d

at
a 

re
le

as
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

w
as

 p
re

do
m

in
at

el
y 

po
si

tiv
e.

 A
 f

ou
rt

h 
st

ra
ig

ht
 m

on
th

 o
f

so
lid

 n
ew

 jo
b 

cr
ea

tio
n 

sa
w

 th
e 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t r
at

e 
fa

ll 
to

 a
 f

iv
e-

ye
ar

 lo
w

 o
f 

7.
0%

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r. 

D
em

an
d 

fo
r 

ne
w

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
pe

rm
its

 h
it 

a
fiv

e-
an

d-
a-

ha
lf 

ye
ar

 h
ig

h 
in

 O
ct

ob
er

 a
s 

th
e 

ho
us

in
g 

m
ar

ke
t 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 r
ec

ov
er

. T
he

 t
hi

rd
 q

ua
rt

er
 G

D
P 

fig
ur

e 
w

as
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 a
s 

4.
1%

on
 a

n 
an

nu
al

is
ed

 b
as

is
, 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 o
ut

st
rip

pi
ng

 t
he

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
es

tim
at

e 
of

 3
.6

%
, 

an
d 

th
e 

m
an

uf
ac

tu
rin

g 
PM

I 
re

ad
 5

5.
0,

 a
n 

11
-m

on
th

hi
gh

 a
s 

ou
tp

ut
 i

nc
re

as
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

fa
st

es
t 

pa
ce

 s
in

ce
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 A

s 
da

ta
 p

oi
nt

ed
 t

o 
an

 e
ve

r 
m

or
e 

ro
bu

st
 e

co
no

m
y,

 t
he

 F
ed

er
al

 R
es

er
ve

an
no

un
ce

d 
it 

w
ou

ld
 b

eg
in

 t
ap

er
in

g 
its

 f
iv

e-
ye

ar
-o

ld
 q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
ea

si
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
4,

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
pa

ce
 o

f 
as

se
t

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
fr

om
 $

85
 b

ill
io

n 
to

 $
75

 b
ill

io
n 

pe
r 

m
on

th
. 

T
he

 F
ed

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 t

ha
t 

fu
rt

he
r 

re
du

ct
io

ns
 i

n 
pu

rc
ha

se
s 

w
er

e 
pr

ob
ab

le
 i

f 
th

e
ec

on
om

ic
 r

ec
ov

er
y 

co
nt

in
ue

d,
 b

ut
 s

tr
es

se
d 

th
at

 f
or

w
ar

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 w

ou
ld

 c
on

tin
ue

 i
nd

ef
in

ite
ly

, 
m

ea
ni

ng
 n

o 
se

t 
tim

el
in

e 
fo

r 
an

y 
fu

tu
re

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
hi

ke
s.

 T
he

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

10
-y

ea
r 

U
S 

T
re

as
ur

y 
yi

el
d 

ro
se

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
fr

om
 2

.6
2%

 t
o 

3.
03

%
. 

T
he

 J
PM

 U
S 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

B
on

d 
In

de
x 

w
as

 d
ow

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
an

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

t 
-3

.1
%

 a
nd

 -
5.

2%
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y,

 w
hi

le
 t

he
 B

ar
cl

ay
 C

ap
ita

l 
U

S 
A

gg
re

ga
te

C
or

po
ra

te
 B

on
d 

In
de

x 
re

tu
rn

ed
 -

1.
1%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
an

d 
-3

.4
%

 (
al

l U
SD

) 
ov

er
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

ds
.

P
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

t R
is

k 
&

 A
n

a
ly

tic
a

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
ag
e
4
of
46

Page 16



M
ar

ke
t C

om
m

en
ta

ry
4t

h 
Q

ua
rt

er
, 2

01
3

C
ur

re
nc

y 
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 (i

n 
G

BP
)

2.
25

%
0.

47
%

9.
12

%

0.
59

%

6.
67

%
5.

56
%

3.
44

%

-1
0%0%10
%

20
%

30
%

U
SD

EU
R

JP
Y

C
H

F
A

U
D

C
A

D
N

ZD

C
u

rr
e

n
c

y 
- 

La
st

 3
 M

o
n

th
s

1.
87

%

-2
.5

4%

21
.4

0%

-1
.0

1%

16
.7

6%

8.
37

%

2.
11

%

-1
0%0%10
%

20
%

30
%

U
SD

EU
R

JP
Y

C
H

F
A

U
D

C
A

D
N

ZD

C
u

rr
e

n
c

y 
- 

O
n

e
 Y

e
a

r

T
he

 f
ou

rt
h 

qu
ar

te
r 

of
 2

01
3 

sa
w

 a
 s

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

St
er

lin
g 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 a
ll 

re
po

rt
ed

 c
ur

re
nc

ie
s.

 T
he

 D
ol

la
r, 

on
 t

he
 o

th
er

 h
an

d
lo

st
 g

ro
un

d 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 S

te
rli

ng
 a

nd
 E

ur
o.

 T
he

 Y
en

 lo
st

 s
ub

st
an

tia
l g

ro
un

d 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 t

he
 D

ol
la

r, 
E

ur
o 

an
d 

St
er

lin
g.

 I
n 

Ja
pa

n,
 th

e
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
at

 a
 h

ig
h 

4.
0%

 i
n 

N
ov

em
be

r, 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 f

or
 O

ct
ob

er
 w

ith
 2

.4
9 

m
ill

io
n 

un
em

pl
oy

ed
. 

Ja
pa

ne
se

 b
us

in
es

s
co

nf
id

en
ce

 h
as

 s
oa

re
d 

to
 i

ts
 h

ig
he

st
 l

ev
el

 i
n 

si
x 

ye
ar

, 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 t

he
 B

an
k 

of
 J

ap
an

's 
la

te
st

 T
an

ka
n 

su
rv

ey
. 

T
he

 w
ea

ke
r 

Y
en

 h
as

he
lp

ed
 m

an
y 

la
rg

e 
Ja

pa
ne

se
 c

om
pa

ni
es

. 
T

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 i

nd
ic

at
e 

th
at

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t's

 s
tim

ul
us

 p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 a

im
ed

 a
t 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

gr
ow

th
,

m
ay

 b
e 

st
ar

tin
g 

to
 t

ak
e 

ef
fe

ct
. 

A
na

ly
st

s 
sa

id
 t

he
 s

ur
ve

y'
s 

re
su

lts
 i

nd
ic

at
e 

th
at

 P
rim

e 
M

in
is

te
r 

A
be

's 
po

lic
ie

s 
w

er
e 

st
ar

tin
g 

to
 h

av
e 

an
im

pa
ct

. 
G

ro
w

th
 i

n 
C

hi
na

's 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

se
ct

or
 s

lo
w

ed
 f

or
 t

he
 f

irs
t 

tim
e 

in
 s

ix
 m

on
th

s 
in

 D
ec

em
be

r, 
dr

ag
ge

d 
do

w
n 

by
 w

ea
k

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

C
hi

ne
se

 e
xp

or
t. 

T
he

 s
ta

te
-s

po
ns

or
ed

 P
M

I 
fe

ll 
to

 5
1 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r, 

m
ar

ki
ng

 a
 f

ou
r-

m
on

th
 l

ow
 a

nd
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

in
g 

th
e

ch
al

le
ng

es
 f

ac
in

g 
th

e 
ru

lin
g 

pa
rt

y 
as

 i
t 

tr
ie

s 
to

 t
ra

ns
fo

rm
 t

he
 g

ro
w

th
 m

od
el

 i
n 

th
e 

w
or

ld
's 

se
co

nd
-la

rg
es

t 
ec

on
om

y.
 D

ec
em

be
r's

 P
M

I
le

ve
l 

of
 5

1 
sh

ow
ed

 t
ha

t 
C

hi
ne

se
 m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 i

s 
st

ill
 g

ro
w

in
g 

bu
t 

in
 t

he
 c

ru
ci

al
 e

xp
or

t 
se

ct
or

 p
ro

du
ce

rs
 s

aw
 a

co
nt

ra
ct

io
n 

la
st

 m
on

th
 f

or
 t

he
 f

irs
t 

tim
e 

si
nc

e 
Ju

ly
. 

T
he

 R
es

er
ve

 B
an

k 
of

 A
us

tr
al

ia
 d

ec
id

ed
 o

n 
3-

12
-1

3 
to

 l
ea

ve
 t

he
 c

as
h 

ra
te

un
ch

an
ge

d 
at

 2
.5

%
, 

ci
tin

g 
sl

ug
gi

sh
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 s

ta
bl

e 
in

fla
tio

n.
 T

he
 R

B
A

 G
ov

er
no

r 
G

le
nn

 S
te

ve
ns

 a
ls

o 
m

ad
e 

m
en

tio
n 

th
at

 t
he

A
us

tr
al

ia
n 

D
ol

la
r 

re
m

ai
ns

 u
nc

om
fo

rt
ab

ly
 h

ig
h.

In
 th

e 
U

K
, Q

4 
20

13
 s

aw
 S

te
rli

ng
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 D
ol

la
r, 

Y
en

 a
nd

 E
ur

o.
 A

fte
r 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

ta
gn

at
io

n 
an

d 
al

m
os

t s
ev

en
 y

ea
rs

af
te

r 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 c

ris
is

 s
ta

rt
ed

, 
ec

on
om

is
ts

 h
av

e 
fin

al
ly

 r
eg

ai
ne

d 
th

ei
r 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 t

ha
t 

B
rit

ai
n'

s 
ec

on
om

y 
is

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ov

e.
 T

he
 B

an
k

of
 E

ng
la

nd
's 

M
on

et
ar

y 
Po

lic
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 m

in
ut

es
 f

ro
m

 5
 D

ec
em

be
r 

sh
ow

 t
he

 n
in

e-
st

ro
ng

 c
om

m
itt

ee
 a

gr
ee

d 
un

an
im

ou
sl

y 
to

 k
ee

p
th

e 
of

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t 
ra

te
 a

t 
0.

5%
 a

nd
 t

o 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

its
 s

to
ck

 o
f 

as
se

t 
pu

rc
ha

se
s 

at
 £

37
5b

n.
 P

ol
ic

y 
ho

ld
er

s 
ha

ve
 p

le
dg

ed
 t

o 
ke

ep
 in

te
re

st
ra

te
s 

at
 t

he
ir 

re
co

rd
 lo

w
 o

f 
0.

5%
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ra

te
 f

al
ls

 t
o 

7%
. U

K
 in

fla
tio

n 
fe

ll 
to

 a
 f

ou
r-

ye
ar

 lo
w

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r, 

di
pp

in
g

to
 2

.1
%

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
ck

 o
f 

lo
w

er
 f

oo
d 

an
d 

en
er

gy
 p

ric
e 

pr
es

su
re

s.
 D

av
id

 C
am

er
on

, 
on

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

to
ld

 M
Ps

 t
ha

t 
"T

he
 p

la
n 

is
w

or
ki

ng
, 

le
t's

 s
tic

k 
to

 i
t 

an
d 

ge
t 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
do

w
n 

ev
en

 f
ur

th
er

".
 T

he
 U

K
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
ra

te
 h

as
 f

al
le

n 
to

 i
ts

 l
ow

es
t 

le
ve

l 
si

nc
e

20
09

, o
ff

ic
ia

l f
ig

ur
es

 s
ho

w
. T

he
 r

at
e 

of
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
dr

op
pe

d 
to

 7
.4

%
 in

 O
ct

ob
er

, d
ow

n 
fr

om
 7

.7
%

 in
 J

ul
y.

 T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

eo
pl

e
ou

t 
of

 w
or

k 
fe

ll 
by

 9
9,

00
0 

to
 2

.3
9 

m
ill

io
n 

in
 t

he
 t

hr
ee

 m
on

th
s 

to
 O

ct
ob

er
 t

he
 O

ff
ic

e 
of

 N
at

io
na

l 
St

at
is

tic
s 

sa
id

. 
A

cc
or

di
ng

 t
o 

th
e

N
at

io
nw

id
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

so
ci

et
y,

 t
he

 p
ric

e 
of

 a
 t

yp
ic

al
 U

K
 h

ou
se

 r
os

e 
2.

7%
 in

 Q
4 

20
13

. P
ric

es
 w

er
e 

up
 7

.1
%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
,

br
in

g 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ho

us
e 

in
 a

t £
17

4,
44

4 
- 

its
 h

ig
he

st
 le

ve
l s

in
ce

 2
00

8.
 S

te
rli

ng
 c

lo
se

d 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

r 
up

 a
ga

in
st

 th
e 

Y
en

, D
ol

la
r 

an
d 

E
ur

o
by

 9
.1

2%
, 2

.2
5%

 a
nd

 0
.4

7%
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

In
 t

he
 U

S,
 t

he
 D

ol
la

r 
lo

st
 g

ro
un

d 
ag

ai
ns

t 
bo

th
 S

te
rli

ng
 a

nd
 t

he
 E

ur
o.

 T
he

 F
ed

 h
ad

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

st
at

ed
 t

he
y 

w
ou

ld
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

in
te

re
st

ra
te

s 
at

 0
.5

%
 u

nt
il 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
fe

ll 
to

 6
.5

%
 b

ut
 n

ow
 r

eq
ui

re
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
le

ve
ls

 t
o 

fa
ll 

w
el

l 
be

lo
w

 6
.5

%
. I

n 
la

te
 D

ec
em

be
r, 

th
e

Fe
de

ra
l R

es
er

ve
 to

ok
 it

s 
fir

st
 s

te
p 

aw
ay

 f
ro

m
 a

 h
is

to
ric

 e
ra

 o
f 

m
on

et
ar

y 
st

im
ul

us
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 it

s 
m

on
th

ly
 a

ss
et

 b
uy

in
g 

fr
om

 $
85

bn
 to

$7
5 

bn
. 

B
en

 B
er

na
nk

e 
si

gn
al

ed
, 

in
 h

is
 f

in
al

 p
re

ss
 c

on
fe

re
nc

e 
as

 c
ha

irm
an

, 
th

at
 t

he
 F

ed
 i

s 
lik

el
y 

to
 k

ee
p 

sl
ow

in
g 

its
 p

ur
ch

as
es

 b
y

$1
0b

n 
pe

r 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 a

n 
ev

en
tu

al
 e

nd
 t

o 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
 i

n 
la

te
 2

01
4.

 T
he

 k
ey

 i
nd

ic
at

or
 o

f 
co

ns
um

er
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
by

 t
he

C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

B
oa

rd
 s

ho
w

ed
 a

 s
ha

rp
 r

eb
ou

nd
 f

ro
m

 7
2 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

to
 7

8.
1 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r, 

w
ith

 s
en

tim
en

t 
ab

ou
t 

cu
rr

en
t 

co
nd

iti
on

s
hi

tti
ng

 i
ts

 h
ig

he
st

 l
ev

el
 in

 m
or

e 
th

an
 f

iv
e 

ye
ar

s.
 T

he
 j

um
p 

in
 c

on
su

m
er

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 a

ls
o 

re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f 

bu
dg

et
ar

y 
un

ce
rta

in
ty

ha
ng

in
g 

ov
er

 t
he

 U
S 

ec
on

om
y 

in
 t

he
 w

ak
e 

of
 t

he
 b

ip
ar

tis
an

 d
ea

l 
to

 s
et

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

sp
en

di
ng

 l
ev

el
s 

fo
r 

tw
o 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
av

er
t 

ne
w

sh
ut

do
w

n 
th

re
at

s.
 I

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 

th
e 

U
S 

un
-e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

ra
te

 f
el

l 
to

 7
.0

%
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 7

.3
%

 i
n 

A
ug

us
t. 

U
S 

ho
m

e 
va

lu
es

 h
av

e 
ris

en
fo

r 
tw

en
ty

 c
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

m
on

th
s,

 h
el

pe
d 

by
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ec
on

om
y 

an
d 

la
bo

ur
 m

ar
ke

t 
th

at
 h

as
 b

ol
st

er
ed

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

ea
lth

. 
T

he
 m

os
t

st
rik

in
g 

da
ta

 r
el

ea
se

d 
in

 l
at

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 

ca
m

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 S

&
P/

C
as

e-
Sh

ill
er

 i
nd

ex
, 

w
hi

ch
 t

ra
ck

s 
pr

op
er

ty
 v

al
ue

s 
in

 2
0 

m
et

ro
po

lit
an

re
gi

on
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 U

S.
 I

t 
ro

se
 1

3.
3%

 i
n 

O
ct

ob
er

 y
ea

r 
on

 y
ea

r, 
th

e 
bi

gg
es

t 
12

 m
on

th
 r

is
e 

si
nc

e 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
6.

 T
he

 U
S 

tr
ad

e 
de

fic
it

st
oo

d 
at

 $
34

.3
bn

 i
n 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

13
, 

th
e 

sm
al

le
st

 m
on

th
ly

 d
ef

ic
it 

si
nc

e 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9.

 N
ov

em
be

r 
sa

w
 i

m
po

rt
s 

fa
ll 

1.
4%

 f
ro

m
O

ct
ob

er
 a

s 
a 

fa
ll 

in
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r 
fo

re
ig

n 
oi

l o
ff

se
t a

 r
ec

or
d 

le
ve

l o
f 

im
po

rt
ed

 c
ar

s.
 T

he
 D

ol
la

r 
en

de
d 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

up
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
Y

en
 b

y
6.

87
%

 b
ut

 w
ea

ke
ne

d 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 E
ur

o 
an

d 
St

er
lin

g 
by

 1
.7

8%
 a

nd
 2

.2
5%

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.

In
 t

he
 E

ur
o 

ar
ea

, 
th

e 
E

ur
o 

st
re

ng
th

en
ed

 a
ga

in
st

 t
he

 D
ol

la
r 

an
d 

Y
en

 b
ut

 w
ea

ke
ne

d 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 S

te
rli

ng
. 

 I
n 

ea
rly

 N
ov

em
be

r,
bo

rr
ow

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 E

ur
oz

on
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 s
om

e 
un

ex
pe

ct
ed

 n
ew

s 
w

he
n 

th
e 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
C

en
tr

al
 B

an
k 

cu
t 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

es
 t

o 
a 

ne
w

 r
ec

or
d

lo
w

 o
f 

0.
25

%
, 

in
 a

 b
id

 t
o 

st
av

e 
of

f 
a 

sl
id

e 
in

to
 d

ef
la

tio
n.

 M
ar

io
 D

ra
gh

i, 
th

e 
E

C
B

's 
pr

es
id

en
t, 

w
ar

ne
d 

th
at

 t
he

 o
ut

lo
ok

 f
or

 t
he

18
-m

em
be

r 
si

ng
le

 c
ur

re
nc

y 
ar

ea
 c

ou
ld

 d
et

er
io

ra
te

 i
n 

th
e 

co
m

in
g 

m
on

th
s.

 A
s 

w
el

l 
as

 t
he

 r
at

e 
cu

t, 
D

ra
gh

i 
sa

id
 t

he
 E

C
B

 w
ou

ld
co

nt
in

ue
 m

ak
in

g 
lo

w
-c

os
t 

lo
an

s 
to

 E
ur

oz
on

e 
ba

nk
s 

un
til

 a
t 

le
as

t 
m

id
-2

01
5,

 t
o 

tr
y 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 t

he
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ec

to
r 

fr
om

 s
ei

zi
ng

 u
p.

E
ur

oz
on

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 i
nc

re
as

ed
 m

or
e 

th
an

 e
co

no
m

is
ts

 f
or

ec
as

te
d 

in
 D

ec
em

be
r, 

bu
oy

in
g 

up
 p

ol
ic

y 
m

ak
er

s 
as

 t
he

y 
gr

ap
pl

e
w

ith
 t

he
 l

eg
ac

y 
of

 t
he

 c
ur

re
nc

y 
bl

oc
k'

s 
lo

ng
es

t 
re

ce
ss

io
n.

 E
co

no
m

ic
 s

en
tim

en
t 

in
di

ca
to

r 
ro

se
 t

o 
10

0 
in

 D
ec

em
be

r, 
th

us
 b

ac
k 

to
 i

ts
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 a
ve

ra
ge

 f
or

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
si

nc
e 

Ju
ly

 2
01

1.
 I

t 
im

pr
ov

ed
 i

n 
th

re
e 

of
 t

he
 f

iv
e 

bi
gg

es
t 

E
ur

oz
on

e 
ec

on
om

ie
s,

 n
am

el
y 

Sp
ai

n,
It

al
y 

an
d 

N
et

he
rla

nd
s.

 U
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 E

ur
oz

on
e 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
hi

gh
, 

bu
t 

st
ab

le
, 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

at
 1

2.
1%

, 
pr

om
pt

in
g 

so
m

e 
an

al
ys

ts
to

 s
ug

ge
st

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
re

gi
on

's 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

m
ig

ht
 b

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

to
 a

ba
te

. 
In

 P
or

tu
ga

l 
an

d 
Ir

el
an

d 
th

e 
jo

bl
es

s 
ra

te
 d

ec
lin

ed
 t

o 
15

.5
%

 a
nd

12
.3

%
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 I
n 

Sp
ai

n 
th

e 
ra

te
 r

em
ai

ne
d 

st
ea

dy
 a

t 
26

.7
%

. 
Y

ou
th

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

in
 t

he
 E

ur
oz

on
e 

is
 a

t 
24

.2
%

, 
le

av
in

g 
3.

6
m

ill
io

n 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 o

ut
 o

f 
w

or
k.

  
T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 u
ne

m
pl

oy
ed

 n
ow

 s
its

 a
t 

19
.2

 m
ill

io
n.

 T
he

 E
ur

o 
en

de
d 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

up
 a

ga
in

st
 t

he
D

ol
la

r 
an

d 
Y

en
 b

y 
1.

78
%

 a
nd

 8
.6

5%
 r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y,

 b
ut

 w
ea

ke
ne

d 
ag

ai
ns

t S
te

rli
ng

 b
y 

0.
47

%
.

Th
re

e
M

o
n

th
s

Y
e

a
r 

To
D

a
te

O
n

e
Y

e
a

r
Th

re
e

Y
e

a
rs

Fi
v
e

Y
e

a
rs

U
n

ite
d

 S
ta

te
s 

d
o

lla
r

2.
25

1.
87

1.
87

1.
87

2.
83

Eu
ro

p
e

a
n

 U
n

io
n

 e
u

ro
0.

47
-2

.5
4

-2
.5

4
0.

98
3.

00

Ja
p

a
n

e
se

 y
e

n
9.

12
21

.4
0

21
.4

0
10

.5
1

5.
79

Sw
iss

 f
ra

n
c

0.
59

-1
.0

1
-1

.0
1

0.
31

-0
.7

6

A
u

st
ra

lia
n

 d
o

lla
r

6.
67

16
.7

6
16

.7
6

6.
40

-2
.1

6

C
a

n
a

d
ia

n
 d

o
lla

r
5.

56
8.

37
8.

37
4.

10
-0

.1
7

N
e

w
 Z

e
a

la
n

d
 d

o
lla

r
3.

44
2.

11
2.

11
0.

14
-4

.0
2

P
re

p
a

re
d

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

t R
is

k 
&

 A
n

a
ly

tic
a

l S
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
ag
e
5
of
46

Page 17



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

Sc
he

m
e 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

G
lo

ba
l e

qu
iti

es
 m

ad
e 

st
ro

ng
 g

ai
ns

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

pe
ri

od
 b

eg
an

 o
n 

an
 u

nc
er

ta
in

 f
oo

tin
g 

w
ith

th
e 

U
S 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

in
 s

hu
td

ow
n 

fo
r 

16
 d

ay
s.

 T
he

 U
S 

Fe
de

ra
l 

R
es

er
ve

 a
nn

ou
nc

ed
 t

ha
t 

it
w

ou
ld

 b
eg

in
 t

ap
er

in
g 

its
 q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
ea

si
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
, r

ed
uc

in
g 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e

ea
si

ng
 b

y 
$1

0 
bi

lli
on

 p
er

 m
on

th
. T

he
 F

ed
er

al
 R

es
er

ve
 a

ls
o 

em
ph

as
is

ed
 t

ha
t 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

es
w

ou
ld

 r
em

ai
n 

lo
w

 w
hi

ch
 h

el
pe

d 
se

nd
 U

S 
eq

ui
ty

 i
nd

ic
es

 t
o 

re
co

rd
 h

ig
hs

 a
t 

ye
ar

 e
nd

.
C

or
po

ra
te

 b
on

ds
 o

ut
pe

rf
or

m
ed

 c
or

e 
so

ve
re

ig
n 

bo
nd

s 
ov

er
 t

he
 p

er
io

d 
an

d 
re

tu
rn

s 
w

er
e

sl
ig

ht
ly

 p
os

iti
ve

. 
U

S 
cr

ed
it 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
ed

 b
ot

h 
eu

ro
 a

nd
 s

te
rl

in
g 

de
no

m
in

at
ed

 c
re

di
t.

A
ga

in
st

 t
hi

s 
ba

ck
dr

op
 t

he
 L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
H

ill
in

gd
on

 r
et

ur
ne

d 
3.

02
%

 b
ut

 t
hi

s 
fe

ll 
18

ba
si

s 
po

in
ts

 s
ho

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
la

n 
be

nc
hm

ar
k 

of
 3

.2
1%

. 
 I

n 
m

on
et

ar
y 

te
rm

s 
th

is
 i

s 
a

gr
ow

th
 i

n 
as

se
ts

 o
f 

£1
9.

7 
m

ill
io

n 
an

d 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 t

he
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

sc
he

m
e 

no
w

 s
ta

nd
s 

at
£7

18
.4

 m
ill

io
n 

as
 a

t 
31

st
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

. 
 T

hi
s 

pe
ri

od
 s

aw
 l

itt
le

 r
ea

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

ss
et

s
w

ith
 ju

st
 a

 s
m

al
l a

m
ou

nt
 m

ov
in

g 
fr

om
 P

ri
va

te
 E

qu
ity

 a
nd

 in
to

 M
&

G
. L

oo
ki

ng
 f

ur
th

er
 in

to
th

e 
an

al
ys

is
 t

he
 m

os
t 

no
ta

bl
e 

ef
fe

ct
s 

w
er

e 
th

e 
ou

tp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

JP
 M

or
ga

n 
an

d 
U

B
S

al
th

ou
gh

 t
hi

s 
w

as
 o

ff
se

t 
by

 t
he

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

K
em

pe
n.

  
W

hi
le

 i
n 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
te

rm
s

m
os

t m
an

da
te

s 
ar

e 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

ne
ut

ra
l p

os
iti

on
, s

o 
ef

fe
ct

s 
ar

e 
m

in
im

al
.

T
hi

s 
m

ea
ns

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
Sc

he
m

e 
fi

ni
sh

es
 2

01
3 

w
ith

 a
 r

et
ur

n 
of

 1
4.

04
%

, 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

re
la

tiv
el

y
1.

12
%

 a
he

ad
 o

f 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
fi

gu
re

 o
f 

12
.7

8%
. 

O
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 s

el
ec

tio
n 

ef
fe

ct
s 

in
U

B
S 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 a

dd
 v

al
ue

 c
ou

pl
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

go
od

 r
es

ul
ts

 in
 R

uf
fe

r, 
si

m
ila

r 
to

 th
e 

qu
ar

te
r,

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 f
ai

rl
y 

ba
la

nc
ed

 w
ith

 o
nl

y 
sm

al
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

in
 s

om
e 

ar
ea

s.
 W

hi
le

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
lo

ng
er

pe
ri

od
s,

 th
e 

Sc
he

m
e 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 o
ut

pe
rf

or
m

, p
ro

du
ci

ng
 a

 r
et

ur
n 

of
 7

.5
9%

 o
ve

r 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

ve
rs

us
 6

.8
4%

, h
ow

ev
er

 t
he

 5
 y

ea
r 

pe
ri

od
 i

s 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 d

ow
n 

on
 t

he
 t

ar
ge

t 
by

 1
 b

as
is

 p
oi

nt
s

w
ith

 a
 r

et
ur

n 
of

 9
.8

8%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

. 
T

he
n 

si
nc

e 
in

ce
pt

io
n 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
19

95
, 

th
e 

Fu
nd

re
m

ai
ns

 a
he

ad
 o

f 
ta

rg
et

 b
y 

4 
ba

si
s 

po
in

ts
 w

ith
 a

n 
an

nu
al

is
ed

 r
et

ur
n 

of
 6

.8
2%

 a
ga

in
st

6.
77

%
.

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

B
ar

in
gs

In
 th

e 
fi

na
l q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 
20

13
 th

e 
ne

w
 B

ar
in

gs
 m

an
da

te
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

a 
re

tu
rn

 o
f 

ex
ac

tly
 2

%
 w

hi
ch

co
m

pa
re

s 
fa

vo
ur

ab
ly

 a
ga

in
st

 t
he

 t
ar

ge
t 

of
 t

he
 3

 M
on

th
 L

IB
O

R
 +

4%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

, 
w

hi
ch

po
st

ed
 1

.1
2%

. H
ow

ev
er

 i
n 

th
e 

sh
or

t 
pe

ri
od

 s
in

ce
 i

nc
ep

tio
n 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
13

 t
he

y 
re

tu
rn

 2
.2

2%
w

hi
ch

 is
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 o

f 
3.

09
%

.

JP
 M

or
ga

n
O

ve
r 

th
e 

fo
ur

th
 q

ua
rt

er
 J

P 
M

or
ga

n 
re

tu
rn

ed
 2

.6
9%

, 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 1
.8

0%
 a

he
ad

 o
f 

th
e 

0.
87

%
ta

rg
et

 f
or

 t
he

 3
 M

on
th

 L
IB

O
R

 +
 3

%
. 

 T
hi

s 
w

as
 n

ot
 e

no
ug

h 
to

 m
ak

e 
up

 f
or

 t
he

 l
os

se
s 

se
en

ea
rl

ie
r 

in
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

so
 t

he
 1

 y
ea

r 
pe

ri
od

 s
til

l 
fa

lls
 b

eh
in

d 
ta

rg
et

 w
ith

 a
 r

el
at

iv
e 

re
tu

rn
 o

f
-1

.0
9%

, w
hi

le
 s

in
ce

 in
ce

pt
io

n 
(N

ov
em

be
r 

20
11

) 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

he
ad

 w
ith

 f
ig

ur
es

 o
f 

4.
74

 %
 v

er
su

s
3.

71
%

, w
hi

ch
 is

 1
.0

0%
 o

n 
a 

re
la

tiv
e 

an
nu

al
is

ed
 b

as
is

.

K
em

pe
n

O
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
 t

hr
ee

 m
on

th
s 

th
e 

K
em

pe
n 

m
an

da
te

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
a 

re
tu

rn
 o

f 
0.

12
%

, 
w

hi
ch

tr
an

sl
at

es
 a

s 
th

e 
la

rg
es

t 
un

de
rp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 s

ee
n 

th
is

 p
er

io
d 

w
ith

 -
5.

75
%

 w
he

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
th

e 
6.

22
%

 p
os

te
d 

by
 t

he
 M

SC
I 

A
ll 

W
or

ld
 I

nd
ex

 +
2%

. 
T

hi
s 

cu
lm

in
at

es
 i

n 
a 

re
tu

rn
 s

in
ce

in
ce

pt
io

n 
in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

3 
of

 5
.8

2%
 v

er
su

s 
th

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
k 

of
 1

8.
07

%
; 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
a 

re
la

tiv
e

re
tu

rn
 o

f -
10

.3
7%

.

M
ac

qu
ar

ie
In

 c
on

tr
as

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 q
ua

rt
er

 M
ac

qu
ar

ie
 p

os
te

d 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t r
el

at
iv

e 
re

tu
rn

 w
ith

 2
.7

5%
 in

Q
4 

co
m

in
g 

fr
om

 a
n 

ab
so

lu
te

 r
et

ur
n 

of
 3

.6
5%

, 
ag

ai
ns

t 
0.

87
%

 f
or

 t
he

 3
 M

on
th

 L
IB

O
R

 +
3%

p.
a.

 T
hi

s 
le

ad
s 

to
 a

 1
 y

ea
r 

gr
ow

th
 o

f 
4.

83
%

 w
hi

ch
 is

 1
.2

6%
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
of

 3
.5

3%
;

ho
w

ev
er

 s
in

ce
 in

ce
pt

io
n 

th
ey

'v
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 e
ig

ht
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

qu
ar

te
rl

y 
re

la
tiv

e 
re

tu
rn

s,
 le

ad
in

g 
to

an
 a

nn
ua

lis
ed

 lo
ss

 o
f 

-6
.8

4%
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 3

.7
6%

.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
6
of
46

Page 18



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

Sc
he

m
e 

A
llo

ca
ti

on

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

M
&

G
 I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
In

 t
he

 f
ou

rt
h 

qu
ar

te
r 

M
&

G
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

a 
0.

60
%

, 
w

hi
ch

 a
ga

in
st

 t
he

 3
 M

on
th

 L
IB

O
R

+4
%

 p
.a

 r
et

ur
n 

of
 1

.1
2%

 t
ra

ns
la

te
s 

as
 a

n 
un

de
rp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
-0

.5
1%

. O
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
ye

ar
 t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
 r

eg
is

te
rs

 6
.1

3%
 a

ga
in

st
 4

.5
3%

 w
hi

ls
t 

si
nc

e 
in

ce
pt

io
n 

at
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f
M

ay
 2

01
0,

 th
e 

po
rt

fo
lio

 r
et

ur
n 

fa
lls

 to
 4

.9
9%

 p
a 

re
tu

rn
 w

hi
ls

t t
he

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

is
 4

.7
7%

pa
.  

W
hi

le
 th

e 
si

nc
e 

in
ce

pt
io

n 
In

te
rn

al
 R

at
e 

of
 R

et
ur

n 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

or
tf

ol
io

 m
ov

es
 f

ur
th

er
ah

ea
d 

of
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 w
ith

 a
 fi

gu
re

 o
f 5

.6
4%

 o
pp

os
ed

 to
 th

e 
co

m
pa

ra
to

r 
of

 4
.6

9%
.

N
ew

to
n

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

fo
ur

th
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 
20

13
 N

ew
to

n 
po

st
ed

 a
 3

.3
1%

 r
et

ur
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 5
.5

0%
fo

r 
th

e 
FT

SE
 W

or
ld

 I
nd

ex
 +

2%
, 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 a

n 
un

de
rp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
-2

.0
8%

. 
W

hi
ch

fe
ed

s 
in

to
 th

e 
si

nc
e 

in
ce

pt
io

n 
(J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
3)

 n
um

be
rs

 w
ith

 a
 r

et
ur

n 
of

 1
0.

94
%

 a
ga

in
st

th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
of

 1
5.

03
%

, p
ro

du
ci

ng
 a

 r
el

at
iv

e 
re

tu
rn

 o
f -

3.
55

%
.

R
uf

fe
r

T
he

 R
uf

fe
r 

po
rt

fo
lio

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
0.

62
%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
 t

hr
ee

 m
on

th
s,

 w
hi

ch
 b

ea
ts

 t
he

0.
13

%
 f

or
 L

IB
O

R
 3

 M
on

th
 G

B
P.

  D
ri

ve
n 

by
 Q

1'
s 

re
tu

rn
 a

ll 
lo

ng
er

 p
er

io
ds

 s
ho

w
 h

ig
h

ab
so

lu
te

 a
nd

 r
el

at
iv

e 
re

tu
rn

s,
 s

o 
ov

er
 t

he
 l

as
t 

tw
el

ve
 m

on
th

 p
os

t 
a 

re
tu

rn
 o

f 
11

.4
0 

%
ag

ai
ns

t 
0.

52
%

 f
or

 t
he

 t
ar

ge
t, 

re
su

lti
ng

 i
n 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
al

l 
m

an
da

te
s

at
 1

0.
83

%
.  

W
hi

le
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

in
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

 in
 M

ay
 2

01
0 

el
ev

en
 o

ut
 o

f 
fo

ur
te

en
qu

ar
te

rs
 s

ho
w

 p
os

iti
ve

 r
et

ur
ns

 a
nd

 l
ea

d 
to

 f
ig

ur
es

 o
f 

6.
33

%
 v

er
su

s 
0.

75
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
,

w
hi

ch
 tr

an
sl

at
es

 a
s 

a 
re

la
tiv

e 
re

tu
rn

 o
f 

5.
53

%
.

P
ri

va
te

 E
qu

it
y

T
he

 p
ri

va
te

 e
qu

ity
 a

ss
et

s,
 c

on
si

st
in

g 
of

 f
un

ds
 w

ith
 A

da
m

 S
tr

ee
t 

an
d 

L
G

T
, 

bo
th

bo
un

ce
d 

ba
ck

 f
ro

m
 l

as
t 

qu
ar

te
r's

 l
os

se
s 

w
ith

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 f

ig
ur

es
 o

f 
3.

11
%

 a
nd

 2
.1

7%
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
  

So
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r 
fi

gu
re

s 
re

m
ai

n 
po

si
tiv

e 
w

ith
 A

da
m

 S
tr

ee
t 

on
10

.2
7%

 a
nd

 L
G

T
 w

ith
 9

.2
7%

. 
 O

ve
r 

th
e 

lo
ng

er
 p

er
io

ds
, 

th
e 

ou
tlo

ok
 o

ve
r 

w
hi

ch
pr

iv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 m

ea
su

re
d,

 r
et

ur
ns

 r
em

ai
n 

po
si

tiv
e.

 O
ve

r 
th

re
e

ye
ar

s 
A

da
m

 S
tr

ee
t i

nc
re

as
es

 s
lig

ht
ly

 to
 1

0.
53

%
 w

hi
le

 L
G

T
 fa

lls
 to

 8
.6

5%
 f

or
 th

e 
sa

m
e

pe
ri

od
.  

T
he

n 
si

nc
e 

th
ei

r 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

in
ce

pt
io

ns
 i

n 
M

ay
 2

00
4 

an
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
05

, w
hi

le
L

G
T

 fa
lls

 fu
rt

he
r 

to
 8

.3
0%

 p
a,

 A
da

m
 S

tr
ee

t d
ro

ps
 to

 1
.7

8%
 p

a.
A

t p
re

se
nt

 n
o 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 th
es

e 
m

an
da

te
s.

SS
G

A
T

he
 S

SG
A

 p
as

si
ve

ly
 m

an
ag

ed
 p

or
tf

ol
io

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
a 

re
tu

rn
 o

f 
3.

68
%

 i
n 

th
e 

qu
ar

te
r 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 a

m
er

e 
4 

ba
si

s 
po

in
ts

 b
el

ow
 t

he
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k;
 f

ur
th

er
 a

na
ly

si
s 

co
nf

ir
m

s 
th

e 
pa

ss
iv

e 
na

tu
re

 w
ith

 a
ll

ca
te

go
ri

es
 a

lig
ne

d 
w

ith
 t

he
ir

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

in
di

ce
s.

  
So

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 t

he
y 

pr
od

uc
e 

an
 1

6.
29

%
re

tu
rn

, 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

16
 b

as
is

 p
oi

nt
s 

be
hi

nd
 t

ar
ge

t, 
w

hi
le

 o
ve

r 
3 

ye
ar

s 
th

e 
pe

r 
an

nu
m

 r
et

ur
n 

fa
lls

 t
o

8.
25

%
 w

hi
ch

 m
at

ch
es

 t
he

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k.

 S
in

ce
 i

nc
ep

tio
n 

(N
ov

em
be

r 
20

08
) 

a 
re

tu
rn

 o
f 

13
.5

0%
 p

a
is

 j
us

t 1
 b

as
is

 p
oi

nt
s 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
k,

 b
ut

 th
e 

pa
ss

iv
e 

na
tu

re
 i

s 
be

st
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

by
 t

he
 3

ye
ar

 R
 s

qu
ar

ed
 a

nd
 b

et
a 

fi
gu

re
s 

of
 1

, w
hi

le
 th

e 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 e

rr
or

 is
 ju

st
 0

.1
6.

U
B

S
U

B
S 

U
K

 E
qu

ity
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

a 
re

tu
rn

 o
f 

6.
51

%
, w

hi
ch

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 t
he

 F
T

SE
 A

ll 
Sh

ar
e 

fi
gu

re
 o

f
5.

46
%

, 
on

ce
 

ag
ai

n 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

t 
0.

99
%

. 
 

L
oo

ki
ng

 
in

to
 

th
e 

at
tr

ib
ut

io
n

an
al

ys
is

, 
st

oc
k 

se
le

ct
io

n 
w

as
 t

he
 m

ai
n 

dr
iv

er
 w

ith
 t

he
 l

ar
ge

st
 i

m
pa

ct
s 

co
m

in
g 

fr
om

 C
on

su
m

er
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 O

il 
&

 G
as

 a
t 

0.
80

%
 a

nd
 0

.4
7%

 r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
 W

hi
ls

t 
w

ith
in

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
th

e 
m

os
t

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

de
ci

si
on

 w
as

 t
he

 l
ar

ge
 u

nd
er

w
ei

gh
t 

of
 C

on
su

m
er

 G
oo

ds
 (

0.
27

%
) 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
th

e 
ca

sh
dr

ag
 (

-0
.1

5%
). 

T
he

se
 r

es
ul

ts
 f

ilt
er

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

lo
ng

er
 p

er
io

ds
 a

nd
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 t
he

hi
gh

es
t 

ab
so

lu
te

 r
et

ur
n 

w
ith

 3
1.

12
%

 a
nd

 t
he

 s
ec

on
d 

hi
gh

es
t 

re
la

tiv
e 

fi
gu

re
 o

f 
8.

54
%

. 
 T

hi
s

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i

s 
al

so
 a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 t

o 
se

le
ct

io
n 

ef
fe

ct
s 

an
d 

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls
 l

ea
d 

th
e 

w
ay

 (
3.

23
%

)
co

up
le

d 
w

ith
 C

on
su

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
(2

.0
8%

), 
w

hi
le

 t
he

 o
ve

rw
ei

gh
t 

of
 C

on
su

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 t
he

st
an

d-
ou

t 
ef

fe
ct

 w
ith

in
 a

ss
et

 a
llo

ca
tio

n.
  

U
B

S 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
is

 o
ut

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
lth

ou
gh

 r
el

at
iv

e
re

tu
rn

s 
ar

e 
re

du
ci

ng
 o

ve
r 

tim
e,

 tr
an

sl
at

in
g 

as
 a

 s
in

ce
 in

ce
pt

io
n 

re
tu

rn
 o

f 
10

.6
1%

 v
er

su
s 

9.
21

%
 o

n
an

 a
nn

ua
lis

ed
 b

as
is

.

U
B

S 
P

ro
pe

rt
y

T
he

 U
B

S 
Pr

op
er

ty
 p

or
tf

ol
io

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
it'

s 
la

rg
es

t a
bs

ol
ut

e 
re

tu
rn

 s
in

ce
 Q

1 
20

10
 w

ith
 a

 f
ig

ur
e 

of
4.

39
%

, w
hi

ch
 w

as
 a

ls
o 

9 
ba

si
s 

po
in

ts
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

IP
D

 U
K

 P
PF

I 
A

ll 
B

al
an

ce
d 

Fu
nd

s 
in

de
x 

fi
gu

re
of

 4
.3

0%
. 

T
hi

s 
no

w
 m

ea
ns

 t
ha

t 
al

l 
tim

e 
pe

ri
od

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 p

os
iti

ve
 a

bs
ol

ut
e 

re
tu

rn
 b

ut
un

de
rp

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
se

en
, w

ith
 1

 a
nd

 3
 y

ea
r 

sh
ow

in
g 

re
tu

rn
s 

of
 9

.0
7%

 a
nd

 5
.4

4 
%

re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y 

by
 th

es
e 

w
er

e 
-0

.3
6%

 a
nd

 -
0.

30
%

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
k.

  S
in

ce
 in

ce
pt

io
n,

 in
 M

ar
ch

20
06

, 
th

e 
fu

nd
 n

ow
 s

ho
w

s 
gr

ow
th

 o
f 

0.
19

%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 w
hi

le
 t

he
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
sh

ow
s 

a 
po

si
tiv

e
0.

83
%

 r
et

ur
n,

 m
ea

ni
ng

 th
e 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 n

ow
 -

64
 b

as
is

 p
oi

nt
s.

U
B

S 
T

ac
ti

ca
l

W
ith

 a
 r

et
ur

n 
w

hi
ch

 a
lm

os
t 

ex
ac

tly
 m

at
ch

es
 t

he
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

qu
ar

te
r 

th
e 

U
B

S 
T

ac
tic

al
 m

an
da

te
po

st
s 

a 
re

tu
rn

 o
f 

-7
.9

3%
 a

ga
in

st
 t

he
 B

ar
cl

ay
s 

U
S 

In
fl

at
io

n 
L

in
ke

d 
In

de
x 

of
 -

4.
34

%
. 

W
hi

ch
m

ea
ns

 i
n 

th
e 

6 
m

on
th

s 
si

nc
e 

th
e 

in
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 t
he

 f
un

d 
it 

sh
ow

s 
lo

ss
es

 o
f 

-1
5.

25
%

, 
w

hi
le

 t
he

in
de

x 
on

ly
 f

al
ls

 -
9.

83
%

.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
7
of
46

Page 19



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

T
ot

al
 F

un
d 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 a
t Q

tr
 E

nd
:

£7
18

.4
 M

B
y 

M
an

ag
er

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n

A
ct

iv
e

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
10

/1
3

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n

A
ct

iv
e

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
11

/1
3

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n

A
ct

iv
e

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
12

/1
3

A
ct

iv
e

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
4Q

 2
01

3

Ad
am

 S
tre

et
 0

.8
0

-
 0

.8
0

-
16

5,
42

8.
51

-1
.2

9
-

-1
.2

9
-

-2
63

,2
30

.7
8

3.
63

-
3.

63
-

73
0,

31
5.

72
63

2,
51

3.
46

Ba
rin

gs
 2

.0
6

 0
.3

7
 1

.6
9

 1
.6

9
1,

05
5,

13
2.

69
-0

.5
4

 0
.3

7
-0

.9
1

-0
.9

1
-5

78
,5

88
.9

7
0.

48
0.

37
0.

11
0.

11
67

,1
46

.3
5

54
3,

69
0.

06

JP
 M

or
ga

n
 1

.3
0

 0
.2

9
 1

.0
1

 1
.0

0
75

2,
34

3.
22

 0
.4

6
 0

.2
9

 0
.1

7
 0

.1
7

12
7,

03
7.

25
0.

91
0.

29
0.

62
0.

62
47

1,
10

7.
53

1,
35

0,
48

7.
99

Ke
m

pe
n

 3
.7

2
 4

.9
3

-1
.2

2
-1

.1
6

-5
97

,7
08

.8
2

-3
.0

6
 0

.0
3

-3
.0

9
-3

.0
9

-1
,5

00
,9

56
.2

2
-0

.4
2

1.
20

-1
.6

2
-1

.6
0

-7
72

,1
36

.1
0

-2
,8

70
,8

01
.1

3

LG
T

 2
.1

8
-

 2
.1

8
-

35
5,

40
8.

28
-0

.4
0

-
-0

.4
0

-
-6

6,
97

1.
74

0.
40

-
0.

40
-

63
,3

51
.4

3
35

1,
78

7.
97

M
ac

qu
ar

ie
 4

.6
7

 0
.2

9
 4

.3
8

 4
.3

7
25

3,
19

5.
37

-0
.6

5
 0

.2
9

-0
.9

4
-0

.9
4

-5
7,

11
1.

65
-0

.3
3

0.
29

-0
.6

2
-0

.6
2

-3
7,

18
8.

14
15

8,
89

5.
58

M
&G

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

-0
.0

0
 0

.3
7

-0
.3

7
-0

.3
7

-9
0,

51
9.

32
 0

.0
5

 0
.3

7
-0

.3
2

-0
.3

2
-7

7,
02

8.
55

0.
54

0.
37

0.
17

0.
17

41
,9

22
.3

8
-1

25
,6

25
.4

8

Ne
wt

on
 3

.9
0

 5
.0

3
-1

.1
3

-1
.0

7
-2

68
,4

83
.4

7
-1

.2
4

-0
.3

4
-0

.9
0

-0
.9

0
-2

10
,9

06
.4

5
0.

68
0.

79
-0

.1
1

-0
.1

1
-2

6,
10

6.
92

-5
05

,4
96

.8
5

Ru
ffe

r
 0

.9
7

 0
.0

5
 0

.9
3

 0
.9

3
78

0,
71

9.
59

-0
.2

4
 0

.0
4

-0
.2

8
-0

.2
8

-2
37

,2
23

.8
7

-0
.1

1
0.

04
-0

.1
5

-0
.1

5
-1

28
,0

73
.1

9
41

5,
42

2.
54

SS
G

A
 3

.8
7

 3
.9

1
-0

.0
4

-0
.0

3
-5

2,
08

9.
99

-0
.7

8
-0

.7
8

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
0

-2
,5

68
.6

4
0.

60
0.

60
-0

.0
0

-0
.0

0
-2

17
.8

6
-5

4,
87

6.
48

UB
S

 3
.9

4
 4

.2
9

-0
.3

4
-0

.3
3

-4
88

,6
71

.4
5

-0
.0

4
-0

.7
0

 0
.6

6
 0

.6
7

93
3,

49
1.

84
2.

50
1.

84
0.

67
0.

66
96

3,
80

3.
41

1,
40

8,
62

3.
81

UB
S 

Pr
op

er
ty

 1
.1

0
 1

.1
3

-0
.0

2
-0

.0
2

-1
1,

70
1.

78
 1

.3
7

 1
.4

6
-0

.0
9

-0
.0

9
-4

7,
37

4.
84

1.
85

1.
65

0.
20

0.
20

10
9,

03
9.

96
49

,9
63

.3
4

UB
S 

Ta
ct

ica
l

 1
.9

4
 1

.3
8

 0
.5

6
 0

.5
5

73
,6

42
.3

8
-6

.3
1

-3
.1

2
-3

.1
9

-3
.2

9
-4

07
,2

19
.7

2
-3

.6
1

-2
.6

0
-1

.0
0

-1
.0

3
-1

20
,6

05
.6

1
-4

54
,1

82
.9

6

A
ct

iv
e 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
8
of
46

Page 20



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

T
ot

al
 F

un
d 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 a
t Q

tr
 E

nd
:

B
y 

M
an

ag
er

M
ar

ke
t

V
al

ue
 £

m
%

 o
f F

un
d

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n
P

or
tfo

lio
B

en
ch

m
ar

k
E

xc
es

s
R

et
ur

n
R

el
at

iv
e

R
et

ur
n

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n

Ad
am

 S
tre

et
20

.8
 2

.9
0

 3
.1

1
-

-
-

 1
0.

27
-

-
-

 1
0.

27
-

-
-

Ba
rin

gs
63

.4
 8

.8
2

 2
.0

0
 1

.1
2

 0
.8

8
 0

.8
7

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

JP
 M

or
ga

n
76

.5
 1

0.
65

 2
.6

9
 0

.8
7

 1
.8

1
 1

.8
0

 2
.4

0
 3

.5
3

-1
.1

2
-1

.0
9

 2
.4

0
 3

.5
3

-1
.1

2
-1

.0
9

Ke
m

pe
n

46
.9

 6
.5

2
 0

.1
2

 6
.2

2
-6

.1
0

-5
.7

5
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

LG
T

16
.0

 2
.2

3
 2

.1
7

-
-

-
 9

.2
7

-
-

-
 9

.2
7

-
-

-

M
ac

qu
ar

ie
6.

0
 0

.8
3

 3
.6

5
 0

.8
7

 2
.7

7
 2

.7
5

 4
.8

3
 3

.5
3

 1
.3

0
 1

.2
6

 4
.8

3
 3

.5
3

 1
.3

0
 1

.2
6

M
&G

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

24
.4

 3
.3

9
 0

.6
0

 1
.1

2
-0

.5
2

-0
.5

1
 6

.1
3

 4
.5

3
 1

.6
0

 1
.5

3
 6

.1
3

 4
.5

3
 1

.6
0

 1
.5

3

Ne
wt

on
23

.4
 3

.2
6

 3
.3

1
 5

.5
0

-2
.1

9
-2

.0
8

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Ru
ffe

r
84

.8
 1

1.
80

 0
.6

2
 0

.1
3

 0
.4

9
 0

.4
9

 1
1.

40
 0

.5
2

 1
0.

88
 1

0.
83

 1
1.

40
 0

.5
2

 1
0.

88
 1

0.
83

SS
G

A
14

3.
4

 1
9.

97
 3

.6
8

 3
.7

2
-0

.0
4

-0
.0

4
 1

6.
29

 1
6.

48
-0

.1
8

-0
.1

6
 1

6.
29

 1
6.

48
-0

.1
8

-0
.1

6

UB
S

14
5.

3
 2

0.
23

 6
.5

1
 5

.4
6

 1
.0

5
 0

.9
9

 3
1.

12
 2

0.
81

 1
0.

32
 8

.5
4

 3
1.

12
 2

0.
81

 1
0.

32
 8

.5
4

UB
S 

Pr
op

er
ty

53
.4

 7
.4

3
 4

.3
9

 4
.3

0
 0

.0
9

 0
.0

9
 9

.0
7

 9
.4

6
-0

.4
0

-0
.3

6
 9

.0
7

 9
.4

6
-0

.4
0

-0
.3

6

UB
S 

Ta
ct

ica
l

11
.9

 1
.6

6
-7

.9
3

-4
.3

4
-3

.5
9

-3
.7

6
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

£7
18

.4
 M

Sc
he

m
e 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

T
hr

ee
M

on
th

s
Y

ea
r

T
o 

D
at

e
O

ne
Y

ea
r

M
ar

ke
t

V
al

ue
 £

m
%

 o
f F

un
d

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n
P

or
tfo

lio
B

en
ch

m
ar

k
E

xc
es

s
R

et
ur

n
R

el
at

iv
e

R
et

ur
n

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n

o

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f
Hi

lli
ng

do
n

71
8.

4
10

0.
00

3.
02

3.
21

-0
.1

8
-0

.1
8

14
.0

4
12

.7
8

1.
26

1.
12

14
.0

4
12

.7
8

1.
26

1.
12

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
9
of
46

Page 21



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

T
ot

al
 F

un
d 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 a
t Q

tr
 E

nd
:

B
y 

M
an

ag
er

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n
P

or
tfo

lio
B

en
ch

m
ar

k
E

xc
es

s
R

et
ur

n
R

el
at

iv
e

R
et

ur
n

In
ce

pt
io

n
D

at
e

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n

Ad
am

 S
tre

et
 1

0.
53

-
-

-
 3

.6
0

-
-

-
31

/0
1/

05
 1

.7
8

-
-

-

Ba
rin

gs
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
24

/0
4/

13
 2

.2
2

 3
.0

9
-0

.8
7

-0
.8

5

JP
 M

or
ga

n
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
08

/1
1/

11
 4

.7
4

 3
.7

1
 1

.0
3

 1
.0

0

Ke
m

pe
n

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

31
/0

1/
13

 5
.8

2
 1

8.
07

-1
2.

25
-1

0.
37

LG
T

 8
.6

5
-

-
-

 2
.8

9
-

-
-

31
/0

5/
04

 8
.3

0
-

-
-

M
ac

qu
ar

ie
-7

.9
1

 3
.7

6
-1

1.
67

-1
1.

24
-

-
-

-
30

/0
9/

10
-6

.8
4

 3
.7

6
-1

0.
60

-1
0.

22

M
&G

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 5
.1

6
 4

.7
7

 0
.3

9
 0

.3
8

-
-

-
-

31
/0

5/
10

 4
.9

9
 4

.7
7

 0
.2

2
 0

.2
1

Ne
wt

on
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
24

/0
1/

13
 1

0.
94

 1
5.

03
-4

.0
8

-3
.5

5

Ru
ffe

r
 5

.4
0

 0
.7

6
 4

.6
4

 4
.6

0
-

-
-

-
28

/0
5/

10
 6

.3
3

 0
.7

5
 5

.5
7

 5
.5

3

SS
G

A
 8

.2
5

 8
.2

6
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

1
 1

2.
06

 1
2.

07
-0

.0
0

-0
.0

0
30

/1
1/

08
 1

3.
50

 1
3.

49
 0

.0
2

 0
.0

1

UB
S

 1
3.

49
 9

.4
1

 4
.0

8
 3

.7
3

 1
6.

27
 1

4.
31

 1
.9

7
 1

.7
2

31
/1

2/
88

 1
0.

61
 9

.2
1

 1
.4

0
 1

.2
9

UB
S 

Pr
op

er
ty

 5
.4

4
 5

.7
5

-0
.3

2
-0

.3
0

 4
.2

3
 5

.4
4

-1
.2

1
-1

.1
5

31
/0

3/
06

 0
.1

9
 0

.8
3

-0
.6

4
-0

.6
4

UB
S 

Ta
ct

ica
l

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

30
/0

6/
13

-1
5.

25
-9

.8
3

-5
.4

1
-6

.0
0

£7
18

.4
 M

Sc
he

m
e 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

T
hr

ee
Y

ea
rs

Fi
ve

Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n

T
o 

D
at

e

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n
P

or
tfo

lio
B

en
ch

m
ar

k
E

xc
es

s
R

et
ur

n
R

el
at

iv
e

R
et

ur
n

In
ce

pt
io

n
D

at
e

P
or

tfo
lio

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

E
xc

es
s

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n

o

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f
Hi

lli
ng

do
n

7.
59

6.
84

0.
75

0.
70

9.
88

9.
89

-0
.0

2
-0

.0
1

30
/0

9/
95

6.
82

6.
77

0.
04

0.
04

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
10
of
46

Page 22



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

A
da

m
 S

tr
ee

t 
( 

2.
99

 %
 )

B
ar

in
gs

 (
 8

.9
3 

%
 )

C
as

h
( 

0.
00

 %
 )

JP
 M

or
ga

n
 (

 1
0.

72
 %

 )
K

em
pe

n
 (

 6
.7

3 
%

 )
LG

T
 (

 2
.3

5 
%

 )
M

ac
qu

ar
ie

 (
 0

.9
5 

%
 )

M
&

G
 I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 (

 3
.2

0 
%

 )
N

ew
to

n
 (

 3
.2

6 
%

 )

R
uf

fe
r

 (
 1

2.
12

 %
 )

S
S

G
A

 (
 1

9.
90

 %
 )

S
S

G
A

 D
ra

w
do

w
n

( 
0.

00
 %

 )
U

B
S

 (
 1

9.
63

 %
 )

U
B

S
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

 (
 7

.3
6 

%
 )

U
B

S
 T

ac
tic

al
 (

 1
.8

7 
%

 )

W
ei

gh
ti

ng
 a

t B
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f P
er

io
d

A
da

m
 S

tr
ee

t 
( 

2.
91

 %
 )

B
ar

in
gs

 (
 8

.8
5 

%
 )

C
as

h
( 

0.
00

 %
 )

JP
 M

or
ga

n
 (

 1
0.

68
 %

 )
K

em
pe

n
( 

6.
54

 %
 )

LG
T

 (
 2

.2
4 

%
 )

M
ac

qu
ar

ie
( 

0.
83

 %
 )

M
&

G
 I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 (

 3
.4

0 
%

 )

N
ew

to
n

 (
 3

.2
7 

%
 )

R
uf

fe
r

 (
 1

1.
84

 %
 )

S
S

G
A

 (
 2

0.
03

 %
 )

S
S

G
A

 D
ra

w
do

w
n

( 
0.

00
 %

 )
U

B
S

 (
 2

0.
29

 %
 )

U
B

S
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

 (
 7

.4
5 

%
 )

U
B

S
 T

ac
tic

al
 (

 1
.6

6 
%

 )

A
da

m
 S

tr
ee

t
Ba

rin
gs

C
as

h
JP

 M
or

ga
n

Ke
m

pe
n

LG
T

M
ac

qu
ar

ie
M

&
G

 I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

N
ew

to
n

R
uf

fe
r

SS
G

A
SS

G
A
 D

ra
w

do
w

n
U

BS
U

BS
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

U
BS

 T
ac

tic
al

W
ei

gh
ti

ng
 a

t E
nd

 o
f P

er
io

d

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

H
ill

in
g

d
o

n
69

8,
73

0
10

0.
00

 
-1

,4
63

19
,2

89
1,

83
4

71
8,

38
9

10
0.

00
 

A
d

am
 S

tr
ee

t
20

,8
05

2.
98

 
-6

00
62

5
4

20
,8

34
2.

90
 

B
ar

in
g

s
62

,1
12

8.
89

 
11

1,
24

2
0

63
,3

64
8.

82
 

C
as

h
15

0.
00

 
-2

-0
0

12
0.

00
 

JP
 M

o
rg

an
74

,4
97

10
.6

6 
0

2,
00

2
0

76
,5

00
10

.6
5 

K
em

p
en

46
,7

82
6.

70
 

30
54

0
46

,8
66

6.
52

 

L
G

T
16

,3
13

2.
33

 
-6

21
35

4
0

16
,0

46
2.

23
 

M
ac

q
u

ar
ie

6,
61

3
0.

95
 

-8
95

25
3

-0
5,

97
1

0.
83

 

M
&

G
 I

n
ve

st
m

en
ts

22
,2

53
3.

18
 

1,
97

2
14

5
-0

24
,3

70
3.

39
 

N
ew

to
n

22
,6

37
3.

24
 

0
74

9
0

23
,3

86
3.

26
 

R
u

ff
er

84
,2

42
12

.0
6 

-1
24

2
28

4
84

,7
67

11
.8

0 

S
S

G
A

13
8,

35
5

19
.8

0 
0

5,
09

2
0

14
3,

44
7

19
.9

7 

S
S

G
A

 D
ra

w
d

o
w

n
1

0.
00

 
0

-0
0

1
0.

00
 

U
B

S
13

6,
43

5
19

.5
3 

0
7,

90
6

97
0

14
5,

31
1

20
.2

3 

U
B

S
 P

ro
p

er
ty

51
,1

41
7.

32
 

0
1,

69
9

54
8

53
,3

88
7.

43
 

U
B

S
 T

ac
ti

ca
l

12
,9

66
1.

86
 

-2
0

-1
,0

54
27

11
,9

19
1.

66
 

O
p

en
in

g
 M

ar
ke

t
V

al
u

e
%

 o
f F

u
n

d
N

et
 In

ve
st

m
en

t
A

p
p

re
ci

at
io

n
In

co
m

e 
R

ec
ei

ve
d

C
lo

si
n

g
 M

ar
ke

t
V

al
u

e
%

 o
f F

u
n

d

 £
(0

00
)

 £
(0

00
)

 £
(0

00
)

 £
(0

00
)

 £
(0

00
)

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
11
of
46

Page 23



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

10
0.

0

S
ep

-1
99

5

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

7.
59

6.
11

0.
70

1.
30

0.
57

1.
05

0.
42

0.
96

1.
07

 6
.8

4

 5
.6

8

 1
.0

2

-1
.5

-1
.0

-0
.50.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11

-0
.1

1

-1
.3

4

Q
2 

11

0.
33

-0
.7

0

Q
3 

11

0.
58

-0
.5

8

Q
4 

11

-0
.9

0

-0
.7

5

Q
1 

12

0.
52

-0
.4

5

Q
2 

12

-0
.4

2

-0
.1

9

Q
3 

12

0.
06

0.
04

Q
4 

12

0.
93

0.
64

Q
1 

13

0.
97

1.
14

Q
2 

13

0.
41

1.
26

Q
3 

13

-0
.0

8

0.
89

Q
4 

13

-0
.1

8

0.
70

L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

0.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

14
.0

16
.0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

3.
02

14
.0

4
14

.0
4

7.
59

9.
88

6.
82

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
3.

21
12

.7
8

12
.7

8
6.

84
9.

89
6.

77

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

69
8,

73
0

-1
,4

63

1,
83

4

19
,2

89

71
8,

38
9

-8
.0

-6
.0

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

3.
02

2.
43

0.
21

7.
84

3.
12

2.
64

-1
.5

9
4.

71
3.

82
-6

.2
0

1.
64

1.
15

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
3.

21
2.

52
-0

.2
0

6.
80

2.
18

2.
58

-1
.1

8
4.

16
4.

76
-6

.7
4

1.
31

1.
26

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
12
of
46

Page 24



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

Cu
rre

nt
Q

ua
rte

r
Pr

ev
io

us
Q

ua
rte

r
Cu

rre
nt

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
Cu

rre
nt

De
via

tio
n

Pr
ev

io
us

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
Pr

ev
io

us
De

via
tio

n

U
K 

Eq
ui

ty
30

.1
4

29
.3

2
28

.2
0

1.
94

28
.2

0
1.

12

Eu
ro

pe
 e

x 
U

K
2.

76
2.

74
2.

17
0.

59
2.

17
0.

57

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ica
3.

40
3.

20
2.

16
1.

24
2.

16
1.

04

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

0.
59

0.
58

0.
58

0.
01

0.
58

0.
00

G
lo

ba
l -

 B
ar

in
gs

8.
82

8.
89

8.
90

-0
.0

8
8.

90
-0

.0
1

G
lo

ba
l -

 K
em

pe
n

6.
52

6.
69

6.
71

-0
.1

9
6.

71
-0

.0
2

G
lo

ba
l -

 N
ew

to
n

3.
26

3.
24

3.
24

0.
02

3.
24

-0
.0

0

Co
rp

or
at

es
1.

69
1.

71
4.

89
-3

.2
0

4.
89

-3
.1

8

JP
M

 S
tra

te
gi

c B
on

d 
Fu

nd
10

.6
5

10
.6

6
10

.6
8

-0
.0

3
10

.6
8

-0
.0

2

In
de

x 
Li

nk
ed

 G
ilts

4.
06

5.
11

2.
33

1.
73

2.
33

2.
78

In
fla

tio
n 

Li
nk

ed
 B

on
ds

2.
37

2.
62

1.
86

0.
51

1.
86

0.
76

Pr
iva

te
 E

qu
ity

9.
24

9.
20

5.
83

3.
41

5.
83

3.
37

H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

1.
52

1.
59

12
.0

3
-1

0.
51

12
.0

3
-1

0.
44

Co
m

m
od

itie
s

0.
48

0.
60

0.
95

-0
.4

7
0.

95
-0

.3
5

Ca
sh

2.
28

2.
54

0.
12

2.
16

0.
12

2.
42

-1
2.

0
-1

0.
0

-8
.0

-6
.0

-4
.0

-2
.0

0.
0

2.
0

4.
0

Ca
sh

Co
m

m
od

itie
s

H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

Pr
iva

te
 E

qu
ity

In
fla

tio
n 

Li
nk

ed
 B

on
ds

In
de

x 
Li

nk
ed

 G
ilts

JP
M

 S
tra

te
gi

c B
on

d 
Fu

nd

Co
rp

or
at

es

G
lo

ba
l -

 N
ew

to
n

G
lo

ba
l -

 K
em

pe
n

G
lo

ba
l -

 B
ar

in
gs

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ica

Eu
ro

pe
 e

x 
U

K

U
K 

Eq
ui

ty

 C
ur

re
nt

  D
ev

ia
tio

n 
 P

re
vi

ou
s 

D
ev

ia
tio

n 

B
y 

A
ss

et
 C

at
eg

or
y

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
13
of
46

Page 25



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
an

 E
qu

it
y

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

U
K

 E
qu

it
y

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

E
qu

it
y

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

O
ve

rs
ea

s E
qu

it
y

L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 6
.4

1
 2

6.
52

 2
6.

52
 1

0.
35

 1
2.

87
 3

.7
4

B'
M

ar
k

 7
.4

8
 2

8.
30

 2
8.

30
 1

2.
87

 1
4.

48
 8

.4
6

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

4.
25

22
.7

5
22

.7
5

8.
39

12
.1

7
-

B'
M

ar
k

5.
08

20
.6

8
20

.6
8

8.
28

12
.8

8
-

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 2
.2

8
 1

7.
72

 1
7.

72
 4

.3
6

 9
.7

5
 5

.7
6

B'
M

ar
k

 4
.4

6
 2

0.
39

 2
0.

39
 7

.0
4

 1
1.

33
 6

.7
1

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 6
.2

1
 2

8.
65

 2
8.

65
 1

2.
39

 1
4.

56
 7

.4
4

B'
M

ar
k

 5
.4

6
 2

0.
81

 2
0.

81
 9

.4
1

 1
4.

31
 7

.5
5

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
14
of
46

Page 26



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

-5
.00.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

A
si

a 
P

ac
if

ic
 E

qu
it

y

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

E
ur

op
e 

ex
 U

K
 E

qu
it

y

-8
.0

-6
.0

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

t E
qu

it
y

L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

4.
72

25
.7

5
25

.7
5

6.
05

7.
31

6.
98

B'
M

ar
k

5.
79

26
.4

7
26

.4
7

8.
28

9.
98

8.
46

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

-0
.6

0
-6

.0
8

-6
.0

8
-5

.5
3

 9
.0

5
-

B'
M

ar
k

-0
.6

9
-5

.2
9

-5
.2

9
-4

.4
7

 1
1.

42
-

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 1
.0

5
 1

6.
42

 1
6.

42
-4

.8
8

 3
.5

5
-

B'
M

ar
k

-0
.4

5
 1

3.
59

 1
3.

59
 3

.3
5

 8
.7

5
-

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
15
of
46

Page 27



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

In
de

x 
L

in
ke

d 
G

ilt
s

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

C
or

po
ra

te
 B

on
ds

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

F
ix

ed
 I

nc
om

e

-2
0.

0

-1
5.

0

-1
0.

0

-5
.00.
0

5.
0

10
.0

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

on
ds

L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

-1
.0

6
 0

.1
6

 0
.1

6
 5

.2
9

 5
.8

7
-

B'
M

ar
k

-0
.8

9
 0

.5
4

 0
.5

4
 6

.6
6

 6
.8

1
-

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

0.
15

-1
.3

7
-1

.3
7

5.
46

7.
25

-

B'
M

ar
k

0.
68

2.
99

2.
99

5.
21

6.
34

-

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

-1
2.

93
-1

5.
20

-1
5.

20
-0

.1
4

 1
.0

4
-

B'
M

ar
k

-1
.3

5
-3

.9
4

-3
.9

4
 4

.4
7

 3
.8

5
 6

.5
3

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 0
.0

7
 0

.5
8

 0
.5

8
 7

.3
4

 8
.6

0
-

B'
M

ar
k

-0
.0

2
 0

.8
7

 0
.8

7
 6

.8
3

 7
.6

5
-

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
16
of
46

Page 28



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

0.
0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
8

1.
0

1.
2

1.
4

C
as

h

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

P
ri

va
te

 E
qu

it
y

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

10
.0

R
ea

l E
st

at
e

-5
.00.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 0
.1

5
 0

.3
0

 0
.3

0
 1

.2
9

 0
.0

2
-

B'
M

ar
k

 0
.0

9
 0

.3
6

 0
.3

6
 0

.4
3

 0
.4

7
-

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

4.
68

9.
75

9.
75

6.
09

4.
71

7.
87

B'
M

ar
k

4.
30

9.
16

9.
16

5.
66

5.
38

7.
55

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

-1
.7

1
 2

6.
11

 2
6.

11
-

-
-

B'
M

ar
k

 0
.8

7
 3

.5
3

 3
.5

3
 3

.7
6

 3
.8

5
-

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 2
.0

9
 8

.6
1

 8
.6

1
 8

.2
7

 2
.4

4
-

B'
M

ar
k

 5
.0

3
 2

1.
15

 2
1.

15
 8

.2
8

 1
2.

31
 6

.8
3

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
17
of
46

Page 29



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

-0
.1

8-0
.1

50.
25

-0
.4

00.
01

-0
.0

1-
0.

00
-0

.0
0 -0

.0
7 -0

.4
00.

07

0.
0

0.
08

-0
.1

00.
10

-0
.1

2-
0.

11

0.
19

0.
02

-0
.2

00.
20

-0
.0

9-0
.0

7

-0
.5

-0
.4

-0
.3

-0
.2

-0
.10.
0

0.
1

0.
2

0.
3

London Borough of Hillingdon

Equity

UK Equity

Overseas Equities

North America

Europe ex UK

Asia Pacific inc Japan

Emerging Markets

Global - Newton

Global - Kempen

Global - Barings

Global - SSGA

Fixed Income

Government Bonds

Corporates

Inflation Linked Bonds

Index Linked Gilts

JPM Strategic Bond Fund

Real Estates

Private Equity

Hedge Funds

Commodities

Cash

 1
.1

2 
1.

13

 1
.9

6 -0
.8

2 0
.2

9  0
.1

2 0
.2

6 -0
.0

1 -0
.2

5 -0
.7

7-0
.1

1 -0
.3

5-0
.2

4-0
.1

3 0
.2

9 -0
.2

6 -
0.

32
-0

.1
4 0

.0
2 -0

.8
1 1

.6
2 -0

.4
5-0

.2
4

-1
.0

-0
.50.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

London Borough of Hillingdon

Equity

UK Equity

Overseas Equities

North America

Europe ex UK

Asia Pacific inc Japan

Emerging Markets

Global - Newton

Global - Kempen

Global - Barings

Global - SSGA

Fixed Income

Government Bonds

Corporates

Inflation Linked Bonds

Index Linked Gilts

JPM Strategic Bond Fund

Real Estates

Private Equity

Hedge Funds

Commodities

Cash

L
on

do
n 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

R
el

at
iv

e 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

- T
hr

ee
 M

on
th

s

Re
tu

rn
B'

m
ar

k
Re

la
tiv

e
Re

tu
rn

He
dg

in
g

Ef
fe

ct
Cu

rr
en

cy
Ef

fe
ct

As
se

t
Al

lo
ca

tio
n

St
oc

k
Se

le
ct

io
n

Re
la

tiv
e

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f
Hi

llin
gd

on
3.

02
3.

21
-0

.1
8

0.
15

-0
.3

0
0.

38
-0

.4
0

-0
.1

8

Eq
ui

ty
4.

25
5.

08
-0

.7
9

0.
00

-0
.3

1
0.

15
0.

01
-0

.1
5

U
K 

Eq
ui

ty
6.

21
5.

46
0.

72
0.

00
0.

01
0.

02
0.

22
0.

25

O
ve

rs
ea

s E
qu

itie
s

2.
28

4.
46

-2
.0

9
0.

00
-0

.3
2

0.
13

-0
.2

0
-0

.4
0

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ica
6.

41
7.

48
-1

.0
0

0.
00

-0
.0

2
0.

07
-0

.0
4

0.
01

Eu
ro

pe
 e

x 
U

K
4.

72
5.

79
-1

.0
1

0.
00

-0
.0

1
0.

01
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

1

As
ia

 P
ac

ific
 in

c 
Ja

pa
n

1.
05

-0
.4

5
1.

50
0.

00
-0

.2
0

0.
05

0.
15

-0
.0

0

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

-0
.6

0
-0

.6
9

0.
08

0.
00

0.
00

-0
.0

0
0.

00
-0

.0
0

R
el

at
iv

e 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

- O
ne

 Y
ea

r

Re
tu

rn
B'

m
ar

k
Re

la
tiv

e
Re

tu
rn

He
dg

in
g

Ef
fe

ct
Cu

rr
en

cy
Ef

fe
ct

As
se

t
Al

lo
ca

tio
n

St
oc

k
Se

le
ct

io
n

Re
la

tiv
e

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f
Hi

llin
gd

on
14

.0
4

12
.7

8
1.

12
0.

21
-0

.7
3

1.
82

-0
.3

9
1.

12

Eq
ui

ty
22

.7
5

20
.6

8
1.

72
0.

00
-0

.8
6

0.
75

1.
24

1.
13

U
K 

Eq
ui

ty
28

.6
5

20
.8

1
6.

49
0.

00
0.

00
0.

07
1.

89
1.

96

O
ve

rs
ea

s E
qu

itie
s

17
.7

2
20

.3
9

-2
.2

2
0.

00
-0

.8
6

0.
68

-0
.6

3
-0

.8
2

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ica
26

.5
2

28
.3

0
-1

.3
8

0.
00

0.
09

0.
25

-0
.0

5
0.

29

Eu
ro

pe
 e

x 
U

K
25

.7
5

26
.4

7
-0

.5
7

0.
00

0.
13

0.
14

-0
.1

5
0.

12

As
ia

 P
ac

ific
 in

c 
Ja

pa
n

16
.4

2
13

.5
9

2.
49

0.
00

-0
.6

1
0.

41
0.

47
0.

26

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

-6
.0

8
-5

.2
9

-0
.8

4
0.

00
0.

01
0.

00
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

1

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
18
of
46

Page 30



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
  

Re
tu

rn
B'

m
ar

k
Re

la
tiv

e
Re

tu
rn

He
dg

in
g

Ef
fe

ct
Cu

rr
en

cy
Ef

fe
ct

As
se

t
Al

lo
ca

tio
n

St
oc

k
Se

le
ct

io
n

Re
la

tiv
e

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

G
lo

ba
l -

 N
ew

to
n

3.
31

5.
50

-2
.0

8
0.

00
0.

00
-0

.0
0

-0
.0

7
-0

.0
7

G
lo

ba
l -

 K
em

pe
n

0.
12

6.
22

-5
.7

5
0.

00
-0

.0
4

-0
.0

0
-0

.3
5

-0
.4

0

G
lo

ba
l -

 B
ar

in
gs

2.
00

1.
12

0.
87

0.
00

-0
.0

4
0.

00
0.

12
0.

07

G
lo

ba
l -

 S
SG

A
-

-
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
0.

15
0.

68
-0

.5
3

0.
00

-0
.0

3
-0

.0
1

0.
12

0.
08

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

on
ds

-1
2.

93
-

-
0.

00
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

9
0.

00
-0

.1
0

Co
rp

or
at

es
0.

07
-0

.0
2

0.
09

0.
00

-0
.0

1
0.

11
0.

00
0.

10

In
fla

tio
n 

Li
nk

ed
 B

on
ds

-6
.8

4
-4

.3
4

-2
.6

1
0.

00
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

4
-0

.0
7

-0
.1

2

In
de

x 
Li

nk
ed

 G
ilts

-1
.0

6
-0

.8
9

-0
.1

7
0.

00
-0

.0
0

-0
.1

1
0.

00
-0

.1
1

JP
M

 S
tra

te
gi

c B
on

d
Fu

nd
2.

69
0.

87
1.

80
0.

00
-0

.0
0

0.
00

0.
19

0.
19

R
ea

l E
st

at
es

4.
68

4.
30

0.
37

0.
00

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
0

0.
03

0.
02

Pr
iva

te
 E

qu
ity

2.
09

5.
03

-2
.8

0
0.

00
0.

13
0.

14
-0

.4
8

-0
.2

0

H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

-1
.7

1
0.

87
-2

.5
6

0.
00

-0
.0

9
0.

28
0.

01
0.

20

Co
m

m
od

itie
s

-1
6.

66
0.

87
-1

7.
38

0.
00

-0
.0

0
0.

01
-0

.1
0

-0
.0

9

Ca
sh

0.
15

0.
09

0.
05

0.
00

0.
01

-0
.0

8
0.

00
-0

.0
7

Re
tu

rn
B'

m
ar

k
Re

la
tiv

e
Re

tu
rn

He
dg

in
g

Ef
fe

ct
Cu

rr
en

cy
Ef

fe
ct

As
se

t
Al

lo
ca

tio
n

St
oc

k
Se

le
ct

io
n

Re
la

tiv
e

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

G
lo

ba
l -

 N
ew

to
n

9.
43

15
.0

3
-4

.8
6

0.
00

-0
.0

1
-0

.0
4

-0
.1

9
-0

.2
5

G
lo

ba
l -

 K
em

pe
n

5.
62

-
5.

62
0.

00
-0

.1
4

-0
.0

2
-0

.6
1

-0
.7

7

G
lo

ba
l -

 B
ar

in
gs

-
-

0.
00

0.
00

-0
.1

9
0.

04
0.

05
-0

.1
1

G
lo

ba
l -

 S
SG

A
-

-
0.

00
-0

.1
5

-0
.0

9
-0

.1
2

-0
.3

5

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
-1

.3
7

2.
99

-4
.2

3
0.

00
-0

.0
3

0.
04

-0
.2

4
-0

.2
4

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

on
ds

-1
5.

20
-

-
0.

00
-0

.0
1

-0
.1

2
0.

00
-0

.1
3

Co
rp

or
at

es
0.

58
0.

87
-0

.2
9

0.
00

-0
.0

2
0.

31
-0

.0
1

0.
29

In
fla

tio
n 

Li
nk

ed
 B

on
ds

-8
.2

9
-1

0.
94

2.
98

0.
00

-0
.0

0
-0

.1
5

-0
.1

1
-0

.2
6

In
de

x 
Li

nk
ed

 G
ilts

0.
16

0.
54

-0
.3

8
0.

00
0.

05
-0

.2
9

-0
.0

8
-0

.3
2

JP
M

 S
tra

te
gi

c B
on

d
Fu

nd
2.

40
3.

53
-1

.0
9

0.
00

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
1

-0
.1

3
-0

.1
4

R
ea

l E
st

at
es

9.
75

9.
16

0.
54

0.
00

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
1

0.
04

0.
02

Pr
iva

te
 E

qu
ity

8.
61

21
.1

5
-1

0.
35

0.
00

0.
25

0.
37

-1
.4

2
-0

.8
1

H
ed

ge
 F

un
ds

26
.1

1
3.

53
21

.8
1

0.
00

-0
.1

2
1.

23
0.

50
1.

62

Co
m

m
od

itie
s

-4
2.

99
3.

53
-4

4.
93

0.
00

-0
.0

1
-0

.0
0

-0
.4

4
-0

.4
5

Ca
sh

0.
30

0.
36

-0
.0

6
0.

00
-0

.0
2

-0
.2

6
0.

04
-0

.2
4

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

P
ag
e
19
of
46

Page 31



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
  

T
hr

ee
 M

on
th

s
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

F
un

d 
R

et
ur

n
In

de
x 

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n
A

ss
et

A
llo

ca
tio

n
S

to
ck

S
el

ec
tio

n
R

el
at

iv
e

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
illi

ng
do

n
 3

.0
2

 3
.1

7
-0

.1
4

-0
.0

2
-0

.1
2

-0
.1

4

Ba
rin

gs
 2

.0
0

 1
.1

2
 0

.8
7

 0
.0

0
 0

.0
8

 0
.0

8

JP
 M

or
ga

n
 2

.6
9

 0
.8

7
 1

.8
0

-0
.0

0
 0

.1
9

 0
.1

9

Ke
m

pe
n

 0
.1

2
 6

.2
2

-5
.7

5
-0

.0
0

-0
.4

0
-0

.4
0

Ne
wt

on
 3

.3
1

 5
.5

0
-2

.0
8

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
7

-0
.0

7

Ru
ffe

r
 0

.6
2

 0
.1

3
 0

.4
9

-0
.0

0
 0

.0
6

 0
.0

6

SS
G

A
 3

.6
8

 3
.7

2
-0

.0
4

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

1

SS
G

A 
Dr

aw
do

wn
-1

.4
2

 0
.0

7
-1

.5
0

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
0

-0
.0

0

SS
G

A 
G

lo
ba

l E
qu

ity
-

-
 0

.0
0

 0
.0

0
 0

.0
0

 0
.0

0

UB
S

 6
.5

1
 5

.4
6

 0
.9

9
 0

.0
0

 0
.2

0
 0

.2
0

UB
S 

Pr
op

er
ty

 4
.3

9
 4

.3
0

 0
.0

9
 0

.0
0

 0
.0

1
 0

.0
1

Ad
am

 S
tre

et
 3

.1
1

 5
.0

3
-1

.8
2

 0
.0

0
-0

.0
6

-0
.0

6

LG
T

 2
.1

7
 5

.0
3

-2
.7

2
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

6
-0

.0
8

M
ac

qu
ar

ie
 3

.6
5

 0
.8

7
 2

.7
5

-0
.0

0
 0

.0
3

 0
.0

3

M
&G

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 0
.6

0
 1

.1
2

-0
.5

1
-0

.0
0

-0
.0

2
-0

.0
2

Ca
sh

-2
.4

5
 0

.0
9

-2
.5

3
 0

.0
0

-0
.0

0
 0

.0
0

F
un

d 
R

et
ur

n
In

de
x 

R
et

ur
n

R
el

at
iv

e
R

et
ur

n
A

ss
et

A
llo

ca
tio

n
S

to
ck

S
el

ec
tio

n
R

el
at

iv
e

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
illi

ng
do

n
 1

4.
04

 1
2.

43
 1

.4
3

-0
.4

6
 1

.3
9

 1
.4

3

Ba
rin

gs
-

-
 0

.0
0

 0
.0

1
-0

.1
3

-0
.1

2

JP
 M

or
ga

n
 2

.4
0

 3
.5

3
-1

.0
9

-0
.0

1
-0

.1
3

-0
.1

4

Ke
m

pe
n

 5
.7

5
-

 5
.7

5
-0

.0
2

-0
.7

4
-0

.7
6

Ne
wt

on
 1

0.
94

 1
5.

03
-3

.5
5

-0
.0

2
-0

.2
0

-0
.2

2

Ru
ffe

r
 1

1.
40

 0
.5

2
 1

0.
83

-0
.0

3
 1

.9
4

 1
.9

0

SS
G

A
 1

6.
29

 1
6.

48
-0

.1
6

-0
.0

1
-0

.0
3

-0
.0

5

SS
G

A 
Dr

aw
do

wn
-6

.1
2

 0
.6

3
-6

.7
1

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
0

-0
.0

1

SS
G

A 
G

lo
ba

l E
qu

ity
-

-
 0

.0
0

-0
.1

7
-0

.1
9

-0
.3

6

UB
S

 3
1.

12
 2

0.
81

 8
.5

4
-0

.0
5

 1
.5

6
 1

.5
1

UB
S 

Pr
op

er
ty

 9
.0

7
 9

.4
6

-0
.3

6
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

3
-0

.0
4

Ad
am

 S
tre

et
 1

0.
27

 2
1.

15
-8

.9
8

 0
.0

1
-0

.3
1

-0
.3

0

LG
T

 9
.2

7
 2

1.
15

-9
.8

1
-0

.0
3

-0
.2

7
-0

.3
0

M
ac

qu
ar

ie
 4

.8
3

 3
.5

3
 1

.2
6

-0
.0

1
 0

.0
1

 0
.0

0

M
&G

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 6
.1

3
 4

.5
3

 1
.5

3
 0

.0
0

 0
.0

4
 0

.0
4

Ca
sh

 2
7.

34
 0

.3
6

 2
6.

88
 0

.0
0

 0
.0

0
 0

.0
0

-0
.1

4

 0
.0

8

 0
.1

9

-0
.4

0

-0
.0

7

 0
.0

6

-0
.0

1
-0

.0
0

 0
.0

0

 0
.2

0

 0
.0

1

-0
.0

6
-0

.0
8

 0
.0

3

-0
.0

2

 0
.0

0

-0
.5

-0
.4

-0
.3

-0
.2

-0
.10.
0

0.
1

0.
2

0.
3

London Borough of Hillingdon

Barings

JP Morgan

Kempen

Newton

Ruffer

SSGA

SSGA Drawdown

SSGA Global Equity

UBS

UBS Property

Adam Street

LGT

Macquarie

M&G Investments

Cash

 1
.4

3

-0
.1

2
-0

.1
4

-0
.7

6

-0
.2

2

 1
.9

0

-0
.0

5
-0

.0
1

-0
.3

6

 1
.5

1

-0
.0

4
-0

.3
0

-0
.3

0

 0
.0

0
 0

.0
4

 0
.0

0

-1
.0

-0
.50.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

London Borough of Hillingdon

Barings

JP Morgan

Kempen

Newton

Ruffer

SSGA

SSGA Drawdown

SSGA Global Equity

UBS

UBS Property

Adam Street

LGT

Macquarie

M&G Investments

Cash

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

P
ag
e
20
of
46

Page 32



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
  

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

8.
8

A
pr

-2
01

3

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

- - - - - - - - -

-2
.5

-2
.0

-1
.5

-1
.0

-0
.50.
0

0.
5

1.
0

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11 - -

Q
2 

11 - -

Q
3 

11 - -

Q
4 

11 - -

Q
1 

12 - -

Q
2 

12 - -

Q
3 

12 - -

Q
4 

12 - -

Q
1 

13 - -

Q
2 

13

-2
.2

4

-

Q
3 

13

0.
27 -

Q
4 

13

0.
87 -

B
ar

in
gs 0.

0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5

3.
0

3.
5

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

2.
00

-
-

-
-

2.
22

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
1.

12
-

-
-

-
3.

09

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

62
,1

12 11 0

1,
24

2

63
,3

64

0.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

2.
00

1.
38

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
1.

12
1.

12
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

P
ag
e
21
of
46

Page 33



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

10
.6

N
ov

-2
01

1

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

- - - - - - - - -

-2
.5

-2
.0

-1
.5

-1
.0

-0
.50.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11 - -

Q
2 

11 - -

Q
3 

11 - -

Q
4 

11 - -

Q
1 

12

2.
34 -

Q
2 

12

-1
.3

6

-

Q
3 

12

1.
47 -

Q
4 

12

0.
81 -

Q
1 

13

-0
.4

9

-

Q
2 

13

-2
.4

1

-

Q
3 

13

0.
06 -

Q
4 

13

1.
80 -

JP
 M

or
ga

n

0.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5

3.
0

3.
5

4.
0

4.
5

5.
0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

2.
69

2.
40

2.
40

-
-

4.
74

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
0.

87
3.

53
3.

53
-

-
3.

71

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

74
,4

97 0 0

2,
00

2

76
,5

00

-2
.0

-1
.5

-1
.0

-0
.50.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5

3.
0

3.
5

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

2.
69

0.
94

-1
.5

7
0.

37
1.

69
2.

41
-0

.3
8

3.
37

-
-

-
-

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
0.

87
0.

87
0.

87
0.

87
0.

88
0.

93
0.

99
1.

01
-

-
-

-

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
22
of
46

Page 34



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

6.
5

Ja
n-

20
13

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

- - - - - - - - -

-6
.0

-5
.0

-4
.0

-3
.0

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11 - -

Q
2 

11 - -

Q
3 

11 - -

Q
4 

11 - -

Q
1 

12 - -

Q
2 

12 - -

Q
3 

12 - -

Q
4 

12 - -

Q
1 

13 - -

Q
2 

13

-4
.0

4

-

Q
3 

13

0.
54 -

Q
4 

13

-5
.7

5

-

K
em

pe
n

0.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

14
.0

16
.0

18
.0

20
.0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

0.
12

-
-

-
-

5.
82

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
6.

22
-

-
-

-
18

.0
7

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

46
,7

82 30 0 54

46
,8

66

-3
.0

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

0.
12

2.
48

-2
.6

3
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
6.

22
1.

93
1.

46
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
23
of
46

Page 35



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

3.
3

Ja
n-

20
13

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

- - - - - - - - -

-2
.5

-2
.0

-1
.5

-1
.0

-0
.50.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11 - -

Q
2 

11 - -

Q
3 

11 - -

Q
4 

11 - -

Q
1 

12 - -

Q
2 

12 - -

Q
3 

12 - -

Q
4 

12 - -

Q
1 

13

1.
41 -

Q
2 

13

-0
.8

8

-

Q
3 

13

-2
.0

2

-

Q
4 

13

-2
.0

8

-

N
ew

to
n

0.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

14
.0

16
.0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

3.
31

-
-

-
-

10
.9

4

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
5.

50
-

-
-

-
15

.0
3

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

22
,6

37 0 0

74
9

23
,3

86

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

3.
31

-0
.3

8
-0

.4
2

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
5.

50
1.

68
0.

46
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
24
of
46

Page 36



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

3.
4

M
ay

-2
01

0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

5.
16

2.
70

0.
38

2.
71

0.
15

1.
97

-3
.0

6

0.
00

1.
52

 4
.7

7

 0
.0

6

 6
1.

12

-3
.0

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11

-1
.1

7

-

Q
2 

11

0.
06 -

Q
3 

11

0.
59 -

Q
4 

11

0.
01 -

Q
1 

12

0.
08 -

Q
2 

12

-2
.7

9

-

Q
3 

12

2.
99 -

Q
4 

12

-0
.0

7

-

Q
1 

13

0.
97 -

Q
2 

13

0.
05

0.
13

Q
3 

13

1.
03

0.
50

Q
4 

13

-0
.5

1

0.
38

M
&

G
 I

nv
es

tm
en

ts

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

0.
60

6.
13

6.
13

5.
16

-
4.

99

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
1.

12
4.

53
4.

53
4.

77
-

4.
77

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

22
,2

53

1,
97

2 -0

14
5

24
,3

70

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

0.
60

2.
15

1.
16

2.
09

1.
05

4.
19

-1
.5

9
1.

34
1.

25
1.

80
1.

25
0.

00

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
1.

12
1.

12
1.

11
1.

11
1.

12
1.

17
1.

23
1.

25
1.

24
1.

21
1.

19
1.

18

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
25
of
46

Page 37



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

0.
8

S
ep

-2
01

0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

-7
.9

1

12
.0

0

-1
1.

24

12
.0

1

-0
.9

7

40
.9

6

-7
0.

86

0.
07

-0
.7

5

 3
.7

6

 0
.0

6

 4
4.

55

-1
4.

0

-1
2.

0

-1
0.

0

-8
.0

-6
.0

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11

-7
.6

8

-

Q
2 

11

-1
.0

9

-

Q
3 

11

5.
73 -

Q
4 

11

-1
2.

22 -

Q
1 

12

-1
3.

12 -

Q
2 

12

-0
.4

3

-

Q
3 

12

-4
.8

9

-

Q
4 

12

-0
.9

6

-

Q
1 

13

2.
79 -

Q
2 

13

4.
40 -

Q
3 

13

-8
.1

7

-1
1.

82

Q
4 

13

2.
75

-1
1.

24

M
ac

qu
ar

ie

-8
.0

-6
.0

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

3.
65

4.
83

4.
83

-7
.9

1
-

-6
.8

4

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
0.

87
3.

53
3.

53
3.

76
-

3.
76

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

6,
61

3

-8
95 -0

25
3

5,
97

1

-1
4.

0

-1
2.

0

-1
0.

0

-8
.0

-6
.0

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

3.
65

-7
.3

7
5.

31
3.

69
-0

.1
0

-4
.0

1
0.

56
-1

2.
25

-1
1.

35
6.

74
-0

.1
6

-6
.8

1

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
0.

87
0.

87
0.

87
0.

87
0.

88
0.

93
0.

99
1.

01
1.

00
0.

96
0.

95
0.

94

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
26
of
46

Page 38



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

11
.8

M
ay

-2
01

0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

5.
40

5.
41

4.
60

5.
43

0.
85

23
.8

9

11
.7

9

0.
09

0.
80

 0
.7

6

 0
.0

7

-4
.2

6

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11

-0
.8

2

-

Q
2 

11

1.
18 -

Q
3 

11

-2
.0

1

-

Q
4 

11

2.
58 -

Q
1 

12

2.
42 -

Q
2 

12

-3
.1

0

-

Q
3 

12

0.
80 -

Q
4 

12

2.
33 -

Q
1 

13

10
.1

9

-

Q
2 

13

0.
08

7.
48

Q
3 

13

0.
01

6.
34

Q
4 

13

0.
49

4.
60

R
uf

fe
r 0.

0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

0.
62

11
.4

0
11

.4
0

5.
40

-
6.

33

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
0.

13
0.

52
0.

52
0.

76
-

0.
75

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

84
,2

42 -1

28
4

24
2

84
,7

67

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

0.
62

0.
14

0.
20

10
.3

3
2.

49
1.

06
-2

.8
3

2.
70

2.
81

-1
.8

2
1.

39
-0

.6
4

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
0.

13
0.

13
0.

13
0.

13
0.

15
0.

26
0.

28
0.

28
0.

22
0.

19
0.

20
0.

18

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
27
of
46

Page 39



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

20
.0

N
ov

-2
00

8

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

8.
25

9.
06

-0
.0

1

0.
16

-0
.0

9

0.
99

0.
04

1.
00

0.
79

 8
.2

6

 9
.1

4

 0
.7

9

-0
.2

-0
.10.
0

0.
1

0.
2

0.
3

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11

-0
.0

0

-

Q
2 

11

-0
.0

6

-

Q
3 

11

0.
26 -

Q
4 

11

-0
.0

1

0.
07

Q
1 

12

0.
01

0.
11

Q
2 

12

-0
.0

9

0.
08

Q
3 

12

0.
00

0.
03

Q
4 

12

0.
01

0.
05

Q
1 

13

-0
.0

1

0.
05

Q
2 

13

-0
.1

0

-0
.0

2

Q
3 

13

-0
.0

2

-0
.0

0

Q
4 

13

-0
.0

4

-0
.0

1

SS
G

A 0.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

14
.0

16
.0

18
.0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

3.
68

16
.2

9
16

.2
9

8.
25

12
.0

6
13

.5
0

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
3.

72
16

.4
8

16
.4

8
8.

26
12

.0
7

13
.4

9

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

13
8,

35
5 0 0

5,
09

2

14
3,

44
7

-1
5.

0

-1
0.

0

-5
.00.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

3.
68

3.
57

-1
.8

3
10

.3
2

3.
80

3.
77

-2
.5

3
6.

11
6.

71
-1

0.
84

1.
69

1.
19

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
3.

72
3.

59
-1

.7
3

10
.3

2
3.

79
3.

77
-2

.4
4

6.
09

6.
73

-1
1.

07
1.

75
1.

20

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
28
of
46

Page 40



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

SS
G

A
Cu

rre
nt

Q
ua

rte
r

Pr
ev

io
us

Q
ua

rte
r

Cu
rre

nt
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

Cu
rre

nt
De

via
tio

n
Pr

ev
io

us
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

Pr
ev

io
us

De
via

tio
n

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

 4
4.

03
 4

3.
92

 4
4.

08
-0

.0
5

 4
4.

08
-0

.1
6

E
ur

op
e 

ex
 U

K
 1

1.
06

 1
0.

96
 1

1.
25

-0
.1

9
 1

1.
25

-0
.2

9

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a

 1
0.

96
 1

0.
92

 1
1.

44
-0

.4
8

 1
1.

44
-0

.5
2

A
si

a 
P

ac
ifi

c
 1

1.
06

 1
0.

87
 1

1.
49

-0
.4

3
 1

1.
49

-0
.6

2

E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 2

.9
6

 2
.9

5
 2

.9
8

-0
.0

2
 2

.9
8

-0
.0

3

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

on
ds

 1
.4

5
 1

.5
2

 1
.3

7
 0

.0
8

 1
.3

7
 0

.1
5

C
or

po
ra

te
 B

on
ds

 8
.4

8
 8

.6
3

 7
.8

4
 0

.6
4

 7
.8

4
 0

.7
9

In
de

x 
Li

nk
ed

 G
ilt

s
 1

0.
00

 1
0.

23
 9

.5
5

 0
.4

5
 9

.5
5

 0
.6

8

-0
.8

-0
.6

-0
.4

-0
.2

0.
0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
8

In
de

x 
Li

nk
ed

 G
ilts

C
or

po
ra

te
 B

on
ds

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

on
ds

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

As
ia

 P
ac

ific

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ica

Eu
ro

pe
 e

x 
U

K

U
ni

te
d 

Ki
ng

do
m

Cu
rre

nt
 D

ev
ia

tio
n 

Pr
ev

io
us

 D
ev

ia
tio

n 

B
y 

Se
ct

or

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
29
of
46

Page 41



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

14
.0

A
si

a 
P

ac
if

ic
 E

qu
it

y

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a 

E
qu

it
y

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

U
K

 E
qu

it
y

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

E
ur

op
e 

ex
 U

K
 E

qu
it

y

SS
G

A

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

-0
.5

2
13

.5
5

13
.5

5
3.

30
8.

71
11

.5
5

B'
M

ar
k

-0
.4

5
13

.5
9

13
.5

9
3.

35
8.

75
11

.6
0

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

5.
48

20
.8

9
20

.8
9

9.
51

14
.4

1
15

.0
0

B'
M

ar
k

5.
46

20
.8

1
20

.8
1

9.
41

14
.3

1
14

.8
7

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 5
.7

8
 2

6.
11

 2
6.

11
 8

.0
0

 9
.7

2
 1

2.
96

B'
M

ar
k

 5
.7

9
 2

6.
47

 2
6.

47
 8

.2
8

 9
.9

8
 1

3.
19

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 7
.4

6
 2

8.
23

 2
8.

23
 1

2.
85

 1
4.

46
 1

5.
95

B'
M

ar
k

 7
.4

8
 2

8.
30

 2
8.

30
 1

2.
87

 1
4.

48
 1

5.
92

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
30
of
46

Page 42



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

-4
.0

-3
.0

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

on
ds

-1
0.

0

-5
.00.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 E

qu
it

y

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

C
or

po
ra

te
s

SS
G

A

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

-0
.6

1
-5

.4
4

-5
.4

4
-4

.6
4

11
.7

0
14

.7
0

B'
M

ar
k

-0
.6

9
-5

.2
9

-5
.2

9
-4

.4
7

11
.8

6
14

.7
4

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

 0
.0

7
 0

.8
4

 0
.8

4
 6

.8
6

 8
.0

9
 8

.5
8

B'
M

ar
k

 0
.0

5
 0

.7
9

 0
.7

9
 6

.8
5

 8
.0

0
 8

.5
0

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

-1
.3

4
-3

.9
2

-3
.9

2
 4

.5
2

 3
.9

1
 4

.8
5

B'
M

ar
k

-1
.3

5
-3

.9
4

-3
.9

4
 4

.4
7

 3
.8

5
 4

.8
3

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

In
de

x 
L

in
ke

d 
G

ilt
s

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

-0
.8

6
 0

.6
0

 0
.6

0
 6

.7
3

 7
.1

1
 8

.8
4

B'
M

ar
k

-0
.8

9
 0

.5
4

 0
.5

4
 6

.6
6

 7
.0

6
 8

.7
9

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
31
of
46

Page 43



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
el

at
iv

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 -
 T

h
re

e 
M

o
n

th
s

Re
tu

rn
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

Re
la

tiv
e 

Re
tu

rn
As

se
t A

llo
ca

tio
n

St
oc

k 
Se

le
ct

io
n

Re
la

tiv
e

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

SS
G

A
3.

68
3.

72
-0

.0
4

-0
.0

5
0.

00
-0

.0
4

Eq
ui

ty
4.

74
-

4.
74

0.
01

-0
.0

0
0.

01

Un
ite

d 
Ki

ng
do

m
5.

48
5.

46
0.

02
0.

00
0.

01
0.

01

Eu
ro

pe
 e

x 
UK

5.
78

5.
79

-0
.0

1
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
1

No
rth

 A
m

er
ic

a
7.

46
7.

48
-0

.0
2

-0
.0

2
-0

.0
0

-0
.0

2

As
ia

 P
ac

ifi
c

-0
.5

2
-0

.4
5

-0
.0

8
0.

03
-0

.0
1

0.
02

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

-0
.6

1
-0

.6
9

0.
08

-0
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
-0

.1
5

-
-0

.1
5

-0
.0

3
0.

00
-0

.0
3

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

on
ds

-1
.3

4
-1

.3
5

0.
01

-0
.0

1
0.

00
-0

.0
1

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Bo

nd
s

0.
07

0.
05

0.
02

-0
.0

2
0.

00
-0

.0
2

In
de

x 
Li

nk
ed

 G
ilt

s
-0

.8
6

-0
.8

9
0.

03
-0

.0
2

0.
00

-0
.0

2

Ca
sh

-
-

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

Re
tu

rn
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

Re
la

tiv
e 

Re
tu

rn
As

se
t A

llo
ca

tio
n

St
oc

k 
Se

le
ct

io
n

Re
la

tiv
e

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

SS
G

A
16

.2
9

16
.4

8
-0

.1
6

-0
.1

6
0.

00
-0

.1
6

Eq
ui

ty
20

.5
5

-
20

.5
5

-0
.0

4
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

5

Un
ite

d 
Ki

ng
do

m
20

.8
9

20
.8

1
0.

07
-0

.0
1

0.
03

0.
02

Eu
ro

pe
 e

x 
UK

26
.1

1
26

.4
7

-0
.2

9
-0

.0
3

-0
.0

3
-0

.0
6

No
rth

 A
m

er
ic

a
28

.2
3

28
.3

0
-0

.0
6

-0
.0

1
-0

.0
1

-0
.0

1

As
ia

 P
ac

ifi
c

13
.6

3
13

.5
9

0.
04

0.
01

0.
01

0.
02

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

-5
.4

5
-5

.2
9

-0
.1

7
-0

.0
0

-0
.0

0
-0

.0
1

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
0.

12
-

0.
12

-0
.0

6
0.

00
-0

.0
5

G
ov

er
nm

en
t B

on
ds

-3
.9

2
-3

.9
4

0.
03

-0
.0

1
0.

00
-0

.0
1

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Bo

nd
s

0.
84

0.
79

0.
05

-0
.0

4
0.

00
-0

.0
4

In
de

x 
Li

nk
ed

 G
ilt

s
0.

60
0.

54
0.

06
-0

.0
6

0.
01

-0
.0

6

Ca
sh

-
-

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-0
.0

4

0.
01

0.
01

-0
.0

1

-0
.0

2

0.
02

0.
00

-0
.0

3

-0
.0

1

-0
.0

2
-0

.0
2

0.
00

-0
.0

5

-0
.0

4

-0
.0

3

-0
.0

2

-0
.0

1

-0
.0

0

0.
01

0.
02

SSGA

Equity

United Kingdom

Europe ex UK

North America

Asia Pacific

Emerging Markets

Fixed Income

Government Bonds

Corporate Bonds

Index Linked Gilts

Cash

-0
.1

6

-0
.0

5

0.
02

-0
.0

6

-0
.0

1

0.
02

-0
.0

1

-0
.0

5

-0
.0

1
-0

.0
4

-0
.0

6

0.
00

-0
.2

0

-0
.1

5

-0
.1

0

-0
.0

5

0.
00

0.
05

SSGA

Equity

United Kingdom

Europe ex UK

North America

Asia Pacific

Emerging Markets

Fixed Income

Government Bonds

Corporate Bonds

Index Linked Gilts

Cash

R
el

at
iv

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 -
 O

n
e 

Y
ea

r

SS
G

A

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
32
of
46

Page 44



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

20
.2

D
ec

-1
98

8

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

13
.4

9

12
.7

2

3.
73

3.
52

1.
16

1.
06

3.
35

0.
93

0.
98

 9
.4

1

 1
1.

53

 0
.7

3

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11

-1
.0

7

-1
.2

9

Q
2 

11

0.
54

-0
.1

1

Q
3 

11

-0
.8

7

-1
.4

3

Q
4 

11

-0
.5

4

-1
.4

6

Q
1 

12

1.
63

-0
.2

6

Q
2 

12

-0
.6

4

-1
.1

1

Q
3 

12

1.
01

-1
.2

9

Q
4 

12

2.
80

0.
28

Q
1 

13

-0
.3

5

0.
32

Q
2 

13

4.
84

2.
79

Q
3 

13

2.
87

3.
44

Q
4 

13

0.
99

3.
73

U
B

S

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

35
.0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

6.
51

31
.1

2
31

.1
2

13
.4

9
16

.2
7

10
.6

1

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
5.

46
20

.8
1

20
.8

1
9.

41
14

.3
1

9.
21

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

13
6,

43
5 0

97
0

7,
90

6

14
5,

31
1

-1
5.

0

-1
0.

0

-5
.00.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

6.
51

8.
61

3.
10

9.
94

6.
73

5.
75

-3
.2

5
7.

84
7.

80
-1

4.
25

2.
46

-0
.0

5

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
5.

46
5.

58
-1

.6
6

10
.3

2
3.

82
4.

70
-2

.6
3

6.
10

8.
39

-1
3.

50
1.

91
1.

03

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
33
of
46

Page 45



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

U
B

S
Cu

rre
nt

Q
ua

rte
r

Pr
ev

io
us

Q
ua

rte
r

Cu
rre

nt
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

Cu
rre

nt
De

via
tio

n
Pr

ev
io

us
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

Pr
ev

io
us

De
via

tio
n

B
as

ic
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 1
0.

12
 1

0.
34

 7
.7

8
 2

.3
4

 8
.1

9
 2

.1
5

C
on

su
m

er
 G

oo
ds

 1
.1

0
 1

.0
6

 1
3.

27
-1

2.
17

 1
3.

61
-1

2.
54

C
on

su
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s

 1
7.

35
 1

9.
22

 1
0.

69
 6

.6
6

 1
0.

64
 8

.5
7

F
in

an
ci

al
s

 2
3.

50
 2

2.
49

 2
3.

92
-0

.4
3

 2
4.

02
-1

.5
4

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e

 6
.5

3
 6

.3
4

 7
.2

7
-0

.7
4

 7
.1

5
-0

.8
1

In
du

st
ria

ls
 1

1.
41

 1
0.

74
 1

0.
26

 1
.1

5
 1

0.
02

 0
.7

2

O
il 

&
 G

as
 1

7.
59

 1
6.

76
 1

4.
40

 3
.1

9
 1

4.
15

 2
.6

1

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

 1
.3

2
 1

.6
1

-1
.6

1
 1

.5
9

-0
.2

6

T
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 5
.3

7
 5

.1
4

 7
.2

6
-1

.8
8

 6
.9

2
-1

.7
8

U
til

iti
es

 3
.5

8
 3

.7
8

 3
.5

3
 0

.0
5

 3
.7

1
 0

.0
7

C
as

h
 3

.4
2

 2
.7

8
 3

.4
2

 2
.7

8

-1
5.

0
-1

0.
0

-5
.0

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

Ca
sh

Ut
ilit

ie
s

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns

Te
ch

no
lo

gy

O
il &

 G
as

In
du

st
ria

ls

H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls

C
on

su
m

er
 S

er
vic

es

C
on

su
m

er
 G

oo
ds

Ba
sic

 M
at

er
ia

ls

Cu
rre

nt
 D

ev
ia

tio
n 

Pr
ev

io
us

 D
ev

ia
tio

n 

B
y 

Se
ct

or

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
34
of
46

Page 46



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

0.
0

5.
0

10
.0

15
.0

20
.0

25
.0

30
.0

35
.0

U
K

 E
qu

it
y

U
B

S

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
Da

te

Fu
nd

6.
69

31
.8

9
31

.8
9

13
.8

0
16

.6
4

-

B'
M

ar
k

5.
46

20
.8

1
20

.8
1

9.
41

14
.3

1
9.

48

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
35
of
46

Page 47



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
el

at
iv

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 -
 T

h
re

e 
M

o
n

th
s

Re
tu

rn
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

Re
la

tiv
e

Re
tu

rn
As

se
t

Al
lo

ca
tio

n
St

oc
k

Se
le

ct
io

n
Re

la
tiv

e
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n

UB
S

6.
51

5.
46

0.
99

-0
.0

6
1.

05
0.

99

Eq
ui

ty
6.

69
5.

46
1.

17
0.

09
1.

05
1.

14

Ba
si

c 
M

at
er

ia
ls

2.
40

0.
37

2.
02

-0
.1

0
0.

20
0.

09

Co
ns

um
er

 G
oo

ds
9.

66
3.

19
6.

27
0.

27
0.

07
0.

34

Co
ns

um
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
10

.1
1

5.
32

4.
55

-0
.0

0
0.

80
0.

79

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls
5.

24
4.

40
0.

80
0.

00
0.

19
0.

19

He
al

th
 C

ar
e

6.
14

8.
48

-2
.1

6
-0

.0
2

-0
.1

5
-0

.1
6

In
du

st
ria

ls
4.

50
6.

18
-1

.5
8

0.
01

-0
.1

7
-0

.1
6

O
il 

& 
G

as
11

.1
7

8.
20

2.
74

0.
08

0.
47

0.
54

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
0.

26
7.

53
-6

.7
6

-0
.0

3
-0

.0
6

-0
.0

9

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
11

.3
6

11
.9

4
-0

.5
3

-0
.1

1
-0

.0
3

-0
.1

4

Ut
ilit

ie
s

-6
.2

6
1.

07
-7

.2
5

-0
.0

0
-0

.2
7

-0
.2

7

Ca
sh

0.
06

-
0.

06
-0

.1
5

0.
00

-0
.1

5

Re
tu

rn
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

Re
la

tiv
e

Re
tu

rn
As

se
t

Al
lo

ca
tio

n
St

oc
k

Se
le

ct
io

n
Re

la
tiv

e
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n

UB
S

31
.1

2
20

.8
1

8.
54

0.
89

7.
52

8.
54

Eq
ui

ty
31

.8
9

20
.8

1
9.

18
1.

33
7.

52
8.

96

Ba
si

c 
M

at
er

ia
ls

-7
.6

8
-1

0.
45

3.
09

0.
27

0.
38

0.
65

Co
ns

um
er

 G
oo

ds
73

.7
4

17
.1

6
48

.2
9

0.
38

0.
53

0.
91

Co
ns

um
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s
48

.7
5

33
.4

9
11

.4
3

0.
95

2.
08

3.
05

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls
40

.3
3

20
.9

2
16

.0
5

-0
.0

5
3.

23
3.

18

He
al

th
 C

ar
e

27
.8

6
30

.6
9

-2
.1

7
0.

09
-0

.0
9

-0
.0

0

In
du

st
ria

ls
40

.1
2

33
.6

5
4.

84
0.

16
0.

53
0.

69

O
il 

& 
G

as
15

.9
5

11
.8

8
3.

64
-0

.2
1

0.
64

0.
43

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
52

.6
8

31
.9

2
15

.7
4

-0
.0

4
0.

23
0.

19

Te
le

co
m

m
un

ica
tio

ns
62

.6
3

62
.0

6
0.

35
-0

.2
3

0.
01

-0
.2

2

Ut
ilit

ie
s

6.
69

12
.5

1
-5

.1
7

0.
01

-0
.2

0
-0

.2
0

Ca
sh

0.
57

-
0.

57
-0

.4
4

0.
00

-0
.4

4

0.
99

1.
14

0.
09

0.
34

0.
79

0.
19

-0
.1

6
-0

.1
6

0.
54

-0
.0

9
-0

.1
4

-0
.2

7
-0

.1
5

-0
.4

-0
.20.
0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
8

1.
0

1.
2

UBS

Equity

Basic Materials

Consumer Goods

Consumer Services

Financials

Health Care

Industrials

Oil & Gas

Technology

Telecommunications

Utilities

Cash

8.
54

8.
96

0.
65

0.
91

3.
05

3.
18

-0
.0

0
0.

69
0.

43
0.

19

-0
.2

2
-0

.2
0

-0
.4

4
-1

.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

UBS

Equity

Basic Materials

Consumer Goods

Consumer Services

Financials

Health Care

Industrials

Oil & Gas

Technology

Telecommunications

Utilities

Cash

R
el

at
iv

e 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 -
 O

n
e 

Y
ea

r

U
B

S

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
36
of
46

Page 48



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

7.
4

M
ar

-2
00

6

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

5.
44

2.
26

-0
.3

0

1.
48

-0
.2

1

1.
19

-1
.1

6

0.
59

1.
94

 5
.7

5

 1
.4

2

 3
.3

1

-1
.6

-1
.4

-1
.2

-1
.0

-0
.8

-0
.6

-0
.4

-0
.20.
0

0.
2

0.
4

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11

0.
23

-1
.3

8

Q
2 

11

0.
31

-1
.1

7

Q
3 

11

-0
.2

3

-1
.3

6

Q
4 

11

0.
34

-1
.4

0

Q
1 

12

-0
.1

9

-1
.5

5

Q
2 

12

-0
.0

5

-1
.5

7

Q
3 

12

0.
03

-1
.4

6

Q
4 

12

-0
.9

7

-0
.5

2

Q
1 

13

-0
.4

6

-0
.7

4

Q
2 

13

0.
22

-0
.3

8

Q
3 

13

-0
.2

2

-0
.5

1

Q
4 

13

0.
09

-0
.3

0

U
B

S 
P

ro
pe

rt
y

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

10
.0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

4.
39

9.
07

9.
07

5.
44

4.
23

0.
19

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
4.

30
9.

46
9.

46
5.

75
5.

44
0.

83

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

51
,1

41 0

54
8

1,
69

9

53
,3

88

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

4.
39

2.
18

1.
63

0.
61

-1
.3

6
0.

43
0.

25
0.

61
1.

64
1.

47
2.

12
2.

13

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
4.

30
2.

40
1.

40
1.

07
-0

.4
0

0.
40

0.
30

0.
80

1.
30

1.
70

1.
80

1.
90

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
37
of
46

Page 49



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

1.
7

Ju
n-

20
13

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

- - - - - - - - -

-4
.0

-3
.5

-3
.0

-2
.5

-2
.0

-1
.5

-1
.0

-0
.50.
0

0.
5

T
hr

e

T
hr

e

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

Q
1 

11 - -

Q
2 

11 - -

Q
3 

11 - -

Q
4 

11 - -

Q
1 

12 - -

Q
2 

12 - -

Q
3 

12 - -

Q
4 

12 - -

Q
1 

13 - -

Q
2 

13 - -

Q
3 

13

-2
.3

3

-

Q
4 

13

-3
.7

6

-

U
B

S 
T

ac
ti

ca
l

-1
6.

0

-1
4.

0

-1
2.

0

-1
0.

0

-8
.0

-6
.0

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

-7
.9

3
-

-
-

-
-1

5.
25

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
-4

.3
4

-
-

-
-

-9
.8

3

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

12
,9

66 -2
0 27

-1
,0

54

11
,9

19

-8
.0

-7
.0

-6
.0

-5
.0

-4
.0

-3
.0

-2
.0

-1
.00.
0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

-7
.9

3
-7

.9
4

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Be
nc

hm
ar

k
-4

.3
4

-5
.7

4
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

-

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
38
of
46

Page 50



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

2.
9

Ja
n-

20
05

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

10
.5

3

11
.3

6 - - - - - -

0.
93

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

A
da

m
 S

tr
ee

t

0.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

12
.0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

3.
11

10
.2

7
10

.2
7

10
.5

3
3.

60
1.

78

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

20
,8

05

-6
00 4

62
5

20
,8

34

-6
.0

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

10
.0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

3.
11

-4
.6

5
2.

32
9.

62
1.

51
-3

.7
0

7.
29

1.
76

-3
.8

3
7.

48
3.

89
6.

83

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
39
of
46

Page 51



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

R
is

k 
St

at
is

ti
cs

 - 
3 

ye
ar

s
F

u
n

d
B

'm
ar

k

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 T

ot
al

 F
un

d

In
ce

pt
io

n 
D

at
e

2.
2

M
ay

-2
00

4

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
et

ur
n

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
 D

ev
ia

tio
n

R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
ur

n

T
ra

ck
in

g 
E

rr
or

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io

B
et

a

A
lp

ha

R
 S

qu
ar

ed

S
ha

rp
e 

R
at

io

8.
65

7.
47

0.
34

10
.5

5

0.
04

0.
26

5.
72

0.
14

1.
02

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 R
el

at
iv

e 
R

et
u

rn
s

3M
 R

el
at

iv
e

3Y
 R

el
at

iv
e

L
G

T

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

10
.0

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

Th
re

e 
M

on
th

s
Ye

ar
 T

o 
Da

te
O

ne
 Y

ea
r

Th
re

e 
Ye

ar
s

Fi
ve

 Y
ea

rs
In

ce
pt

io
n 

To
 D

at
e

Fu
nd

2.
17

9.
27

9.
27

8.
65

2.
89

8.
30

O
pe

ni
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t £

(0
00

)

In
co

m
e 

R
ec

ei
ve

d 
£(

00
0)

A
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
£(

00
0)

C
lo

si
ng

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 (£
00

0)

16
,3

13

-6
21 0

35
4

16
,0

46

-4
.0

-2
.00.
0

2.
0

4.
0

6.
0

8.
0

T
h

re
e 

Y
ea

rs
 R

o
lli

n
g

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

R
et

u
rn

s

Q
4 

13
Q

3 
13

Q
2 

13
Q

1 
13

Q
4 

12
Q

3 
12

Q
2 

12
Q

1 
12

Q
4 

11
Q

3 
11

Q
2 

11
Q

1 
11

Fu
nd

2.
17

-2
.1

3
3.

30
5.

78
4.

22
-0

.3
0

0.
99

1.
45

-3
.0

7
-1

.1
0

6.
61

7.
88

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
40
of
46

Page 52



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
  

N
ew

to
n

10
0.

0
FT

SE
 W

or
ld

 I
nd

ex
 +

2%

R
uf

fe
r

10
0.

0
3 

M
on

th
 S

te
rl

in
g 

L
IB

O
R

SS
G

A
44

.0
FT

SE
 A

ll 
Sh

ar
e

11
.0

FT
SE

 W
or

ld
 N

or
th

 A
m

er
ic

a
11

.0
FT

SE
 W

or
ld

 E
ur

op
e 

ex
 U

K
11

.0
FT

SE
 P

ac
if

ic
 B

as
in

 e
x 

Ja
pa

n
3.

0
FT

SE
 A

ll 
W

or
ld

 A
ll 

E
m

er
gi

ng
1.

5
FT

SE
 G

ilt
s 

A
ll 

St
oc

ks
10

.0
FT

SE
 I

nd
ex

 L
in

ke
d 

G
ilt

s
8.

5
M

L
 S

te
rl

in
g 

N
on

-G
ilt

s

SS
G

A
 D

ra
w

do
w

n
50

.0
M

L
 S

te
rl

in
g 

N
on

-G
ilt

s
50

.0
FT

 7
 D

ay
 L

IB
ID

U
B

S 10
0.

0
FT

SE
 A

ll 
Sh

ar
e

U
B

S 
P

ro
pe

rt
y

10
0.

0
IP

D
 U

K
 P

PF
I A

ll 
B

al
an

ce
d 

Fu
nd

s 
In

de
x

T
ot

al
 P

la
n 

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

26
.8

FT
SE

 A
ll 

Sh
ar

e
2.

2
FT

SE
 A

W
 N

or
th

 A
m

er
ic

a
2.

2
FT

SE
 A

W
 D

ev
el

o p
ed

 E
ur

op
e 

ex
 U

K
2.

2
FT

SE
 A

W
 D

ev
el

op
ed

 A
si

a 
Pa

ci
fi

c
0.

6
FT

SE
 A

ll 
W

or
ld

 A
ll 

E
m

er
gi

ng
2.

3
FT

SE
 I

nd
ex

 L
in

ke
d 

G
ilt

s
4.

7
B

C
 S

te
rl

in
g 

A
gg

re
ga

te
 1

00
m

m
 N

on
 G

ilt
s

7.
2

IP
D

 U
K

 P
PF

I A
ll 

B
al

an
ce

d 
Fu

nd
s 

In
de

x
3.

4
FT

SE
 W

or
ld

 I
nd

ex
 +

2%
6.

0
M

SC
I 

A
ll 

C
ou

nt
ri

es
 W

or
ld

 I
nd

ex
24

.6
L

IB
O

R
 3

 M
on

th
 +

 3
%

1.
9

FT
 7

 D
a y

 L
IB

ID
9.

0
L

IB
O

R
 3

 M
on

th
 +

 4
%

6.
9

M
SC

I 
W

or
ld

 In
de

x 
+2

%

B
ar

in
gs

10
0.

0
L

IB
O

R
 3

 M
on

th
 +

 4
%

JP
 M

or
ga

n
10

0.
0

L
IB

O
R

 3
 M

on
th

 +
 3

%

K
em

pe
n

10
0.

0
M

SC
I 

A
ll 

W
or

ld
 I

nd
ex

 +
2%

M
ac

qu
ar

ie
10

0.
0

L
IB

O
R

 3
 M

on
th

 +
 3

%

M
&

G
 I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
10

0.
0

L
IB

O
R

 3
 M

on
th

 +
 4

%

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

P
ag
e
41
of
46

Page 53



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 
T

ra
ck

in
g

 E
rr

o
r

T

E
R

E
R
t

E
R

2 )
(

  
 f

o
r 

t=
1

 t
o

 T
 

A
n

n
u

al
is

ed
 t

ra
ck

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

p
E
R

W
h

er
e 

 
E

q
u

a
ls

 

E
R

E
x

ce
ss

 r
et

u
rn

 (
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 R

et
u

rn
 m

in
u

s 
B

en
ch

m
ar

k
 R

et
u

rn
) 

E
R

A
ri

th
m

et
ic

 a
v

er
ag

e 
o

f 
ex

ce
ss

 r
et

u
rn

s 
 (

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 R
et

u
rn

 m
in

u
s 

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

 
R

et
u

rn
) 

T
N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

o
b

se
rv

at
io

n
s 

p
P

er
io

d
ic

it
y

 (
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

o
b

se
rv

at
io

n
s 

p
er

 y
ea

r)
 

T
h

e 
tr

ac
k

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
ex

te
n

t 
to

 w
h

ic
h

 a
 p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 t

ra
ck

s 
it

s 
b

en
ch

m
ar

k
. 

 T
h

e 
h

ig
h

er
 t

h
e 

tr
ac

k
in

g
 e

rr
o

r,
 t

h
e 

h
ig

h
er

 t
h

e 
v

ar
ia

b
il

it
y

 o
f 

th
e 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

 r
et

u
rn

s 
ar

o
u

n
d

 t
h

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

k
. 

 T
h

e 
tr

ac
k

in
g

 e
rr

o
r 

w
il

l 
al

w
ay

s 
b

e 
g

re
at

er
 t

h
an

 z
er

o
, 

u
n

le
ss

 t
h

e 
p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 i

s 
ex

ac
tl

y
 t

ra
ck

in
g

 t
h

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

k
. 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 R

a
ti

o

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 R
at

io
 =

 
E
R

E
R

A
n

n
u

al
is

ed
 I

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 R
at

io
 =

 I
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 R

at
io

 
p

W
h

er
e 

 
E

q
u

a
ls

 

E
R

A
ri

th
m

et
ic

 a
v

er
ag

e 
o

f 
ex

ce
ss

 r
et

u
rn

s 
 (

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 R
et

u
rn

 m
in

u
s 

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

R
et

u
rn

) 

T
N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

o
b

se
rv

at
io

n
s 

p
P

er
io

d
ic

it
y

 (
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

o
b

se
rv

at
io

n
s 

p
er

 y
ea

r)
 

T
h

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 r

at
io

 i
s 

a 
m

ea
su

re
 o

f 
ri

sk
 a

d
ju

st
ed

 r
et

u
rn

. 
 T

h
e 

h
ig

h
er

 t
h

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

ra
ti

o
, 

th
e 

h
ig

h
er

 t
h

e 
ri

sk
 a

d
ju

st
ed

 r
et

u
rn

. 

A
lp

h
a

 

nR

nR
xi

yi

W
h

er
e 

 
E

q
u

a
ls

 

R
xi

M
ar

k
et

 /
 B

en
ch

m
ar

k
 e

x
ce

ss
 r

et
u

rn
 (

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

 r
et

u
rn

 m
in

u
s 

R
is

k
 F

re
e 

P
ro

x
y

 r
et

u
rn

) 

R
yi

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 e
x

ce
ss

 r
et

u
rn

 (
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 r

et
u

rn
 m

in
u

s 
R

is
k

 F
re

e 
P

ro
x

y
 r

et
u

rn
) 

B
et

a 
–

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

th
e 

se
n

si
ti

v
it

y
 o

f 
a 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

’s
 r

at
e 

o
f 

re
tu

rn
 a

g
ai

n
st

 
th

o
se

 o
f 

th
e 

m
ar

k
et

 

n
N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

o
b

se
rv

at
io

n
s 

T
h

e 
al

p
h

a 
is

 t
h

e 
v

al
u

e 
ad

d
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
p

o
rt

fo
li

o
 b

y
 t

h
e 

m
an

ag
er

 –
 t

h
e 

h
ig

h
er

 t
h

e 
al

p
h

a,
 t

h
e 

b
et

te
r 

th
e 

m
an

ag
er

 h
as

 d
o

n
e 

in
 a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 e

x
ce

ss
 r

et
u

rn
s.

 

B
et

a

2
2

)
(

)
(

xi
x
i

y
i

x
i

yi
x
i

R
R

n

R
R

R
R

n

W
h

er
e 

 
E

q
u

a
ls

 

R
xi

M
ar

k
et

 /
 B

en
ch

m
ar

k
 e

x
ce

ss
 r

et
u

rn
 (

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

 r
et

u
rn

 m
in

u
s 

R
is

k
 F

re
e 

P
ro

x
y

 r
et

u
rn

) 

R
yi

P
o

rt
fo

li
o

 e
x

ce
ss

 r
et

u
rn

 (
P

o
rt

fo
li

o
 r

et
u

rn
 m

in
u

s 
R

is
k

 F
re

e 
P

ro
x

y
 r

et
u

rn
) 

B
et

a 
–

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

th
e 

se
n

si
ti

v
it

y
 o

f 
a 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

’s
 r

at
e 

o
f 

re
tu

rn
 a

g
ai

n
st

 
th

o
se

 o
f 

th
e 

m
ar

k
et

 

n
N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

o
b

se
rv

at
io

n
s 

T
h

e 
p

o
rt

fo
li

o
’s

 b
et

a 
is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d

 b
y

 c
o

m
p

ar
in

g
 t

h
e 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

’s
 v

o
la

ti
li

ty
 t

o
 t

h
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
k

’s
 v

o
la

ti
li

ty
 o

v
er

 t
im

e.
  

T
h

e 
m

o
re

 s
en

si
ti

v
e 

a 
p

o
rt

fo
li

o
’s

 r
et

u
rn

s 
ar

e 
to

 
m

o
v

em
en

ts
 i

n
 t

h
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
k

, 
th

e 
h

ig
h

er
 t

h
e 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

’s
 b

et
a 

w
il

l 
b

e.
  

A
 b

et
a 

g
re

at
er

 t
h

an
 

o
n

e 
im

p
li

es
 t

h
e 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

 i
s 

m
o

re
 v

o
la

ti
le

 t
h

an
 t

h
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
k

, 
w

h
il

st
 a

 b
et

a 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 o
n

e 
im

p
li

es
 t

h
e 

p
o

rt
fo

li
o

 i
s 

le
ss

 v
o

la
ti

le
 t

h
an

 t
h

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

k
. 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
42
of
46

Page 54



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
  

R
-S

q
u

ar
ed

]
)

(
)

(
][

)
(

)
(

[

)
(

2
2

2
2

2

yi
yi

xi
xi

yi
xi

yi
xi

R
R

n
R

R
n

R
R

R
R

n
r W

h
er

e 
 

E
q

u
al

s 

R
xi

M
ar

ke
t 

/ 
B

en
ch

m
ar

k 
ex

ce
ss

 r
et

ur
n 

(B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

re
tu

rn
 m

in
us

 R
is

k 
F

re
e 

P
ro

xy
 r

et
ur

n)
 

R
yi

P
or

tf
ol

io
 e

xc
es

s 
re

tu
rn

 (
P

or
tf

ol
io

 r
et

ur
n 

m
in

us
 R

is
k 

F
re

e 
P

ro
xy

 r
et

ur
n)

 

n
N

um
be

r 
of

 o
bs

er
va

ti
on

s 

T
he

 R
2  i

s 
th

e 
sq

ua
re

 o
f 

th
e 

co
rr

el
at

io
n 

co
-e

ff
ic

ie
nt

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
po

rt
fo

li
o 

re
tu

rn
 a

nd
 t

he
 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
re

tu
rn

 i
n 

th
e 

ab
o

ve
 e

qu
at

io
n 

an
d 

is
 a

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

th
e 

fu
nd

’s
 s

en
si

ti
vi

ty
 t

o 
th

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
k,

 i
.e

. t
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 t

he
 p

or
tf

ol
io

’s
 m

ov
em

en
t 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
b

y 
m

ov
em

en
t 

in
 t

he
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k.
 T

he
 R

2  s
ta

ti
st

ic
 r

an
ge

s 
fr

om
 0

 t
o 

1
 (

or
 0

 t
o 

10
0%

) 
w

it
h 

a 
sc

or
e 

of
 1

 i
nd

ic
at

in
g 

th
at

 a
ll

 t
he

 p
or

tf
ol

io
’s

 m
ov

em
en

t 
ca

n 
be

 e
xp

la
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
be

nc
hm

ar
k.

S
h

ar
p

e 
R

at
io

ap

af
ap

R
R

)
( W

h
er

e 
 

E
q

u
al

s 

R
ap

A
nn

ua
li

se
d 

(p
or

tf
ol

io
) 

ra
te

 o
f 

re
tu

rn
 

R
af

A
nn

ua
li

se
d 

ri
sk

-f
re

e 
ra

te
 o

f 
re

tu
rn

 

ap
A

nn
ua

li
se

d 
po

rt
fo

li
o 

st
an

da
rd

 d
ev

ia
ti

on
 

T
he

 S
ha

rp
e 

ra
ti

o 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
e 

ex
ce

ss
 r

et
ur

n 
o

ve
r 

th
e 

ri
sk

-f
re

e 
ra

te
 p

er
 u

ni
t 

of
 v

ol
at

il
it

y.
  

F
or

 a
 g

iv
en

 r
et

ur
n,

 t
he

 l
ow

er
 t

he
 v

ol
at

il
it

y 
of

 t
he

 p
or

tf
ol

io
, t

he
 h

ig
he

r 
th

e 
S

ha
rp

e 
ra

ti
o.

 

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

P
ag
e
43
of
46

Page 55



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
  

Pr
ic

e/
E

ar
ni

ng
s 

R
at

io
 (

P/
E

)
Se

cu
ri

ty
 L

ev
el

 C
al

cu
la

tio
n:

C
ur

re
nt

 p
ri

ce
/T

ra
ili

ng
 1

2 
m

on
th

s 
ea

rn
in

g 
pe

r 
sh

ar
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

T
he

 p
ri

ce
/e

ar
ni

ng
s 

ra
tio

 is
 a

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
 in

di
ca

to
r 

of
 h

ow
 m

uc
h 

an
 in

ve
st

or
 is

pa
yi

ng
 f

or
 a

 c
om

pa
ny

's 
ea

rn
in

g 
po

w
er

. S
to

ck
s 

ha
ve

 a
 p

/e
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t
ar

e 
us

ua
lly

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 b

e 
gr

ow
th

 s
to

ck
s.

5 
Y

ea
r 

E
ar

ni
ng

s 
Pe

r 
Sh

ar
e 

G
ro

w
th

 R
at

e
Se

cu
ri

ty
 L

ev
el

 C
al

cu
la

tio
n:

N
on

e
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n:
T

hi
s 

is
 th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 e
ar

ni
ng

 p
er

 s
ha

re
 g

ro
w

th
 r

at
e 

ov
er

 th
e

la
st

 f
iv

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 a

ll 
st

oc
k 

in
 th

e 
po

rt
fo

lio
. T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

 is
 u

su
al

ly
 v

ie
w

ed
 a

s
ag

ro
w

th
 f

ac
to

r. 
A

 s
to

ck
 m

us
t h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ub

lic
 f

or
 a

t l
ea

st
 f

iv
e 

ye
ar

s 
to

 h
av

e 
th

is
ch

ar
ac

te
ri

st
ic

.

Pr
ic

e 
to

 B
oo

k 
R

at
io

Se
cu

ri
ty

 L
ev

el
 C

al
cu

la
tio

n:
C

ur
re

nt
 p

ri
ce

/M
os

t r
ec

en
t b

oo
k 

va
lu

e 
pe

r 
sh

ar
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

T
hi

s 
is

 u
su

al
ly

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 b

e 
a 

m
ea

su
re

 o
f "

va
lu

e"
, w

ith
 s

to
ck

s 
ha

vi
ng

 h
ig

h
pr

ic
e 

to
 b

oo
k 

ra
tio

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 to
 b

e 
un

de
rv

al
ue

d.

D
iv

id
en

d 
Y

ie
ld

Se
cu

ri
ty

 L
ev

el
 C

al
cu

la
tio

n:
D

iv
id

en
d 

fo
r 

cu
rr

en
t f

is
ca

l y
ea

r/
Pe

ri
od

 e
nd

 c
lo

si
ng

 p
ri

ce
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n:
T

hi
s 

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
at

e 
th

at
 d

iv
id

en
ds

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 p

ai
d 

by
 a

 c
om

pa
ny

,
in

cl
ud

in
g 

an
y 

ex
tr

a 
di

vi
de

nd
s.

 H
ig

h 
di

vi
de

nd
 y

ie
ld

s 
ca

n 
al

so
 b

e 
an

 a
ttr

ib
ut

e 
of

va
lu

e 
st

oc
ks

.

D
eb

t t
o 

C
ap

ita
l

Se
cu

ri
ty

 L
ev

el
 C

al
cu

la
tio

n:
L

on
g 

te
rm

 li
ab

ilt
ie

s,
 d

ef
er

re
d 

ta
xe

s,
 ta

x 
cr

ed
its

, m
in

or
ity

 in
te

re
st

/S
um

 o
f 

de
bt

, t
ot

al
co

m
m

on
 e

qu
ity

 a
nd

 to
ta

l p
re

fe
rr

ed
 s

to
ck

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

re
 in

di
ca

te
s 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f l
ev

er
ag

e 
(d

eb
t)

 b
ei

ng
 u

se
d.

 A
 la

rg
e 

de
bt

 to
ca

pi
ta

l r
at

io
 is

 u
su

al
ly

 in
di

ca
tiv

e 
of

 a
 h

ig
hl

y 
le

ve
ra

ge
d 

co
m

pa
ny

. S
to

ck
s 

ha
vi

ng
 a

ze
ro

 v
al

ue
 a

re
 s

til
l i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 th

e 
to

ta
l p

or
tf

ol
io

 c
al

cu
la

tio
n.

Pr
ic

e 
to

 S
al

es
 R

at
io

Se
cu

ri
ty

 L
ev

el
 C

al
cu

la
tio

n:
C

ur
re

nt
 p

ri
ce

/A
nn

ua
l s

al
es

 p
er

 s
ha

re
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n:
T

hi
s 

is
 u

se
d 

pr
im

ar
ily

 b
y 

va
lu

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 h
av

in
g 

lo
w

 p
ro

fi
t

m
ar

gi
ns

. V
al

ue
 m

an
ag

er
s 

us
e 

th
is

 a
s 

an
ot

he
r 

in
di

ca
to

r 
in

 f
in

di
ng

 u
nd

er
va

lu
ed

st
oc

ks
 w

ith
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ro
fi

ta
bi

lit
y.

T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

re
 v

ar
ie

s 
in

in
fo

rm
at

io
na

l v
al

ue
 b

y 
in

du
st

ry
, a

s 
di

ff
er

en
t i

nd
us

tr
ie

s 
ha

ve
 d

if
fe

re
nt

 p
ri

ce
 to

 s
al

es
ra

tio
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
.

R
et

ur
n 

on
 E

qu
ity

Se
cu

ri
ty

 L
ev

el
 C

al
cu

la
tio

n:
N

et
 p

ro
fi

ts
 a

ft
er

 ta
xe

s/
B

oo
k 

va
lu

e
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n:
T

hi
s 

re
la

te
s 

a 
co

m
pa

ny
's 

pr
of

ita
ba

ili
ty

 to
 it

's 
sh

ar
eh

ol
de

rs
 e

qu
ity

. A
 h

ig
h 

R
O

E
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 th
e 

po
rt

fo
lio

 is
 in

ve
st

ed
 in

 c
om

pa
ni

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

fi
ta

bl
e.

 T
hi

s
m

ea
su

re
 is

 a
ls

o 
im

pa
ct

ed
 b

y 
fi

na
nc

ia
l l

ev
er

ag
e.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

P
ag
e
44
of
46

Page 56



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 
C

ou
po

n 
R

at
e

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

T
he

 s
ta

te
d 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
of

 a
 b

on
d.

 I
t i

s 
a 

m
on

ey
 w

ei
gh

te
d 

av
er

ag
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

po
rt

fo
lio

.

Y
ea

rs
 to

 M
at

ur
ity

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 y

ea
rs

 to
 th

e 
m

at
ur

ity
 d

at
e 

of
 a

ll 
bo

nd
s 

he
ld

 in
 a

 p
or

tf
ol

io
.

O
ft

en
, m

an
ag

er
s 

w
ill

 u
se

 th
e 

w
ei

gh
te

d 
av

er
ag

e 
lif

e 
fo

r 
m

or
tg

ag
es

 a
nd

 m
or

tg
ag

e
ba

ck
ed

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 s

in
ce

 m
os

t m
or

tg
ag

es
 a

re
 p

re
pa

id
 a

nd
 n

ev
er

 r
ea

ch
 m

at
ur

ity
.

M
ac

au
la

y 
D

ur
at

io
n

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

T
he

 m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
 e

st
im

at
e 

of
 a

 f
ix

ed
 in

co
m

e 
po

rt
fo

lio
's 

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 to

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

in
te

re
st

 r
at

es
, c

om
pu

te
d 

as
 th

e 
w

ei
gh

te
d 

av
er

ag
e 

tim
e 

to
 r

ec
ei

pt
 o

f 
th

e 
po

rt
fo

lio
's

ca
sh

 f
lo

w
s.

 T
he

 M
ac

au
la

y 
du

ra
tio

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 ta

ke
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f e

m
be

dd
ed

 o
pt

io
ns

in
to

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
th

is
 u

su
al

ly
 r

es
ul

ts
 in

 a
 h

ig
he

r 
va

lu
e 

th
an

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e
du

ra
tio

n.

Y
ie

ld
 to

 M
at

ur
ity

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

T
hi

s 
is

 th
e 

ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
th

at
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
if

 a
 fi

xe
d 

in
co

m
e 

se
cu

ri
ty

 is
 h

el
d 

to
m

at
ur

ity
. I

t i
s 

es
se

nt
ia

lly
 a

n 
in

te
rn

al
 r

at
e 

of
 r

et
ur

n 
th

at
 u

se
s 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t m

ar
ke

t
va

lu
e 

an
d 

al
l e

xp
ec

te
d 

in
te

re
st

 a
nd

 p
ri

nc
ip

al
 c

as
h 

fl
ow

s.

M
oo

dy
 Q

ua
lit

y 
R

at
in

g
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n:
T

hi
s 

is
 a

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f t

he
 q

ua
lit

y,
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
po

te
nt

ai
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
a 

bo
nd

 is
su

e.
A

ls
o 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

e 
cr

ed
itw

or
th

in
es

s 
of

 a
 s

ec
ur

ity
's 

is
su

er
. M

oo
dy

's 
ev

al
ut

es
 th

e
bo

nd
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 a
ss

ig
ns

 a
 c

od
e 

w
ith

 A
aa

 a
s 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t a

nd
 C

 a
s 

th
e 

lo
w

es
t.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
45
of
46

Page 57



4t
h 

Q
ua

rt
er

, 2
01

3
L

on
do

n 
B

or
ou

gh
 o

f H
ill

in
gd

on
   

 

T
he

 D
ow

 J
on

es
 W

ils
hi

re
 I

nd
ex

es
SM

 a
re

 c
al

cu
la

te
d,

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

 a
nd

 m
ar

ke
te

d 
by

 D
ow

Jo
ne

s 
&

 C
om

pa
ny

, I
nc

. p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

an
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
D

ow
 J

on
es

 a
nd

 W
ils

hi
re

an
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
lic

en
se

d 
fo

r 
us

e.
 A

ll 
co

nt
en

t o
f 

th
e 

D
ow

 J
on

es
 W

ils
hi

re
 I

nd
ex

es
SM

 ©
20

05
 D

ow
 J

on
es

 &
 C

om
pa

ny
, I

nc
. &

 W
ils

hi
re

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s 

In
co

rp
or

at
ed

.
St

an
da

rd
 a

nd
 P

oo
r's

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
its

 s
ub

si
di

ar
y 

co
rp

or
at

io
ns

 (
"S

&
P"

) 
is

 a
 d

iv
is

io
n 

of
 th

e
M

cG
ra

w
-H

ill
 C

om
pa

ni
es

, I
nc

. R
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 S
&

P 
In

de
x 

A
le

rt
s 

in
 a

ny
 f

or
m

 is
pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

ex
ce

pt
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

io
r 

w
ri

tte
n 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 o

f 
S&

P.
 B

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 p
os

si
bi

lit
y 

of
hu

m
an

 o
r 

m
ec

ha
ni

ca
l e

rr
or

 b
y 

S&
P 

so
ur

ce
s,

 S
&

P 
or

 o
th

er
s,

 S
&

P 
do

es
 n

ot
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

, a
de

qu
ac

y,
 c

om
pl

et
en

es
s 

or
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y 
of

 a
ny

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

is
 n

ot
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r 
an

y 
er

ro
rs

 o
r 

om
is

si
on

s 
or

 f
or

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 s

uc
h

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 S
&

P 
gi

ve
s 

no
t e

xp
re

ss
 o

r 
im

pl
ie

d 
w

ar
ra

nt
ie

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g,

 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
,

an
y 

w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

or
 m

er
ch

an
ta

bi
lit

y 
or

 fi
tn

es
s 

fo
r 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 p
ur

po
se

 o
r 

us
e.

 I
n 

no
 e

ve
nt

sh
al

l S
&

P 
be

 li
ab

le
 f

or
 a

ny
 in

di
re

ct
, s

pe
ci

al
 o

r 
co

ns
eq

ue
nt

ia
l d

am
ag

es
 in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n

w
ith

 s
ub

sc
ri

be
r's

 o
r 

ot
he

rs
' u

se
 o

f 
S&

P 
In

de
x 

A
le

rt
s.

A
ll 

M
SC

I 
eq

ui
ty

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
 r

es
ul

ts
 e

xc
ep

t f
or

 D
iv

id
en

d 
Y

ie
ld

, P
ri

ce
 to

 B
oo

k 
V

al
ue

,
Pr

ic
e 

to
 C

as
h 

E
ar

ni
ng

s 
an

d 
Pr

ic
e 

E
ar

ni
ng

s 
R

at
io

 w
er

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 b
y 

T
he

 N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

C
om

pa
ny

.

T
he

 G
lo

ba
l I

nd
us

tr
y 

C
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n 

St
an

da
rd

 (
"G

IC
S"

) 
w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 b
y 

an
d 

is
 th

e
ex

cl
us

iv
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 a
nd

 a
 s

er
vi

ce
 m

ar
k 

of
 M

or
ga

n 
St

an
le

y 
C

ap
ita

l I
nt

er
na

tio
na

l
In

c.
("

M
SC

I"
) 

an
d 

St
an

da
rd

 &
 P

oo
r's

, a
 d

iv
is

io
n 

of
 T

he
 M

cG
ra

w
-H

ill
 C

om
pa

ni
es

,
In

c.
("

S&
P"

) 
an

d 
is

 li
ce

ns
ed

 fo
r 

us
e 

by
 T

he
 N

or
th

er
n 

T
ru

st
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
its

 w
ho

lly
ow

ne
d 

su
bs

id
ia

ri
es

. N
ei

th
er

 M
SC

I, 
S&

P,
 n

or
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 p
ar

ty
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 m
ak

in
g 

or
co

m
pi

lin
g 

th
e 

G
IC

S 
or

 a
ny

 G
IC

S 
cl

as
si

fi
ca

tio
ns

 m
ak

es
 a

ny
 e

xp
re

ss
 o

r 
im

pl
ie

d
w

ar
ra

nt
ie

s 
or

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 to
 s

uc
h 

st
an

da
rd

 o
r 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
tio

n 
(o

r 
th

e
re

su
lts

 to
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
us

e 
th

er
eo

f)
, a

nd
 a

ll 
su

ch
 p

ar
tie

s 
he

re
by

 e
xp

re
ss

ly
di

sc
la

im
 a

ll 
w

ar
ra

nt
ie

s 
of

 o
ri

gi
na

lit
y,

 a
cc

ur
ac

y,
 c

om
pl

et
en

es
s,

 m
er

ch
an

ta
bi

lit
y 

an
d

fi
tn

es
s 

fo
r 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 p
ur

po
se

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 to
 a

ny
 o

f 
su

ch
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

or
cl

as
si

fi
ca

tio
n.

 W
ith

ou
t l

im
iti

ng
 a

ny
 o

f 
th

e 
fo

re
go

in
g,

 in
 n

o 
ev

en
t s

ha
ll 

M
SC

I, 
S&

P,
 a

ny
 o

f
th

ei
r 

af
fi

lia
te

s 
or

 a
ny

 th
ir

d 
pa

rt
y 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 m

ak
in

g 
or

 c
om

pi
lin

g 
th

e 
G

IC
S 

or
 a

ny
 G

IC
S

cl
as

si
fi

ca
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

an
y 

lia
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

an
y 

di
re

ct
, i

nd
ir

ec
t, 

sp
ec

ia
l, 

pu
ni

tiv
e,

co
ns

eq
ue

nt
ia

l o
r 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
da

m
ag

es
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
lo

st
 p

ro
fi

ts
) 

ev
en

 if
 n

ot
if

ie
d 

of
 th

e
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

su
ch

 d
am

ag
es

.

FT
SE

 ®
 is

 a
 tr

ad
e 

m
ar

k 
of

 L
on

do
n 

St
oc

k 
E

xc
ha

ng
e 

Pl
c 

an
d 

T
he

 F
in

an
ci

al
 T

im
es

 L
im

ite
d

an
d 

is
 u

se
d 

by
 F

T
SE

 u
nd

er
 li

ce
ns

e.
 A

ll 
ri

gh
ts

 in
 th

e 
FT

SE
 I

nd
ic

es
 v

es
t i

n 
FT

SE
 a

nd
/o

r 
its

lic
en

so
rs

. N
ei

th
er

 F
T

SE
 n

or
 it

s 
lic

en
so

rs
 a

cc
ep

t a
ny

 li
ab

ili
ty

 f
or

 a
ny

 e
rr

or
s 

or
 o

m
is

si
on

s 
in

th
e 

FT
SE

 I
nd

ic
es

 o
r 

un
de

rl
yi

ng
 d

at
a.

T
he

 M
er

ri
ll 

L
yn

ch
 I

nd
ic

es
 a

re
 u

se
d 

w
ith

 p
er

m
is

si
on

. C
op

yr
ig

ht
 2

00
7,

 M
er

ri
ll 

L
yn

ch
,

Pi
er

ce
, F

en
ne

r 
&

 S
m

ith
 I

nc
or

po
ra

te
d.

 A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

 T
he

 M
er

ri
ll 

L
yn

ch
 I

nd
ic

es
 m

ay
no

t b
e 

co
pi

ed
, u

se
d,

 o
r 

di
st

ri
bu

te
d 

w
ith

ou
t M

er
ri

ll 
L

yn
ch

's 
pr

io
r 

w
ri

tte
n 

ap
pr

ov
al

.
IR

S 
C

IR
C

U
L

A
R

 2
30

 N
O

T
IC

E
: T

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 th
at

 th
is

 m
es

sa
ge

 o
r 

an
y 

at
ta

ch
m

en
t

co
nc

er
ns

 ta
x 

m
at

te
rs

, i
t i

s 
no

t i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
nd

 c
an

no
t b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
a 

ta
xp

ay
er

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 a

vo
id

in
g 

pe
na

lti
es

 th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

im
po

se
d 

by
 la

w
. F

or
 m

or
e

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
hi

s 
no

tic
e,

 s
ee

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.n
or

th
er

nt
ru

st
.c

om
/c

ir
cu

la
r2

30
Pl

ea
se

 n
ot

e 
th

at
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 u

si
ng

 b
es

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
da

ta
. T

hi
s 

re
po

rt
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

co
nt

ai
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
ir

d 
pa

rt
ie

s,
 d

er
iv

ed
 b

y 
th

ir
d 

pa
rt

ie
s 

or
de

ri
ve

d 
fr

om
 th

ir
d 

pa
rt

y 
da

ta
 a

nd
/o

r 
da

ta
 th

at
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
at

eg
or

iz
ed

 o
r

ot
he

rw
is

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
cl

ie
nt

 d
ir

ec
tio

n 
- 

N
or

th
er

n 
T

ru
st

 a
ss

um
es

 n
o

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
, t

im
el

in
es

s 
or

 c
om

pl
et

en
es

s 
of

 a
ny

 s
uc

h 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 I

f
yo

u 
ha

ve
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 th

ir
d 

pa
rt

y 
da

ta
 o

r 
di

re
ct

io
n 

as
 it

 r
el

at
es

 to
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t,
pl

ea
se

 c
on

ta
ct

 y
ou

r 
N

or
th

er
n 

T
ru

st
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

te
am

.

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

&
 A

na
ly

tic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
   

   
   

P
ag
e
46
of
46

Page 58



©
 L

G
T 

C
ap

ita
l P

ar
tn

er
s 

20
14

 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
H

ill
in

g
d

o
n

 

Po
rt

fo
lio

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 

 Q
4 

20
13

 

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 r

ep
or

t,
 n

et
 in

ve
st

ed
 c

ap
ita

l h
as

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 

m
an

ag
er

s 
ha

ve
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

ed
 m

or
e 

ca
pi

ta
l t

ha
n 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
in

ve
st

ed
 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

s 
a 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 p
ai

d-
in

 c
ap

ita
l h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 f

ro
m

 0
.6

0x
 t

o 
0.

63
x 

To
ta

l p
or

tf
ol

io
 g

ai
ns

 n
ow

 a
m

ou
nt

 t
o 

Eu
ro

 8
.2

m
ill

io
n,

 b
ei

ng
 E

ur
o 

19
.3

 m
ill

io
n 

of
 N

A
V

 le
ss

 E
ur

o 
11

.0
 m

ill
io

n 
of

 n
et

 in
ve

st
ed

 c
ap

ita
l 

Th
e 

U
SD

 w
ea

ke
ne

d 
by

 1
.8

1%
 a

ga
in

st
 t

he
 E

ur
o 

in
 t

he
 p

er
io

d 
w

hi
ch

 h
ad

 a
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
po

rt
fo

lio
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

Q
4 

20
13

 
N

et
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 (i

n 
m

ill
io

ns
 o

f E
ur

os
) 

Ca
sh

 M
ul

ti
pl

e 
D

ra
w

n 

  
  

  
  

LB
H

 C
om

m
it

m
en

t 
D

ra
w

n 
Re

tu
rn

ed
 

N
et

 
N

A
V

 
G

ai
n 

D
/P

I 
TV

/P
I 

G
ro

ss
 

N
et

 

To
ta

l E
ur

o 
Ex

po
su

re
 

  
  

32
.7

 
24

.7
 

-1
5.

5 
9.

1 
15

.8
 

6.
7 

0.
63

 
1.

27
 

76
%

 
28

%
 

Eu
ro

 e
qu

iv
al

en
t D

ol
la

r 
Ex

po
su

re
 @

 
1.

37
80

 
U

SD
 /

 E
ur

o 
6.

0
5.

0 
-3

.1
 

1.
9 

3.
5 

1.
5 

0.
62

 
1.

31
 

84
%

 
32

%
 

To
ta

l E
xp

os
ur

e 
(in

 E
ur

o 
m

ill
io

ns
) 

  
  

38
.6

 
29

.7
 

-1
8.

6 
11

.0
 

19
.3

 
8.

2 
0.

63
 

1.
28

 
77

%
 

29
%

 

Q
3 

20
13

 
  

1.
35

35
 

  
38

.7
 

29
.3

 
-1

7.
4 

11
.8

 
19

.7
 

7.
9 

0.
60

 
1.

27
 

76
%

 
31

%
 

Q
2 

20
13

 
  

1.
30

01
 

  
39

.0
 

28
.8

 
-1

6.
2 

12
.6

 
20

.1
 

7.
5 

0.
56

 
1.

26
 

74
%

 
32

%
 

Q
1 

20
13

 
  

1.
28

14
 

  
39

.1
 

28
.5

 
-1

5.
2 

13
.3

 
20

.7
 

7.
4 

0.
53

 
1.

26
 

73
%

 
34

%
 

Q
4 

20
12

 
  

1.
31

93
 

  
38

.9
 

28
.2

 
-1

4.
1 

14
.1

 
21

.1
 

7.
0 

0.
50

 
1.

25
 

73
%

 
36

%
 

Q
3 

20
12

 
  

1.
28

63
 

  
39

.0
 

27
.6

 
-1

3.
1 

14
.5

 
21

.0
 

6.
5 

0.
47

 
1.

24
 

71
%

 
37

%
 

Q
2 

20
12

 
  

1.
26

86
 

  
39

.1
 

27
.4

 
-1

2.
2 

15
.2

 
21

.2
 

6.
0 

0.
45

 
1.

22
 

70
%

 
39

%
 

Q
1 

20
12

 
  

1.
33

29
 

  
38

.8
 

26
.4

 
-1

1.
9 

14
.5

 
19

.9
 

5.
3 

0.
45

 
1.

20
 

68
%

 
37

%
 

Q
4 

20
11

 
  

1.
29

49
 

  
39

.0
 

25
.7

 
-1

1.
2 

14
.5

 
19

.6
 

5.
1 

0.
44

 
1.

20
 

66
%

 
37

%
 

Q
3 

20
11

 
  

1.
33

87
 

  
38

.8
 

24
.7

 
-1

0.
0 

14
.7

 
19

.9
 

5.
2 

0.
40

 
1.

21
 

0%
 

38
%

 

Q
2 

20
11

 
  

1.
45

10
 

  
38

.3
 

23
.5

 
-9

.1
 

14
.4

 
18

.8
 

4.
4 

0.
39

 
1.

19
 

61
%

 
38

%
 

Q
1 

20
11

 
  

1.
41

58
 

  
38

.5
 

22
.4

 
-8

.3
 

14
.2

 
18

.4
 

4.
2 

0.
37

 
1.

19
 

58
%

 
37

%
 

Q
4 

20
10

 
  

1.
33

84
 

  
38

.8
 

22
.0

 
-7

.3
 

14
.6

 
17

.5
 

2.
9 

0.
33

 
1.

13
 

57
%

 
38

%
 

Q
3 

20
10

 
  

1.
36

33
 

  
38

.7
 

20
.9

 
-7

.0
 

13
.9

 
16

.2
 

2.
3 

0.
33

 
1.

11
 

54
%

 
36

%
 

Q
2 

20
10

 
  

1.
22

57
 

  
39

.4
 

19
.7

 
-5

.9
 

13
.8

 
15

.5
 

1.
7 

0.
30

 
1.

08
 

50
%

 
35

%
 

Q
1 

20
10

 
  

1.
35

09
 

  
38

.7
 

18
.7

 
-5

.7
 

13
.0

 
14

.2
 

1.
2 

0.
31

 
1.

06
 

48
%

 
34

%
 

Q
4 

20
09

 
  

1.
43

41
 

  
38

.4
 

18
.4

 
-5

.4
 

13
.0

 
13

.6
 

0.
7 

0.
29

 
1.

04
 

48
%

 
34

%
 

Q
3 

20
09

 
  

1.
46

43
 

  
38

.3
 

17
.3

 
-5

.1
 

12
.2

 
12

.1
 

0.
0 

0.
30

 
1.

00
 

45
%

 
32

%
 

Q
2 

20
09

 
  

1.
40

33
 

  
38

.5
 

16
.9

 
-4

.9
 

12
.0

 
12

.3
 

0.
2 

0.
30

 
1.

02
 

44
%

 
31

%
 

` 

Q
4 

fig
ur

es
 a

s 
of

 3
1 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

3 

D
/P

I -
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 p
er

 u
ni

t o
f p

ai
d-

in
 c

ap
ita

l; 
TV

/P
I -

 to
ta

l v
al

ue
 p

er
 u

ni
t o

f p
ai

d-
in

 c
ap

ita
l 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund 
Adams Street Partners Update:  Third Quarter 2013

Market Update

The continued accommodative monetary policy stance by the US Federal Reserve and other central banks dominated the financial markets 
during 2013.  The liquidity being pumped into the markets by central banks globally achieved its intended effect.

Public equity markets rose to peak levels over the course of 2013 and into the final months of the year, with US markets reaching record levels.  
As we have discussed in our preceding quarterly letters, while private equity markets have generated attractive absolute and relative returns, 
this performance nonetheless trailed the exceptionally strong results of the public markets in recent time periods.

As we reported in October, private equity exit activity levels continued their dramatic rebound during the year, as evidenced by the meaningful 
increase in distributions being generated within all Adams Street portfolios greater than even a few years old.  Distributions during the year 
were very strong across the board, with 2013 being the fourth year in a row that distributions in our primary portfolio have outpaced capital calls 
by a wide margin.  

Portfolio Statistics as of September 30, 2013

*Gross of client's management fees paid to Adams Street Partners, LLC. 
Note:  The Public Market is the equivalent return achieved by applying Hillingdon's cash flows to the MSCI World Index.

A Period of Record Distributions from the Secondary Program

In private equity secondary markets the impact of these dynamics is that prospective seller portfolios tend to be under-allocated to private 
equity (we are experiencing the flip side of the denominator effect that the secondary buying community operated in during the previous few 
years post global financial crisis).   In general the private equity programs of many institutions are now self-funding, with distributions exceeding 
contributions.  Furthermore, many institutional investors still have the 2008-2009 time period fresh in their minds and have upwardly adjusted 
the liquidity profile of their portfolios. 

Our secondary program received record distributions from underlying general partners in 2013.  We have observed that over many economic 
cycles the secondary market transaction volume tends to be inversely correlated with levels of distribution activity.  2013 was no exception to 
this pattern.  There was an estimated $7B that transacted market-wide in the first half of the year, and we anticipate that the overall total will be 
between $15-20B by the end of the year - depending upon how many of the transactions launched in the past couple months actually closed by 
year end.  Encouragingly, we have seen a substantial increase in deal activity over the past couple months and, based upon our own pipeline 
and conversations with prospective secondary sellers and brokers, expect this activity to continue. 

Our Secondary Team has identified a number of funds we find attractive in current market conditions, our hunting lists are robust, and we have 
had a record level of interaction with the prospective seller community.   We are confident that those relationships and research efforts have 
established a strong foundation for 2014 and beyond.

Co-Investment II Fund Update

During the fourth quarter, the Adams Street Co-Investment II Fund (“ Fund II” ) invested $6.0 million in a provider of banking services to retail, 
small, and medium-sized customers.  We anticipate follow-ons of $4.7 million.  There are now twenty investments in Fund II and the Fund is 
72% committed.   

Final Thoughts

We know from regular conversations with our clients, that many of you have private equity allocations that have fallen below strategic targets 
for the first time in several years - both as a result of rising public market equity returns and increased distribution levels from your private equity 
investments.  Forty years of experience reinforces that time diversification is a very important component of building and maintaining a 
successful private equity program.   As a reminder, our 2014 Fund Program will be making commitments to private equity investments over the 
next 3 to 4 years.  We held our first close in mid-December, and will be having several more during the first half of 2014.  Additionally, this year 
we have standalone offerings focused on co-investments (Co-Invest Fund III) and energy (Energy & Natural Resources Fund).

Organizationally, a notable highlight for our firm in 2013 was an honor received in late November at the Private Equity Exchange & Awards 
Summit in Paris. Adams Street Partners was presented with the “ Gold” award for Best LP with Assets Exceeding $10 Billion.  The 
competition for this category was a highly experienced group of investors - among the best in the business.   We are proud of this 
accomplishment, as the award represents recognition from a jury of our industry peers.

Inception Date
Committed / 
Subscription

Draw n / 
Subscription

Draw n / 
Committed

Total Value / 
Draw n

IRR Since 
Inception* Public Market

3Q13 
Gross IRR

Total Hillingdon Portfolio 02/2005 100% 84% 84% 1.25x 7.73% 5.28% 5.81%

2005 Subscription 02/2005 100% 90% 90% 1.27x 7.49% 4.89% 5.50%

2006 Subscription 01/2006 100% 87% 87% 1.21x 6.98% 5.37% 5.49%

2007 Subscription 01/2007 100% 79% 79% 1.26x 10.27% 7.47% 5.40%

2009 Subscription 01/2009 94% 47% 50% 1.20x 17.86% 14.03% 6.84%

Direct Co-Investment Fund 09/2006 100% 96% 96% 1.15x 3.95% 2.88% 3.15%

Co-Investment Fund II 01/2009 100% 59% 59% 1.57x 33.85% 13.20% 14.84%

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



L
O

N
D

O
N

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 O

F
 H

IL
L

IN
G

D
O

N
 A

L
T

E
R

N
A

T
IV

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 A

S
 A

T
 3

1 
D

ec
 2

01
3

L
B

H
 P

R
IV

A
T

E
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

 F
U

N
D

S
 

C
O

M
M

IT
M

E
N

T
S

C
A

L
L

E
D

 T
O

 D
A

T
E

N
E

T
 C

U
R

R
E

N
T

B
A

S
E

 C
U

R
R

E
N

C
Y

%
 o

f F
un

d
%

 o
f F

un
d

%
 o

f F
un

d
IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

%
 o

f F
un

d
IR

R
L

G
T

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

%
00

0
00

0
00

0
00

0
D

ec
 1

3
C

ro
w

n 
P

riv
at

e 
E

qu
ity

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
B

uy
ou

t O
pp

or
t.

11
,4

03
1.

59
9,

58
4

1.
33

8,
65

9
1.

21
92

5
0.

13
7.

77
C

ro
w

n 
G

lo
ba

l S
ec

on
da

rie
s 

P
lc

 (
U

S
$)

1,
81

9
0.

25
1,

58
8

0.
22

1,
37

3
0.

19
21

5
0.

03
5.

23
C

ro
w

n 
P

riv
at

e 
E

qu
ity

 E
ur

op
ea

n 
F

un
d

4,
17

4
0.

58
3,

65
4

0.
51

1,
89

3
0.

26
1,

76
1

0.
25

7.
36

C
ro

w
n 

P
riv

at
e 

E
qu

ity
 E

ur
op

ea
n 

B
uy

ou
t O

pp
or

t. 
II

8,
34

9
1.

16
5,

60
1

0.
78

1,
82

8
0.

25
3,

77
3

0.
53

3.
64

C
ro

w
n 

A
si

a-
P

ac
ifi

c 
P

riv
at

e 
E

qu
ity

 P
lc

 (
U

S
$)

1,
81

9
0.

25
1,

57
5

0.
22

60
2

0.
08

97
3

0.
14

6.
17

C
ro

w
n 

E
ur

op
ea

n 
M

id
dl

e 
M

ar
ke

t I
I p

lc
3,

33
9

0.
46

1,
75

1
0.

24
58

6
0.

08
1,

16
5

0.
16

9.
81

C
ro

w
n 

G
lo

ba
l S

ec
on

da
rie

s 
II 

P
lc

 (
U

S
$)

1,
33

4
0.

19
1,

00
6

0.
14

59
5

0.
08

41
1

0.
06

22
.1

8
T

O
T

A
L

(S
) 

L
G

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
   

   
   

  
32

,2
37

4.
49

24
,7

59
3.

45
15

,5
36

2.
16

9,
22

3
1.

28
S

ep
 1

3
A

D
A

M
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

£
%

£
%

£
%

£
%

%
A

da
m

 S
tr

ee
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 F

un
d 

- 
20

05
 U

S
 F

un
d

8,
48

9
1.

18
7,

69
6

1.
07

3,
89

0
0.

54
3,

80
6

0.
53

5.
52

A
da

m
 S

tr
ee

t P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 F
un

d 
- 

20
05

 N
on

-U
.S

 F
un

d
3,

63
8

0.
51

3,
31

3
0.

46
1,

51
2

0.
21

1,
80

1
0.

25
5.

00
A

da
m

 S
tr

ee
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 F

un
d 

- 
20

06
 N

on
-U

.S
 F

un
d

2,
72

9
0.

38
2,

37
5

0.
33

77
9

0.
11

1,
59

6
0.

22
4.

48
A

da
m

 S
tr

ee
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 2

00
6 

D
ire

ct
 F

un
d

91
0

0.
13

87
1

0.
12

17
7

0.
02

69
4

0.
10

0.
53

A
da

m
 S

tr
ee

t P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 F
un

d 
- 

20
06

 U
S

 F
un

d,
 L

.P
5,

45
7

0.
76

4,
74

0
0.

66
2,

09
1

0.
29

2,
64

9
0.

37
5.

75
A

da
m

s 
S

tr
ee

t D
ire

ct
 C

o-
In

ve
st

m
en

t F
un

d,
 L

.P
.

1,
81

9
0.

25
1,

73
7

0.
24

49
8

0.
07

1,
23

9
0.

17
2.

50
A

da
m

s 
S

tr
ee

t P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 2
00

7 
D

ire
ct

 F
un

d 
LP

30
3

0.
04

28
0

0.
04

99
0.

01
18

1
0.

03
3.

93
A

da
m

s 
S

tr
ee

t P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 -
 2

00
7 

N
on

 -
U

S
 F

un
d

1,
06

1
0.

15
78

6
0.

11
15

7
0.

02
62

9
0.

09
4.

57
A

da
m

s 
S

tr
ee

t P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 -
 2

00
7 

U
S

 F
un

d
1,

66
8

0.
23

1,
37

9
0.

19
64

0
0.

09
73

9
0.

10
9.

31
A

da
m

s 
S

tr
ee

t P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 -
 2

00
9 

U
S

 F
un

d
91

0
0.

13
46

6
0.

06
10

4
0.

01
36

2
0.

05
11

.7
3

A
da

m
s 

S
tr

ee
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 -

 2
00

9 
D

ire
ct

 F
un

d
18

2
0.

03
15

1
0.

02
35

0.
00

11
6

0.
02

14
.9

9
A

da
m

s 
S

tr
ee

t D
ire

ct
 C

o-
In

ve
st

m
en

t F
un

d 
II.

1,
51

6
0.

21
95

1
0.

13
41

5
0.

06
53

6
0.

07
26

.5
1

A
da

m
s 

S
tr

ee
t 2

00
9 

N
on

-U
S

 E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

kt
 F

un
d

18
2

0.
03

90
0.

01
0

0.
00

90
0.

01
-7

.4
9

A
da

m
s 

S
tr

ee
t P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 2

00
9 

N
on

-U
S

 D
ev

el
op

ed
 M

ar
ke

t
54

6
0.

08
21

5
0.

03
18

0.
00

19
7

0.
03

5.
08

T
O

T
A

L
(S

) 
A

D
A

M
S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

 F
U

N
D

S
29

,4
10

4.
09

25
,0

50
3.

49
10

,4
15

1.
45

14
,6

35
2.

04

F
U

N
D

 V
A

L
U

E
71

8,
25

5
C

O
M

M
IT

M
E

N
T

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

62
,8

47
8.

75
%

T
O

 A
C

H
IV

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

35
,9

13
5.

00
%

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 B
O

O
K

 C
O

S
T

23
,8

58
3.

32
%

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

 M
A

R
K

E
T

 V
A

L
U

E
39

,0
71

5.
44

%

D
IS

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
S

 
R

E
C

E
IV

E
D

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



W
M

 L
O

C
A

L
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 4
 2

01
3

T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
su

m
m

ar
y 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

51
 fu

nd
s 

w
ith

 a
 to

ta
l M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f £
10

4,
98

3m
.

U
p

d
at

e 
1 

- 
05

/0
2/

20
14

C
A

T
E

G
O

R
Y

IM
V

 (
%

)
F

M
V

 (
%

)
A

ve
ra

g
e

In
d

ex
A

ve
ra

g
e

In
d

ex
A

ve
ra

g
e

In
d

ex

T
O

T
A

L 
E

Q
U

IT
IE

S
66

.5
66

.5
5.

0
5.

0
8.

2
6.

2
21

.9
21

.0

G
LO

B
A

L 
P

O
O

LE
D

 IN
C

 U
K

5.
3

5.
0

5.
6

5.
0

8.
3

6.
2

23
.7

21
.0

U
K

 E
Q

U
IT

IE
S

27
.3

28
.1

6.
0

5.
5

11
.9

9.
5

24
.0

20
.8

O
V

E
R

S
E

A
S

 E
Q

U
IT

IE
S

33
.9

33
.4

4.
0

5.
0

5.
6

6.
0

20
.1

21
.2

N
or

th
 A

m
er

ic
a

10
.8

11
.2

7.
3

7.
5

10
.1

9.
0

29
.6

28
.3

E
ur

op
e

8.
6

8.
6

5.
2

5.
5

12
.2

13
.8

25
.5

25
.2

Ja
pa

n
3.

7
3.

7
1.

0
0.

1
7.

0
4.

7
28

.0
25

.0

P
ac

ifi
c 

 (
ex

 J
ap

an
)

3.
8

3.
7

-0
.9

-0
.9

-7
.4

-6
.7

2.
1

2.
7

E
m

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
5.

4
4.

8
0.

0
-0

.7
-5

.5
-1

0.
1

1.
5

-5
.3

G
lo

ba
l e

x 
U

K
1.

5
1.

5
6.

4
5.

0
10

.1
6.

0
27

.3
21

.2

T
O

T
A

L 
B

O
N

D
S

15
.8

15
.2

-0
.4

-
-3

.9
-

-0
.2

-

U
.K

. B
O

N
D

S
9.

2
8.

8
-0

.1
-1

.4
-1

.9
-4

.6
0.

1
-4

.0

O
V

E
R

S
E

A
S

 B
O

N
D

S
2.

1
2.

1
-1

.4
0.

2
-7

.8
-0

.6
-3

.1
0.

1

IN
D

E
X

 L
IN

K
E

D
3.

3
3.

2
-1

.1
-0

.9
-7

.6
-6

.8
0.

1
0.

5

P
O

O
LE

D
 B

O
N

D
S

1.
2

1.
1

1.
1

-
-1

.0
-

1.
3

-

T
O

T
A

L 
C

A
S

H
3.

0
3.

1
0.

2
0.

1
0.

9
0.

3
1.

6
0.

4

A
LT

E
R

N
A

T
IV

E
S

6.
5

6.
4

1.
4

-
1.

7
-

7.
6

-

T
ot

al
 P

riv
at

e 
E

qu
ity

3.
8

3.
7

1.
6

-
2.

5
-

9.
3

-

T
ot

al
 H

ed
ge

 F
un

ds
1.

9
1.

8
1.

7
-

1.
7

-
6.

7
-

O
th

er
 A

lte
rn

at
iv

es
0.

9
0.

9
0.

4
-

-0
.9

-
3.

0
-

T
O

T
A

L 
P

O
O

LE
D

 M
U

LT
I A

S
S

E
T

1.
5

1.
9

2.
1

-
2.

2
-

8.
5

-

T
O

T
A

L 
E

X
-P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
93

.3
93

.1
3.

6
3.

4
5.

3
4.

7
15

.4
14

.0

T
O

T
A

L 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
6.

7
6.

9
4.

2
4.

7
8.

1
9.

7
9.

5
10

.9

T
O

T
A

L 
A

S
S

E
T

S
10

0.
0

10
0.

0
3.

7
3.

5
5.

5
4.

9
15

.0
13

.7

A
S

S
E

T
 M

IX
 (

%
)

R
E

T
U

R
N

S
 (

%
)

L
at

es
t 

Q
u

ar
te

r
L

at
es

t 
Q

u
ar

te
r

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

to
 D

at
e

L
as

t 
12

 M
o

n
th

s

©
 2

01
4 

T
he

 W
or

ld
 M

ar
ke

ts
 C

om
pa

ny
 P

LC
 (

“W
M

”)
 a

 S
T

A
T

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

.
N

o 
pa

rt
 o

f t
hi

s 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

pr
od

uc
ed

, s
to

re
d 

in
 a

re
tr

ie
va

l s
ys

te
m

 o
r 

tr
an

sm
itt

ed
, i

n 
an

y 
fo

rm
 o

r 
by

 a
ny

 m
ea

ns
, e

le
ct

ro
ni

c,
 m

ec
ha

ni
ca

l, 
ph

ot
oc

op
yi

ng
, r

ec
or

di
ng

 o
r 

ot
he

rw
is

e,
 w

ith
ou

t W
M

’s
 p

rio
r 

w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t.

W
hi

le
 a

ll 
re

as
on

ab
le

 e
ffo

rt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

ad
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
is

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
w

ar
ra

nt
y,

 e
xp

re
ss

 o
r 

im
pl

ie
d,

 a
s 

to
 it

s 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

r 
co

m
pl

et
en

es
s.

A
ny

 o
pi

ni
on

s 
ex

pr
es

se
d 

in
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
ha

ng
e 

w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic

e.
T

hi
s 

do
cu

m
en

t i
s 

fo
r 

ge
ne

ra
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

pu
rp

os
es

 o
nl

y.
S

ta
te

 S
tr

ee
t C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
its

 a
ffi

lia
te

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

W
M

 a
nd

 th
e 

S
ta

te
 

S
tr

ee
t I

nv
es

tm
en

t A
na

ly
tic

s 
di

vi
si

on
) 

ac
ce

pt
 n

o 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

an
y 

lo
ss

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 a
ny

 a
ct

io
n 

ta
ke

n 
or

 n
ot

 ta
ke

n 
by

 a
ny

on
e

us
in

g 
th

is
 m

at
er

ia
l.

A
ll 

st
at

is
tic

s 
qu

ot
ed

 a
re

 s
ou

rc
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

S
ta

te
 S

tr
ee

t I
nv

es
tm

en
t A

na
ly

tic
s 

di
vi

si
on

 u
nl

es
s 

ot
he

rw
is

e 
st

at
ed

.

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Retirement Performance Statistics and
Cost of Early Retirements Monitor

Contact Officers Ken Chisholm, 01895 250847

Papers with this report nil

SUMMARY

This report summarises the number of Early Retirements in the third quarter of 
2013/14. Additionally it gives an update on the current situation on the cost to the 
fund of early retirements.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the contents of the report be noted.

EARLY RETIREMENT PERFORMANCE STATISTICS

The table below shows the number of employees, by category, whose LGPS benefits 
have been put into payment.  In the case of redundancy and efficiency this relates to 
employees over 55 years of age.

Redundancy Efficiency Ill Health Voluntary 
over 60

2010/2011 20 0 11 34
2011/2012 65 0 12 24
2012/2013 23 0 6 14
2013/2014 - 1st qtr 3 0 0 11
2013/2014 - 2nd qtr 8 0 2 14
2013/2014 - 3rd qtr 30 0 0 8
2013/14 - total 41 0 2 33

The large number of redundancies for the 3rd quarter is a result of the redundancies 
arising from reorganisation of the housing repairs team and the outsourcing of 
Occupational Health.

EARLY RETIREMENT COSTS MONITOR

As a result of a key recommendation by the Audit and Accounts Commission, local 
authorities were advised to calculate and monitor early retirement costs as they 
occurred within the LGPS between formal triennial valuations. This authority took the 
decision, in agreement with the fund actuary, to increase the employer’s contribution 
rates as prescribed in the last valuation by 1%, effective from 1 April 2011, to meet 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 

Agenda Item 6

Page 67



anticipated early retirement costs.  This 1% employer’s contribution is locked in to the 
rate until March 2014.

This report is compares actual costs of early retirements against the additional 1%
contributions paid into the Fund 3 year valuation period.

Detail for Valuation Period 01.04.2011 to 31.03.2014

Capital Cost of early 
retirement to the fund

£000s

Payroll 
Total
£000s

Cost as a % of 
payroll

2011/12 £1,108 £102,450 1.08
2012/13 £983 £95,114 1.03
To 31 December 2013 £657 £95,114 0.69
Average over previous valuation period 0.59

The payroll total figure above is based on the Employers Contributions reported in the 
Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts as at 31 March 2013.  The figures for 
2011/12 have been restated based on this amount following receipt of year end 
figures. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The cost to the pension fund of early retirements on the grounds of ill health, is 
recorded by the pensions administration system and reported to the scheme Actuary.
The cost includes the benefits being paid before the employees normal retirement 
date and any period of service awarded. Depending on which tier the retirement falls 
in to, determines the length of service to be awarded. Details of the service to be 
awarded against each Tier are shown above. All Employers within the fund have a
notional budget built in to their Employers Contribution Rate to fund ill health
retirements. If the notional figure is exceeded, this will result in an increase to that
Employers Contribution Rate, at the next valuation of the fund.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 Page 68



Pensions Administration Performance

Contact Officers Nancy Leroux, 01895 250353

Papers with this report

SUMMARY

This report summarises pension administration performance across key areas of work 
for the period 1 October to 31 December 2013. Performance targets were agreed as 
part of the service level agreement with Capita and conform to national targets set for 
England and Wales. Whilst performance by indicator showed an improvement for the 
year 2012/13 against 2011/12, since September 2013 significant issues in terms of data 
quality have come to light, and there are several performance issues. Work is ongoing 
with CAPITA to address these concerns.

RECOMMENDATION

That the contents of the report be noted

INFORMATION

On 1 April 2012, Pensions Administration was outsourced to Capita Employee 
Benefits (CEB), as part of a pan London Framework Agreement, delivering potential 
annual savings in administration costs of 27% to the pension Fund. Performance is 
reported monthly and monitored against the service level agreement contained within 
the Framework Agreement. Targets are measured in working days for each function 
performed as part of the administration contract, against a target of 100%.

The 3rd quarter performance reports for 2013/14 indicated an overall average 
performance of 61.44% per month over the quarter, which is a drop of 15.03% over 
the previous quarter.  Actual performance for each month was:

October -          51.05%
November -      45.03%
December -      88.33%

Details of performance by area are shown in the table attached. There were 4 
instances over the quarter where a Condolence Letter was not sent out within 3 days, 
of being notified. This is the 2nd consecutive quarter where performance on this 
indicator has not been 100%. Capita have been informed that this is not acceptable.
Their performance in the processing of retirement and dependents benefits is also 
causing significant concern.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 

Agenda Item 7

Page 69



In is now 3 months since 2 experienced LGPS Managers have been added to the 
Capital team, and although December performance did show an improvement, there 
are still concerns regarding the quality of the data held on their system. Our Actuary 
has brought this to our attention as a result of both the Valuation process and Annual 
Reporting. Further investigations will be made as to why the quality of data held 
appears to have deteriorated, and see what steps Capita are making to ensure the 
quality of the data held. A meeting with senior officer and procurement has been 
arranged for early April to discuss a plan for imporvement.

Additional charges have been applied to Capita as well as an underperformance 
recharge.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 70



P
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 A

D
M

IN
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

 P
E

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
 T

O
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
3

W
O

R
K

 T
A

S
K

A
C

T
IO

N
 

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
O

C
T

 2
01

3
N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
 2

01
3

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
01

3

N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

ca
se

s

%
co

m
p

le
te

d
 

in
 t

ar
g

et

N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

ca
se

s
%

co
m

p
le

te
d

 
in

 t
ar

g
et

N
u

m
b

er
 

o
f 

ca
se

s

%
co

m
p

le
te

d
 

in
 t

ar
g

et
C

on
do

le
nc

e 
Le

tte
r

3 
D

ay
s

2
50

.0
0

7
85

.7
1

10
80

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l R

et
ire

m
en

t B
en

ef
its

3 
D

ay
s

32
31

.2
5

63
31

.2
5

24
58

.3
3

Le
tte

r 
no

tif
yi

ng
 D

ep
en

da
nt

s 
B

en
ef

its
5 

D
ay

s
7

14
.2

9
1

0.
00

9
88

.8
9

P
ro

ce
ss

 R
ef

un
d

10
 D

ay
s

6
66

.6
7

66
53

.0
3

21
76

.1
9

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 in

 A
ct

ua
l

10
 D

ay
s

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

1
0.

00
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 in
 q

uo
te

10
 D

ay
s

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

4
10

0.
00

A
ns

w
er

 G
en

er
al

 L
et

te
r

5 
D

ay
s

12
2

75
.4

1
19

4
49

.4
8

11
2

87
.5

0
C

al
c/

N
ot

ify
 D

ef
er

re
d

15
 D

ay
s

35
28

.5
7

66
53

.0
3

34
88

.2
4

E
st

im
at

e 
of

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t 
B

en
ef

its
5 

D
ay

s
8

37
.5

0
13

53
.8

5
16

87
.5

0
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 O
ut

 Q
uo

te
5 

D
ay

s
9

55
.5

6
14

64
.2

9
13

10
0.

00
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 O
ut

 A
ct

ua
l

9 
D

ay
s

1
10

0
n/

a
n/

a
5

60
.0

0
N

ew
 E

nt
ra

nt
s

20
 D

ay
s

10
6

39
.6

2
99

30
.3

0
16

8
98

.8
1

A
dd

ed
 Y

ea
rs

10
 D

ay
s

5
20

.0
0

10
20

.0
0

37
72

.9
7

P
A

R
T

 I 
-

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
, P

R
E

S
S

 &
P

U
B

LI
C

P
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 –

26
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
01

4 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



2013 ACTUARIAL VALUATION RESULTS

Contact Officers Nancy le Roux, 01895 250353

Papers with this report 2013 Actuarial Valuation Report 

INFORMATION

The triennial revaluation of the pension fund has now been completed and Catherine 
McFadyen, the fund actuary, will attend Committee to present the results of the 2013
valuation, incorporating a discussion on the results.

Summary of the Valuation Results

The results of the 2013 valuation indicate the funding level is now 72%, a
decrease from 77.6% at the 2010 valuation. This has resulted in the deficit 
increasing from £163m as at 31 March 2010 to £266m as at 31 March 2013.
The deterioration of the funding position is largely due to the fall in gilt yields.
Investment returns have been slightly higher than assumed.

The common employer contribution rate is made up of two components, the 
future service cost and an adjustment for the past service position.  The 
results indicate a future service rate of 18.9% and a past service cost of 8.7%
giving a common contribution rate at the whole fund level of 27.6%.  However, 
this rate is theoretical, and in practice each participating employer has its own 
underlying funding position and circumstance.

As an employer, London Borough of Hillingdon agreed a long term approach 
to Employer contribution rates at the 2010 valuation to try to stabilise 
contribution rates. At the last valuation an annual increase to the London 
Borough of Hillingdon Employer’s contribution of 1% was agreed and this will 
continue over the next three year period.  However, Hillingdon has also paid 
an additional 1% contribution to fund the cost of early retirements, particularly 
on the grounds of redundancy, over the last 3 valuation periods.  It is
recommended that this now ceases as the expectation of further redundancy 
retirements is now significantly lower.  As a result, there will be no increase in 
Hillingdon’s Employer rate for 2014/15, and this has been built into the draft 
general Fund budget for 2014/15.

Note: It should be noted that the valuation is just a picture at a single date in time.  
The illustration on page 33 of the Valuation Report provides comparative figures had 
the valuation been undertaken at 31 January 2014. By then the funding level had 
increased to 77% and the deficit reduced to £217m. Initial indications of results of 
other London Boroughs are showing a wide range of funding levels, however, the 
levels are comparable with funds using the same actuary.  For example, Hillingdon’s 
results are similar to other London Boroughs who have Hymans Robertson as an 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 

Agenda Item 8

Page 73



actuary.  Other actuarial firms use very much less prudent assumptions, taking 
funding levels to around 95%.  It is hoped that once the new 2014 scheme comes in 
to effect and contribution stabilisation methods are enforced that standardised 
assumptions will be used across the whole Scheme.

Funding Strategy Statement

Following agreement of the results the valuation the Funding Strategy 
Statement (FSS) of the fund has been revised and is included with this report 
for Committee approval prior to publication.

The FSS sets out how the Council, in its role as Administering Authority, has 
balanced the conflicting aims of affordability, stability and prudence in the 
approach to funding the scheme’s liabilities.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 74



London Borough of Hillingdon
Draft Funding Strategy Statement 2014

1 Introduction

1.1 What is this document?

This is the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) of the London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension Fund (“the Fund”), which is administered by London 
Borough of Hillingdon, (“the Administering Authority”). 

It has been prepared by the Administering Authority in collaboration with the 
Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson LLP, and after consultation with the Fund’s 
employers and investment adviser.  It is effective from 1 April 2014.

1.2 What is the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund?

The Fund is part of the national Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).  
The LGPS was set up by the UK Government to provide retirement and death 
benefits for local government employees, and those employed in similar or 
related bodies, across the whole of the UK.  The Administering Authority runs 
the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund, in effect the LGPS for the 
London Borough of Hillingdon area, to make sure it: 

receives the proper amount of contributions from employees and 
employers, and any transfer payments;
invests the contributions appropriately, with the aim that the Fund’s assets 
grow over time with investment income and capital growth;
uses the assets to pay Fund benefits to the members (as and when they 
retire, for the rest of their lives), and to their dependants (as and when 
members die), as defined in the LGPS Regulations. Assets are also used to 
pay transfer values and administration costs.

The roles and responsibilities of the key parties involved in the management of 
the Fund are summarised in Appendix B.

1.3 Why does the Fund need a Funding Strategy Statement?

Employees’ benefits are guaranteed by the LGPS Regulations, and do not 
change with market values or employer contributions.  Investment returns will 
help pay for some of the benefits, but probably not all, and certainly with no 
guarantee.  Employees’ contributions are fixed in those Regulations also, at a 
level which covers only part of the cost of the benefits.  

Therefore, employers need to pay the balance of the cost of delivering the 
benefits to members and their dependants.  

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 75



The FSS focuses on how employer liabilities are measured, the pace at which 
these liabilities are funded, and how employers or pools of employers pay for 
their own liabilities.  This statement sets out how the Administering Authority 
has balanced the conflicting aims of:

affordability of employer contributions, 
transparency of processes, 
stability of employers’ contributions, and 
prudence in the funding basis. 

There are also regulatory requirements for an FSS, as given in Appendix A.

The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding its liabilities, and this 
includes reference to the Fund’s other policies; it is not an exhaustive statement 
of policy on all issues.  The FSS forms part of a framework of which includes:

the LGPS Regulations;
the Rates and Adjustments Certificate (confirming employer contribution 
rates for the next three years) which can be found in an appendix to the 
formal valuation report;
actuarial factors for valuing individual transfers, early retirement costs and 
the costs of buying added service; and
the Fund’s Statement of Investment Principles (see Section 4).

1.4 How does the Fund and this FSS affect me?

This depends who you are:

a member of the Fund, i.e. a current or former employee, or a dependant: 
the Fund needs to be sure it is collecting and holding enough money so that 
your benefits are always paid in full;
an employer in the Fund (or which is considering joining the Fund): you will 
want to know how your contributions are calculated from time to time, that 
these are fair by comparison to other employers in the Fund, and in what 
circumstances you might need to pay more.  Note that the FSS applies to all 
employers participating in the Fund;
an Elected Member whose council participates in the Fund: you will want to 
be sure that the council balances the need to hold prudent reserves for 
members’ retirement and death benefits, with the other competing demands 
for council money;
a Council Tax payer: your council seeks to strike the balance above, and 
also to minimise cross-subsidies between different generations of taxpayers.

1.5 What does the FSS aim to do?

The FSS sets out the objectives of the Fund’s funding strategy, such as: 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 76



to ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund, using a prudent long term 
view.  This will ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet all 
members’/dependants’ benefits as they fall due for payment;
to ensure that employer contribution rates are reasonably stable where 
appropriate;
to minimise the long-term cash contributions which employers need to 
pay to the Fund, by recognising the link between assets and liabilities 
and adopting an investment strategy which balances risk and return (NB
this will also minimise the costs to be borne by Council Tax payers);
to reflect the different characteristics of different employers in 
determining contribution rates.  This involves the Fund having a clear 
and transparent funding strategy to demonstrate how each employer can 
best meet its own liabilities over future years; and
to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and 
ultimately to the Council Tax payer from an employer defaulting on its 
pension obligations.

1.6 How do I find my way around this document?

In Section 2 there is a brief introduction to some of the main principles behind 
funding, i.e. deciding how much an employer should contribute to the Fund 
from time to time.

In Section 3 we outline how the Fund calculates the contributions payable by 
different employers in different situations.

In Section 4 we show how the funding strategy is linked with the Fund’s 
investment strategy.

In the Appendices we cover various issues in more detail if you are interested:
A. the regulatory background, including how and when the FSS is reviewed,
B. who is responsible for what,
C. what issues the Fund needs to monitor, and how it manages its risks,
D. some more details about the actuarial calculations required,
E. the assumptions which the Fund actuary currently makes about the future,
F. a glossary explaining the technical terms occasionally used here.

If you have any other queries please contact Kenneth Chisholm, Corporate Pensions 
Manager, in the first instance at kchisholm@hillingdon.gov.uk or on 01895 250847.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 77



2 Basic Funding issues
(More detailed and extensive descriptions are given in Appendix D).

2.1 How does the actuary calculate a contribution rate?

Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements:
a) the estimated cost of future benefits being built up from year to year,  

referred to as the “future service rate”; plus
b) an adjustment for the difference between the assets built up to date and 

the value of past service benefits, referred to as the “past service 
adjustment”.  If there is a deficit the past service adjustment will be an 
increase in the employer’s total contribution; if there is a surplus there 
may be a reduction in the employer’s total contribution.  Any past service 
adjustment will aim to return the employer to full funding over an 
appropriate period (the “deficit recovery period”).

2.2 How is a deficit (or surplus) calculated?

An employer’s “funding level” is defined as the ratio of:
the market value of the employer’s share of assets, to 
the value placed by the actuary on the benefits built up to date for the 
employer’s employees and ex-employees (the “liabilities”).  The Fund 
actuary agrees with the Administering Authority the assumptions to be 
used in calculating this value.

If this is less than 100% then it means the employer has a shortfall, which is the 
employer’s deficit; if it is more than 100% then the employer is said to be in 
surplus.  The amount of deficit or shortfall is the difference between the asset 
value and the liabilities value.

A larger deficit will give rise to higher employer contributions. If a deficit is 
spread over a longer period then the annual employer cost is lower than if it is 
spread over a shorter period.

2.3 How are contribution rates calculated for different employers?

The Fund’s actuary is required by the Regulations to report the Common 
Contribution Rate, for all employers collectively at each triennial valuation, 
combining items (a) and (b) above.  This is based on actuarial assumptions 
about the likelihood, size and timing of benefit payments to be made from the 
Fund in the future, as outlined in Appendix E.

The Fund’s actuary is also required to adjust the Common Contribution Rate for 
circumstances specific to each individual employer.  The sorts of specific 
circumstances which are considered are discussed in Section 3.  It is this 
adjusted contribution rate which the employer is actually required to pay, and 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 78



the rates for all employers are shown in the Fund’s Rates and Adjustments 
Certificate.  
In effect, the Common Contribution Rate is a notional quantity, as it is unlikely 
that any employer will pay that exact rate.  Separate future service rates are 
calculated for each employer together with individual past service adjustments 
according to employer-specific circumstances. 

Details of the outcome of the Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March 2013 can be 
found in the formal valuation report dated 26 March 2014, including an analysis 
at Fund Level of the Common Contribution Rate.  Further details of individual 
employer contribution rates can also be found in the formal report.

2.4 What else might affect the employer’s contribution?

Employer covenants, and likely term of membership, are also considered when 
setting contributions: more details are given in Section 3.

For some employers it may be agreed to pool contributions, see 3.4.

Any costs of non ill-health early retirements must be paid by the employer, see 
3.6.

If an employer is approaching the end of its participation in the Fund then its 
contributions may be amended appropriately, so that the assets meet (as 
closely as possible) the value of its liabilities in the Fund when its participation 
ends.

Employers’ contributions are expressed as minima, with employers able to pay 
contributions at a higher rate.  Account of the higher rate will be taken by the 
Fund Actuary at subsequent valuations.

2.5 What different types of employer participate in the Fund?

Historically the LGPS was intended for local authority employees only.  
However over the years, with the diversification and changes to delivery of local 
services, many more types and numbers of employers now participate.  There 
are currently more employers in the Fund than ever before, a significant part of 
this being due to new academies. 

In essence, participation in the LGPS is open to public sector employers 
providing some form of service to the local community. Whilst the majority of 
members will be local authority employees (and ex-employees), the majority of 
participating employers are those providing services in place of (or alongside) 
local authority services: academy schools, contractors, housing associations, 
charities, etc.

The LGPS Regulations define various types of employer as follows:

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 79



Scheduled bodies - councils, and other specified employers such as 
academies and further education establishments.  These must provide access 
to the LGPS in respect of their employees who are not eligible to join another 
public sector scheme (such as the Teachers Scheme).  These employers are 
so-called because they are specified in a schedule to the LGPS Regulations.    
It is now possible for Local Education Authority schools to convert to academy 
status, and for other forms of school (such as Free Schools) to be established 
under the academies legislation. All such academies, as employers of non-
teaching staff, become separate new employers in the Fund.  As academies 
are defined in the LGPS Regulations as “Scheduled Bodies”, the 
Administering Authority has no discretion over whether to admit them to the 
Fund, and the academy has no discretion whether to continue to allow its non-
teaching staff to join the Fund.  There has also been guidance issued by the
DCLG regarding the terms of academies’ membership in LGPS Funds.

Designating employers - employers such as town and parish councils are 
able to participate in the LGPS via resolution (and the Fund cannot refuse 
them entry where the resolution is passed). These employers can designate 
which of their employees are eligible to join the scheme.

Other employers are able to participate in the Fund via an admission 
agreement, and are referred to as ‘admission bodies’.  These employers are 
generally those with a “community of interest” with another scheme employer –
community admission bodies (“CAB”) or those providing a service on behalf 
of a scheme employer – transferee admission bodies (“TAB”).  CABs will 
include housing associations and charities, TABs will generally be contractors.  
The Fund is able to set its criteria for participation by these employers and can 
refuse entry if the requirements as set out in the Fund’s admissions policy are 
not met. 

2.6 How does the Fund recognise that contribution levels can affect council 
and employer service provision, and council tax?

The Administering Authority and the Fund actuary are acutely aware that, all 
other things being equal, a higher contribution required to be paid to the Fund 
will mean less cash available for the employer to spend on the provision of 
services.  For instance:

Higher pension Fund contributions may result in reduced council 
spending, which in turn could affect the resources available for council 
services, and/or greater pressure on council tax levels;
Contributions which Academies pay to the Fund will therefore not be 
available to pay for providing education;
Other employers will provide various services to the local community, 
perhaps through housing associations, charitable work, or contracting 
council services. If they are required to pay more in pension 
contributions to the LGPS then this may affect their ability to provide the 
local services.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 80



Whilst all this is true, it should also be borne in mind that:
The Fund provides invaluable financial security to local families, whether 
to those who formerly worked in the service of the local community who 
have now retired, or to their families after their death;
The Fund must have the assets available to meet these retirement and 
death benefits, which in turn means that the various employers must 
each pay their own way.  Lower contributions today will mean higher 
contributions tomorrow: deferring payments does not alter the 
employer’s ultimate obligation to the Fund in respect of its current and 
former employees;
Each employer will generally only pay for its own employees and ex-
employees (and their dependants), not for those of other employers in 
the Fund;
The Fund strives to maintain reasonably stable employer contribution 
rates where appropriate and possible;
The Fund wishes to avoid the situation where an employer falls so far 
behind in managing its funding shortfall that its deficit becomes 
unmanageable in practice: such a situation may lead to employer 
insolvency and the resulting deficit falling on the other Fund employers. 
In that situation, those employers’ services would in turn suffer as a 
result;
Council contributions to the Fund should be at a suitable level, to protect 
the interests of different generations of council tax payers. For instance, 
underpayment of contributions for some years will need to be balanced 
by overpayment in other years; the council will wish to minimise the 
extent to which council tax payers in one period are in effect benefitting 
at the expense of those paying in a different period. 

Overall, therefore, there is clearly a balance to be struck between the Fund’s 
need for maintaining prudent funding levels, and the employers’ need to 
allocate their resources appropriately.  The Fund achieves this through various 
techniques which affect contribution increases to various degrees (see 3.1).  In 
deciding which of these techniques to apply to any given employer, the Fund 
will consider a risk assessment of that employer using a knowledge base which 
is regularly monitored and kept up-to-date.  This database will include such 
information as the type of employer, its membership profile and funding 
position, any guarantors or security provision, material changes anticipated, 
etc.  This helps the Fund establish a picture of the financial standing of the 
employer, i.e. its ability to meet its long term Fund commitments.

For instance, where an employer is considered relatively low risk then the Fund 
will permit greater smoothing (such as stabilisation or a longer deficit recovery 
period relative to other employers) which will temporarily produce lower 
contribution levels than would otherwise have applied.  This is permitted in the 
expectation that the employer will still be able to meet its obligations for many 
years to come.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 81



On the other hand, an employer whose risk assessment indicates a less strong 
covenant will generally be required to pay higher contributions (for instance, 
with a more prudent funding basis or a shorter deficit recovery period relative to 
other employers).  This is because of the higher probability that at some point it 
will fail or be unable to meet its pension contributions, with its deficit in the Fund 
then falling to other Fund employers.

The Fund actively seeks employer input, including to its funding arrangements, 
through various means: see Appendix A.

Calculating contributions for individual Employers

2.7 General comments

A key challenge for the Administering Authority is to balance the need for 
stable, affordable employer contributions with the requirement to take a 
prudent, longer-term view of funding and ensure the solvency of the Fund.  
With this in mind, there are a number of methods which the Administering 
Authority may permit, in order to improve the stability of employer contributions.  
These include, where circumstances permit:-

capping of employer contribution rate changes within a pre-determined 
range (“stabilisation”)
the use of extended deficit recovery periods
the phasing in of contribution rises or reductions
the pooling of contributions amongst employers with similar 
characteristics
the use of some form of security or guarantee to justify a lower 
contribution rate than would otherwise be the case.

These and associated issues are covered in this Section.

The Administering Authority recognises that there may occasionally be 
particular circumstances affecting individual employers that are not easily 
managed within the rules and policies set out in the Funding Strategy 
Statement.  Therefore the Administering Authority may, at its sole discretion, 
direct the actuary to adopt alternative funding approaches on a case by case 
basis for specific employers.

2.8 The effect of paying contributions below the theoretical level

Employers which are permitted to use one or more of the above methods will 
often be paying, for a time, contributions less than the theoretical contribution 
rate.  Such employers should appreciate that:

their true long term liability (i.e. the actual eventual cost of benefits 
payable to their employees and ex-employees) is not affected by the 
choice of method, 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 82



lower contributions in the short term will be assumed to incur a greater 
loss of investment returns on the deficit.  Thus, deferring a certain 
amount of contribution will lead to higher contributions in the long-term, 
and
it will take longer to reach full funding, all other things being equal.  

Overleaf (3.3) is a summary of how the main funding policies differ for different 
types of employer, followed by more detailed notes where necessary.

Section 3.4 onwards deals with various other funding issues which apply to all 
employers.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE – 26 MARCH 2014 
Page 83



2.
9

T
h

e 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
ap

p
ro

ac
h

es
 u

se
d

 f
o

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
em

p
lo

ye
rs

T
yp

e 
o

f 
em

p
lo

ye
r

S
ch

ed
u

le
d

 B
o

d
ie

s
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
m

is
si

o
n

 B
o

d
ie

s 
an

d
 

D
es

ig
n

at
in

g
 E

m
p

lo
ye

rs
T

ra
n

sf
er

ee
 A

d
m

is
si

o
n

 B
o

d
ie

s

S
u

b
-t

yp
e

L
o

ca
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
P

o
lic

e,
 F

ir
e,

 
C

o
lle

g
es

 e
tc

A
ca

d
em

ie
s

O
p

en
 t

o
 n

ew
 

en
tr

an
ts

C
lo

se
d

 t
o

 n
ew

 
en

tr
an

ts
(a

ll)

B
as

is
 u

se
d

O
ng

oi
ng

, a
ss

um
es

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 F

un
d 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
(s

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

E
)

O
ng

oi
ng

, b
ut

 m
ay

 m
ov

e 
to

 “
gi

lts
 b

as
is

” 
-

se
e 

N
ot

e 
(a

)
O

ng
oi

ng
, a

ss
um

es
 fi

xe
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

 te
rm

 in
 

th
e 

F
un

d 
(s

ee
 A

pp
en

di
x 

E
)

F
u

tu
re

 s
er

vi
ce

 r
at

e
P

ro
je

ct
ed

 U
ni

t C
re

di
t a

pp
ro

ac
h 

(s
ee

 A
pp

en
di

x 
D

 –
D

.2
)

A
tta

in
ed

 A
ge

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 (

se
e 

A
pp

en
di

x 
D

 –
D

.2
)

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 U

ni
t C

re
di

t a
pp

ro
ac

h 
(s

ee
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
D

 –
D

.2
)

S
ta

b
ili

se
d

 r
at

e?
Y

es
 -

se
e 

N
ot

e 
(b

)
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o

M
ax

im
u

m
 d

ef
ic

it
 

re
co

ve
ry

 p
er

io
d

 –
N

o
te

 (
c)

25
 y

ea
rs

25
 y

ea
rs

20
 y

ea
rs

20
 y

ea
rs

FW
L

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 c
on

tr
ac

t t
er

m
 o

r 
FW

L,
 

w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 s
ho

rt
er

.

D
ef

ic
it

 r
ec

o
ve

ry
 

p
ay

m
en

ts
 –

N
o

te
 (

d
)

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll

M
on

et
ar

y 
am

ou
nt

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll

T
re

at
m

en
t 

o
f 

su
rp

lu
s

C
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

st
ab

ili
sa

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
t

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

: 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

ke
pt

 a
t f

ut
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ra

te
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 m
ay

 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

dm
in

. 
A

ut
ho

rit
y

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

: 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

ke
pt

 a
t f

ut
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ra

te
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 m
ay

 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

dm
in

. 
A

ut
ho

rit
y

P
re

fe
rr

ed
 a

pp
ro

ac
h:

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 k

ep
t a

t 
fu

tu
re

 s
er

vi
ce

 r
at

e.
 H

ow
ev

er
, r

ed
uc

tio
ns

 
m

ay
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

dm
in

. A
ut

ho
rit

y

R
ed

uc
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 b
y 

sp
re

ad
in

g 
th

e 
su

rp
lu

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 c
on

tr
ac

t t
er

m

P
h

as
in

g
 o

f 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 c

h
an

g
es

C
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

st
ab

ili
sa

tio
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
t

3 
ye

ar
s

-
N

ot
e 

(e
)

3 
ye

ar
s

-
N

ot
e 

(e
)

3 
ye

ar
s

-
N

ot
e 

(e
)

3 
ye

ar
s

-
N

ot
e 

(e
)

N
on

e

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

ra
te

s 
–

N
o

te
 (

f)
A

dm
in

is
te

rin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
re

se
rv

es
 th

e 
rig

ht
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s 

an
d 

am
ou

nt
s,

 a
nd

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f s

ec
ur

ity
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 a
t r

eg
ul

ar
 in

te
rv

al
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

va
lu

at
io

ns
P

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 in
 la

st
 3

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
co

nt
ra

ct
N

ew
 e

m
p

lo
ye

r
n/

a
n/

a
N

ot
e 

(g
)

N
ot

e 
(h

)
N

ot
es

 (
h)

&
 (

i)
C

es
sa

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
: 

ce
ss

at
io

n
 d

eb
t 

C
es

sa
tio

n 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 n
ot

 to
 b

e 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 
as

 S
ch

ed
ul

ed
 B

od
ie

s 
ar

e 
le

ga
lly

 o
bl

ig
ed

 to
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
e 

in
 th

e 
LG

P
S

.  
In

 th
e 

ra
re

 e
ve

nt
 o

f 

C
an

 b
e 

ce
as

ed
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 te
rm

s 
of

 
ad

m
is

si
on

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

 C
es

sa
tio

n 
de

bt
 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 o

n 
a 

ba
si

s 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 e

xp
ire

 a
t t

he
 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
.  

C
es

sa
tio

n 
de

bt
 (

if 
an

y)
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
on

 o
ng

oi
ng

 b
as

is
. 

P
A

R
T

 I 
-

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
, P

R
E

S
S

 &
 P

U
B

LI
C

P
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 –

26
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
01

4 

Page 84



p
ay

ab
le

ce
ss

at
io

n 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

(m
ac

hi
ne

ry
 o

f G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

ch
an

ge
s 

fo
r 

ex
am

pl
e)

, t
he

 c
es

sa
tio

n 
de

bt
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 
ap

pl
ie

d 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

as
 p

er
 N

ot
e 

(j)
.

to
 th

e 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

of
 c

es
sa

tio
n 

–
se

e 
N

ot
e 

(j)
.

A
w

ar
di

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

lia
bl

e 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 
de

fic
its

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

ris
in

g.

P
A

R
T

 I 
-

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
, P

R
E

S
S

 &
 P

U
B

LI
C

P
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 –

26
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
01

4 

Page 85



Note (a) (Basis for CABs and Designating Employers closed to new entrants)

In the circumstances where:

the employer is a Designating Employer, or an Admission Body but not a 
Transferee Admission Body, and
the employer has no guarantor, and
the admission agreement is likely to terminate, or the employer is likely to lose 
its last active member, within a timeframe considered appropriate by the 
Administering Authority to prompt a change in funding, 

the Administering Authority may vary the discount rate used to set employer 
contribution rate.  In particular contributions may be set for an employer to achieve 
full funding on a more prudent basis (e.g. using a discount rate set equal to gilt 
yields) by the time the agreement terminates or the last active member leaves, in 
order to protect other employers in the Fund.  This policy will increase regular 
contributions and reduce, but not entirely eliminate, the possibility of a final deficit 
payment being required from the employer when a cessation valuation is carried 
out.

The Administering Authority also reserves the right to adopt the above approach in 
respect of those Designating Employers and Admission Bodies with no guarantor, 
where the strength of covenant is considered to be weak but there is no immediate 
expectation that the admission agreement will cease or the Designating Employer 
alters its designation.

Note (b) (Stabilisation)

Stabilisation is a mechanism where employer contribution rate variations from year 
to year are kept within a pre-determined range, thus allowing those employers’ 
rates to be relatively stable. In the interests of stability and affordability of employer 
contributions, the Administering Authority, on the advice of the Fund Actuary, 
believes that stabilising contributions can still be viewed as a prudent longer-term 
approach.  However, employers whose contribution rates have been “stabilised” 
(and may therefore be paying less than their theoretical contribution rate) should be 
aware of the risks of this approach and should consider making additional payments 
to the Fund if possible.

This stabilisation mechanism allows short term investment market volatility to be 
managed so as not to cause volatility in employer contribution rates, on the basis 
that a long term view can be taken on net cash inflow, investment returns and 
strength of employer covenant.

The current stabilisation mechanism applies if:

the employer satisfies the eligibility criteria set by the Administering Authority 
(see below) and;
there are no material events which cause the employer to become ineligible, 
e.g. significant reductions in active membership (due to outsourcing or 
redundancies), or changes in the nature of the employer (perhaps due to 
Government restructuring).

Page 86



On the basis of extensive modelling carried out for the 2013 valuation exercise (see 
Section 4), the stabilised details are as follows:

Type of employer Council

Max cont increase +1% of pay

Max cont decrease -1% of pay

The stabilisation criteria and limits will be reviewed at the 31 March 2016 valuation, 
to take effect from 1 April 2017.  This will take into account the employer’s 
membership profiles, the issues surrounding employer security, and other relevant 
factors.

Note (c) (Deficit Recovery Periods)

The deficit recovery period starts at the commencement of the revised contribution 
rate (1 April 2014 for the 2013 valuation).  The Administering Authority would 
normally expect the same period to be used at successive triennial valuations, but 
would reserve the right to propose alternative spreading periods, for example where 
there were no new entrants.

Where stabilisation applies, the resulting employer contribution rate would be 
amended to comply with the stabilisation mechanism.

For employers with no (or very few) active members at this valuation, the deficit 
should be recovered by a fixed monetary amount over a period to be agreed with 
the body or its successor.

Note (d) (Deficit Recovery Payments)

For employers where stabilisation is not being applied, the deficit recovery 
payments for each employer covering the three year period until the next valuation 
will often be set as a percentage of salaries.  However, the Administering Authority 
reserves the right to amend these rates between valuations and/or to require these 
payments in monetary terms instead, for instance where:

the employer is relatively mature, i.e. has a large deficit recovery contribution 
rate (e.g. above 15% of payroll), in other words its payroll is a smaller 
proportion of its deficit than is the case for most other employers, or
there has been a significant reduction in payroll due to outsourcing or 
redundancy exercises, or
the employer has closed the Fund to new entrants.

Note (e) (Phasing in of contribution changes)

All phasing is subject to the Administering Authority being satisfied as to the 
strength of the employer’s covenant.

Employers which have no active members at this valuation will not be phased.

Page 87



Note (f) (Regular Reviews)

Such reviews may be triggered by significant events including but not limited to: 
significant reductions in payroll, altered employer circumstances, Government 
restructuring affecting the employer’s business, or failure to pay contributions or 
arrange appropriate security as required by the Administering Authority.

The result of a review may be to require increased contributions (by strengthening 
the actuarial assumptions adopted and/or moving to monetary levels of deficit 
recovery contributions), and/or an increased level of security or guarantee.  

Note (g) (New Academy employers)

At the time of writing, the Fund’s policies on academies’ funding issues are as 
follows: 

a) The new academy will be regarded as a separate employer in its own right 
and will not be pooled with other employers in the Fund.  The only exception is 
where the academy is part of a Multi Academy Trust (MAT) in which case the 
academy’s figures will be calculated as below but can be combined with those 
of the other academies in the MAT;

b) The new academy’s past service liabilities on conversion will be calculated 
based on its active Fund members on the day before conversion.  For the 
avoidance of doubt, these liabilities will include all past service of those 
members, but will exclude the liabilities relating to any ex-employees of the 
school who have deferred or pensioner status;

c) The new academy will be allocated an initial asset share from the ceding 
council’s assets in the Fund.  This asset share will be calculated using the 
estimated funding position of the ceding council at the date of academy 
conversion.  The share will be based on the active members’ funding level, 
having first allocated assets in the council’s share to fully fund deferred and 
pensioner members.  The asset allocation will be based on market conditions 
and the academy’s active Fund membership on the day prior to conversion;

d) The new academy’s initial contribution rate will be calculated using market 
conditions, the council funding position and, membership data, all as at the 
day prior to conversion;

The Fund’s policies on academies are subject to change in the light of any 
amendments to DCLG guidance. Any changes will be notified to academies, and 
will be reflected in a subsequent version of this FSS. In particular, policies (d) and 
(e) above will be reconsidered at each valuation.

Note (h) (New Admission Bodies)

With effect from 1 October 2012, the LGPS 2012 Miscellaneous Regulations 
introduced mandatory new requirements for all Admission Bodies brought into the 
Fund from that date.  Under these Regulations, all new Admission Bodies will be 
required to provide some form of security, such as a guarantee from the letting 
employer, an indemnity or a bond.  The security is required to cover some or all of 
the following:

Page 88



the strain cost of any redundancy early retirements resulting from the 
premature termination of the contract;
allowance for the risk of asset underperformance;
allowance for the risk of a fall in gilt yields;
allowance for the possible non-payment of employer and member 
contributions to the Fund;
the current deficit.

For all new Transferee Admission Bodies, the security must be to the satisfaction of 
the Administering Authority as well as the letting employer, and will be reassessed 
on an annual basis.

The Administering Authority will only consider requests from Community Admission 
Bodies (or other similar bodies, such as section 75 NHS partnerships) to join the 
Fund if they are sponsored by a Scheduled Body with tax raising powers, 
guaranteeing their liabilities and also providing a form of security as above. 

The above approaches reduce the risk to other employers in the Fund, of potentially 
having to pick up any shortfall in respect of Admission Bodies ceasing with an 
unpaid deficit.

Note (i) (New Transferee Admission Bodies)

A new TAB usually joins the Fund as a result of the letting/outsourcing of some 
services from an existing employer (normally a Scheduled Body such as a council 
or academy) to another organisation (a “contractor”).  This involves the TUPE 
transfer of some staff from the letting employer to the contractor.  Consequently, for 
the duration of the contract, the contractor is a new participating employer in the 
Fund so that the transferring employees maintain their eligibility for LGPS 
membership.  At the end of the contract the employees revert to the letting 
employer or to a replacement contractor.

Ordinarily, the TAB would be set up in the Fund as a new employer with 
responsibility for all the accrued benefits of the transferring employees; in this case, 
the contractor would usually be assigned an initial asset allocation equal to the past 
service liability value of the employees’ Fund benefits.  The quid pro quo is that the 
contractor is then expected to ensure that its share of the Fund is also fully funded 
at the end of the contract: see Note (j).

Employers which “outsource” have flexibility in the way that they can deal with the 
pension risk potentially taken on by the contractor.  In particular there are three 
different routes that such employers may wish to adopt. Clearly as the risk 
ultimately resides with the employer letting the contract, it is for them to agree the 
appropriate route with the contractor:

I. Pooling - Under this option the contractor is pooled with the letting 
employer.  In this case, the contractor pays the same rate as the letting 
employer, which may be under the stabilisation approach.

II. Letting employer retains pre-contract risks - Under this option the letting 
employer would retain responsibility for assets and liabilities in respect of 
service accrued prior to the contract commencement date.  The contractor 
would be responsible for the future liabilities that accrue in respect of 

Page 89



transferred staff.  The contractor’s contribution rate could vary from one 
valuation to the next. It would be liable for any deficit at the end of the 
contract term in respect of assets and liabilities attributable to service 
accrued during the contract term.

III. Fixed contribution rate agreed - Under this option the contractor pays a 
fixed contribution rate and doesn’t pay any cessation deficit.

The Administering Authority is willing to administer any of the above options as long as 
the approach is documented in the Admission Agreement as well as the transfer 
agreement.  The Admission Agreement should ensure that some element of risk 
transfers to the contractor where it relates to their decisions and it is unfair to burden 
the letting employer with that risk.  For example the contractor should typically be 
responsible for pension costs that arise from;

above average pay increases, including the effect in respect of service prior to 
contract commencement even if the letting employer takes on responsibility for 
the latter under (ii) above;  
redundancy and early retirement decisions.

Note (j) (Admission Bodies Ceasing)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Admission Agreement, the Administering 
Authority may consider any of the following as triggers for the cessation of an 
admission agreement with any type of body:

Last active member ceasing participation in the Fund;
The insolvency, winding up or liquidation of the Admission Body;
Any breach by the Admission Body of any of its obligations under the Agreement 
that they have failed to remedy to the satisfaction of the Fund;
A failure by the Admission Body to pay any sums due to the Fund within the 
period required by the Fund; or
The failure by the Admission Body to renew or adjust the level of the bond or 
indemnity, or to confirm an appropriate alternative guarantor, as required by the 
Fund.

On cessation, the Administering Authority will instruct the Fund actuary to carry out a 
cessation valuation to determine whether there is any deficit or surplus. Where there is 
a deficit, payment of this amount in full would normally be sought from the Admission 
Body; where there is a surplus it should be noted that current legislation does not 
permit a refund payment to the Admission Body.

For non-Transferee Admission Bodies whose participation is voluntarily ended either by 
themselves or the Fund, or where a cessation event has been triggered, the 
Administering Authority must look to protect the interests of other ongoing employers.  
The actuary will therefore adopt an approach which, to the extent reasonably 
practicable, protects the other employers from the likelihood of any material loss 
emerging in future:

a) Where there is a guarantor for future deficits and contributions, the cessation 
valuation will normally be calculated using the ongoing basis as described in 
Appendix E;

Page 90



b) Alternatively, it may be possible to simply transfer the former Admission Body’s 
liabilities and assets to the guarantor, without needing to crystallise any deficit. 
This approach may be adopted where the employer cannot pay the contributions 
due, and this is within the terms of the guarantee;

c) Where a guarantor does not exist then, in order to protect other employers in the 
Fund, the cessation liabilities and final deficit will normally be calculated using a 
“gilts cessation basis”, which is more prudent than the ongoing basis.  This has 
no allowance for potential future investment outperformance above gilt yields, 
and has added allowance for future improvements in life expectancy. This could 
give rise to significant cessation debts being required.  

Under (a) and (c), any shortfall would usually be levied on the departing Admission 
Body as a single lump sum payment.  If this is not possible then the Fund would look 
to any bond, indemnity or guarantee in place for the employer.

In the event that the Fund is not able to recover the required payment in full, then the 
unpaid amounts fall to be shared amongst all of the other employers in the Fund.  
This may require an immediate revision to the Rates and Adjustments Certificate 
affecting other employers in the Fund, or instead be reflected in the contribution rates 
set at the next formal valuation following the cessation date.

As an alternative, where the ceasing Admission Body is continuing in business, the 
Fund at its absolute discretion reserves the right to enter into an agreement with the 
ceasing Admission Body.  Under this agreement the Fund would accept an 
appropriate alternative security to be held against any deficit, and would carry out the 
cessation valuation on an ongoing basis: deficit recovery payments would be derived
from this cessation debt.  This approach would be monitored as part of each triennial 
valuation: the Fund reserves the right to revert to a “gilts cessation basis” and seek 
immediate payment of any funding shortfall identified.  The Administering Authority 
may need to seek legal advice in such cases, as the Body would have no 
contributing members.

2.10 Pooled contributions

From time to time the Administering Authority may set up pools for employers with 
similar characteristics.  This will always be in line with its broader funding strategy.

With the advice of the Actuary the Administering Authority allows smaller employers 
of similar types to pool their contributions as a way of sharing experience and 
smoothing out the effects of costly but relatively rare events such as ill-health 
retirements or deaths in service.  

Community Admission Bodies that are deemed by the Administering Authority to 
have closed to new entrants are not usually permitted to participate in a pool.  
Transferee Admission Bodies are usually also ineligible for pooling.

Smaller admitted bodies may be pooled with the letting employer, provided all parties 
(particularly the letting employer) agree.

Employers who are permitted to enter (or remain in) a pool at the 2013 valuation will 
not normally be advised of their individual contribution rate unless agreed by the 
Administering Authority.

Page 91



Schools generally are also pooled with their funding Council.  However there may be 
exceptions for specialist or independent schools. 

Those employers which have been pooled are identified in the Rates and 
Adjustments Certificate.

2.11 Additional flexibility in return for added security

The Administering Authority may permit greater flexibility to the employer’s 
contributions if the employer provides added security to the satisfaction of the 
Administering Authority.  

Such flexibility includes a reduced rate of contribution, an extended deficit recovery 
period, or permission to join a pool with another body (e.g. the Local Authority). 
Such security may include, but is not limited to, a suitable bond, a legally-binding 
guarantee from an appropriate third party, or security over an employer asset of 
sufficient value.

The degree of flexibility given may take into account factors such as:

the extent of the employer’s deficit;
the amount and quality of the security offered;
the employer’s financial security and business plan; 
whether the admission agreement is likely to be open or closed to new 
entrants.

2.12 Non ill health early retirement costs

It is assumed that members’ benefits are payable from the earliest age that the 
employee could retire without incurring a reduction to their benefit (and without 
requiring their employer’s consent to retire).  (NB the relevant age may be different 
for different periods of service, following the benefit changes from April 2008 and 
April 2014).  Employers are required to pay additional contributions (‘strain’) 
wherever an employee retires before attaining this age.  The actuary’s funding basis 
makes no allowance for premature retirement except on grounds of ill-health.     

2.13 Ill health early retirement costs

Admitted Bodies will usually have an ‘ill health allowance’; Scheduled Bodies may 
have this also, depending on their agreement terms with the Administering Authority. 
The Fund monitors each employer’s ill health experience on an ongoing basis.  If the 
cumulative cost of ill health retirement in any financial year exceeds the allowance at 
the previous valuation, the employer will be charged additional contributions on the
same basis as apply for non ill-health cases. Details will be included in each separate 
Admission Agreement.

2.14 Ill health insurance

If an employer provides satisfactory evidence to the Administering Authority of a 
current insurance policy covering ill health early retirement strains, then:

- the employer’s contribution to the Fund each year is reduced by the amount of 
that year’s insurance premium, so that the total contribution is unchanged, and

Page 92



- there is no need for monitoring of allowances.
The employer must keep the Administering Authority notified of any changes in the 
insurance policy’s coverage or premium terms, or if the policy is ceased.

2.15 Employers with no remaining active members

In general an employer ceasing in the Fund, due to the departure of the last active 
member, will pay a cessation debt on an appropriate basis (see 3.3, Note (j)) and 
consequently have no further obligation to the Fund. Thereafter it is expected that 
one of two situations will eventually arise:
a) The employer’s asset share runs out before all its ex-employees’ benefits have 

been paid. In this situation the other Fund employers will be required to 
contribute to pay all remaining benefits: this will be done by the Fund actuary 
apportioning the remaining liabilities on a pro-rata basis at successive formal 
valuations;

b) The last ex-employee or dependant dies before the employer’s asset share has 
been fully utilised.  In this situation the remaining assets would be apportioned 
pro-rata by the Fund’s actuary to the other Fund 

c) In exceptional circumstances the Fund may permit an employer with no 
remaining active members to continue contributing to the Fund. This would 
require the provision of a suitable security or guarantee, as well as a written 
ongoing commitment to fund the remainder of the employer’s obligations over 
an appropriate period. The Fund would reserve the right to invoke the cessation 
requirements in the future, however.  The Administering Authority may need to 
seek legal advice in such cases, as the employer would have no contributing 
members.

2.16 Policies on bulk transfers

Each case will be treated on its own merits, but in general:

The Fund will not pay bulk transfers greater than the lesser of (a) the asset 
share of the transferring employer in the Fund, and (b) the value of the past 
service liabilities of the transferring members;

The Fund will not grant added benefits to members bringing in entitlements 
from another Fund unless the asset transfer is sufficient to meet the added 
liabilities;

The Fund may permit shortfalls to arise on bulk transfers if the Fund employer 
has suitable strength of covenant and commits to meeting that shortfall in an 
appropriate period.  This may require the employer’s Fund contributions to 
increase between valuations.  

Funding strategy and links to investment strategy

2.17 What is the Fund’s investment strategy?

The Fund has built up assets over the years, and continues to receive contribution 
and other income.  All of this must be invested in a suitable manner, which is the 
investment strategy.

Page 93



Investment strategy is set by the administering authority, after consultation with the 
employers and after taking investment advice.  The precise mix, manager make up 
and target returns are set out in the Statement of Investment Principles (SIP), which 
is available to members and employers.

The investment strategy is set for the long-term, but is reviewed from time to time.  
Normally a full review is carried out after each actuarial valuation, and is kept under 
review annually between actuarial valuations to ensure that it remains appropriate to 
the Fund’s liability profile.  

The same investment strategy is currently followed for all employers.

2.18 What is the link between funding strategy and investment strategy?

The Fund must be able to meet all benefit payments as and when they fall due.  
These payments will be met by contributions (resulting from the funding strategy) or 
asset returns and income (resulting from the investment strategy).  To the extent that 
investment returns or income fall short, then higher cash contributions are required 
from employers, and vice versa

Therefore, the funding and investment strategies are inextricably linked.  

2.19 How does the funding strategy reflect the Fund’s investment strategy?

In the opinion of the Fund actuary, the current funding policy is consistent with the 
current investment strategy of the Fund.  The asset outperformance assumption 
contained in the discount rate (see E3) is within a range that would be considered 
acceptable for funding purposes; it is also considered to be consistent with the 
requirement to take a “prudent longer-term view” of the funding of liabilities as 
required by the UK Government (see A1).

However, in the short term – such as the three yearly assessments at formal 
valuations – there is the scope for considerable volatility and there is a material 
chance that in the short-term and even medium term, asset returns will fall short of 
this target.  The stability measures described in Section 3 will damp down, but not 
remove, the effect on employers’ contributions.  

The Fund does not hold a contingency reserve to protect it against the volatility of 
equity investments.  

2.20 How does this differ for a large stable employer?

The Actuary has developed four key measures which capture the essence of the 
Fund’s strategies, both funding and investment:

Prudence - the Fund should have a reasonable expectation of being fully 
funded in the long term;
Affordability – how much can employers afford;
Stewardship – the assumptions used should be sustainable in the long term, 
without having to resort to overly optimistic assumptions about the future to 
maintain an apparently healthy funding position;
Stability - employers should not see significant moves in their contribution 
rates from one year to the next, and this will help to provide a more stable
budgeting environment.

Page 94



The key problem is that the key objectives often conflict.  For example, minimising 
the long term cost of the scheme (i.e. keeping employer rates affordable) is best 
achieved by investing in higher returning assets e.g. equities.  However, equities are 
also very volatile (i.e. go up and down fairly frequently in fairly large moves), which 
conflicts with the objective to have stable contribution rates.

Therefore a balance needs to be maintained between risk and reward, which has 
been considered by the use of Asset Liability Modelling: this is a set of calculation 
techniques applied by the Fund’s actuary, to model the range of potential future 
solvency levels and contribution rates.

The Actuary was able to model the impact of these four key areas, for the purpose of 
setting a stabilisation approach (see 3.3 Note (b)). The modelling demonstrated that 
retaining the present investment strategy, coupled with constraining employer 
contribution rate changes as described in 3.3 Note (b), struck an appropriate balance 
between the above objectives.  In particular the stabilisation approach currently 
adopted meets the need for stability of contributions without jeopardising the 
Administering Authority’s aims of prudent stewardship of the Fund.  

Whilst the current stabilisation mechanism is to remain in place until 2017, it should 
be noted that this will need to be reviewed following the 2016 valuation.

2.21 Does the Fund monitor its overall funding position?

The Administering Authority monitors the relative funding position, i.e. changes in the 
relationship between asset values and the liabilities value, quarterly.  The Investment 
Sub Committee use this information when considering changes to the investment 
strategy.

Page 95



Appendix A – Regulatory framework

A1 Why does the Fund need an FSS?

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has stated that 
the purpose of the FSS is: 

“to establish a clear and transparent fund-specific strategy which will 
identify how employers’ pension liabilities are best met going forward;
to support the regulatory framework to maintain as nearly constant employer 
contribution rates as possible; and   
to take a prudent longer-term view of funding those liabilities.”

These objectives are desirable individually, but may be mutually conflicting.

The requirement to maintain and publish a FSS is contained in LGPS Regulations 
which are updated from time to time.  In publishing the FSS the Administering 
Authority has to have regard to any guidance published by Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) (most recently in 2012) and to its 
Statement of Investment Principles.

This is the framework within which the Fund’s actuary carries out triennial 
valuations to set employers’ contributions and provides recommendations to the 
Administering Authority when other funding decisions are required, such as when 
employers join or leave the Fund.  The FSS applies to all employers participating in 
the Fund.

A2 Does the Administering Authority consult anyone on the FSS?

Yes.  This is required by LGPS Regulations.  It is covered in more detail by the 
most recent CIPFA guidance, which states that the FSS must first be subject to 
“consultation with such persons as the authority considers appropriate”, and should 
include “a meaningful dialogue at officer and elected member level with council tax 
raising authorities and with corresponding representatives of other participating 
employers”.

In practice, for the Fund, the consultation process for this FSS was as follows:

a) A draft version of the FSS was issued to all participating employers on 10
March 2014 for comment;

b) Comments were requested within 10 days;
c) Following the end of the consultation period the FSS was updated where 

required and then published, following Pensions Committee by 1 April 2014.

A3 How is the FSS published?

The FSS is published on the website, at: 
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension-fund and copies are made 
available on request.

Page 96



A4 How often is the FSS reviewed?

The FSS is reviewed in detail at least every three years as part of the triennial 
valuation.  This version is expected to remain unaltered until it is consulted upon as 
part of the formal process for the next valuation in 2016. 

It is possible that (usually slight) amendments may be needed within the three year 
period.  These would be needed to reflect any regulatory changes, or alterations to 
the way the Fund operates (e.g. to accommodate a new class of employer). Any 
such amendments would be consulted upon as appropriate: 

trivial amendments would be simply notified at the next round of employer 
communications, 
amendments affecting only one class of employer would be consulted with 
those employers, 
other more significant amendments would be subject to full consultation.

In any event, changes to the FSS would need agreement by the [Pensions 
Committee] and would be included in the relevant Committee Meeting minutes.

A5 How does the FSS fit into other Fund documents?

The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding liabilities.  It is not an 
exhaustive statement of policy on all issues, for example there are a number of 
separate statements published by the Fund including the Statement of Investment 
Principles, Governance Strategy and Communications Strategy.  In addition, the 
Fund publishes an Annual Report and Accounts with up to date information on the 
Fund.  

These documents can be found on the web at: 
http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/article/6492/Pension-fund

Page 97



Appendix B – Responsibilities of key parties

The efficient and effective operation of the Fund needs various parties to each play their 
part.

B1 The Administering Authority should:-

operate the Fund as per the LGPS Regulations;
effectively manage any potential conflicts of interest arising from its dual role 
as Administering Authority and a Fund employer;
collect employer and employee contributions, and investment income and 
other amounts due to the Fund;
ensure that cash is available to meet benefit payments as and when they fall 
due;
pay from the Fund the relevant benefits and entitlements that are due;
invest surplus monies (i.e. contributions and other income which are not 
immediately needed to pay benefits) in accordance with the Fund’s Statement 
of Investment Principles (SIP) and LGPS Regulations;
communicate appropriately with employers so that they fully understand their 
obligations to the Fund;
take appropriate measures to safeguard the Fund against the consequences 
of employer default;
manage the valuation process in consultation with the Fund’s actuary;
prepare and maintain a FSS and a SIP, after consultation; 
notify the Fund’s actuary of material changes which could affect funding (this 
is covered in a separate agreement with the actuary); and 
monitor all aspects of the fund’s performance and funding and amend the 
FSS/SIP as necessary and appropriate.

B2 The Individual Employer should:-

deduct contributions from employees’ pay correctly;
pay all contributions, including their own as determined by the actuary, 
promptly by the due date;
have a policy and exercise discretions within the regulatory framework;
make additional contributions in accordance with agreed arrangements in 
respect of, for example, augmentation of scheme benefits, early retirement 
strain; and 
notify the Administering Authority promptly of all changes to its circumstances, 
prospects or membership, which could affect future funding.

B3 The Fund Actuary should:-

prepare valuations, including the setting of employers’ contribution rates.  This 
will involve agreeing assumptions with the Administering Authority, having 
regard to the FSS and LGPS Regulations, and targeting each employer’s 
solvency appropriately; 
provide advice relating to new employers in the Fund, including the level and 
type of bonds or other forms of security (and the monitoring of these);

Page 98



prepare advice and calculations in connection with bulk transfers and 
individual benefit-related matters;
assist the Administering Authority in considering possible changes to employer 
contributions between formal valuations, where circumstances suggest this 
may be necessary;
advise on the termination of Admission Bodies’ participation in the Fund; and
fully reflect actuarial professional guidance and requirements in the advice 
given to the Administering Authority.

B4 Other parties:-

investment advisers (either internal or external) should ensure the Fund’s SIP 
remains appropriate, and consistent with this FSS;
investment managers, custodians and bankers should all play their part in the 
effective investment (and dis-investment) of Fund assets, in line with the SIP;
auditors should comply with their auditing standards, ensure Fund compliance 
with all requirements, monitor and advise on fraud detection, and sign off 
annual reports and financial statements as required;
governance advisers may be appointed to advise the Administering Authority 
on efficient processes and working methods in managing the Fund;
legal advisers (either internal or external) should ensure the Fund’s operation 
and management remains fully compliant with all regulations and broader local 
government requirements, including the Administering Authority’s own 
procedures.

Page 99



Appendix C – Key risks and controls

C1 Types of risk

The Administering Authority has an active risk management programme in place.  
The measures that it has in place to control key risks are summarised below under 
the following headings: 

financial; 
demographic;
regulatory; and
governance.

C2 Financial risks

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms

Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line 
with the anticipated returns 
underpinning valuation of liabilities over 
the long-term.

Only anticipate long-term return on a relatively 
prudent basis to reduce risk of under-
performing.
Assets invested on the basis of specialist 
advice, in a suitably diversified manner across 
asset classes, geographies, managers, etc.
Analyse progress at three yearly valuations 
for all employers.  
Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities 
between valuations at whole Fund level.

Inappropriate long-term investment 
strategy. 

Overall investment strategy options 
considered as an integral part of the funding 
strategy.  Used asset liability modelling to 
measure 4 key outcomes.  
Chosen option considered to provide the best 
balance.

Fall in risk-free returns on Government 
bonds, leading to rise in value placed on 
liabilities.

Stabilisation modelling at whole Fund level 
allows for the probability of this within a longer 
term context.  
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above.
Some investment in bonds helps to mitigate 
this risk.  

Active investment manager under-
performance relative to benchmark.

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses 
market performance and active managers 
relative to their index benchmark.  

Pay and price inflation significantly more 
than anticipated.

The focus of the actuarial valuation process is 
on real returns on assets, net of price and pay 
increases. 
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above, gives 
early warning. 
Some investment in bonds also helps to 
mitigate this risk.  
Employers pay for their own salary awards 
and should be mindful of the geared effect on 

Page 100



Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms

pension liabilities of any bias in pensionable 
pay rises towards longer-serving employees.

Effect of possible increase in employer’s 
contribution rate on service delivery and 
admission/scheduled bodies

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has been 
agreed as part of the funding strategy.  Other 
measures are also in place to limit sudden 
increases in contributions.

Orphaned employers give rise to added 
costs for the Fund

The Fund seeks a cessation debt (or 
security/guarantor) to minimise the risk of this 
happening in the future.
If it occurs, the Actuary calculates the added 
cost spread pro-rata among all employers –
(see 3.9).

C3 Demographic risks

Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms 

Pensioners living longer, thus increasing 
cost to Fund.

Set mortality assumptions with some 
allowance for future increases in life 
expectancy.

The Fund Actuary has direct access to the 
experience of over 50 LGPS funds which 
allows early identification of changes in life 
expectancy that might in turn affect the 
assumptions underpinning the valuation.

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion of 
actively contributing employees declines 
relative to retired employees.

Continue to monitor at each valuation, 
consider seeking monetary amounts rather 
than % of pay and consider alternative 
investment strategies.

Deteriorating patterns of early 
retirements

Employers are charged the extra cost of non 
ill-health retirements following each individual 
decision.
Employer ill health retirement experience is 
monitored, and insurance is an option.

Page 101



Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms 

Reductions in payroll causing 
insufficient deficit recovery payments

In many cases this may not be sufficient 
cause for concern, and will in effect be caught 
at the next formal valuation.  However, there 
are protections where there is concern, as 
follows:
Employers in the stabilisation mechanism 
may be brought out of that mechanism to 
permit appropriate contribution increases (see 
Note (b) to 3.3).
For other employers, review of contributions 
is permitted in general between valuations 
(see Note (f) to 3.3) and may require a move 
in deficit contributions from a percentage of 
payroll to fixed monetary amounts.

C4 Regulatory risks
Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms 

Changes to national pension 
requirements and/or HMRC rules e.g. 
changes arising from public sector 
pensions reform.

The Administering Authority considers all 
consultation papers issued by the 
Government and comments where 
appropriate. 
The results of the most recent reforms have 
been built into the 2013 valuation.  Any 
changes to member contribution rates or 
benefit levels will be carefully communicated 
with members to minimise possible opt-outs 
or adverse actions. 

C5 Governance risks
Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms 

Administering Authority unaware of 
structural changes in an employer’s 
membership (e.g. large fall in employee 
members, large number of retirements) 
or not advised of an employer closing to 
new entrants.

The Administering Authority has a close 
relationship with employing bodies and 
communicates required standards e.g. for 
submission of data. 
The Actuary may revise the rates and 
Adjustments certificate to increase an 
employer’s contributions (under Regulation 
38) between triennial valuations
Deficit contributions may be expressed as 
monetary amounts.

Actuarial or investment advice is not 
sought, or is not heeded, or proves to 
be insufficient in some way

The Administering Authority maintains close 
contact with its specialist advisers.
Advice is delivered via formal meetings 
involving Elected Members, and recorded 
appropriately.
Actuarial advice is subject to professional 

Page 102



Risk Summary of Control Mechanisms 

requirements such as peer review.
Administering Authority failing to 
commission the Fund Actuary to carry 
out a termination valuation for a 
departing Admission Body.

The Administering Authority requires 
employers with Best Value contractors to 
inform it of forthcoming changes.
Community Admission Bodies’ memberships 
are monitored and, if active membership 
decreases, steps will be taken.

An employer ceasing to exist with 
insufficient funding or adequacy of a 
bond.

The Administering Authority believes that it 
would normally be too late to address the 
position if it was left to the time of departure.
The risk is mitigated by:
Seeking a funding guarantee from another 
scheme employer, or external body, where-
ever possible (see Notes (h) and (j) to 3.3).
Alerting the prospective employer to its 
obligations and encouraging it to take 
independent actuarial advice. 
Vetting prospective employers before 
admission.
Where permitted under the regulations 
requiring a bond to protect the Fund from 
various risks.
Requiring new Community Admission Bodies 
to have a guarantor.
Reviewing bond or guarantor arrangements at 
regular intervals (see Note (f) to 3.3).
Reviewing contributions well ahead of 
cessation if thought appropriate (see Note (a)
to 3.3).

Page 103



Appendix D – The calculation of Employer contributions

In Section 2 there was a broad description of the way in which contribution rates are 
calculated.  This Appendix considers these calculations in much more detail.

The calculations involve actuarial assumptions about future experience, and these are 
described in detail in Appendix E.

D1 What is the difference between calculations across the whole Fund and 
calculations for an individual employer?

Employer contributions are normally made up of two elements:

a) the estimated cost of future benefits being accrued,  referred to as the “future 
service rate”; plus

b) an adjustment for the funding position of accrued benefits relative to the 
Fund’s solvency target, “past service adjustment”.  If there is a surplus there 
may be a reduction in the employer’s contribution rate.  If there is a deficit 
there will be an increase in the employer’s contribution rate, with the surplus or 
deficit spread over an appropriate period.  The aim is to return the employer to 
full funding over that period. See Section 3 for deficit recovery periods.

The Fund’s actuary is required by the regulations to report the Common 
Contribution Rate1, for all employers collectively at each triennial valuation.  It 
combines items (a) and (b) and is expressed as a percentage of pay; it is in effect 
an average rate across all employers in the Fund.   

The Fund’s actuary is also required to adjust the Common Contribution Rate for 
circumstances which are deemed “peculiar” to an individual employer2.  It is the
adjusted contribution rate which employers are actually required to pay.  The sorts 
of “peculiar” factors which are considered are discussed below.    

In effect, the Common Contribution Rate is a notional quantity.  Separate future 
service rates are calculated for each employer together with individual past service 
adjustments according to employer-specific past service deficit spreading and 
increased employer contribution phasing periods. 

D2 How is the Future Service Rate calculated? 

The future service element of the employer contribution rate is calculated with the 
aim that these contributions will meet benefit payments in respect of members’ 
future service in the Fund.  This is based upon the cost (in excess of members’ 
contributions) of the benefits which employee members earn from their service each 
year.  

The future service rate is calculated separately for all the employers, although 
employers within a pool will pay the contribution rate applicable to the pool as a 
whole.  The calculation is on the “ongoing” valuation basis (see Appendix E), but 
where it is considered appropriate to do so the Administering Authority reserves the 

1 See LGPS (Administration) Regulations 36(5).
2 See LGPS (Administration) Regulations 36(7).

Page 104



right to set a future service rate by reference to liabilities valued on a more prudent 
basis (see Section 3).

The approach used to calculate each employer’s future service contribution rate 
depends on whether or not new entrants are being admitted.  Employers should 
note that it is only Admission Bodies and Designating Employers that may have the 
power not to automatically admit all eligible new staff to the Fund, depending on the 
terms of their Admission Agreements and employment contracts. 

a) Employers which admit new entrants

These rates will be derived using the “Projected Unit Method” of valuation 
with a one year period, i.e. only considering the cost of the next year’s 
benefit accrual and contribution income.  If future experience is in line with 
assumptions, and the employer’s membership profile remains stable, this 
rate should be broadly stable over time.  If the membership of employees 
matures (e.g. because of lower recruitment) the rate would rise over time.

b) Employers which do not admit new entrants

To give more long term stability to such employers’ contributions, the 
“Attained Age” funding method is normally adopted.  This measures benefit 
accrual and contribution income over the whole future anticipated working 
lifetimes of current active employee members. 

Both approaches include expenses of administration to the extent that they 
are borne by the Fund, and include allowances for benefits payable on death 
in service and ill health retirement.

D3 How is the Solvency / Funding Level calculated?

The Fund’s actuary is required to report on the “solvency” of the whole Fund in a 
valuation which should be carried out at least once every three years.  As part of 
this valuation, the actuary will calculate the solvency position of each employer.
‘Solvency” is defined to be the ratio of the market value of the employer’s asset 
share to the value placed on accrued benefits on the Fund actuary’s chosen 
assumptions.  This quantity is known as a funding level. 

For the value of the employer’s asset share, see D5 below.

For the value of benefits, the Fund actuary agrees the assumptions to be used with 
the Administering Authority – see Appendix E.  These assumptions are used to 
calculate the present value of all benefit payments expected in the future, relating to 
that employer’s current and former employees, based on pensionable service to the 
valuation date only (i.e. ignoring further benefits to be built up in the future).

The Fund operates the same target funding level for all employers of 100% of its 
accrued liabilities valued on the ongoing basis, unless otherwise determined (see 
Section 3). 

Page 105



D4 What affects a given employer’s valuation results?

The results of these calculations for a given individual employer will be affected by:

past contributions relative to the cost of accruals of benefits;  
different liability profiles of employers (e.g. mix of members by age, gender, 
service vs. salary);
the effect of any differences in the valuation basis on the value placed on the 
employer’s liabilities; 
any different deficit/surplus spreading periods or phasing of contribution 
changes;  
the difference between actual and assumed rises in pensionable pay;
the difference between actual and assumed increases to pensions in payment 
and deferred pensions;
the difference between actual and assumed retirements on grounds of ill-
health from active status; 
the difference between actual and assumed amounts of pension ceasing on 
death;
the additional costs of any non ill-health retirements relative to any extra 
payments made;

over the period between each triennial valuation.

Actual investment returns achieved on the Fund between each valuation are 
applied proportionately across all employers, to the extent that employers in effect 
share the same investment strategy.  Transfers of liabilities between employers 
within the Fund occur automatically within this process, with a sum broadly 
equivalent to the reserve required on the ongoing basis being exchanged between 
the two employers.   

D5 How is each employer’s asset share calculated?

The Administering Authority does not account for each employer’s assets 
separately.  Instead, the Fund’s actuary is required to apportion the assets of the 
whole Fund between the employers, at each triennial valuation. 

This apportionment uses the income and expenditure figures provided for certain 
cash flows for each employer. This process adjusts for transfers of liabilities 
between employers participating in the Fund, but does make a number of 
simplifying assumptions.  The split is calculated using an actuarial technique known 
as “analysis of surplus”. 

The Fund actuary does not allow for certain relatively minor events, including but 
not limited to:

the actual timing of employer contributions within any financial year;
the effect of the premature payment of any deferred pensions on grounds of 
incapacity.

These effects are swept up within a miscellaneous item in the analysis of surplus, 
which is split between employers in proportion to their liabilities.

Page 106



The methodology adopted means that there will inevitably be some difference 
between the asset shares calculated for individual employers and those that would 
have resulted had they participated in their own ring-fenced section of the Fund.  

The asset apportionment is capable of verification but not to audit standard.  The 
Administering Authority recognises the limitations in the process, but it considers 
that the Fund actuary’s approach addresses the risks of employer cross-
subsidisation to an acceptable degree.

Page 107



Appendix E – Actuarial assumptions

E1 What are the actuarial assumptions?

These are expectations of future experience used to place a value on future benefit 
payments (“the liabilities”). Assumptions are made about the amount of benefit 
payable to members (the financial assumptions) and the likelihood or timing of 
payments (the demographic assumptions).  For example, financial assumptions 
include investment returns, salary growth and pension increases; demographic 
assumptions include life expectancy, probabilities of ill-health early retirement, and 
proportions of member deaths giving rise to dependants’ benefits.  

Changes in assumptions will affect the measured value of future service accrual 
and past service liabilities, and hence the measured value of the past service 
deficit.  However, different assumptions will not of course affect the actual benefits 
payable by the Fund in future.

The combination of all assumptions is described as the “basis”.  A more optimistic 
basis might involve higher assumed investment returns (discount rate), or lower 
assumed salary growth, pension increases or life expectancy; a more optimistic 
basis will give lower liability values and lower employer costs. A more prudent basis 
will give higher liability values and higher employer costs.

E2 What basis is used by the Fund?

The Fund’s standard funding basis is described as the “ongoing basis”, which 
applies to most employers in most circumstances.  This is described in more detail 
below.  It anticipates employers remaining in the Fund in the long term.

However, in certain circumstances, typically where the employer is not expected to 
remain in the Fund long term, a more prudent basis applies: see Note (a) to 3.3.

E3 What assumptions are made in the ongoing basis?

a) Investment return / discount rate

The key financial assumption is the anticipated return on the Fund’s 
investments.  This “discount rate” assumption makes allowance for an 
anticipated out-performance of Fund returns relative to long term yields on UK 
Government bonds (“gilts”).  There is, however, no guarantee that Fund returns 
will out-perform gilts.  The risk is greater when measured over short periods 
such as the three years between formal actuarial valuations, when the actual 
returns and assumed returns can deviate sharply.  

Given the very long-term nature of the liabilities, a long term view of prospective 
asset returns is taken.  The long term in this context would be 20 to 30 years or 
more.  

For the purpose of the triennial funding valuation at 31 March 2013 and setting 
contribution rates effective from 1 April 2014, the Fund actuary has assumed 
that future investment returns earned by the Fund over the long term will be 
1.6% per annum greater than gilt yields at the time of the valuation (this is the 

Page 108



same as that used at the 2010 valuation).  In the opinion of the Fund actuary, 
based on the current investment strategy of the Fund, this asset out-
performance assumption is within a range that would be considered acceptable 
for the purposes of the funding valuation.

b) Salary growth

Pay for public sector employees is currently subject to restriction by the UK 
Government until 2016.  Although this “pay freeze” does not officially apply to 
local government and associated employers, it has been suggested that they 
are likely to show similar restraint in respect of pay awards.  Based on long term 
historical analysis of the membership in LGPS funds, the salary increase 
assumption at the 2013 valuation has been set equal the retail prices index 
(RPI) per annum.  This is a change from the previous valuation, which assumed 
a two year restriction at 1% per annum followed by longer term growth at RPI 
plus 1.5% per annum.

c) Pension increases

Since 2011 the consumer prices index (CPI), rather than RPI, has been the 
basis for increases to public sector pensions in deferment and in payment.  This 
change was allowed for in the valuation calculations as at 31 March 2010. Note 
that the basis of such increases is set by the Government, and is not under the 
control of the Fund or any employers.

As at the previous valuation, we derive our assumption for RPI from market data 
as the difference between the yield on long-dated fixed interest and index-linked 
government bonds.  This is then reduced to arrive at the CPI assumption, to 
allow for the “formula effect” of the difference between RPI and CPI.  At this 
valuation, we propose a reduction of 0.8% per annum.  This is a larger reduction 
than at 2010, which will serve to reduce the value placed on the Fund’s liabilities 
(all other things being equal). 

d) Life expectancy

The demographic assumptions are intended to be best estimates of future 
experience in the Fund based on past experience of LGPS funds which 
participate in Club Vita, the longevity analytics service used by the Fund, and 
endorsed by the actuary. 

The longevity assumptions that have been adopted at this valuation are a 
bespoke set of “VitaCurves”, produced by the Club Vita’s detailed analysis, 
which are specifically tailored to fit the membership profile of the Fund.  These 
curves are based on the data provided by the Fund for the purposes of this 
valuation. 

It is acknowledged that future life expectancy and, in particular, the allowance 
for future improvements in life expectancy, is uncertain.  There is a consensus 
amongst actuaries, demographers and medical experts that life expectancy is 
likely to improve in the future.  Allowance has been made in the ongoing 
valuation basis for future improvements in line with “medium cohort” and a 

Page 109



1.25% per annum minimum underpin to future reductions in mortality rates.  This 
is a higher allowance for future improvements than was made in 2010.

The approach taken is considered reasonable in light of the long term nature of 
the Fund and the assumed level of security underpinning members’ benefits.   

e) General

The same financial assumptions are adopted for all employers, in deriving the 
past service deficit and the future service rate: as described in (3.3), these 
calculated figures are translated in different ways into employer contributions, 
depending on the employer’s circumstances.

The demographic assumptions, in particular the life expectancy assumption, in 
effect vary by type of member and so reflect the different membership profiles of 
employers.

Page 110



Appendix F – Glossary

Actuarial 
assumptions/ 
basis

The combined set of assumptions made by the actuary, regarding the 
future, to calculate the value of liabilities.  The main assumptions will 
relate to the discount rate, salary growth, pension increases and 
longevity.  More prudent assumptions will give a higher liability value, 
whereas more optimistic assumptions will give a lower value. 

Administering 
Authority

The council with statutory responsibility for running the Fund, in effect 
the Fund’s “trustees”.

Admission 
Bodies

Employers which voluntarily participate in the Fund, so that their 
employees and ex-employees are members.  There will be an 
Admission Agreement setting out the employer’s obligations.  For 
more details (see 2.5).

Common 
contribution 
rate

The Fund-wide future service rate plus past service adjustment. It 
should be noted that this will differ from the actual contributions 
payable by individual employers.

Covenant The assessed financial strength of the employer. A strong covenant 
indicates a greater ability (and willingness) to pay for pension 
obligations in the long run. A weaker covenant means that it appears 
that the employer may have difficulties meeting its pension obligations 
in full over the longer term.

Deficit The shortfall between the assets value and the liabilities value.  This 
relates to assets and liabilities built up to date, and ignores the future 
build-up of pension (which in effect is assumed to be met by future 
contributions). 

Deficit 
repair/recovery 
period

The target length of time over which the current deficit is intended to 
be paid off.  A shorter period will give rise to a higher annual past 
service adjustment (deficit repair contribution), and vice versa. 

Designating 
Employer

Employers such as town and parish councils that are able to 
participate in the LGPS via resolution.  These employers can 
designate which of their employees are eligible to join the Fund.

Discount rate The annual rate at which future assumed cashflows (in and out of the 
Fund) are discounted to the present day.  This is necessary to provide 
a liabilities value which is consistent with the present day value of 
the assets, to calculate the deficit. A lower discount rate gives a 
higher liabilities value, and vice versa.  It is similarly used in the 
calculation of the future service rate and the common contribution 
rate.

Employer An individual participating body in the Fund, which employs (or used 
to employ) members of the Fund.  Normally the assets and liabilities
values for each employer are individually tracked, together with its 
future service rate at each valuation.

Funding level The ratio of assets value to liabilities value: for further details (see 
2.2).

Future service 
rate

The actuarially calculated cost of each year’s build-up of pension by 
the current active members, excluding members’ contributions but 
including Fund administrative expenses.  This is calculated using a 
chosen set of actuarial assumptions.

Gilt A UK Government bond, ie a promise by the Government to pay 
interest and capital as per the terms of that particular gilt, in return for 
an initial payment of capital by the purchaser. Gilts can be “fixed 

Page 111



interest”, where the interest payments are level throughout the gilt’s 
term, or “index-linked” where the interest payments vary each year in 
line with a specified index (usually RPI). Gilts can be bought as 
assets by the Fund, but their main use in funding is as an objective 
measure of solvency.

Guarantee/ 
guarantor

A formal promise by a third party (the guarantor) that it will meet any 
pension obligations not met by a specified employer. The presence of 
a guarantor will mean, for instance, that the Fund can consider the 
employer’s covenant to be as strong as its guarantor’s.

Letting 
employer

An employer which outsources or transfers a part of its services and 
workforce to another employer (usually a contractor). The contractor 
will pay towards the LGPS benefits accrued by the transferring 
members, but ultimately the obligation to pay for these benefits will 
revert to the letting employer. A letting employer will usually be a local 
authority, but can sometimes be another type of employer such as an 
Academy.

Liabilities The actuarially calculated present value of all pension entitlements of 
all members of the Fund, built up to date.  This is compared with the 
present market value of Fund assets to derive the deficit.  It is 
calculated on a chosen set of actuarial assumptions.

LGPS The Local Government Pension Scheme, a public sector pension 
arrangement put in place via Government Regulations, for workers in 
local government.  These Regulations also dictate eligibility 
(particularly for Scheduled Bodies), members’ contribution rates, 
benefit calculations and certain governance requirements.  The LGPS 
is divided into 101 Funds which map the UK.  Each LGPS Fund is 
autonomous to the extent not dictated by Regulations, e.g. regarding 
investment strategy, employer contributions and choice of advisers. 

Maturity A general term to describe a Fund (or an employer’s position within a 
Fund) where the members are closer to retirement (or more of them 
already retired) and the investment time horizon is shorter.  This has 
implications for investment strategy and, consequently, funding
strategy. 

Members The individuals who have built up (and may still be building up) 
entitlement in the Fund.  They are divided into actives (current 
employee members), deferreds (ex-employees who have not yet 
retired) and pensioners (ex-employees who have now retired, and 
dependants of deceased ex-employees). 

Past service 
adjustment

The part of the employer’s annual contribution which relates to past 
service deficit repair.

Pooling Employers may be grouped together for the purpose of calculating 
contribution rates, so that their combined membership and asset 
shares are used to calculate a single contribution rate applicable to all 
employers in the pool. A pool may still require each individual 
employer to ultimately pay for its own share of deficit, or (if formally 
agreed) it may allow deficits to be passed from one employer to 
another. For further details of the Fund’s current pooling policy (see 
3.4).

Profile The profile of an employer’s membership or liability reflects various 
measurements of that employer’s members, ie current and former 
employees. This includes: the proportions which are active, deferred 
or pensioner; the average ages of each category; the varying salary 

Page 112



or pension levels; the lengths of service of active members vs their 
salary levels, etc. A membership (or liability) profile might be 
measured for its maturity also.

Rates and 
Adjustments 
Certificate

A formal document required by the LGPS Regulations, which must be 
updated at least every three years at the conclusion of the formal 
valuation. This is completed by the actuary and confirms the 
contributions to be paid by each employer (or pool of employers) in 
the Fund for the three year period until the next valuation is 
completed.

Scheduled 
Bodies 

Types of employer explicitly defined in the LGPS Regulations, whose 
employers must be offered membership of their local LGPS Fund.  
These include Councils, colleges, universities, academies, police and 
fire authorities etc, other than employees who have entitlement to a 
different public sector pension scheme (e.g. teachers, police and fire 
officers, university lecturers). 

Solvency In a funding context, this usually refers to a 100% funding level, ie 
where the assets value equals the liabilities value.

Stabilisation Any method used to smooth out changes in employer contributions 
from one year to the next.  This is very broadly required by the LGPS 
Regulations, but in practice is particularly employed for large stable 
employers in the Fund.  Different methods may involve: probability-
based modelling of future market movements; longer deficit recovery 
periods; higher discount rates; or some combination of these. 

Theoretical 
contribution 
rate

The employer’s contribution rate, including both future service rate
and past service adjustment, which would be calculated on the 
standard actuarial basis, before any allowance for stabilisation or 
other agreed adjustment.

Valuation An actuarial investigation to calculate the liabilities, future service 
contribution rate and common contribution rate for a Fund, and 
usually individual employers too.  This is normally carried out in full 
every three years (last done as at 31 March 2013), but can be 
approximately updated at other times.  The assets value is based on 
market values at the valuation date, and the liabilities value and 
contribution rates are based on long term bond market yields at that 
date also.

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



March 2014 

2013 VA

Hymans Robertson LLP has carried out an actuarial valuation of the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension 
Fund (“the Fund”) as at 31 March 2013, details of which are set out in the report dated 21 February 2014 (“the 
Report”), addressed to London Borough of Hillingdon (“the Client”).  The Report was prepared for the sole use 
and benefit of our Client and not for any other party; and Hymans Robertson LLP makes no representation or 
warranties to any third party as to the accuracy or completeness of the Report. 

The Report was not prepared for any third party and it will not address the particular interests or concerns of any 
such third party.  The Report is intended to advise our Client on the past service funding position of the Fund at 
31 March 2013 and employer contribution rates from April 2014, and should not be considered a substitute for 
specific advice in relation to other individual circumstances. 

As this Report has not been prepared for a third party, no reliance by any party will be placed on the Report.  It 
follows that there is no duty or liability by Hymans Robertson LLP (or its members, partners, officers, employees 
and agents) to any party other than the named Client.  Hymans Robertson LLP therefore disclaims all liability 
and responsibility arising from any reliance on or use of the Report by any person having access to the Report 
or by anyone who may be informed of the contents of the Report. 

Hymans Robertson LLP is the owner of all intellectual property rights in the Report and the Report is protected 
by copyright laws and treaties around the world.  All rights are reserved. 

The Report must not be used for any commercial purposes unless Hymans Robertson LLP agrees in advance.

Page 115



March 2014 

2013 VA

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund
2013 Actuarial Valuation

Valuation Report

Page 116



March 2014 

2013 VA

PAGE

1 Executive summary 1
2 Introduction 2
3 Assumptions 3
4 Results 6
5 Risk Assessment 10
6 Related issues 14
7 Reliances and limitations 14
Appendix A: About the pension fund 16
Appendix B: Summary of the Fund’s benefits 17
Appendix C: About the valuation 23
Appendix D: Data 25
Appendix E: Assumptions 28
Appendix F: Events since valuation date 33
Appendix G: Rates and adjustments certificate 34
Statement to the rates and adjustments certificate 35

Page 117



001

March 2014 

12013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

1 Executive summary 

We have carried out an actuarial valuation of the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund (‘the Fund’) as at 
31 March 2013.  The results are presented in this report and are briefly summarised below. 

Funding position 

The table below summarises the financial position of the Fund at 31 March 2013 in respect of benefits earned 
by members up to this date. 

The increase in deficit reflects the adverse conditions which the Fund has had to contend with since the 
previous valuation. In particular, the decrease in the real gilt yield has increased the value placed on the Fund’s 
liabilities. 

Contribution rates

The table below summarises the average employer contribution rate that would be required, based on this 
triennial valuation. 

Again, the increase in the total employer contribution rate is primarily due to the decrease in the real gilt yields 
which has increased both the employer future service rate and the past service adjustment. 

The common contribution rate is a theoretical figure – an average across the whole Fund. In practice, each 
employer that participates in the Fund has its own underlying funding position and circumstances, giving rise to 
its own contribution rate requirement. The minimum contributions to be paid by each employer from 1 April 2014 
to 31 March 2017 are shown in the Rates and Adjustment Certificate in Appendix G.

31 March 2010 31 March 2013
Past Service Position (£m) (£m)
Past Service Liabilities 728 949
Market Value of Assets 564 683
Surplus / (Deficit) (163) (266)

Funding Level 77.6% 72.0%

31 March 2010 31 March 2013
Contribution Rates (% of pay) (% of pay)
Employer future service rate (incl. expenses) 15.9% 18.9%
Past Service Adjustment (25 year spread) 6.6% 9.8%
Total employer contribution rate (incl. expenses) 22.4% 28.7%
Employee contribution rate 6.7% 6.4%
Expenses 0.6% 0.6%

Page 118



002

March 2014 

22013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

2 Introduction 
We have carried out an actuarial valuation of the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund as at 31 March 
2013. 

Purpose 
The main purposes of this valuation are: 
 to assess the extent to which the Administering Authority‘s funding objectives were met at 31 March 

2013; 

 to identify the future contributions payable by the employers that participate in the Fund in order to meet 
the Administering Authority‘s funding objectives; 

 to enable completion of all relevant certificates and statements in connection with all relevant regulations; 

 to comment on the main risks to the Fund that may result in future volatility in the funding position or to 
employers’ contributions. 

Component reports 

This document is an “aggregate” report, i.e. it is the culmination of various “component” reports and discussions, 
in particular: 

 The data report (mentioned in section 7); 

 The Discussion Document (dated 14 November 2013 which outlined the preliminary assumption 
proposals and whole fund results; 

 The formal agreement by the Administering Authority of the actuarial assumptions used in this document, 
from discussions on 12 November 2013; 

 The stabilisation modelling carried out for certain employers, as detailed in our report and presentation to 
the Administering Authority of 23 April 2013; 

 The Funding Strategy Statement, confirming the different contribution rate setting approaches for different 
types of employer or in different circumstances. 

Note that not all of these documents may be in the public domain.  

Page 119



003

March 2014 

32013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

3 Assumptions 
Actuarial assumptions 

Assumptions must be made about the factors affecting the Fund’s finances in the future.  Broadly speaking, our 
assumptions fall into two categories – financial and demographic. 

Demographic assumptions typically try to forecast when benefits will come into payment and what form these 
will take. For example, when members will retire (e.g. at their normal retirement age or earlier), how long they 
will then survive and whether a dependant’s pension will be paid. 

Financial assumptions typically try to anticipate the size of these benefits.  For example, how large members’ 
final salaries will be at retirement and how their pensions will increase over time.  In addition, the financial 
assumptions also help us to estimate how much all these benefits will cost the Fund in today’s money.  

Financial assumptions 
A summary of the main financial assumptions adopted for the valuation of members’ benefits are shown below. 

* Plus an allowance for promotional pay increases. 

**1% p.a. nominal for 2010/11, 2011/12 and 2012/13, reverting to 5.3% p.a. thereafter. 

Discount rate 

The funding valuation is effectively a planning exercise, to assess the funds needed to meet the benefits as they 
fall due. In order to place a current value on the future benefit payments from the Fund, an assumption about 
future investment returns is required in order to “discount” future benefit payments back to the valuation date at 
a suitable rate.  

For a funding valuation such as this, the discount rate is set by taking into account the Fund’s current and 
expected future investment strategy and, in particular, how this strategy is expected to outperform the returns 
from Government bonds over the long term. The additional margin for returns in excess of that available on 
Government bonds is called the Asset Outperformance Assumption (AOA). 

The selection of an appropriate AOA is a matter of judgement and the degree of risk inherent in the Fund’s 
investment strategy should always be considered as fully as possible. 

Although there has been a downward shift in the expected returns on risky assets since the 2010 valuation, we 
believe the expected returns in excess of the returns on government bonds to be broadly unchanged since 
2010. Therefore, we are satisfied that an AOA of 1.6% p.a. is a prudent assumption for the purposes of this 
valuation. This results in a discount rate of 4.6% p.a.  

Price inflation / pension increases 

Due to further analysis of the CPI index since 2010, we expect the average long term difference between RPI 
and CPI to be 0.8% p.a. compared with 0.5% p.a. at the 2010 valuation. 

At the previous valuation, the assumption for RPI was derived from market data as the difference between the 
yield on long-dated fixed interest and index-linked government bonds.  At this valuation, we have adopted a 
similar approach.  

Financial assumptions Nominal Real Nominal Real
Discount Rate 6.1% 2.8% 4.6% 2.1%
Salary Increases*   5.3%** 2.0% 3.3% 0.8%
Price Inflation / Pension Increases 3.3% - 2.5% -

31 March 2010 31 March 2013

Page 120



004

March 2014 

42013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Salary increases 

The long term assumption for salary increases is set equal to RPI. This translates to CPI plus 0.8% p.a. This is 
a change in approach from 2010 where we assumed 1% p.a. for 3 years and RPI plus 1.5% p.a. thereafter. 

We have set a lower long term rate of salary growth to reflect both short term pay constraints and the belief that 
general economic growth and hence pay growth may be at a lower level than historically experienced for a 
prolonged period of time. 

Note that this assumption is made in respect of the general level of salary increases (e.g. as a result of inflation 
and other macroeconomic factors).  We also make a separate allowance for expected pay rises granted in the 
future as a result of promotion. This assumption takes the form of a set of tables which model the expected 
promotional pay awards based on each member’s age and class.  Please see Appendix E.

Longevity 

The main demographic assumption to which the valuation results are most sensitive is that relating to the 
longevity of the Fund’s members.  For this valuation, we have adopted assumptions which give the following 
sample average future life expectancies for members: 

Further details of the mortality assumptions adopted for this valuation can be found in Appendix E.  Note that 
the figures for actives and deferreds assume that they are aged 45 at the valuation date.

Assets 

We have taken the assets of the Fund into account at their market value as indicated in the audited accounts for 
the period ended 31 March 2013. We have also included an allowance for the expected future payments in 
respect of early retirement strain and augmentation costs granted prior to the valuation date in the value of 
assets, for consistency with the liabilities and with the previous valuation.   

In our opinion, the basis for placing a value on members’ benefits is consistent with that for valuing the assets - 
both are related to market conditions at the valuation date. 

Demographic assumptions  

We are in the unique position of having a very large local authority data set from which to derive our other 
demographic assumptions. We have analysed the trends and patterns that are present in the membership of 
local authority funds and tailor our demographic assumptions to reflect LGPS experience. 

Details of these assumptions are set out in Appendix E. Further commentary on these was included in the 
Discussion Document.   

Further comments on the assumptions  

As required for Local Government Pension Scheme valuations, our proposed approach to this valuation must 
include a degree of prudence. This has been achieved by explicitly allowing for a margin of prudence in the 
AOA.  

Assumed life expectancy at age 65 Male Female Male Female
2010 valuation - baseline 19.4 21.6 19.1 21.0
2010 valuation - improvements 23.5 25.6 21.2 23.2
2013 valuation - baseline 20.0 22.8 20.4 22.7
2013 valuation - improvements 24.3 26.9 22.7 24.7

Current PensionersActives & Deferreds

Page 121



005

March 2014 

52013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

For the avoidance of doubt, we believe that all other proposed assumptions represent the “best estimate” of 
future experience. This effectively means that there is a 50% chance that future experience will be better or 
worse than the chosen assumption.  

Taken as a whole, we believe that our proposed assumptions are more prudent than the best estimate. The 
assessed liability value on a “neutral” best estimate (not prudent) basis would perhaps be 20% lower than the 
figures shown here.   

Page 122



006

March 2014 

62013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

4 Results 
The Administering Authority has prepared a Funding Strategy Statement which sets out its funding objectives 
for the Fund.  In broad terms, the main ‘past service’ objective is to hold sufficient assets in the Fund to meet the 
assessed cost of members’ past service benefits and the main ‘future service’ objective is to maintain a 
relatively stable employer contribution rate.  These objectives are potentially conflicting.  

Past service 

In assessing the extent to which the past service funding objective was met at the valuation date, we have used 
the actuarial assumptions described in the previous section of this report and funding method described in 
Appendix C.  The table below compares the value of the assets and liabilities at 31 March 2013. The 31 March 
2010 results are also shown for reference. 

The results are presented in the form of a “funding level”, this is the ratio of the market value of assets to the 
assessed cost of members’ past service benefits (“liabilities”).  

A funding level of 100% would correspond to the funding objective being met at the valuation date.  

The main funding objective was not met: there was a shortfall of assets to the assessed cost of members’ 
benefits of £266m.  

Valuation Date 31 March 2010 31 March 2013
Past Service Position (£m) (£m)
Past Service Liabilities

Employees 270 324
Deferred Pensioners 137 196

Pensioners 321 428
Total Liabilities 728 949
Market Value of Assets 564 683
Surplus / (Deficit) (163) (266)

Funding Level 77.6% 72.0%

Page 123



007

March 2014 

72013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Summary of changes to the funding position 

The chart below illustrates the factors that caused the funding position to deteriorate between 31 March 2010 
and 31 March 2013: 

Further comments on some of the items in this chart: 

 There is an interest cost of £31m. This is broadly three years of compound interest at 6.1% p.a. applied to 
the previous valuation deficit of £163m. 

 Investment returns being greater than expected since 2010 led to a gain of £13m.  This is roughly the 
difference between the actual and expected  three-year return (roughly 2.3%) applied to the whole fund 
assets from the previous valuation of £564m, with a further allowance made for cashflows during the 
period. 

 The change in mortality assumptions (baseline and improvements) has given rise to a loss of £11m.  This 
is mainly due to the change in assumed longevity improvements.  

 The change in financial conditions between the previous valuation has led to a loss of £77m. This is due 
to a decrease in the real discount rate between 2010 and 2013. This has been partially been offset by the 
0.3% p.a. increase in our assumption of the gap between RPI and CPI. 

 The combined impact of demographic experience and changes in membership data results in a loss of 
around £15m.  

Future service 

We have calculated the average long-term contribution rate that the Fund employers would need to pay to meet 
the estimated cost of members’ benefits that will be earned after 31 March 2013 (the ‘future service contribution 
rate’).  Again, we have used the assumptions set out in the previous section of this report and the method set 
out in Appendix C. The resulting contribution rate is that which should (if the actuarial assumptions about the 
future are borne out in practice) ensure that the Administering Authority‘s main future service funding objective 
is met. The table below details this future service contribution rate for 31 March 2013 and shows the 31 March 
2010 for comparison. 

Page 124



008

March 2014 

82013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Note that the employee contribution rate includes any additional contributions being paid by employees as at 31 
March 2013 into the Fund. This future service contribution rate makes no allowance for the past service deficit in 
the Fund described above.  

The average future service rate for Fund employers is 18.9% of pay. This rate is calculated as at 31 March 2013 
and therefore forms part of the total contribution rate payable by employers from 1 April 2014. Note this rate 
makes an allowance for changes to the benefit structure that take effect from 1 April 2014. In practice, a future 
service rate for each employer has been calculated which is based on their particular circumstances and 
membership profile.  The rate above is an average future service rate for the Fund as a whole.  

Summary of changes to the future service rate 

The chart below illustrates the factors that caused the future service rate to increase between 31 March 2010 
and 31 March 2013: 

As can be seen from this chart, the factors that have had the biggest impact on the future service rate between 
2010 and 2013 are broadly similar to those discussed for the past service position. 

In addition to this, the impact of the LGPS 2014 scheme has resulted in a reduction in contribution rate of 1.9% 
of payroll. 

Valuation Date 31 March 2010 31 March 2013
Future service rate % of pay % of pay

Employer future service rate (excl. expenses) 15.3% 18.3%
Expenses 0.6% 0.6%
Total employer future service rate (incl. expenses) 15.9% 18.9%
Employee contribution rate 6.7% 6.4%

Page 125



009

March 2014 

92013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Total common contribution rate payable 

The total (or “common”) contribution rate payable is the average future service rate for Fund employers plus an 
additional amount to recover the deficit and bring the funding level back to 100% over a period of 25 years, as 
set out in the Funding Strategy Statement. This additional amount is referred to as the past service adjustment. 

The common contribution rate based on the funding position as at 31 March 2013 is detailed below along with 
the results for 31 March 2010: 

This does not represent the rate which any one employer is actually required to pay, nor is it the average of the 
actual employer rates.  The actual employer contributions payable from 1 April 2014 are given in Appendix G,
and these have been devised in line with the Funding Strategy Statement: see section 6.

Valuation Date 31 March 2010 31 March 2013
Total contribution rate % of pay % of pay
Future service rate (incl. expenses) 15.9% 18.9%
Past service adjustment (25 year spread) 6.6% 9.8%
Total employer contribution rate 22.4% 28.7%

Page 126



010

March 2014 

10 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

5 Risk Assessment 
The valuation results depend critically on the actuarial assumptions that are made about the future of the Fund.  
If all of the assumptions made at this valuation were exactly borne out in practice then the results presented in 
this document would represent the true cost of the Fund as it currently stands at 31 March 2013.  

However, no one can predict the future with certainty and it is unlikely that future experience will exactly match 
all of our assumptions.  The future therefore presents a variety of risks to the Fund and these should be 
considered as part of the valuation process. In particular: 

 The main risks to the financial health of the Fund should be identified.

 Where possible, the financial significance of these risks should be quantified.

 Consideration should be given as to how these risks can then be controlled or mitigated.

 These risks should then be monitored to assess whether any mitigation is actually working. 

This section investigates the potential implications of the actuarial assumptions not being borne out in practice. 

Set out below is a brief assessment of the main risks and their effect on the valuation results, beginning with a 
look at the effect of changing the main assumptions and then focusing on the two most significant risks – 
namely investment risk and longevity risk. 

Sensitivity of valuation results to changes in assumptions 

The table below gives an indication of the sensitivity of the valuation results to small changes in some of the 
main assumptions used.  

This is not an exhaustive list of the assumptions used in the valuation. For example, changes to the assumed 
level of withdrawals and ill health retirements will also have an effect on the valuation results.  However, the 
table contains those assumptions that typically are of most interest and have the biggest impact. 

Note that the table shows the effect of changes to each assumption in isolation.  In reality, it is perfectly possible 
for the experience of the Fund to deviate from more than one of our assumptions simultaneously and so the 
precise effect on the funding position is therefore more complex.  

Assumption Change Deficit (£m) Future service rate (% of pay)
Discount rate Increases by 0.5% Falls by £80m Falls by 3%
Salary increases Increases by 0.5% Rises by £22m -
Price inflation / pension increases Increases by 0.5% Rises by £65m Rises by 2%
Life expectancy Increases by 1 year Rises by £28m Rises by 1%

Impact

Page 127



011

March 2014 

11 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Investment risk 

Sensitivity of valuation results to market conditions and investment performance 

As the assets of the Fund are taken at their market value, volatility in investment performance can have an 
immediate and tangible effect on the funding level and deficit.  This is particularly relevant because the Fund is 
invested predominantly in riskier assets such as equities and equity-type investments (e.g. property).   A rise or 
fall in the level of equity markets has a direct impact on the financial position of the Fund, which may seem 
obvious. 

Less obvious is the effect of anticipated investment performance on the Fund’s liabilities (and future service 
cost).  Here it is the returns available on government bonds that are of crucial importance, as the discount rate 
that we use to place a value on the Fund’s liabilities is based on gilt yields at the valuation date plus a margin of 
1.6% p.a.   

The table below shows how the funding level (top), deficit (middle, in £m) and total contribution rate (bottom, as 
% of pay) would vary if investment conditions at 31 March 2013 had been different.  The level of the FTSE 100 
Price index is taken as a suitable proxy for asset performance whilst the index-linked gilt yield is taken as a 
yardstick for the valuation of liabilities. 

The shaded box contains the results for this valuation.  Note that this does not take account of the performance 
of all asset classes held by the Fund (e.g. overseas equities, property, bonds, cash etc.) but it does serve to 
highlight, in broad terms, the sensitivity of the valuation results to investment conditions at the valuation date. 

Note that the scenarios illustrated above are by no means exhaustive.  They should not be taken as the limit of 
how extreme future investment experience could be. The discount rate assumption adopted at this valuation is 
expected to be appropriate over the long term. Short term volatility of equity markets does not invalidate this 
assumption. 

Longevity risk 

The valuation results are also very sensitive to unexpected changes in future longevity.  All else being equal, if 
longevity improves in the future at a faster pace than allowed for in the valuation assumptions, the funding level 
will decline and the required employer contribution rates will increase.  

Recent medical advances, changes in lifestyle and a greater awareness of health-related matters have resulted 
in life expectancy amongst pension fund members improving in recent years at a faster pace than was originally 
foreseen.  It is unknown whether and to what extent such improvements will continue in the future.  

71% 75% 79%
-0.10% (269) (233) (196)

27.8% 26.4% 25.1%
68% 72% 76%

-0.30% (302) (266) (229)
30.0% 28.7% 27.3%
66% 69% 73%

-0.50% (337) (300) (263)
32.3% 31.0% 29.6%
5912 6412 6912

In
d

ex
 L

in
ke

d
 G

il
t 

Y
ie

ld

FTSE 100 Price Index

Page 128



012

March 2014 

12 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

For the purposes of this valuation, we have selected assumptions that we believe make an appropriate 
allowance for future improvements in longevity, based on the actual experience of the Fund since the previous 
valuation. 

The table below shows how the valuation results at 31 March 2013 are affected by adopting different longevity 
assumptions.  

The shaded box contains the results for this valuation. 

Full details of the longevity improvements adopted at this valuation are set out in Appendix E.

The “further improvements” are a more cautious set of improvements that, in the short term, assume the ‘cohort 
effect’ of strong improvements in life expectancy currently being observed amongst a generation born around 
the early and mid 1930s will continue to strengthen for a few more years before tailing off. This is known as 
“non-peaked”. 

The “1 year extra” figures relative to a further year of life expectancies beyond those assumed in “further 
improvements”. 

Again, the range of assumptions shown here is by no means exhaustive and should not be considered as the 
limits of how extreme future longevity experience could be. 

Other risks to consider 

The table below summarises the effect that changes in some of the other valuation assumptions and risk factors 
would have on the funding position.  Note that these are probably unlikely to have a large financial impact on the 
Fund and therefore the analysis is qualitative rather than quantitative. 

One further risk to consider is the possibility of future changes to Regulations that could materially affect the 
benefits that members become entitled to.  It is difficult to predict the nature of any such changes but it is not 
inconceivable that they could affect not just the cost of benefits earned after the change but could also have a 
retrospective effect on the past service position (as the move from RPI to CPI-based pension increases already 
has).

Managing the risks 

Whilst there are certain things, such as the performance of investment markets or the life expectancy of 
members, that are not directly within the control of the pension fund, that does not mean that nothing can be 
done to understand them further and to mitigate their effect.  Although these risks are difficult (or impossible) to 
eliminate, steps can be taken to manage them.  

Ways in which some of these risks can be managed could be: 

Longevity assumption Deficit (£m) Future service rate
2010 valuation (163) 15.9%
2013 valuation (with improvements) (266) 18.9%
2013 valuation (further improvements) (306) 19.9%
1 year extra (329) 20.7%

Impact

Factor Funding level Future service rate
Greater level of ill health retirement Decreases Marginal
Reduced level of withdrawals Decreases Marginal
Rise in average age of employee members Marginal effect Increases
Lower take up of 50:50 option No impact Increases

Impact

Page 129



013

March 2014 

13 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

 Set aside a specific reserve to act as a cushion against adverse future experience (possibly by selecting 
a set of actuarial assumptions that are deliberately more prudent). 

 Take steps internally to monitor the decisions taken by members and employers (e.g. relating to early / ill 
health retirements or salary increases) in a bid to curtail any adverse impact on the Fund. 

 Pooling certain employers together at the valuation and then setting a single (pooled) contribution rate 
that they will all pay.  This can help to stabilise contribution rates (at the expense of cross-subsidy 
between the employers in the pool during the period between valuations). 

 Carrying out a review of the future security of the Fund’s employers (i.e. assessing the strength of 
employer covenants). 

 Carry out a bespoke analysis of the longevity of Fund members and monitor how this changes over time, 
so that the longevity assumptions at the valuation provide as close a fit as possible to the particular 
experience of the Fund.   

 Undertake an asset-liability modelling exercise that investigates the effect on the Fund of possible 
investment scenarios that may arise in the future.  An assessment can then be made as to whether long 
term, secure employers in the Fund can stabilise their future contribution rates (thus introducing more 
certainty into their future budgets) without jeopardising the long-term health of the Fund. 

 Purchasing ill health liability insurance to mitigate the risk of an ill health retirement impacting on solvency 
and funding level of an individual employer where appropriate. 

 Monitoring different employer characteristics in order to build up a picture of the risks posed. Examples 
include membership movements, cash flow positions and employer events such as cessations. 

We would be delighted to set out in more detail the risks that affect the Fund and discuss with you possible 
strategies for managing them.  

Page 130



014

March 2014 

14 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

6 Related issues 
The Fund’s valuation operates within a broader framework, and this document should therefore be considered 
alongside the following: 

 the Funding Strategy Statement, which in particular highlights how different types of employer in different 
circumstances have their contributions calculated; 

 the Statement of Investment Principles (e.g. the discount rate must be consistent with the Fund’s asset 
strategy); and 

 the general governance of the Fund, such as meetings of the Pensions Committee,  decisions delegated 
to officers, the Fund’s business plan, etc. 

Further recommendations 

Valuation frequency 

Under the provisions of the LGPS regulations, the next formal valuation of the Fund is due to be carried out as 
at 31 March 2016.  In light of the uncertainty of future financial conditions, we recommend that the financial 
position of the Fund (and for individual employers in some cases) is monitored by means of interim funding 
reviews in the period up to this next formal valuation.  This will give early warning of changes to funding 
positions and possible contribution rate changes.   

Investment strategy and risk management 

We recommend that the Administering Authority continues to regularly review its investment strategy and 
ongoing risk management programme. 

New employers joining the Fund 

Any new employers or admission bodies joining the Fund should be referred to the Fund actuary for individual 
calculation as to the required level of contribution.  

Additional payments 

Employers may make voluntary additional contributions to recover any shortfall over a shorter period, subject to 
agreement with the Administering Authority and after receiving the relevant actuarial advice. 

Further sums should be paid to the Fund by employers to meet the capital costs of any unreduced early 
retirements, reduced early retirements before age 60 and/or augmentation (i.e. additional membership or 
additional pension) using the methods and factors issued by me from time to time or as otherwise agreed. 

In addition, payments may be required to be made to the Fund by employers to meet the capital costs of any ill-
health retirements that exceed those allowed for within our assumptions.  

Cessations and bulk transfers 

Any Admission Body who ceases to participate in the Fund should be referred to us in accordance with 
Regulation 38 of the Administration Regulations.   

Any bulk movement of scheme members: 

 involving 10 or more scheme members being transferred from or to another LGPS fund, or 

 involving 2 or more scheme members being transferred from or to a non-LGPS pension arrangement 
should be referred to us to consider the impact on the Fund. 

Page 131



015

March 2014 

15 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

7 Reliances and limitations 

Scope 

This document has been requested by and is provided to London Borough of Hillingdon in its capacity as 
Administering Authority to the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund.  It has been prepared by Hymans 
Robertson LLP to fulfil the statutory obligations in accordance with regulation 36 of the Administration 
Regulations.  None of the figures should be used for accounting purposes (e.g. under FRS17 or IAS19) or for 
any other purpose (e.g. a termination valuation under Regulation 38(1)). 

This document should not be released or otherwise disclosed to any third party without our prior written consent, 
in which case it should be released in its entirety.  Hymans Robertson LLP accepts no liability to any other party 
unless we have expressly accepted such liability. 

The results of the valuation are dependent on the quality of the data provided to us by the Administering 
Authority for the specific purpose of this valuation.  We have previously issued a separate report confirming that 
the data provided is fit for the purposes of this valuation and have commented on the quality of the data 
provided.  The data used in our calculations is as per our report of March 2014.  

Actuarial Standards 

The following Technical Actuarial Standards1 are applicable in relation to this report and have been complied 
with where material:

 TAS R – Reporting;  

 TAS D – Data; 

 TAS M – Modelling; and 

 Pensions TAS. 

Catherine McFadyen      

Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries   

12 March 2014      

                                                     
1 Technical Actuarial Standards (TASs) are issued by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) and set standards for certain items of actuarial 
work, including the information and advice contained in this report.

Page 132



016

March 2014 

16 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Appendix A: About the pension fund 
For more details please refer to the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement. 

The purpose of the Fund is to provide retirement and death benefits to its members.  It is part of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and is a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme.  

Defined benefit pension scheme 

In a defined benefit scheme such as this, the nature of retirement benefits that members are entitled to is known 
in advance.  For example, it is known that members will receive a pension on retirement that is linked to their 
salary and pensionable service according to a pre-determined formula.  

However, the precise cost to the Fund of providing these benefits is not known in advance.  The estimated cost 
of these benefits represents a liability to the Fund and assets must be set aside to meet this.  The relationship 
between the value of the liabilities and the value of the assets must be regularly assessed and monitored to 
ensure that the Fund can fulfil its core objective of providing its members with the retirement benefits that they 
have been promised. 

Liabilities

The Fund’s liabilities are the benefits that will be paid in the future to its members (and their dependants).  

The precise timing and amount of these benefit payments will depend on future experience, such as when 
members will retire, how long they will live for in retirement and what economic conditions will be like both 
before and after retirement.  Because these factors are not known in advance, assumptions must be made 
about future experience.  The valuation of these liabilities must be regularly updated to reflect the degree to 
which actual experience has been in line with these assumptions.  

Assets 

The Fund’s assets arise from the contributions paid by its members and their employers and the investment 
returns that they generate.  The way these assets are invested is of fundamental importance to the Fund.  The 
selection, monitoring and evolution of the Fund’s investment strategy are key responsibilities of the 
Administering Authority.  

As the estimated cost of the Fund’s liabilities is regularly re-assessed, this effectively means that the amount of 
assets required to meet them is a moving target. As a result, at any given time the Fund may be technically in 
surplus or in deficit.  

A contribution strategy must be put in place which ensures that each of the Fund’s employers pays money into 
the Fund at a rate which will target the cost of its share of the liabilities in respect of benefits already earned by 
members and those that will be earned in the future. 

The long-term nature of the Fund 

The pension fund is a long-term commitment.  Even if it were to stop admitting new members today, it would still 
be paying out benefits to existing members and dependants for many decades to come.  It is therefore essential 
that the various funding and investment decisions that are taken now recognise this and come together to form 
a coherent long-term strategy. 

In order to assist with these decisions, the Regulations require the Administering Authority to obtain a formal 
valuation of the Fund every three years.  Along with the Funding Strategy Statement, this valuation will help 
determine the funding objectives that will apply from 1 April 2014. 

Page 133



017

March 2014 

17 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Appendix B: Summary of the Fund’s benefits 
Provided below is a brief summary of the non-discretionary benefits that we have taken into account for active 
members at this valuation.  This shouldn’t be taken as a comprehensive statement of the exact benefits to be 
paid. For further details please see the Regulations.  

Provision Benefit Structure To 31 
March 2008 

Benefit Structure 
From 1 April 2008 

Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014 

Normal 
retirement 
age (NRA) 

Age 65. Age 65. Equal to the individual member’s State 
Pension Age (minimum 65). 

Earliest
retirement 
age (ERA) on 
which 
immediate
unreduced 
benefits can 
be paid on 
voluntary
retirement 

As per NRA (age 65). 

Protections apply to active members in the scheme 
immediately prior to 1 October 2006 who would have 
been entitled to immediate payment of unreduced 
benefits prior to 65, due to: 

The benefits relating to various segments of scheme 
membership are protected as set out in Schedule 2 
to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Transitional Provisions) Regulations 2008 and 
associated GAD guidance.    

As per NRA (minimum age 65). 

Protections apply to active members in 
the scheme for pensions earned up to 1 
April 2014, due to: 

a) Accrued benefits relating to pre April 
2014 service at age 65. 

b) Continued ‘Rule of 85’ protection for 
qualifying members. 

c) Members within 10 yrs of existing 
NRA at 1/4/12 – no change to when they 
can retire and no decrease in pension 
they receive at existing NRA. 

Member
contributions 

Officers - 6% of pensionable 
pay

Manual Workers – 5% of 
pensionable pay if has 
protected lower rates rights or 
6% for post 31 March 1998 
entrants or former entrants 
with no protected rights. 

Banded rates (5.5%-
7.5%) depending 
upon level of full-
time equivalent pay.  
A mechanism for 
sharing any 
increased scheme 
costs between 
employers and 
scheme members is 
included in the 
LGPS regulations. 

Banded rates (5.5%-12.5%) depending 
upon level of actual pay.  A mechanism 
for sharing any increased scheme costs 
between employers and scheme 
members will be included in the LGPS 
regulations in due course. 

Pensionable 
pay

All salary, wages, fees and other payments in respect 
of the employment, excluding non-contractual 
overtime and some other specified amounts. 

Some scheme members may be covered by special 
agreements. 

Pay including non-contractual overtime 
and additional hours. 

Final pay The pensionable pay in the year up to the date of 
leaving the scheme.  Alternative methods used in 
some cases, e.g. where there has been a break in 
service or a drop in pensionable pay. 

Will be required for the statutory underpin and in 
respect of the final salary link that may apply in 
respect of certain members of the CARE scheme 
who have pre April 2014 accrual. 

N/A

Page 134



018

March 2014 

18 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Provision Benefit Structure To 31 
March 2008 

Benefit Structure 
From 1 April 2008 

Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014 

Period of 
scheme
membership

Total years and days of service during which a 
member contributes to the Fund.  (e.g. transfers from 
other pension arrangements, augmentation, or from 
April 2008 the award of additional pension).  For part 
time members, the membership is proportionate with 
regard to their contractual hours and a full time 
equivalent). Additional periods may be granted 
dependent on member circumstances. 

N/A

Normal 
retirement 
benefits at 
NRA 

Annual Retirement Pension - 
1/80th of final pay for each 
year of scheme membership. 

Lump Sum Retirement Grant 
- 3/80th of final pay for each 
year of scheme membership.  

Scheme 
membership from 1 
April 2008: 

Annual Retirement 
Pension - 1/60th of 
final pay for each 
year of scheme 
membership. 

Lump Sum 
Retirement Grant – 
none except by 
commutation of 
pension. 

Scheme membership from 1 April 2014: 

Annual Retirement Pension - 1/49th of 
pensionable  pay (or assumed 
pensionable pay) for each year of 
scheme membership. 

Lump Sum Retirement Grant - none 
except by commutation of pension. 

Option to 
increase 
retirement 
lump sum 
benefit 

In addition to the standard 
retirement grant any lump 
sum is to be provided by 
commutation of pension 
(within overriding HMRC 
limits).  The terms for the 
conversion of pension in to 
lump sum is £12 of lump sum 
for every £1 of annual 
pension surrendered.  

No automatic lump 
sum. Any lump sum 
is to be provided by 
commutation of 
pension (within 
overriding HMRC 
limits).  The terms 
for the conversion of 
pension in to lump 
sum is £12 of lump 
sum for every £1 of 
annual pension 
surrendered. 

No automatic lump sum. Any lump sum 
is to be provided by commutation of 
pension (within overriding HMRC limits).  
The terms for the conversion of pension 
in to lump sum is £12 of lump sum for 
every £1 of annual pension surrendered. 

Voluntary
early
retirement 
benefits (non 
ill-health) 

On retirement after age 60, subject to reduction on 
account of early payment in some circumstances (in 
accordance with ERA protections). 

On retirement after age 55, subject to 
reduction on account of early payment in 
some circumstances (in accordance with 
ERA protections). 

Employer’s 
consent early 
retirement 
benefits (non 
ill-health) 

On retirement after age 55 with employer’s consent. 

Benefits paid on redundancy or efficiency grounds 
are paid with no actuarial reduction. 

Otherwise, benefits are subject to reduction on 
account of early payment, unless this is waived by 
the employer. 

Benefits paid on redundancy or 
efficiency grounds are paid with no 
actuarial reduction. 

Employer’s consent is no longer 
required for a member to retire from age 
55. However, benefits are subject to 
reduction on account of early payment, 
unless this is waived by the employer. 

Page 135



019

March 2014 

19 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Provision Benefit Structure To 31 
March 2008 

Benefit Structure 
From 1 April 2008 

Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014 

Ill-health
benefits

As a result of permanent ill-
health or incapacity. 

Immediate payment of 
unreduced benefits. 

Enhancement to scheme 
membership, dependent on 
actual membership.  
Enhancement seldom more 
than 6 years 243 days.   

As a result of 
permanent ill-health 
or incapacity and a 
reduced likelihood of 
obtaining gainful 
employment (local 
government or 
otherwise) before 
age 65. 

Immediate payment 
of unreduced 
benefits. 

Enhanced to 
scheme
membership,
dependent on 
severity of ill health.

100% of prospective 
membership to age 
65 where no 
likelihood of 
undertaking any 
gainful employment 
prior to age 65; 

25% of prospective 
membership to age 
65 where likelihood 
of obtaining gainful 
employment after 3 
years of leaving, but 
before age 65; or 

0% of prospective 
membership where 
there is a likelihood 
of undertaking 
gainful employment 
within 3 years of 
leaving employment 

As a result of permanent ill-health or 
incapacity and a reduced likelihood of 
obtaining gainful employment (local 
government or otherwise) before NRA. 

Immediate payment of unreduced 
benefits. 

Enhanced to scheme membership, 
dependent on severity of ill health.   

100% of prospective membership to age 
NRA where no likelihood of undertaking 
any gainful employment prior to age 
NRA; 

25% of prospective membership to age 
NRA where likelihood of obtaining 
gainful employment after 3 years of 
leaving, but before age NRA; or 

0% of prospective membership where 
there is a likelihood of undertaking 
gainful employment within 3 years of 
leaving employment 

Page 136



020

March 2014 

20 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Provision Benefit Structure To 31 
March 2008 

Benefit Structure 
From 1 April 2008 

Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014 

Flexible
retirement 

After 5th April 2006, a 
member who has attained the 
age of 50, with his employer's 
consent, reduces the hours 
he works, or the grade in 
which he is employed, may 
elect in writing to the 
appropriate Administering 
Authority that such benefits 
may, with his employer's 
consent, be paid to him 
notwithstanding that he has 
not retired from that 
employment. 

Benefits are paid immediately 
and subject to actuarial 
reduction unless the 
reduction is waived by the 
employer. 

A member who has attained the age of 55 and who, with his 
employer's consent, reduces the hours he works, or the grade 
in which he is employed, may make a request in writing to the 
appropriate Administering Authority to receive all or part of his 
benefits,  

Benefits are paid immediately and subject to actuarial reduction 
unless the reduction is waived by the employer. 

Pension 
increases 

All pensions in payment, deferred pensions and dependant’s pensions other than benefits 
arising from the payment of additional voluntary contributions are increased annually.  Pensions 
are increased partially under the Pensions (Increases) Act and partially in accordance with 
statutory requirements (depending on the proportions relating to pre 88 GMP, post 88 GMP and 
excess over GMP). 

Death after 
retirement  

A spouse’s or civil partner’s 
pension of one half of the 
member's pension (generally 
post 1 April 1972 service for 
widowers’ pension and post 6 
April 1988 for civil partners) is 
payable; plus   

If the member dies within five 
years of retiring and before 
age 75 the balance of five 
years' pension payments will 
be paid in the form of a lump 
sum; plus 

Children’s pensions may also 
be payable. 

A spouse’s, civil partner’s or nominated cohabiting partner’s 
pension payable at a rate of 1/160th of the member's total 
membership multiplied by final pay (generally post 1 April 1972 
service for widowers’ pension and post 6 April 1988 for civil 
partners and nominated cohabiting partners) is payable; plus   

If the member dies within ten years of retiring and before age 75 
the balance of ten years' pension payments will be paid in the 
form of a lump sum; plus 

Children’s pensions may also be payable. 

Page 137



021

March 2014 

21 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Provision Benefit Structure To 31 
March 2008 

Benefit Structure 
From 1 April 2008 

Benefit Structure From 1 April 2014 

Death in 
service 

A lump sum of two times final 
pay;  plus

A spouse's or civil partner’s 
pension of one half of the ill-
health retirement pension that 
would have been paid to the 
scheme member if he had 
retired on the day of death 
(generally post 1 April 1972 
service for widowers’ pension 
and post 6 April 1988 for civil 
partners); plus 

Children’s pensions may also 
be payable. 

A lump sum of three times final pay; plus 

A spouse’s, civil partner’s or cohabiting partner’s pension 
payable at a rate of 1/160th of the member's total (augmented 
to age 65) membership  (generally post 1 April 1972 service for 
widowers’ pension and post 6 April 1988 for civil partners and 
nominated cohabiting partners), multiplied by final pay; plus 

Children’s pensions may also be payable. 

Leaving
service 
options  

If the member has completed three months’ or more 
scheme membership, deferred benefits with 
calculation and payment conditions similar to general 
retirement provisions ;  or 

A transfer payment to either a new employer's 
scheme or a suitable insurance policy, equivalent in 
value to the deferred pension; or 

If the member has completed less than three months' 
scheme membership, a return of the member's 
contributions with interest, less a State Scheme 
premium deduction and less tax at the rate of 20%. 

If the member has completed two years 
or more scheme membership, deferred 
benefits with calculation and payment 
conditions similar to general retirement 
provisions ;  or 

A transfer payment to either a new 
employer's scheme or a suitable 
insurance policy, equivalent in value to 
the deferred pension; or 

If the member has completed less than 
two years scheme membership, a return 
of the member's contributions with 
interest, less a State Scheme premium 
deduction and less tax at the rate of 
20%.

State pension 
scheme

The Fund is contracted-out of the State Second Pension and the benefits payable to each 
member are guaranteed to be not less than those required to enable the Fund to be contracted-
out.

Assumed 
pensionable 
pay

N/A This applies in cases of reduced 
contractual pay (CPP) resulting from 
sickness, child related and reserve 
forces absence, whereby the amount 
added to the CPP is the assumed 
pensionable pay rather than the reduced 
rate of pay actually received. 

50/50 option N/A Optional arrangement allowing 50% of 
main benefits to be accrued on a 50% 
contribution rate. 

Note: Certain categories of members of the Fund are entitled to benefits that differ from those summarised 
above. 

Page 138



022

March 2014 

22 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Discretionary benefits 

The LGPS Regulations give employers a number of discretionary powers.  The effect on benefits or 
contributions as a result of the use of these provisions as currently contained within the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Regulations has been allowed for in this valuation to the extent that this is reflected in the 
membership data provided.  No allowance has been made for the future use of discretionary powers that will be 
contained within the scheme from 1 April 2014.  

Page 139



023

March 2014 

23 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Appendix C: About the valuation 
For more details please refer the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement. 

It is important to realise that the actual cost of the pension fund (i.e. how much money it will ultimately have to 
pay out to its members in the form of benefits) is currently unknown.  This cost will not be known with certainty 
until the last benefit is paid to the last pensioner.  The core purpose of this valuation is to estimate what this cost 
will be, so that the Fund can then develop a strategy to meet it.  

Such a valuation can only ever be an estimate – as the future cannot be predicted with certainty.  However, as 
actuaries, we can use our understanding of the Fund and the factors that affect it to determine an anticipated 
cost which is as sensible and realistic as possible.  A decision can then be made as to how much is set aside 
now to meet this anticipated cost.  The pace of this funding can vary according to the level of prudence that is 
built into the valuation method and assumptions. 

For this valuation, as for the previous valuation, our calculations identify separately the expected cost of 
members’ benefits in respect of scheme membership completed before the valuation date (“past service”) and 
that which is expected to be completed after the valuation date (“future service”). 

Past service 

The principal measurement here is the comparison at the valuation date of the assets (taken at market value) 
and the value placed on the Fund’s liabilities (calculated using a market-based approach).  By maintaining a link 
to the market in both cases, this helps ensure that the assets and liabilities are valued in a consistent manner.  
Our calculation of the Fund’s liabilities also explicitly allows for expected future pay and pension increases. 

The funding level is the ratio of assets to liabilities at the valuation date.  A funding level of less/more than 100% 
implies that there is a deficit/surplus in the Fund at the valuation date.  

The funding target is to eliminate any deficit (or surplus) over a specified period and therefore get back to a 
funding level of 100%.  To do so, additional contributions may be required to be paid into the Fund, either via 
lump sums or by increasing the employer’s contribution rate.  These additional contributions are known as the 
past service adjustment. 

Future service 

In addition to benefits that have already been earned by members prior to the valuation date, employee 
members will continue to earn new benefits in the future.  The cost of these new benefits must be met by both 
employers and employees.  The employers’ share of this cost is known as the future service contribution rate. 

For the valuation results for the Fund as a whole, we have calculated the future service rate as the cost of 
benefits being earned by members over the year following the valuation, taking account of expected future 
salary increases until retirement.  If new entrants are admitted to the Fund to the extent that the overall 
membership profile remains broadly unchanged (and if the actuarial assumptions are unchanged) then the 
future service rate should be reasonably stable.  

This funding method we have used is known as the Projected Unit Method.  As well as the whole fund, it is 
appropriate for individual employers that continue to admit new entrants to the Fund. 

Page 140



024

March 2014 

24 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

However, some participating employers may have a policy of not admitting new entrants.  In this case, the 
membership profile will inevitably begin to age.  Under these circumstances, the Projected Unit Method is 
arguably no longer appropriate and will not promote sufficient stability in the future service rate.  For these 
employers, we will adopt a funding method known as the Attained Age Method, which effectively looks at the 
cost of benefits that members will earn over the entirety of their remaining working lifetime (rather than just the 
year following the valuation).  

Combining this future service rate with any past service adjustment required to repay a deficit (or reduce a 
surplus) gives us the total contribution rate.  The total rate for the Fund as a whole is known as the common 
contribution rate.  This is really just a notional figure. In practice, each individual employer will have a 
contribution rate which reflects their own particular circumstances. 

The sensitivity of valuation results 

The aim of this valuation is not only to determine these important figures but also to demonstrate their sensitivity 
to a number of key influences.  This will promote an understanding of how the expected cost of the Fund may 
change in response to uncertain future events (e.g. changes in life expectancy or investment returns).  Please 
refer to section 5 for details of the sensitivity analysis.

Page 141



025

March 2014 

25 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Appendix D: Data 
This section contains a summary of the membership, investment and accounting data provided by the 
Administering Authority for the purposes of this valuation (the corresponding membership and investment data 
from the previous valuation is also shown for reference).  For further details of the data, and the checks and 
amendments performed in the course of this valuation, please refer to our separate report.  

Membership data – whole fund 

Employee members 

*actual pay (not full-time equivalent)

Deferred pensioners 

The deferred pension shown includes revaluation up to and including the 2013 Pension Increase Order. The 
figures above also include any undecided leavers and frozen refunds at the valuation date. 

Current pensioners, spouses and children 

Note that the membership numbers in the table above refer to the number of records provided to us and so will 
include an element of double-counting in respect of any members who are in receipt (or potentially in receipt of) 
more than one benefit. 

The average ages are weighted by liability. 

The expected future working lifetime (FWL) indicates the anticipated length of time that the average employee 
member will remain as a contributor to the Fund.  Note that it allows for the possibility of members leaving, 
retiring early or dying before retirement.  

Number Pensionable Pay* Number Pensionable Pay*
(£000) (£000)

Total employee membership 5,990 122,917 6,731 126,783

31 March 201331 March 2010

Number Deferred pension Number Deferred pension
(£000) (£000)

Total deferred membership 5,146 8,465 6,119 11,055

31 March 2010 31 March 2013

Number Pension Number Pension
(£000) (£000)

Members 4,251 20,891 4,662 25,016
Dependants 698 1,736 722 1,936
Children 48 61 51 80
Total pensioner members 4,997 22,689 5,435 27,033

31 March 201331 March 2010

Membership Profile
2010 2013 2010 2013

Employees 51.3 51.9 7.7 8.9
Deferred Pensioners 50.6 51.3 - -
Pensioners 66.6 67.3 - -

Average Age (years) FWL (years)

Page 142



026

March 2014 

26 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Membership data – individual employers 

Employer Name 
Employees  Deferreds Pensioners

No Actual Pay 
(£000)

No Pension
(£000)

No Pension
(£000)

London Borough Of Hillingdon Pool 5,296 103,394 5,666 10,531 5,300 26,694 
Heathrow Travel Care 4 100 3 2 1 6 
Hillingdon & Ealing Citizens Advice 7 195 19 41 6 17 
Uxbridge College 194 4,475 268 318 77 202 
Stockley Academy 42 978 26 31 2 2 
Harefield Academy 68 1,230 58 35 5 11 
Mitie (Ex-Dalkia Services) 15 350 5 11 7 19 
Mitie (Ex-Ict) 16 205 6 12 9 14 

Yes Dining 17 141 6 12 7 11 
Greenwich Leisure Limited 22 487 7 9 4 14 
Sevest Group 1 5 0 0 0 0 
Cranford Park Academy 61 545 1 1 0 0 
Eden Academy 117 1,619 1 2 2 6 
Wood End Academy 71 796 1 0 0 0 
Guru Nanak Sikh Academy 96 1,275 1 0 1 1 
Barnhill Academy 59 1,062 2 2 1 5 
Northwood Academy 28 301 2 2 0 0 
Queensmead Academy 50 660 1 0 4 18 
Vyners Academy 41 623 4 2 0 0 
Rosedale Hewens Academy 40 714 6 13 1 1 
Haydon Academy 98 1,667 13 12 1 3 
Swakeleys Academy 52 769 1 0 2 4 
Uxbridge Academy 38 804 4 10 1 1 
Douay Martyrs Academy 28 575 5 4 0 0 
Bishopshalt Academy 46 824 5 2 1 1 
Bishop Ramsey Academy 50 768 7 3 1 1 
Willows Academy 15 241 1 2 0 0 
Coteford Academy 33 312 0 0 0 0 
Belmore Academy 55 753 0 0 2 2 
LDBS Frays Academy Trust 71 915 0 0 0 0 

Page 143



027

March 2014 

27 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Assets at 31 March 2013 

A summary of the Fund’s assets (excluding members’ money-purchase Additional Voluntary Contributions) as 
at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2010 is as follows: 

Accounting data – revenue account for the three years to 31 March 2013 

Note that the figures above are based on the Fund accounts provided to us for the purposes of this valuation, 
which were fully audited at the time of our valuation calculations.  

Asset class Market Value at 31 March 2010 Allocation Market Value at 31 March 2013 Allocation
(£000) % (£000) %

UK equities 232,080 41% 208,666 31%
UK fixed interest gilts 1,611 0% 2,042 0%
UK corporate bonds 20,579 4% 37,993 6%
UK index-linked gilts 29,175 5% 35,134 5%
Overseas equities 176,382 31% 217,303 32%
Overseas bonds 44,343 8% 88,979 13%
Property 41,612 7% 46,488 7%
Cash and net current assets 18,508 3% 46,447 7%
Total 564,290 100% 683,052 100%

Consolidated accounts (£000)
31 March 2011 31 March 2012 31 March 2013 Total

Income
Employer - normal contributions 22,270 21,614 23,010 66,894
Employer - additional contributions 417 906 717 2,040
Employer - early retirement and augmentation strain contributions 0 0 0 0
Employee - normal contributions 8,229 7,877 7,920 24,026
Employee - additional contributions 129 123 224 476
Transfers In Received (including group and individual) 3,968 3,703 284 7,955
Other Income 0 0 0 0
Total Income 35,013 34,223 32,155 101,391

Expenditure
Gross Retirement Pensions 23,243 24,874 26,818 74,935
Lump Sum Retirement Benefits 5,850 6,440 4,496 16,786
Death in Service Lump sum 991 693 110 1,794
Death in Deferment Lump Sum 0 0 0 0
Death in Retirement Lump Sum 0 0 0 0
Gross Refund of Contributions 10 5 0 15
Transfers out (including bulk and individual) 3,663 3,504 1,957 9,124
Fees and Expenses 738 752 589 2,079
Total Expenditure 34,495 36,268 33,970 104,733

Net Cashflow 518 -2,045 -1,815 -3,342

Assets at start of year 564,290 594,333 612,850 564,290
Net cashflow 518 -2,045 -1,815 -3,342
Change in value 29,525 20,562 72,017 122,104
Assets at end of year 594,333 612,850 683,052 683,052

Approximate rate of return on assets 5.2% 3.5% 11.8% 21.7%

Year to

Page 144



028

March 2014 

28 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Appendix E: Assumptions 
Financial assumptions 

*An allowance is also made for promotional pay increases (see table below).  Note that the assumption at 31 March 2010 is actually 1% p.a. 

nominal for 2010/11, 2011/12 and 2012/13, reverting to 5.3% p.a. thereafter. 

Mortality assumptions 

We have suggested a longevity improvement assumption based on the latest industry standard and combined 
information from our longevity experts in Club Vita. The start point for the improvements has been based on 
observed death rates in the Club Vita data bank over the period. 

In the short term we have assumed that the ‘cohort effect’ of strong improvements in life expectancy currently 
being observed amongst a generation born around the early and mid 1930s will start to tail off, resulting in life 
expectancy increasing less rapidly than has been seen over the last decade or two. This is known as ‘peaked’. 

In the long term (post age 70) we have assumed that increases in life expectancy will stabilise at a rate of 
increase of 1 year per decade for men and women.  This is equivalent to assuming that longer term mortality 
rates will fall at a rate of 1.25% p.a. for men and women. 

Various scaling factors have been applied to the mortality tables to reflect the predicted longevity for each class 
of member and their dependants. Full details of these are available on request. 

Financial assumptions 31 March 2010 31 March 2013
(% p.a.) (% p.a.)

Discount rate 6.1% 4.6%
Price inflation 3.8% 3.3%
Pay increases* 5.3% 3.3%
Pension increases: 3.3% 2.5%

pension in excess of GMP 3.3% 2.5%
post-88 GMP 2.8% 2.5%

pre-88 GMP 0.0% 0.0%
Revaluation of deferred pension 3.3% 2.5%
Expenses 0.6% 0.6%

Longevity assumptions 31 March 2013
Longevity - baseline

CMI Model version used
Longevity - improvements

CMI_2010 

Proportion of convergence remaining 
at mid point

50%

Vita curves

Long term rate of improvement Period effects:

Period of convergence

CMI core i.e. 40 years for those born in 1947 or later declining linearly to 5 
years for those born in 1912 or earlier.

CMI model core values i.e. 10 years for ages 50 and below and 5 years for 
those aged 95 and above, with linear transition to 20 years for those aged 
between 60 and 80.

1.25% p.a. for men and women.

0% p.a. for men and for women.

Cohort effects:  

Period effects:

Cohort effects:  

Starting rates
CMI calibration based on data from Club Vita using the latest available data 
as at December 2011.

Page 145



029

March 2014 

29 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

As a member of Club Vita, the longevity assumptions that have been adopted at this valuation are a bespoke 
set of VitaCurves that are specifically tailored to fit the membership profile of the Fund.  These curves are based 
on the data you have provided us with for the purposes of this valuation. Full details of these are available on 
request. 

Other demographic valuation assumptions 
Retirements in ill health Allowance has been made for ill-health retirements before 

Normal Pension Age (see table below). 

Withdrawals Allowance has been made for withdrawals from service (see 
table below). 

Family details A varying proportion of members are assumed to be married (or 
have an adult dependant) at retirement or on earlier death.  For 
example, at age 60 this is assumed to be 90% for males and 
85% for females. Husbands are assumed to be 3 years older 
than wives. 

Commutation 65% of future retirements elect to exchange pension for 
additional tax free cash up to HMRC limits for service to 1 April 
2008 (equivalent 85% for service from 1 April 2008). 

50:50 option 10% of members (uniformly distributed across the age, service 
and salary range) will choose the 50:50 option. 

The tables below show details of the assumptions actually used for specimen ages.  The promotional pay scale 
is an annual average for all employees at each age.  It is in addition to the allowance for general pay inflation 
described above.  For membership movements, the percentages represent the probability that an individual at 
each age leaves service within the following twelve months. 

Page 146



030

March 2014 

30 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Death in Service tables: 

Ill Health Early Retirements tables 

Tier 1 

Tier 2 

Age
Male officers 
and Post 98

Male Manuals
Female officers 

and Post 98
Female Manuals

Death Death Death Death
20 0.26 0.32 0.14 0.17
25 0.26 0.32 0.14 0.17
30 0.31 0.38 0.20 0.26
35 0.36 0.45 0.34 0.43
40 0.61 0.77 0.54 0.68
45 1.02 1.28 0.88 1.11
50 1.63 2.04 1.29 1.62
55 2.55 3.19 1.70 2.13
60 4.59 5.74 2.18 2.72
65 7.65 9.56 2.79 3.49

Incidence per 1000 active members per annum

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
25.00 0.00 0.00 0.53 0.42 0.13 0.11 0.69 0.55
30.00 0.00 0.00 0.97 0.78 0.18 0.14 1.01 0.81
35.00 0.13 0.11 1.46 1.16 0.35 0.28 1.39 1.11
40.00 0.22 0.18 2.12 1.69 0.53 0.42 2.02 1.61
45.00 0.49 0.39 2.91 2.33 0.71 0.56 2.65 2.12
50.00 1.23 0.99 4.32 3.46 1.32 1.06 3.53 2.82
55.00 4.84 3.87 10.23 8.18 4.91 3.92 9.48 7.58
60.00 8.51 6.81 16.40 13.12 10.41 8.32 16.67 13.33
65.00 16.17 12.94 31.61 25.28 18.70 14.96 31.61 25.28

Age

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum
Male Officers & Post 

98 Males
Male Manuals

Female Officers & Post 
98 Females

Female Manuals

Ill Health Ill Health Ill Health Ill Health

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
25.00 0.00 0.00 0.56 0.45 0.14 0.11 0.74 0.59
30.00 0.00 0.00 1.03 0.82 0.19 0.15 1.07 0.86
35.00 0.14 0.11 1.55 1.24 0.37 0.30 1.47 1.18
40.00 0.23 0.19 2.25 1.80 0.56 0.45 2.14 1.71
45.00 0.52 0.41 3.09 2.47 0.75 0.60 2.81 2.25
50.00 1.66 1.33 5.82 4.65 1.78 1.42 4.75 3.80
55.00 3.74 2.99 7.91 6.32 3.79 3.03 7.33 5.86
60.00 3.20 2.56 6.17 4.94 3.92 3.13 6.27 5.02
65.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Age

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum
Male Officers & Post Male Manuals Female Officers & Post Female Manuals

Ill Health Ill Health Ill Health Ill Health

Page 147



031

March 2014 

31 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Tier 3 

Withdrawal 

Less than 2 years’ service 

More than 2 years’ service 

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
25.00 0.00 0.00 0.48 0.38 0.09 0.07 0.55 0.44
30.00 0.09 0.07 0.77 0.62 0.15 0.12 0.77 0.61
35.00 0.12 0.10 1.16 0.93 0.30 0.24 1.11 0.88
40.00 0.21 0.17 1.61 1.29 0.39 0.31 1.53 1.22
45.00 0.48 0.38 2.32 1.86 0.62 0.50 1.96 1.56
50.00 0.26 0.21 0.68 0.54 0.24 0.20 0.58 0.46
55.00 0.37 0.30 0.77 0.61 0.45 0.36 0.76 0.61
60.00 0.21 0.17 0.42 0.33 0.25 0.20 0.42 0.33
65.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Age

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum
Male Officers & Post Male Manuals Female Officers & Post Female Manuals

Ill Health Ill Health Ill Health Ill Health

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20 304.04 506.74 304.04 506.74 288.39 400.55 288.39 400.55 557.41 1000.00 384.52 640.87
25 200.83 334.72 201.20 335.01 194.07 269.50 194.43 269.79 368.19 736.38 258.74 431.17
30 142.53 237.46 143.05 237.91 162.69 225.89 163.17 226.27 261.24 522.40 216.89 361.38
35 111.38 185.51 112.17 186.19 140.45 194.94 141.07 195.43 204.11 408.11 187.19 311.79
40 89.71 149.31 90.77 150.23 116.92 162.22 117.80 162.92 164.33 328.47 155.80 259.40
45 73.64 122.28 75.03 123.55 96.49 133.73 97.50 134.54 134.71 268.98 128.49 213.73
50 56.96 94.68 57.28 95.02 73.34 101.75 73.60 101.96 104.26 208.28 97.73 162.71
55 49.47 82.09 49.77 82.44 56.73 78.59 56.97 78.78 90.46 180.57 75.53 125.58
60 29.97 49.75 30.13 49.94 26.40 36.55 26.52 36.65 54.81 109.43 35.13 58.39

Age

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum
Male Officers Male Manuals Female Officers Female Manuals Post 98 Males Post 98 Females
Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
20 119.85 199.76 119.85 199.76 113.69 157.90 113.69 157.90 219.73 439.46 151.58 252.63
25 79.17 131.95 79.31 132.06 76.50 106.24 76.64 106.35 145.14 290.28 101.99 169.97
30 56.18 93.60 56.39 93.78 64.13 89.05 64.32 89.20 102.98 205.93 85.50 142.46
35 43.90 73.12 44.22 73.40 55.37 76.84 55.61 77.04 80.46 160.88 73.79 122.91
40 35.36 58.85 35.79 59.22 46.09 63.95 46.44 64.22 64.78 129.48 61.42 102.26
45 29.03 48.18 29.59 48.71 38.04 52.72 38.44 53.04 53.10 106.03 50.65 84.25
50 22.45 37.31 22.58 37.46 28.91 40.11 29.01 40.19 41.10 82.10 38.52 64.14
55 19.50 32.35 19.62 32.50 22.36 30.98 22.46 31.06 35.66 71.18 29.77 49.50
60 11.82 19.60 11.88 19.69 10.41 14.41 10.46 14.45 21.61 43.14 13.85 23.02

Age

Incidence for 1000 active members per annum
Male Officers Male Manuals Female Officers Female Manuals Post 98 Males Post 98 Females
Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals Withdrawals

Page 148



032

March 2014 

32 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Promotional salary scale 

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT

20 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
25 135 116 100 100 118 105 100 100
30 169 134 100 100 137 111 100 100
35 192 146 100 100 151 116 100 100
40 208 153 100 100 163 121 100 100
45 222 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
50 236 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
55 239 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
60 239 154 100 100 166 122 100 100
65 239 154 100 100 166 122 100 100

Age

Promotional Salary Scales

Male Officers & Post 98 
Males

Male Manuals
Female Officers & Post 

98 Females
Female Manuals

Page 149



033

March 2014 

33 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Appendix F: Events since valuation date 
Post-valuation events 

These valuation results are effectively a snapshot of the Fund as at 31 March 2013.  Since that date, various 
events have had an effect on the financial position of the Fund.  Whilst we have not explicitly altered the 
valuation results to allow for these events a short discussion of these “post-valuation events” can still be 
beneficial in understanding likelihood of meeting the various funding objectives. 

Investment conditions since 31 March 2013 

In the period since the valuation date, investment markets moved in the following manner: 

 equity markets have risen 

 bond yields have risen 

 price inflation has risen 

The table below compares the initial valuation results presented in this report with those that would have applied 
if our assumptions had been based on current market conditions (i.e. assumptions as at 31 January 2014). 

Other events 

Other than investment conditions changes above, I am not aware of any material changes or events occurring 
since the valuation date. 

Assumptions as at: 31 March 2013 31 January 2014
Past Service Position (£m) (£m)
Total Liabilities 949 938
Market Value of Assets 683 721
Surplus / (Deficit) (266) (217)

Funding Level 72.0% 76.9%

Contribution rates % of pay % of pay
Future service rate 18.9% 17.2%
Past Service Adjustment (25 year spread) 9.8% 8.0%
Total contribution rate 28.7% 25.2%

Page 150



034

March 2014 

34 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Appendix G: Rates and adjustments certificate 
In accordance with regulation 36(1) of the Administration Regulations we have made an assessment of the 
contributions that should be paid into the Fund by participating employers for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 
March 2017 in order to maintain the solvency of the Fund. 

The method and assumptions used to calculate the contributions set out in the Rates and Adjustments 
certificate are detailed in the Funding Strategy Statement dated March 2014 and our report on the actuarial 
valuation dated 12 March 2014. 

The required minimum contribution rates are set out in the table below. 

Signature:            

Date: 12 March 2014 

Name:  Catherine McFadyen 

Qualification: Fellow of the Institute and  
Faculty of Actuaries 

Firm: Hymans Robertson LLP 

 20 Waterloo Street 

 Glasgow 

 G2 6DB 

Page 151



035

March 2014 

35 2013 VALUATION – VALUATION REPORT 

Statement to the rates and adjustments certificate 
The Common Rate of Contribution payable by each employing authority under regulation 36(4)(a) of the 
Administration Regulations for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2017 is 28.7% of pensionable pay (as 
defined in Appendix B). 

Individual Adjustments are required under regulation 36(4)(b) of the Administration Regulations for the period 1 
April 2014 to 31 March 2017 resulting in Minimum Total Contribution Rates expressed as a percentage of 
pensionable pay are as set out below. 

The contributions shown include expenses and the expected cost of lump sum death benefits but exclude early 
retirement strain and augmentation costs which are payable by Fund employers in addition.   

Employer name 31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31 March 2017
London Borough of Hillingdon Pool 21.1% 21.1% 22.1% 23.1%
Heathrow Travel Care 20.1% 18.9% 18.9% 18.9%
Hillingdon & Ealing Citizens Advice 17.6% 19.1% plus £12,000 20.1% 21.1%
Uxbridge College 16.8% 17.8% 18.8% 19.8%
Stockley Academy 18.5% 19.4% 19.4% 19.4%
Harefield Academy 14.0% 19.0% 19.0% 19.0%
Mitie (Ex-Dalkia Services) 21.0% 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
Mitie (Ex-Ict) 21.0% 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
Yes Dining 21.0% 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
Greenwich Leisure Limited 16.8% 16.8% 16.8% 16.8%
Servest Group - 20.6% 20.6% 20.6%
Cranford Park Academy - 28.0% 28.0% 28.0%
Eden Academy - 25.1% 25.1% 25.1%
Wood End Academy - 24.5% 24.5% 24.5%
Guru Nanak Sikh Academy - 21.2% 21.2% 21.2%
Barnhill Academy - 23.4% 23.4% 23.4%
Northwood Academy - 21.7% 21.7% 21.7%
Queensmead Academy - 24.3% 24.3% 24.3%
Vyners Academy - 28.7% 28.7% 28.7%
Rosedale Hewens Academy - 24.5% 24.5% 24.5%
Haydon Academy - 22.2% 22.2% 22.2%
Swakeleys Academy - 24.0% 24.0% 24.0%
Uxbridge Academy - 21.5% 21.5% 21.5%
Douay Martyrs Academy - 30.3% 30.3% 30.3%
Bishopshalt Academy - 29.6% 29.6% 29.6%
Bishop Ramsey Academy - 26.3% 26.3% 26.3%
Willows Academy - 27.2% 27.2% 27.2%
Coteford Academy - 27.4% 27.4% 27.4%
Belmore Academy - 22.8% 22.8% 22.8%
LDBS Frays Academy Trust - 24.8% 24.8% 24.8%

New Employers from 1 April 2013

31 March 2015 31 March 2016 31 March 2017
34.5% 34.5% 34.5%
15.3% 15.3% 15.3%

Minimum Contributions for the Year Ending

Minimum Contributions for the Year Ending
Employer name
Charville Academy
Nanaksar

Contributions 
currently being 
paid in 2013/14

Page 152



DELOITTE – 2013/14 ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN

Contact Officers Nancy le Roux, 01895 250353

Papers with this report Deloitte Plan for the Audit of the Pension Fund Accounts 

SUMMARY

The attached document sets out the initial plans for the audit of the Pension Fund 
Accounts 2013/14 by Deloitte.  The format of the plan follows that prescribed by the Audit 
Commission for external audit work.  The plan sets out the approach to the audit and a 
broad timetable which should enable the whole process to be completed by early 
September.  

RECOMMENDATIONS

The committee is asked to note the report.

REASONS FOR OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee needs to be made aware of the plans for the audit of the 2012/13
accounts. 

COMMENT ON THE CONTENT OF THE PENSION FUND AUDIT PLAN

Materiality: Materiality is calculated on the basis of 1% of the net assets of the fund which 
for 2014 is £7.0m (2013 £7.5m).  Based on this amount, Deloitte would expect to report on 
all unadjusted misstatements greater than £0.35m (2013 £0.35m).

Key Audit Risks: The plan highlights the key audit risks, these being the main areas on 
which specific audit work will focus.  They are as follows:

Contributions
Benefits
Investments
Management override of key controls

TIMETABLE

The main timetable remains unchanged with the deadline for draft accounts being 30 June 
and the audit opinion due by 30 September 2012.

FEES

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE - 26 MARCH 2014 

Agenda Item 9

Page 153



The proposed fees for the 2012/13 audit are £21,000, no change from 2012/13.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications arising from this report.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE - 26 MARCH 2014 

Page 154



27 February 2014

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund

Planning Report to the Pension and Audit
Committees

Year ending 31 March 2014

Page 155



Contents

The Big Picture 1

Scope of work and approach 3

Significant audit risks 7

Purpose of our report and responsibility
statement 12

Appendix 1: Independence and fees 14

Appendix 2: Fraud: responsibilities and
representations 16

Appendix 3: Operational arrangements 18

I am delighted to present this
planning report for the 2013/14
audit of the London Borough of
Hillingdon Pension Fund. The
report sets out our audit
approach and the more
significant areas where we will
focus our attention this year.

(Heather Bygrave,
Engagement Partner, February
2014)

Delivering informed
challenge

Providing intelligent
insight

Growing investor
confidence

Building trust in the
profession

Page 156



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 1

The big picture

Page 157



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 1

The Big Picture

Key developments in your Pension Fund

Barings Asset Management have been appointed

to manage an absolute return portfolio.

There are plans to transfer additional £29 million

from UBS to Kempen International.

There are no significant changes to the scheme

rules or other arrangements.

There are no significant changes to the financial

reporting framework.

Focus within the sector on administration and

investment manager fees.

Key developments in our audit

No changes to the overall scope of the audit,
however our level of materiality has reduced.

Contributions remain a risk in view of the
complexity arising from the participation of
different admitted bodies within the fund, together
with the fact that members may pay different
rates depending on their pensionable pay

Benefits in retirement and ill health remain risks
in view of complexities around their calculation.

The pension fund in the past has made some use
of investments in unquoted investment vehicles
and derivatives financial instruments which can
give rise to complexities in accounting, disclosure
and measurement and therefore this area
remains a risk.

Risk of management override of controls, is
presumed by auditing standards to be a risk.

We have set out below an overview of the key developments in the Pension Plan and the more

significant matters we have considered in developing this Audit Plan. We consider these matters

as part of our audit risk assessment and this determines where we will focus our work. Details of

the impact of these matters on our approach are set out in this Audit Plan.

2013: £683.1m
2012: £612.9m

Scheme net assets Contributions Benefits

2013: £31.9m
2012: £30.5m

2013: £31.4m
2012: £32.0m

Significant audit risks
• Contributions
• Benefits
• Investments – namely unquoted holdings
• Management override of key controls, as presumed by auditing standards

2014: £7.0m (est)
2013: £7.5m

Materiality

Page 158



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 2

Scope of work and approach

This section sets out our planned scoping for the audit of the financial statements. We
discuss our determined materiality and confirm the level of unadjusted misstatements
which we will report to you. We confirm the extent to which reliance will be placed on
internal controls and how this decision has been reached.

Page 159



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 3

Scope of work and approach
Areas of responsibility under the Audit Commission’s Code of
Audit Practice

Responsibilities related to the accounts

Based on guidance issued by the Audit Commission, auditors are again asked, for audit purposes, to treat the
Local Government Pension Fund (LGPS) as a stand-alone body, with separate audit plan and reports to those
charged with governance.

LGPS funds administered by administering authorities are not statutory bodies in their own right. Therefore, it is
not possible for separate audit appointments to be made for LGPS audits. We are therefore appointed to the audit
of the LGPS through the existing Audit Commission appointment arrangements.

Our audit of the pension fund is planned in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit
Commission and in accordance with additional guidance issued by the Commission in relation to the audit of
pension funds. However, this only extends to the audit of the accounts and there is no requirement for a value for
money conclusion on the pension fund accounts specifically. Aspects of the use of resources framework will inform
the value for money conclusion for the Authority and cover issues relating to the pension fund.

The audit opinion we intend to issue as part of our audit report on the Authority’s financial statements will reflect the
financial reporting framework adopted by the pension fund. This is the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the “Code of Practice”).

The Audit Commission has also determined that auditors should give an opinion in accordance with auditing
standards on the financial statements included in the pension fund annual report. This entails the following
additional work over and above giving an opinion on the pension fund accounts included in the statement of
accounts:

comparing the accounts to be included in the pension fund annual report with those included in the statement
of accounts;
reading the other information published within the pension fund annual report for consistency with the pension
fund accounts; and
where the pension fund annual report is not available until after the auditor reports on the financial statements,
undertaking appropriate procedures to confirm that there are no material post-balance sheet events arising
after giving the opinion on the pension fund accounts included in the financial statements.

The financial statements included in the pension fund annual report are prepared on the basis of the same proper
practices - the Code of Practice - as the financial statements included in the statement of accounts.

Page 160



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 4

Scope of work and approach (continued)
Approach to controls testing

As set out in "Briefing on audit matters" previously circulated to you, a copy of which can be made available, our
risk assessment procedures will include obtaining an understanding of controls considered to be ‘relevant to the
audit’. This involves evaluating the design of the controls and determining whether they have been implemented
(“D & I”).

The results of our work in obtaining an understanding of controls and any subsequent testing of the operational
effectiveness of controls will be collated and the impact on the extent of substantive audit testing required will be
considered.

Liaison with internal audit

The audit team, consistent with previous years, will leverage off of the work performed by internal audit wherever
possible to allow efficiencies and limit a duplication of work. We will first update our assessment of the
organisational status, scope of function, objectivity, technical competence and due professional care of the internal
audit function. We will refer to the internal audit’s self-assessment and peer review assessment in carrying out this
work. Over the course of the audit, we will review the findings of internal audit and where internal audit identifies
specific material deficiencies in the control environment, we will consider adjusting our testing so that the audit risk
is covered by our work.

The Auditing Standards Board has issued a revised version of ISA (UK and Ireland) 610 “Using the work of internal
auditors”. This prohibits use of internal audit to provide direct assistance to the audit. Our approach this year to
the use of the work of Internal Audit has been designed to be compatible with the new requirements, and therefore
this development in auditing guidance will not change the existing scope of Internal or External Audit’s work.
However, this will prevent us from further increasing the extent of our use of Internal Audit’s work in future.

For those areas where a significant risk has been identified, no reliance will be placed on the work of internal audit
and we will perform all work ourselves.

Page 161



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 5

Scope of work and approach (continued)
Materiality and error reporting threshold

We calculate materiality on the basis of the net assets of the fund, but have restricted this to the materiality
established for the audit of the Authority’s financial statements as a whole. We estimate materiality for the year to
be £7 million (2013: £7.5 million). We will report to the Pension and Audit Committees on all unadjusted
misstatements greater than £350,000 (£2013: £380,000) unless they are qualitatively material.

The materiality for the pension fund has historically been calculated using 3% of the Funds net assets and then
capped at the level of materiality for the Authority as the figures form part of the authority financial statements.
Following research with pensions governance bodies, the market and regulators we will determine materiality for
the 2014 financial statements based on 1% of the Fund’s net assets, which is lower than the materiality on the
Authority.

We will update our assessment during the planning and interim visit based on latest outturn expectations

Further details on the basis used for the calculation of materiality are given in our audit plan for the audit of the
Authority’s financial statements.

Page 162



This section sets out our comments regarding the significant audit risks identified. We
explain the nature of the risk itself, how these risks will be addressed by our audit work and
any related presentational and/ or disclosure matters within the financial statements.
Risk assessment is at the heart of our integrated audit approach as it is only with proper
identification of the most significant audit risks, that we are able to provide the highest
quality assurance in the most efficient and effective manner.

Significant audit risks

Understand
your

industry and
business

Consider
significant
events

Assess
potential
risks

Determine
significant
audit risks

Design and
conduct the

audit

Page 163



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 7

Significant audit risks
1. Contributions

There are complexities around the calculation of contributions.

Nature of risk

Unlike the position in the private sector, we are not required to issue a statement about contributions in
respect of the LGPS.

Contributions for the year ended 31 March 2013 were £31.9 million, showing that this is a material income
stream for the pension fund. This is expected to continue in the current period with the continued active
membership paying contributions. This coupled with the complexity introduced by the participation of more
than one employer in the fund, together with the past introduction of a benefit structure with tiered
contribution rates; we have identified this as a specific risk.

The key judgement areas and our planned audit challenge

We will evaluate the design and implementation of the Authority’s arrangements and perform substantive
audit testing in this area. This will include completing procedures to ascertain whether employer and
employee contributions have been calculated and deducted correctly. Further procedures will be completed
surrounding the completeness of the scheduled payments held at Capita and the accuracy of the receipts
against that schedule.

Page 164



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 8

2. Benefits
There are complexities surrounding the calculation of both
benefits in retirement and ill health and death benefits.

Nature of risk

The complexities surrounding the calculation of both benefits in retirement and ill health and death benefits
remains a key area of audit risk.

In respect of benefits in retirement, benefits are accumulated on two different bases for service pre and post
1 April 2008; the calculation of the pensionable pay on which benefits will depend may be varied by the
individual opting to take account of pay earned in any of the 10 years prior to retirement; and individuals
now enjoy greater flexibility in their choice of the mix of pension and lump sum.

In respect of ill health and death benefits, the calculation of the pensionable pay on which benefits will
depend may be varied by the same options as discussed above.

The completion of the legislation leading to the change in the revaluation basis to Consumer Price Index
adds a further complexity to the above calculations going forward.

In the year ended 31 March 2013, total benefits paid were £31.4 million. The material values of these
benefits further indicate that this is an area or key audit risk.

The key judgement areas and our planned audit challenge

We will review the design and implementation of controls present at the Fund for ensuring the accuracy,
completeness and validity of benefits through discussion with the pensions team at Capita and testing that
controls were in force during the year under review. We will also:

Obtain a schedule of benefits paid and selected a sample of benefits for detailed testing through
agreement to supporting documentation, and review of the calculation, by reference to the qualifying
service, Fund rules and benefit choices made by the member; and

Develop an expectation based on the prior year balance, adjusted for changes in membership numbers
and pension increases to analytically review the pension benefits paid in the year.

Page 165



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 9

3. Investments
There are areas of judgement involved in the valuation of
investments private equity, managed funds and derivatives.

Nature of risk

The pension fund makes some use of investments in unquoted investment vehicles, such as private equity
funds.

Private equity funds are complex to value and include an element of judgement on the part of the
investment manager, as at 31 March 2013 the Fund held £39.6 million in funds of this type. In addition,
further amounts are invested in managed funds which are complex to value due to the difficulty in visibility
of the underlying investments.

Given that these funds form a material balance within the pension fund accounts, we have identified the
valuation of these funds as a specific risk.

The fund also holds a small number of derivative contracts which as at 31 March 2013 were valued as a
liability of £81,000.

In addition to the risk of valuation, Barings Asset Management have been appointed to manage an absolute
return mandate. Subsequently, £14 million and £47 million were divested from both UBS Asset
Management and Ruffer LLP respectively, to fund the new mandate for Barings (£61 million). The transition
of assets was managed by Nomura.

Also, completed in February, a further divestment of £29 million from UBS Global Asset Management has
been transferred to Kempen International to extend the assets held under this mandate. Nomura again
managed the transition of these assets.

The key judgement areas and our planned audit challenge

We will seek to understand the approach adopted in the valuation of such investments and inspect
documentation relating to data sources used by the Authority. We will tailor further procedures depending
on the outcome of that work and our assessment of the risk of material error taking into account the fund’s
investment holding at the year end.

Derivatives can be complex in terms of accounting, measurement and disclosure requirements. We will
first understand the rationale for the use of the derivatives and then test compliance with the accounting,
measurement and disclosure requirements of the Code of Practice.

We will discuss the investments with our internal financial instruments specialist and where necessary we
may make use of their expertise in valuing complex instruments.

We will audit the transition of the assets in the two transactions with Barings Asset Management and
Kempen International through to supporting documentation from the transition manager and reports from all
related investment managers.

Page 166



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 10

4. Management override of controls
We will focus on the testing of journals, significant accounting
estimates, and any unusual transactions in the year.
Nature of risk

International Standards on Auditing requires auditors to identify a presumed risk of management override of
control. This presumed risk cannot be rebutted by the auditor. This recognises that management may be
able to override controls that are in place to present inaccurate or even fraudulent financial reports.

The key judgement areas and our planned audit challenge

Our audit work will include:

Reviewing a sample of journal entries that characteristics that may be indicative of potential fraud and
management override of controls.

Reviewing analysis and supporting documentation of key estimates and judgements.

Performing substantive testing on journal entries to confirm that they have a genuine, supportable
rationale.

Reviewing ledgers for unusual items and on a test basis investigated the rationale of any such postings.

Reviewing significant management estimates and judgements such as year end accruals and
provisions and consider whether they are reasonable.

Making enquiries of those charged with governance as part of our planning and detailed audit
processes.

Page 167



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 11

Responsibility statement

Page 168



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 12

Purpose of our report and responsibility statement
Our report is designed to help you meet your governance duties

What we report

Our report is designed to establish our respective
responsibilities in relation to the financial statement
audit, to agree our audit plan and to take the
opportunity to ask you questions at the planning stage
of our audit. Our report includes:

Our audit plan, including key audit judgements
and the planned scope and timing of our audit.

Key regulatory and corporate governance
updates, relevant to you.

What we don’t report

As you will be aware, our audit is not designed to
identify all matters that may be relevant to the
Audit and Pension committees.

Also, there will be further information you need to
discharge your governance responsibilities, such
as matters reported on by management or by
other specialist advisers.

Finally, the views on internal controls and
business risk assessment in our final report
should not be taken as comprehensive or as an
opinion on effectiveness since they will be based
solely on the audit procedures performed in the
audit of the financial statements and the other
procedures performed in fulfilling our audit plan.

Other relevant communications

This report should be read alongside the
supplementary “Briefing on audit matters”
previously circulated to you and available on
request.

Our Audit Quality Promise and Insight Plan are
included in the planning document of the
Authority.

We will update you if there are any significant
changes to the audit plan.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss our report with
you and receive your feedback.

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants

St Albans
27 February 2014

This report has been prepared for the Pension and Audit committees, as separate bodies, and we therefore accept
responsibility to you alone for its contents. We accept no duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since
this report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. Except where required by law or
regulation, it should not be made available to any other parties without our prior written consent.

Page 169



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 13

Appendices

Page 170



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 14

Appendix 1: Independence and fees
We confirm we are independent of the London Borough of
Hillingdon

As part of our obligations under International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) and the Audit Commission’s
Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you on the matters listed below:

Independence
confirmation

We confirm we are independent of the London Borough of Hillingdon - and will reconfirm
our independence and objectivity to the Pension and Audit Committees for the year
ending 31 March 2014 in our final report to the Pension and Audit Committees.

Fees No non-audit services fees relating to the pension fund have been paid to Deloitte in the
year.

Non-audit
services

In our opinion there are no inconsistencies between APB Revised Ethical Standards for
Auditors and the Authority’s policy for the supply of non-audit services or any apparent
breach of that policy. We continue to review our independence and ensure that
appropriate safeguards are in place including, but not limited to, the rotation of senior
partners and professional staff and the involvement of additional partners and
professional staff to carry out reviews of the work performed and to otherwise advise as
necessary.

We summarise our relationships with the Authority and explain our assessment of threats to auditor independence
and safeguards in the Authority audit plan document.

Page 171



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 15

Appendix 1: Independence and fees (continued)
We summarise earned or proposed audit fees for the year

The professional fees earned or proposed by Deloitte in the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 are as
follows:

Current year
£000

Prior year
£000

Audit of the London Borough of Hillingdon pension Fund 21 21

There are no non audit services provided or proposed to the London Borough of Hillingdon pension Fund for the
period from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014.

Professional fees earned or proposed by Deloitte for services in the period from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2013 in
respect of other funds of the Authority and other entities controlled by the Authority are set out in our audit plan for
the Authority.

Page 172



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 16

Appendix 2: Fraud: responsibilities and
representations
We summarise our respective responsibilities regarding fraud

Characteristics

Misstatements in the financial statements can arise from either fraud or error. The
distinguishing factor between fraud and error is whether the underlying action that
results in the misstatement of the financial statements is intentional or
unintentional.

Two types of intentional misstatements are relevant us as auditors –
misstatements resulting from fraudulent financial reporting and misstatements
resulting from misappropriation of assets.

Responsibilities

Your responsibilities Our responsibilities

The primary responsibility for the
prevention and detection of fraud
rests with management and
those charged with governance,
including establishing and
maintaining internal controls over
the reliability of financial
reporting, effectiveness and
efficiency of operations and
compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.

We are required to obtain
representations from your
management regarding internal
controls, assessment of risk and any
known or suspected fraud or
misstatement.

As auditors, we obtain reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that the
financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error.

As set out in Section 2 above we
have identified the risk of fraud in
management override of controls as
a key audit risk for your organisation.

Page 173



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 17

Appendix 2: Fraud: responsibilities and
representations (continued)
We will make inquiries and obtain representations regarding
fraud

We will make the following inquiries regarding fraud:

Management Internal Audit Those charged with governance

Management’s assessment of the risk that
the financial statements may be materially
misstated due to fraud including the nature,
extent and frequency of such assessments.

Managements process for identifying and
responding to the risks of fraud in the entity.

Managements communication to those
charged with governance regarding its
processes for identifying and responding to
the risks of fraud in the entity.

Managements communication, if any, to
employees regarding its views on business
practices and ethical behaviour.

Whether management has knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting
the entity.

Whether internal audit has
knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged
fraud affecting the entity,
and to obtain its views
about the risks of fraud.

How those charged with governance
exercise oversight of managements
processes for identifying and
responding to the risks of fraud in the
entity and the internal control that
management has established to
mitigate these risks.

Whether those charged with
governance have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud
affecting the entity.

We will require the following to be stated in the representation letter signed on behalf of the Authority:

We acknowledge our responsibilities for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud and error.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We are not aware of any fraud or suspected fraud / We have disclosed to you all information in relation to
fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects the entity or group and involves:

(i) management;

(ii) employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

(iii) others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the
entity’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

Page 174



Planning Report to the Pension and Audit Committees 18

Appendix 3: Operational arrangements
We set out key members of your audit team and other
operational information

The work will be led by Heather Bygrave, supported by Gary Wong as audit manager.

Our work will be closely co-ordinated with the work carried out on other parts of main audit of the Authority. Details
of our timetable for that work are included in the Authority audit plan.

Page 175



Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), a UK private

company limited by guarantee, and its network of member firms, each of which is a legally

separate and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.co.uk/about for a detailed

description of the legal structure of DTTL and its member firms.

Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom member firm of DTTL.

© 2013 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with

registered number OC303675 and its registered office at 2 New Street Square, London

EC4A 3BZ, United Kingdom. Tel: +44 (0) 20 7936 3000 Fax: +44 (0) 20 7583 1198.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited

Page 176



LONDON PENSIONS COMMON INVESTMENT VEHICLE 
(CIV) Proposals

Contact Officers Nancy Leroux, 01895 250353

Papers with this report

SUMMARY

London Councils has been working closely with London Boroughs on potential 
collaboration across London on pension investment and are now moving towards the 
creation of a Common Investment Vehicle (CIV).  This report explains the latest position.  

RECOMMENDATION

That Committee notes the progress made to date in relation to the Common 
Investment Vehicle initiative and will maintain a watching brief over future 
developments.

INFORMATION

Background

In 2012, PwC were commissioned by London Councils and the Society of London 
Treasurers to prepare a report which set out options for the reconfiguration of the London 
LGPS funds, and indicated the possible financial benefits of a Collective Investment 
Vehicle (CIV). Since then, the matter has been discussed several times at London 
Councils Leaders' Committee, who agreed that further consideration should be given to 
creating a CIV, and that the most appropriate structure for the CIV would be an Authorised 
Contractual Scheme (ACS). A number of London Boroughs agreed to contribute £25-£50k 
towards exploring the proposal, and those funds are held in a designated fund by London 
Councils. These contributions were to fund the professional costs associated with 
development of the proposed ACS and its Operator. 

Then during 2013, the Government issued a call for evidence on the future structure of the 
LGPS and sought professional advice to consider either Collective Investment Vehicles or 
merger of funds as potential routes forward. As part of this exercise, central government 
commissioned Hymans Robertson to undertake some detailed work on these options. The 
results of the call for evidence have not yet been published and so central government 
have not yet issued any guidance on how they expect to move this issue forward.

Latest Position

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 

Agenda Item 10

Page 177



It is the opinion of London Councils that when the government publish final information and 
guidance that it is unlikely that the benefit of CIVs will be fundamentally challenged. As a 
result, they are now formally proposing the creation of a London Pensions CIV and are 
asking all London Boroughs to make a decision on whether they now wish to formally sign 
up to the formation of an ACS in order to operate a London wide CIV.

London Councils' proposal is that a new joint committee, the 'Pensions CIV Joint 
Committee', will be set up to act as a representative body to act collectively on behalf of 
the local authorities participating in the ACS. The Pensions CIV Joint Committee will be
formed of representatives of those local authorities participating in the ACS. Should all the 
London local authorities participate, this role would be performed by the Leaders’
Committee.

The decision to invest through the ACS in the future, as well as the size of investment and 
mix of assets, will remain with each Borough Pensions Committee. Any such investments 
will, of course, need to comply with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management 
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 which contain certain restrictions on the type 
of assets that can be invested in and the amount of fund property that can be invested in 
these assets.  However, these are not matters which the local authorities are being asked 
to agree at this time.  The decisions boroughs need to take now relate solely to the 
establishment of the ACS Operator and the associated Pensions CIV Joint Committee.

London Boroughs are asked to respond by 14 April (or before 22 may 2014) on whether 
the Council will resolve to:

(i) become a shareholder in a private company limited by shares which will be 
incorporated to be the Authorised Contractual Scheme Operator (the ACS 
Operator);

(ii) contribute £1 to the ACS Operator as initial capital; 
(iii) appoint a Member of Pensions Committee and delegate authority to that Member 

to act for the local authority in exercising its rights as a shareholder of the ACS 
Operator; and

(iv) agree to join the London Boroughs "Pensions CIV Joint Committee", to be 
formed under section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972 and to delegate to 
such Joint Committee those functions necessary for the proposer functioning of 
the ACS operator and the appointment of Directors.

The legal advice provided through London Councils' recommends that the decision to 
participate should be taken by Cabinet.  The Pensions Committee does not have the 
power to agree to the Council's participation in the Common Investment Vehicle.

This report to Pensions Committee is recommending that London Borough of Hillingdon 
keep a watching brief on progress for the reasons explained below.

Firstly, as central government have yet to publish the results of their call for evidence there 
is a possibility that they may legislate either for collaboration between funds or indeed they 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 

Page 178



may prefer to formally merge funds.  Until their view is clarified it would appear untimely to 
commit the Pension Fund to expense.

A further concern is around the business case for the CIV and the potential savings it 
could deliver to London Pension Funds. The potential savings have been costed to come 
from reduced management fees and improved performance. The minimum investment 
required to make the CIV feasible is around £5bn.  However, as the total value of all 
London Borough Pension Funds (as at 31 March 2013) is £23bn, this equates to 20% of 
the cumulative value of all funds.  Whilst many authorities have expressed interest in 
taking this proposal forward, there is as yet no clear indication of how much funds would 
be willing to invest.  20% of Hillingdon's assets is just under around £150m. Initially, it is 
proposed that investment mandates would be passive.  But passive mandates already 
have lower management fees and performance is tracked against the index.  Therefore 
any benefit on these types of mandate would be lower.  

The option to join will remain open to London Boroughs and so not committing at this 
stage will not preclude the Fund from joining at a later date.  Once the CIV is established 
and the level of commitment is known, the Fund will be in a better position to evaluate the 
merits of joining.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications contained within the report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

As the Council is not participating in the Common Investment Vehicle at this stage, the 
Borough Solicitor is not providing detailed legal comments in this report. 

The external legal advice commissioned by London Councils states that the decision as to 
whether the Council should participate in the Pensions Common Investment Vehicle Joint 
Committee is one for the Cabinet to take. However, the matter should also be reported to 
full Council and the Pensions Committee for information purposes.

Should a decision be made in the future to the effect that the Council should participate in 
the Joint Committee, full legal implications will be provided by the Borough Solicitor.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 

Page 179



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



Local Government Pension Scheme April 2014

Contact Officers Ken Chisholm, 01895 250847

Papers with this report

SUMMARY

The Local Government Pension Scheme has been revised and a new scheme will be
introduced from 1 April 2014. This report details the main changes to the scheme and 
the communications undertaken with Scheme Members to inform them of these 
changes.  In addition, a number of policies and discretionary policies have had to be 
updated as part of the scheme changes and these are listed and attached for reference.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the contents of the report be noted

INFORMATION

From 1 April 2014 the LGPS will become a Career Average Revalued Earnings 
(CARE) Scheme. Members of the scheme will earn a pension based on their 
earnings each year. The annual pension earned is added to the individual's pension 
account, which increases each year in line with the cost of living. 

Retirement Age - Scheme members will have the option of retiring and receiving 
immediate payment of reduced benefits from age 55, previously the earliest an 
employee could retire voluntarily was age 60. However, the date an employee may 
receive their unreduced scheme benefits has also changed, and will in future be 
linked to an individual's State Retirement Age. Therefore, if the State Retirement Age 
is amended at any time in the future, the earliest date that a LGPS pension may be 
taken unreduced will move automatically in line with any change.  

Contributions - An employee's pension contribution rate is dependent on their 
annual pay. Each Employer will decide on which contribution banding to apply to 
each scheme member. The bandings indicate a lower and upper pensionable pay
limit within each band, and the relevant contribution rate is applied. The bandings will 
be increased each year in line with cost of living increases. The number of bands is 
moving from 7 to 9, with contribution rates ranging from 5.5% to 12.5%. Under the
current scheme pension contributions are paid on "Contractual Pay", but in the new 
scheme all salary payments, with the exception of expenses, will be subject to 
pension contributions. Part time scheme members will pay a contribution rate based 
on actual pay, rather than full time equivalent, which could potentially move 
employees into a lower contribution band.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 

Agenda Item 11

Page 181



50:50 Scheme - A 50:50 option is being introduced, where a scheme member can 
elect to pay contributions at 50% of the main scheme rate, for a 50% accrual of 
benefits. Any scheme member who elects for the 50:50 scheme will remain eligible 
for full benefits in the event of death or retirement on the grounds of permanent ill 
health.

Vesting Period - the length of service required to qualify for a pension has been 
increased from the current period of 3 months to 2 years. 

Councillor members - With effect from 1 April 2014 Councillors will no longer be 
eligible to join the LGPS.  Those Councillors who are already Members of the 
scheme will be able to remain as scheme members until the end of their current term 
of office.  For London Boroughs that date will be 22 May 2014.  Protections have 
been put in place to retain the normal pension age for Councillor Members at age 65.  
Those Councillor Members aged 65 or over at 23 May will be entitled to claim 
immediate payment of their benefits without reduction.  All other members will be 
awarded a deferred benefit which will be payable without reduction from the age of 
65.  However, once a member attains the age of 60 the member may elect to receive 
their benefits, but these will be subject to an actuarial reduction based on the period 
between his current age and age 65.

The other main features of the scheme have remained unchanged, such as ill health 
enhancements and the payment of unreduced benefits from age 55 if an employee's 
service is terminated due to Redundancy of Business Efficiency. No changes have 
been made regarding payments due for death in service, or payments to Spouses or 
Dependants.

COMMUNICATING CHANGES

An intensive programme of employee communications has been undertaken over the 
last few weeks to educate members on the changes to pension arrangements.  
Information has been circulated via all staff emails, articles in Team Hillingdon and 
updates posted on Horizon. In addition 12 bitesize pensions seminars were held in 
the Civic Centre, during the lunch period and 2 early evening sessions. Sessions 
have also been held at Uxbridge College, London Housing Consortiums Offices and 
Harlington Road Depot. Specific sessions were held for HR Staff and for Finance
Managers. Further presentations are being planned to ensure that all scheme 
members have to opportunity to attend a presentation. 

Communication will continue to ensure that details of the changes reach as many 
employees as possible.  A separate communication has been sent to Elected 
Members.

POLICIES

A number of policies and discretionary policies relating to the scheme have been 
updated and these are attached as appendices to this report for information:

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 182



The Communications Policy 
Power of Authority to Pay Additional Pension Contributions to an Active 
Member's Pension Account
Flexible Retirement
Power to Award Additional Pension
Power to waive Actuarial Reduction

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 183



Appendix A
Communication Policy Statement 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME REGULATIONS 2013 

Issued by: Corporate Pension Section, Finance Directorate 

Under the terms of regulation 61 of the above regulations, which came into force on 
1st April 2014, the Council must publish a statement of policy concerning 
communications with members and Scheme employers.

This Communications Policy Statement concerns communications with scheme 
members, representatives of members, prospective members and Scheme 
employers.  It details:

a) the provision of information and publicity about the Scheme 
b) the format, frequency and method of distributing such information or publicity, and 
c) the promotion of the scheme to prospective members and their employing authority 

There are a number of stakeholders that have an 
interest in the affairs of the Fund and these may 
be summarised as follows:- Stakeholder 

Primary Interests 

London Borough of Hillingdon as 
Administering Authority 

Capita Employee Benefits as Scheme 
Administrators 

• administration of the scheme in  
accordance with the regulations

• cost of scheme
• stability of cost of scheme
• fiduciary duty to other stakeholders

whom it must treat equally
• investment strategy

Scheduled Employers:

Academies within the London Borough of 
Hillingdon
Uxbridge College 
London Housing Consortium 

• cost of scheme 
• stability of cost of scheme 
• investment strategy 
• production of FRS17/IAS19

Reports 

Admission Employer Bodies: 

Hillingdon & Ealing Citizens Advice 
Heathrow Travel Care 
MITIE FM
Stag Security
Genuine Dining
Greenwich Leisure

• affordability of scheme 
• stability of cost of scheme 
• investment strategy 
• production of FRS17/IAS Reports 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 184



Active Members: 

London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund 
Scheduled and Admitted bodies, who have 
elected to join the scheme

• solvency of scheme 
• ability to pay pensions at distant 
future date 

• implications of rising costs for
benefits and contributions

All literature and communications sent to 
Scheme members will be branded with the 
Capita Employee Benefit Logo

Deferred Members 
• solvency of scheme 
• ability to pay pensions at distant

future date 

Pensioners 
• ability to pay pensions now 
• security of pensions liability 

Prospective Members 
• benefits 
• solvency of scheme 

ability to pay pensions at distant
future date 

Local Taxpayers 
• rising impact on Council Tax and 

services 
• returns on scheme [as a cost 

mitigating factor] 
• funding level (i.e. unfunded

liabilities) 

Government 
• stability of cost of scheme 
• avoidance of political issues arising 
• good governance 
• consistency of administration 
• funding level (i.e. unfunded

liabilities) 

In addition there are a number of other stakeholders with whom we communicate on a regular basis, 
such as Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs, Communities & Local Government, Department of 
Works and Pensions, Pensions Advisory Service, Solicitors, actuaries and other pension providers.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 185



1. WEB SITES: www.hillingdon.gov.uk/central/pensions/index.php 
2.                    : www.mylgpspension.co.uk

The web site of the London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund is the main vehicle 
for publishing information in relation to the fund. All information relating to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme and to the Hillingdon Fund is available on the web site. 
As this site is part of Hillingdon Council’s public web site it is available to all our 
stakeholders. Hard copies of any of the documents will be made available to any 
member, prospective member or employer on request. 

The web site is split into the following sections to make it easier to find the required: 
information. 

Fund Information: 

• Annual Report and Accounts 
• Statement of Investment Principles 
• Funding Strategy Statement 
• Copies of all pension Fund Policies 
• Details of Pension Committee meetings, reports and minutes 
• Performance information of the funds investments 

Member Information: 

• Joining Information 
• Details of the Benefits available 
• Scheme booklets 
• Regulations 
• Information on relevant topics – eg increasing contributions, 
• Copies of all relevant forms 
• Some frequently asked questions 

Latest News 

• This section highlights all the latest information available about the scheme 

Communications: 

• Newsletters 
• Circulars 
• Regulation Updates 

Useful Links: 

There are links to other related web sites – for example DWP, HMRC, The Pensions 
Regulator. Capita Employee Benefits (CEB) also maintain a website providing 
general information regarding the LGPS. This website is for the use of the London 
Boroughs participation in the CEB London Framework. Work is in progress to allow 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 186



individual Scheme members access to their own pension record via this website. 
Development of this access is planned for mid 2014.

2. OTHER METHODS OF COMMUNICATION 

This section details the means by which CEB communicate directly with our key 
stakeholders and the frequency of such communications. Where information is sent 
to members it is posted to their home address. 

Scheme Employers 

• Main contact with scheme employers is through operational contact. 
• Currently, CEB write directly to all scheme employers to keep them informed 

of any changes. As the web site is developed, there will be more frequent use 
made of email and notifications of postings on the web site. 

• CEB aim to commence an annual consultative meeting with employers, both 
as an information forum and as a means of direct consultation with our 
Scheme employers. 

Active Members 

• CEB send annual benefits statements to our members following the end of the 
financial year, and plan to send these statements by August each year.

• The Pensions Fund Annual Report will be available on request. 
• Each time there is a regulations change, which affects members benefits, 

updates are made to both web sites. 
• Updates to the web site are notified via ‘Horizon’, and CEB will also inform 

Scheme employers.

Pensioner Members 

• CEB are planning on allowing pensioner members access to their pension 
records via the web site. This will also maintain a record of each monthly 
pension payment for information. This enhancement is due to be in place by 
the end of 2014. A message is contained on pensioners March payslip to 
inform them of any annual percentage increase to pensions.

• The Pensions Fund Annual Report will be available on request. 

Deferred Members

• CEB send annual benefits statements to our deferred members following the 
end of the financial year. These statements will be sent by the end of June 
each year. 

• The Pensions Fund Annual Report will be available on request. 

Prospective Members 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 187



A summarised version of the scheme and details of the available web sites are sent 
to all new members of staff along with an application form. 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 188



Appendix B

Power of  Authori ty to Pay Addit ional  
Pension Contributions to  an Act ive 
Members Pension Account

Contents

1. Scope

2. Purpose

3. Policy

Human Resources 

Authorised by: 
Effective date:  1st April 2014 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 189



1. Scope

This Policy applies to all employees of the Council. 

2. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to allow the Council as an employer to exercise its 
discretion under Regulation 16 of The Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013.

3. Policy

Under the above regulations the council must publish a statement of policy, 
which is to be applied in the exercise of the “discretionary powers”, detailed 
within those regulations. Regulation 16(2)(e) and (4)(d) of The Local 
Government Pension Scheme  Regulations 2013 allows the Council to resolve 
to pay additional pension contributions into an active members Pension 
Account. 

The authority may pay extra contributions on a regular basis or make a lump 
sum payment to increase a members pension. 

Operation of the scheme must be consistent to avoid successful challenge on 
the grounds of discrimination.

The Authority has resolved not  to consider use of this provision but instead 
continue to apply compensation payments in accordance with the Council’s 
Redundancy and Compensation Policy.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 190



A p p e n d i x  C

Flexible Ret i rement  Pol icy

Contents

1. Scope

2. Purpose

3. Policy

4. Procedure

5. Management Guidance

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 191



1. Scope

This Policy applies to all employees of the Council. 

2. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to allow the Council to exercise its discretion under 
Regulation 30 of The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 to 
enable flexible retirement in circumstances where it is advantageous for the Council.

3. Policy

Flexible retirement is where an employee aged over 55 is permitted by the 
employer to reduce their hours or grade and may elect for payment of Local 
Government Pension Scheme benefits, notwithstanding that they have not 
retired.

In agreeing flexible retirement the guiding principle should be that it will enhance 
or protect service delivery.

Regulation 30(8) allows the Council to waive any actuarial reduction applicable, 
this discretion will not be exercised due to the financial impact on the Council. 

Operation of the scheme must be consistent to avoid successful challenge on 
the grounds of discrimination.

4. Procedure

The manager must detail the business case for granting flexible retirement on the 
attached form.

This form must be approved by the Director and Head of HR.

The Pensions administrator will supply an estimate of the level of pension benefits 
payable to the employee on request. Benefits may be actuarially reduced and the 
employee must have the long-term effects of such a reduction explained to them.

5. Management Guidance

This arrangement is applicable where an employee has stated or is considering 
their intention to retire.

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 192



It is intended that this policy will result in savings, be cost neutral or cost 
effective. It should not result in increased costs to the Council. 

The policy is intended to protect or enhance service delivery. Whilst it is difficult 
to provide an exhaustive list of examples, three are set out below:

I. Loss of scarce skills. Where an employee in a skill shortage area decides 
to resign and would be difficult to replace, but was prepared to draw their 
pension and work part time. If this would protect or enhance service 
delivery, then flexible retirement could be agreed.

II. To complete a piece of project work and it is cheaper or more cost effective 
to have it done by the retiree on reduced hours. 

III. The retiree could continue on a reduced hours basis to provide cover whilst 
recruitment is in progress, where this would be more cost effective than 
using interim arrangements. 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 193



A p p e n d i x  D

P ow er  o f  Au t h o r i t y  t o  Aw ar d  Ad d i t i on a l  Pen s i on

1. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to allow the Council to exercise its discretion under 
Regulation 31 of The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

2. Policy

Under the above regulations the council must publish a statement of policy, 
which is to be applied in the exercise of the “discretionary powers”, detailed 
within those regulations. Regulation 31 of The Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 2013 allows the Council to resolve to award an increase to 
a members' annual pension. 

Any increase to a members' pension will only be considered in exceptional 
cases, where the employee has demonstrated an outstanding contribution to 
the Council’s plans.

The member is eligible to retire at no cost to the Council.

Cases will only be considered where the employee has completed at least 15 
years service with the London Borough of Hillingdon.

The maximum increase to a members' pension is £6,500 (as at 1 April 2014, 
this figure will increase each year from April 2015 in line with the Consumer 
Prices Index (CPI)).

Operation of the scheme must be consistent to avoid successful challenge on 
the grounds of discrimination.

Only cases submitted by both the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council will 
be considered. 

Human Resources 

Authorised by: Chief Executive
Effective date:  1st April 2014 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 194



PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 195



Appendix E

Power of  Authori ty to Waive Any Actuarial  
Reduct ion for  Employees Leaving Before 
Age 60,  Under the "Rule of  85"

Contents

1. Scope

2. Purpose

3. Policy

Human Resources 

Authorised by: Chief Executive
Effective date:  1st April 2014

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 196



1. Scope

This Policy applies to all employees of the Council. 

2. Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to allow the Council as an employer to exercise its 
discretion under The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions 
and Savings) Regulations 2014.

3. Policy

Under the above regulations the council must publish a statement of policy, 
which is to be applied in the exercise of the “discretionary powers”, detailed 
within those regulations. The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional 
Provisions and Savings) Regulations 2014 allows the Council to resolve to 
waive any actuarial reduction applicable to a members benefits coming in to 
payment as a result of their voluntary retirement before age 65, and satisfying 
the "Rule of 85". 

The authority may waive any actuarial reduction, and  as a result pay the strain 
cost associated with waiving the reduction in to the pension fund. 

Operation of the scheme must be consistent to avoid successful challenge on 
the grounds of discrimination.

The Authority has resolved not to consider use of this provision. 

PART I - MEMBERS, PRESS & PUBLIC

PENSIONS COMMITTEE –26 MARCH 2014 
Page 197



Page 198

This page is intentionally left blank



REVISED STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT PRINCIPLES

Contact Officers Tunde Adekoya, 01895 556350

Papers with this report

SUMMARY

As a result of continuing asset allocation review by the fund, the Pension Fund Committee 
ratified the Investment Sub Committee suggestion to invest approximately 2% of the fund's 
assets is US Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIPS) as part of the Tactical Asset 
Allocation strategy.

In addition, it was agreed that the investment limits in partnerships would be increased 
from 5% to 15% of fund assets to accommodate increased investments in partnerships 
(Private Equity, M&G and Macquarie) for an initial period of one year.

These have necessitated amendments to the Statement of Investment Principles as 
required by the LGPS Regulations (Revised) 2009. In addition, following the withdrawal of 
membership from LAPFF, sections of the SoIP have been updated.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Committee agree under Regulations 12 (5) and 14 (1) of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investments Funds) Regulations 2009:

1. To approve the Revised Statement of Investment Principles (March 2014)
reflecting changes in the funds asset allocation and Investment mix and 
extend period of increase percentage (15%) of all partnership investments by 
five years till December 2018, as attached.

Information

1. Based on the recommendation of the fund's independent investment advisor, Scott 
Jameison, Committee ratified an allocation of 2% of fund's assets to investments in 
US TIPS in June 2013.

2. The tactical allocation was executed in June 2013 by UBS Global Asset 
Management for the fund, free of charge in accordance with a standing agreement 
between both parties on investments in futures.

3. Due to increased drawdown of commitments to investments in both M&G funds, 
partnership investments as a percentage of the fund's assets have increased to 
about 10% and in order operate within the guidelines of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investments Funds) Regulations 2009, there is 
a need to further extend the period of increased limits (15%) in these type of 
investments for another five years. By which time hopefully, increased return of 
capital by Private Equity managers will ensure the initial permissible limits (5% of 
fund assets) will suffice.

            

Agenda Item 12

Page 199



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are explained within the report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications arising directly from the report

Page 200



Statement of Investment Principles
(Revised March 2014)

INTRODUCTION

The London Borough of Hillingdon (the Council) is the administering authority of the 
London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund (the Fund). The Fund operates under 
the national Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), which was established by 
statute to provide death and retirement benefits for all eligible employees. This 
Statement of Investment Principles applies to the Fund.

In preparing the Statement of Investment Principles, the Council has consulted its 
professional advisers and representatives of the members of the Fund and has 
received written advice from the Fund Actuary and the Investment Practice of 
Hymans Robertson LLP.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulation 2009 sets out the powers and duties of the administrating authority (the 
authority) to invest Fund monies.  The authority is required to invest any monies 
which are not required immediately to pay pensions and any other benefits and, in 
so doing, to take account of the need for a suitably diversified portfolio of 
investments and the advice of persons properly qualified on investment matters.

The CIPFA Pension Panel’s guidance “Principles for Investment Decision Making in 
the Local Government Pension Scheme in the United Kingdom” which was issued 
in 2002 brought together ten principles with practical comment on their application 
to funds in England, Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland. In 2008, following 
extensive consultation, the ten original principles which were issued by the 
government for application to pension funds, corporate and public sector were 
updated and consolidated into six new principles. 

The Investment Governance Group, with members drawn from the Pensions 
Regulator, the Department for Communities and Local Government, the CIPFA 
Pension Panel and LGPS interests, examined these six principles and with the 
agreement of the Pensions Regulator made changes to the wording to reflect the 
particular circumstances of the LGPS. The revised principles and guidance 
reflecting the changes in wording was released at the end of 2009 and this 
Statement complies with the disclosure of the revised principles.

This Statement of Investment Principles outlines the broad rules governing the 
investment policy of the Pension Fund. Attached, at Appendix A, are the six 
headline principles of investment decision making and disclosure and the extent to 
which the London Borough of Hillingdon complies with the principles.

The Council has delegated its responsibilities in relation to investment policy to the 
Pensions Committee.  

Management of the investments is carried out by fund managers appointed by the 
Pensions Committee. Fund Managers work within the policies agreed by the 
Pensions Committee.   

Page 201



The Council’s investment powers are set out in Regulations made by the 
Department of Communities and Local Government, applicable to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme.  This Statement is consistent with these powers.

The investment managers may only delegate their duties to a third party in 
accordance with the terms of their client agreement and subject to providing 
appropriate safeguards to the Council.

INVESTMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

The structure of investment responsibilities and decision making is listed below and follows 
best practice adopted by other Local Authorities in relation to their Pension Schemes.

The Pensions Committee has responsibility for:
Appointing the investment manager(s) and any external consultants felt to be 
necessary,
Appointing the custodian,
Reviewing on a regular basis (quarterly) the investment managers’ performance 
against established benchmarks, and satisfying themselves as to the managers’ 
expertise and the quality of their internal systems and controls,
Ensuring that investments are sufficiently diversified, are not over concentrated in 
any one type of investment, and that the Fund invests in suitable types of 
investments,
Approving the Statement of Investment Principles, and
Monitoring compliance with the Statement and reviewing its contents from time to 
time.

The Investment Sub Committee has responsibility for:
Monitoring financial risks, including all investment risks relative to liabilities, within 
the Pension Committee’s risk framework,
Keeping asset allocation under review within range guidelines set by the Pension 
Committee,
Considering the framework for the allocation of new money among managers and 
similarly, in the event that assets need to be realised,
Formally reviewing the mandates of the managers, and their adherence to their 
expected investment process and style,
Considering the need for any changes to the investment managers’ mandates or 
manager arrangements,
Evaluating the credentials of potential managers and make recommendations to the 
Pension Committee in respect of any change of managers.
Monitoring the investment advice from their investment consultant and investment 
adviser at least annually,
Maintaining the Funds Statement of Investment Principles.

The Chief Finance Officer has responsibility for:
Preparation of the Statement of Investment Principles to be approved by the 
Pensions Committee,
Assessing the needs for proper advice and recommending to the Committee when 
such advice is necessary from an external adviser,
Deciding on whether internal or external investment management should be used 
for day to day decisions on investment transactions,

Page 202



Ensuring compliance with the Statement of Investment Principles and bringing 
breaches thereof to the attention of the Pensions Committee, and
Ensuring that the Statement of Investment Principles is regularly reviewed and 
updated in accordance with the Regulations.

The Investment Consultants are responsible for:
Assisting the Pensions Committee and the Chief Finance Officer in their regular 
monitoring of the investment managers' performance, 
Assisting the Pensions Committee and the Chief Finance Officer in the setting of 
investment strategy
Assisting the Pensions Committee and the Chief Finance Officer in the selection 
and appointment of investment managers and custodians, and
Assisting the Pensions Committee and the Chief Finance Officer in the preparation 
and review of this document

The Actuary is responsible for:
Assisting the Pensions Committee in the preparation and review of this document, 
and
Providing advice as to the maturity of the Fund and its funding level in order to aid 
the Pensions Committee in balancing the short-term and long-term objectives of the 
pension Fund.

The Investment Managers are responsible for:
The investment of the Fund’s assets in compliance with prevailing legislation, the 
constraints imposed by this document and the detailed Investment Management 
Agreement,
Tactical asset allocation around the strategic benchmark, 
Security selection within asset classes,
Preparation of quarterly reports including a review of investment performance,
Attending meetings of the Pensions Committee as requested,
Assisting the Pensions Committee and the Chief Finance Officer in the preparation 
and review of this Statement, and
Voting shares in accordance with the Council’s policy except where the Council has 
made other arrangements.                                         

The Custodian is responsible for:
Its own compliance with prevailing legislation,
Providing the authority with quarterly valuations of the Fund’s assets and details of 
all transactions during the quarter 
Collection of income, tax reclaims, exercising corporate administration and cash 
management.
Providing a Securities Lending Service and complying with the limitation that no 
more than 25% of the fund is to be on loan.

FUND LIABILITIES

Scheme Benefits 

The LGPS is a defined benefit scheme, which provides benefits related to final salary for 
members. Each member’s pension is specified in terms of a formula based on salary and 

Page 203



service and is unaffected by the investment return achieved on the Fund’s assets. Full 
details of the benefits are set out in the LGPS regulations. 

Financing benefits

All active members are required to make pension contributions based on the percentage of 
their pensionable pay as defined in the LGPS regulations. 

The London Borough of Hillingdon is responsible for meeting the balance of costs 
necessary to finance the benefits payable from the Fund by applying employer contribution 
rates, determined from time to time by the Fund’s actuary. 

Actuarial valuation 

The Fund is valued by the actuary every three years in accordance with the LGPS 
regulations and monitored each year in consultation with employers and the actuary.  
Formal inter-valuation monitoring has also been commissioned.

INVESTMENTS

Approach

The investment approach is to appoint expert fund managers with clear 
performance benchmarks and place maximum accountability for performance 
against those benchmarks with the investment manager. 
Overall, the strategic benchmark is intended to achieve a return such that the Fund 
can, without excessive risk, meet its obligations without excessive levels of 
employers’ contributions.
Performance is monitored quarterly and a formal review to confirm (or otherwise) 
the continued appointment of existing managers is undertaken annually.
The investment strategy is reviewed annually, with a major review taking place 
following the triennial actuarial valuation. 

Investment managers and advisers

The investment managers currently employed by the Council to manage the assets of the 
Fund are, Adams Street Partners, Barings Asset Management, JP Morgan Asset 
Management, Kempen International Investments, LGT Capital Partners, M&G 
Investments, Macquarie Infrastructure & Real Assets Europe, Marathon Asset 
Management, Newton Asset Management, Ruffer LLP, State Street Global Advisors and 
UBS Global Asset Management. Each manager is responsible for the day-to-day 
management of a portfolio of investments for the Fund.                                                           

Custodian services for the Fund’s assets are provided by Northern Trust. 

The investment managers are authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 
2000 to undertake investment business.

Hymans Robertson LLP acts as the Fund’s Actuary and Investment Consultant and gives 
written advice on appropriate investment strategies. Scott Jamieson acts as an 

Page 204



independent advisor to the pension fund and provides advice and challenge on 
appropriate investment strategies.

Client agreements have been made with each of the above investment managers and 
advisers.  The Chief Finance Officer has been delegated the authority to agree 
amendments to these agreements.

The Pension Committee regularly monitors the performance of the investment managers 
and its advisers, on behalf of the Council.  

Types of investments to be held and the balance between these investments

Based on expert advice and taking into account the Fund’s liabilities, the Pension 
Committee has determined a benchmark mix of assets considered suitable for the Fund. 
The asset mix currently includes equities (public and private), bonds (government,
corporate and index-linked), property, cash and absolute return and fund of hedge fund 
strategies. Investments are made in the UK, the major overseas markets and in emerging 
markets.  The fund managers have discretion to vary the allocation of investments 
between markets on a tactical basis. Appendix D shows the benchmarks for the fund 
managers and the permitted ranges in which the assets can fluctuate, as at the date of this 
document.

A review is carried out after each actuarial revaluation and used to consider the suitability 
of the existing investment strategy.  

The suitability of investments

The managers may invest in equities and bonds, including collective vehicles, property 
and cash, consistent with their mandates, without consultation with the Council.  Managers 
invest in accordance with Schedule 1 ‘Limits on Investments’ of the LGPS (Management 
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 as amended.  The current Limits for the 
London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund are set out at Appendix B.

Other types of investment may be approved by the Committee after taking professional 
advice.

The expected return on investments

Investment managers are given target performance standards and their actual 
performance is measured against these.  These targets (gross of fees) are:

Adams Street Partners - Outperform benchmark
Barings Asset Management - 4% p.a. in excess of benchmark
JP Morgan Asset Management - Outperform benchmark
Kempen International Investments - 2 – 4.00% p.a. in excess of benchmark
LGT Capital Partners - Outperform benchmark
M&G Investments - 5.00% p.a. in excess of benchmark
Marathon Asset Management - Outperform benchmark
Macquarie Infrastructure - Outperform internal rate of return hurdle
Newton Asset Management - 2% p.a. in excess of benchmark
Ruffer LLP - Outperform benchmark 
State Street Global Advisors - Achieve Benchmark
UBS Asset Management - 2.00% p.a. in excess of benchmark

Page 205



UBS Asset Management - Property - 1.00% p.a. in excess of benchmark

Overall, the targets are intended to achieve above average performance, relative to 
earnings and inflation, without excessive risk, so that the Fund can meet its obligations 
without excessive levels of employer’s contribution.

Performance is monitored quarterly and a formal review to confirm (or otherwise) the 
continued appointment of existing managers is undertaken annually.

Fee Structures 
Adams Street Partners - Fee based on subscribed capital + performance 
fee
Barings Asset Management - Fixed Fee based on portfolio value
JP Morgan Asset Management - Fixed fee based on portfolio value
Kempen International Investments - Fixed fee based on portfolio value
LGT Capital Partners - Fee based on subscribed capital + performance 
fee
M&G Investments - Fixed fee based on drawn capital
Marathon Asset Management - Fee based on performance 
Macquarie Infrastructure - Fee based on committed capital + performance 

fee
Newton Asset Management - Fixed fee based on portfolio value                  
Ruffer LLP - Fixed flat fee based on portfolio value
State Street Global Advisors - Fixed flat fee based on portfolio value.
UBS Asset Management - Tiered fee based portfolio value.  
UBS Asset Management - Property - Fixed fee based on portfolio value.
Hymans Robertson LLP - Price per piece  
Scott Jamieson - Fixed fee

In each case best value is the basis for selection of fee structures.

Schedule 1 Limits on Investments

At their meeting on 12 December 2012, the Committee agreed to an increase in the limit 
on investments in contributions to any single partnership from 2% to 5%, an increase in 
the limit on investments in contributions to all partnerships from 5% to 15% and an 
increase in the limit on investments in any single insurance contract from 25% to 35%.
Before taking this decision, the Committee took proper advice from its investment adviser, 
Hymans Robertson LLP, in relation to the impact of the increase on overall risk within the 
Fund and how the Committee monitors and manages that risk. The decision was taken to 
allow for diversification into private equity and infrastructure; both categories use
partnerships and single insurance contracts are utilised for safekeeping of transitioned 
assets from disengaged managers. The decision will apply for a period of 1 year from the 
date of the meeting (12 December 2012), at which point it will be re-considered. This 
decision complies with The Local Government Pensions Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009.

Risk and diversification of investments

It is the Council’s policy to invest the assets of the Fund so as to spread the risk on 
investments.

Page 206



The diversification of asset types is intended to ensure a reasonable balance between 
different categories of investments to reduce risk to an acceptable level.  

Each manager is expected to maintain a diversified portfolio within each asset class and is 
permitted to use collective investment vehicles as a means of providing diversification in 
particular markets.  

Where managers wish to use futures, specific arrangements are agreed to limit the Fund’s 
exposure to risk.

The management of Fund assets is spread over more than one manager, with different 
performance targets, as a further measure to reduce overall risk.

The key risks facing the Pension Fund are reported to the Pension Committee on a 
quarterly basis where they are monitored and reviewed.

The realisation of investments

The majority of stocks held by the Fund’s Investment Managers are quoted on major stock 
markets and may be realised quickly if required.  Property and private equity investments, 
which are relatively illiquid, currently make up a modest proportion of the Fund’s assets.  In 
general, the investment managers have discretion as to the timing of realisations.  If it 
becomes necessary for investments to be sold to fund the payment of benefits, the 
Pension Committee and the manager(s) will discuss the timing of realisations.

Pension Fund Treasury Management Policy

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 2009 
requires the pension fund to hold its own separate bank account. The use of a separate 
pension fund bank account requires the introduction of a dedicated treasury management 
activity solely for the pension fund. 

The prime objective of the pension fund treasury management activity is the security of the 
principal sums invested. As such it will take a prudent approach towards the organisations 
employed as the banker and deposit taker.

For the Banker, the minimum criteria will be the lowest equivalent short term and long term 
ratings assigned by Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s (where assigned). 
Long term minimum: A+ (Fitch); A1 (Moody’s); A+ (S&P) 
Short term minimum: F1 (Fitch); P-1 (Moody’s); A-1 (S&P)
The deposit taker will be limited to AAA-rated money market fund.
The Pension Fund will also take into account information on corporate developments of 
and market sentiment towards these organisations.

The pension fund will ensure it has adequate, though not excessive, cash resources to 
enable it at all times to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the 
achievement of its objectives.

The pension fund may borrow by way of temporary loan or otherwise any sums which it 
may require for the purpose of paying benefits due under the scheme, or to meet 
investment commitments arising from the implementation of a decision by it to change the 

Page 207



balance between different types of investment. The pension fund may only borrow money 
for these circumstances if, at the time of borrowing, the pension fund reasonably believes 
that the sum borrowed and interest charged in respect of such sum can be repaid out of its 
pension fund within 90 days of the date of the borrowing.

The pension fund will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may expose it 
to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in its treasury 
management dealings.  Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems and procedures, and 
will maintain effective contingency management arrangements, to these ends.

In terms of treasury management the Pension Fund will operate separately from the 
Council and as such any transactions carried out by or on behalf of either party will be 
settled by cash transfer in a timely manner. The financial accounting is also separated, 
monitored and reconciled, to ensure any balances are identified and accounted for in the 
proper manner.

POLICY ON SOCIALLY RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

The Council supports the principle of socially responsible investment, within the 
requirements of the law and the need to give the highest priority to financial return. The 
investment managers are expected to have regard to the impact of corporate decisions on 
the value of company shares in making their investment decisions.  The Council will 
consider supporting actions designed to promote best practice by companies where 
necessary and appropriate. The investment managers’ discretion as to which investments 
to make will not normally be overridden by the Council, except on the basis of written 
information from other advisers.   

The Pensions Committee has discussed socially responsible investment in the context of 
investment strategy. It has decided that the principle of the Fund’s investment policy is to 
obtain the best possible return using the full range of investments authorised under the 
Local Government Pension Scheme regulations.

The Council supports the Stewardship Code issued by the Financial Reporting Council, 
however in practice the fund’s policy is to apply the code through its fund managers.

In addition to the Stewardship Code the Council also supports the UK Environmental 
Investor Code and the CERES Principles.

EXERCISE OF RIGHTS ATTACHING TO INVESTMENT

It is the Council’s policy to be an active shareholder.  Where the pension Fund has 
securities held in a portfolio which have associated with them a right to vote on resolutions, 
the Pension Committee has delegated the exercise of these rights to the Fund Managers 
in accordance with the authority’s corporate governance policy.  The Council’s policy is 
that that all proxies are to be voted where practically possible.

The Council’s policy on corporate governance is that it normally expects the Fund 
Managers and companies to comply with the Combined Code published by the London 
Stock Exchange in June 1998 following the recommendations of the Hampel Committee.  
The Code integrated the earlier Cadbury and Greenbury Codes together with some 
additional recommendations.  

Page 208



Fund Managers’ right to vote on behalf of the Fund are subject to conforming with the 
overall principles set out in this Statement and with the prevailing regulations.

From time to time, the Pension Committee may feel strongly concerning certain policies 
and at this time would advise the managers how to execute their votes.  Attached at 
Appendix C are the Pension Committee’s broad guidelines on exercising the Council’s 
voting rights.

STOCK LENDING

The Stock Lending programme is managed by the Fund’s custodian Northern Trust. They 
comply with the limitation that no more than 25% of the fund is to be on loan.

All loans are fully collateralised with Government obligations, Local Authority Bonds or Bills, 
letters of credit, certificates of deposit or equities issues.

Information regarding Stock Lending activity is reported to Pensions Committee on a 
quarterly basis.

COMPLIANCE

The London Borough of Hillingdon as the administering authority of the London Borough of 
Hillingdon Pension Fund complies with the guidance given by the Secretary of State.

The investment managers and all other investment advisers are requested to exercise 
their investment powers in support of the principles set out in this Statement and in 
accordance with the Regulations.

The Pension Committee reviews the performance of the investment managers on a 
quarterly basis.  Northern Trust provides an independent monitoring service. Scott 
Jamieson meets with Fund Managers on a quarterly basis and make a report on those 
meetings to Committee.  Professional advice is taken as appropriate and an annual review 
is carried out. This Statement of Investment Principles is reviewed by the Pensions 
Committee at least annually and revised when necessary.

Page 209



APPENDIX A

CIPFA Principles for Investment Decision Making and Disclosure

The table below identifies the basis and status of Compliance of the Pension Fund with the 
CIPFA Principles of Investment Decision Making and Disclosure.

Principle 1 
Effective 
Decision 
Making

Administering Authorities should 
ensure that:

decisions are taken by 
persons or organisations with 
the skills, knowledge, advice 
and resources necessary to 
make them effectively and 
monitor their implication and

those persons or 
organisations have sufficient 
expertise to be able to 
evaluate and challenge the 
advice they receive, and 
manage conflicts of interest. 

Compliant

All investment decisions are taken 
within a clear and documented 
structure by the Pension Committee, 
which is responsible for the 
Management of the Council’s 
Pension Fund. Committee are 
provided with bespoke training when 
specific decisions are required and 
have committed to regular training. 

The officer support team has 
sufficient experience to support 
Committee in making decision 
making responsibilities. It 
undertakes regular training as part of 
a continued personal development 
plan.

There is an Investment Sub Group 
made up of senior officers, 
committee members, the scheme 
adviser and an independent Chair 
which acts as a specialist investment 
and asset allocation advisory body.

An independent adviser sits on the 
Pension Committee to add additional 
challenge to the advice received.

Principle 2
Clear 
objectives

An overall investment objective(s) 
should be set out for the fund that 
takes accounts of the scheme’s 
liabilities, the potential impact on 
local taxpayers, the strength of the 
covenant for non-local authority 
employers, and the attitude to risk of 
both the administering authority and 
scheme employers and these should 
be clearly communicated to advisors 
and investment managers. 

Compliant

The investment objectives and 
attitudes to risk are set out in the 
Statement of Investment Principles 
and Funding Strategy Statement. 

Overall fund objects are reviewed 
properly as part on the ongoing 
monitoring of the fund.

Page 210



Principle 3
Risk and 
liabilities

In setting and reviewing their 
strategy, administering authorities 
should take account of the form and 
structure of liabilities.

These include the implication for 
local taxpayers, the strength of the 
covenant for participating 
employers, the risk of their default 
and longevity risk.

Compliant

The review of the Funding Strategy 
takes into account relevant issues 
and implications.

Principle 4
Performance 
assessment

Arrangements should be in place for 
the formal measurement of 
performance of the investments, 
investment managers and advisers.

Administering authorities should also 
periodically make a formal 
assessment of their own 
effectiveness as a decision making 
body and report on this to scheme 
members. 

Partly Compliant

Both the performance of the fund 
and the performance of the fund 
managers are monitored on a 
regular basis. Committee 
procedures, decision making and 
deferral of decisions are recorded in 
the committee papers.  

Assessment of the authority’s own 
effectiveness and that of the 
advisers is yet to be implemented.

Principle 5
Responsible 
ownership

Administering authorities should:

adopt, or ensure their 
investment managers adopt, 
the Institutional Shareholders’ 
Committee Statement of 
Principles on the 
responsibilities of 
shareholders and agents

include a statement of their 
policy on responsible 
ownership in the statement of 
investment principles

report periodically to scheme 
members on the discharge of 
such responsibilities.    

Partially Compliant

The Council includes a policy on 
Socially Responsible Investment 
within the Statement of Investment 
Principles.

Fund manager engagement and 
Local Authority Pension Fund Forum 
activities are reported and reviewed 
on a quarterly basis.  

Principle 6
Transparency 
and reporting

Administering authorities should:

act in a transparent manner, 
communicating with 
shareholders on issues 
relating to their management 
of investment, its governance 
and risks, including 
performance against stated 

Partially Compliant

The Statement of Investment 
Principles and Funding Strategy 
Statement are published on the 
Council’s website and are updated 
as required.  

Page 211



objectives
provide regular 
communication to scheme 
members in the form they 
consider most appropriate. 

The Pension Annual Report provides 
details of manager and fund 
monitoring and is available on the 
Council website. Members are 
directed to the website but hard copy 
reports are available on request.  

The minutes and decisions taken at 
Pension Committee meetings are 
available on the Council website.  

Page 212



APPENDIX B
Limits on Investments

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2009 as amended, Schedule 1, set out the legal requirements which apply to 
the investments of the Fund. The statutory regulations specify the following restrictions on 
investments:

Investment Limit
Any single sub-underwriting contract 1%
All contributions to any single partnership 5%
All contributions to partnerships. 15%
The sum of:

All loans (except Government Loan)
Any deposits with any local authority; or any body with power to issue a precept or 
requisition to a local authority, or to the expenses of which a local authority can be 
required to contribute, which is an exempt person (within the meaning of the 2000 Act) 
in respect of accepting deposits as a result of an order made under section 38(1) of that 
Act.

10%

All investments in unlisted securities of companies 10%
Any single holding (but see paragraphs 1 and 2 below). 10%
All deposits with any single bank, institution or person (other than the National Savings 
Bank). 10%

All sub-underwriting contracts. 15%
All investments in units or shares of the investments subject to the trusts of unit trust 
scheme managed by any one body (but see paragraph 2 below 25%

All investments in open-ended investment companies where the collective investment 
schemes constituted by the companies are managed by one body. 25%

All investments in unit or other shares of the investments subject to the trusts of unit 
trust schemes and all investments in open-ended investment companies where the unit 
trust schemes and the collective investment schemes constituted by those companies 
are managed by any one body (but see paragraph 2 below).

25%

Any single insurance contract. 35%
All securities transferred (or agreed to be transferred) by the authority under stock 
lending arrangements. 25%

Restrictions identified in the above table does not apply if:

the investment is made by an investment manager appointed under regulation 8; and

the single holding is in units or other shares of the investments subject to the trusts of any 
one unit trust scheme.

Restrictions identified in the above table do not apply to:

National Savings Certificates;

fixed-interest securities issued by Her Majesty’s Government in the United Kingdom, the 
Government of Northern Ireland or the Government of the Isle of Man and registered in 
the United Kingdom or the Isle of Man or Treasury Bills;

any securities the payment of interest on which is guaranteed by Her Majesty’s Government 
in the United Kingdom or the Government of Northern Ireland; or

a deposit with a relevant institution.

Page 213



An Investment Management Agreement is in place with each Fund Manager which 
clearly defines the investment guidelines for the portfolio they manage.

If individual managers invest outside the laid down investment guidelines then they will 
consult with the Chief Finance Officer for direction and report to the Pension 
Committee at the next available opportunity.

Page 214



APPENDIX C
Voting Guidelines

The main focus is to promote maximum long-term shareholder value and protect the 
interest of shareholders.  

Recommendations For / Against Voting Guidance
General Vote with Fund managers

Take into account the principles derived from 
the Combined Code and related UK initiatives

Environmental Concerns
The UK Environmental 
Investor Code

Encourage and support companies that 
demonstrate a positive environmental 
response.  
Commitment to environmental excellence, 
monitor their impacts, improvements in their 
performance, comply with all legislation, 
regular reports of progress on environmental
standards

The CERES Principles Adopt the CERES principles, corporations 
have a responsibility for the environment, 
they are stewards, mustn’t compromise the 
ability of future generations to sustain 
themselves.

Human Rights Ensure high standards of employment and 
industrial relations in all companies

SRI Consider socially responsible and 
governance issues but abide by legal rules 
which may limit investment choice on purely 
socially responsible and governance grounds, 
consideration to financial interest of fund 
members comes first. 

The Report and Accounts For Legal regulatory requirements are met
Against Material inadequacies in the report and 

accounts
Directors Election For Regular re-election, full autobiographical 

information
Against Insufficient information, no regular re-election, 

appointment combining chairman and chief 
executive

Non-Executive directors For Independent of management, exercise free 
independent judgement

Against Lack of independence, automatic 
reappointment

Employment Contracts For Contract period no more than 2 years 
Against Contract over 2 years

Directors Remuneration and 
employee share schemes

For Remuneration must be visible, share 
schemes open to all staff, schemes costs and 
value are quantified by the company, 

Against Remuneration above the market rate, poor 
performance rewards, Shares schemes only 
open to directors and option schemes that 
are not quantified.

Appointment of Auditors For Protect independence of auditors and ensure 
non-audit work is less than 25%of total fees.  
Appointment of auditors be for at least 5 
years.

Page 215



Page 216



APPENDIX D

Investment Structure – Performance Benchmark, Permitted Ranges and 
Comparative Indices

ADAMS STREET PARTNERS
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Private Equity 100 n/a MSCI World
Total 100

Barings ASSET MANAGEMENT
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Dynamic Asset 
Allocation

100 100 LIBOR 3 month + 4%

Total 100

JP MORGAN ASSET MANAGEMENT
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Fixed Interest 100 100 LIBOR 3 month + 3%

Total 100

Kempen International Investments
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Global High 
Dividend Income

100 n/a MSCI World +2-4%

Total 100

LGT CAPITAL PARTNERS
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Private Equity 100 n/a MSCI World
Total 100

M&G INVESTMENTS
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Private Placement 100 n/a LIBOR 3 month +4%
Total 100

Page 217



MACQUARIE INFRASTRUCTURE & REAL ASSETS EUROPE
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Infrastructure 100 n/a Internal rate of return hurdle
Total 100

MARATHON ASSET MANAGEMENT
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Global Equities 100 n/a MSCI World 
Total 100

Newton Asset Management
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Global Higher 
Income

100 n/a FTSE World Index +2%

Total 100

RUFFER LLP
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Absolute Return 100 n/a LIBOR 3 month
Total 100

STATE STREET GLOBAL ADVISORS
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

UK Equity Index 
sub-Fund

44

R
eb

al
an

ce
d

 Q
u

ar
te

rl
y 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

+/
-

10
%

 o
f 

B
en

ch
m

ar
k

FTSE All Share
(or similar)

North America 
Equity Index sub-
fund

11 FTSE World North America
(or similar)

Europe ex UK Equity 
Index sub-fund

11 FTSE World Europe ex UK 
(or similar)

Asia Pacific Equity 
Index sub-fund

11 FTSE Pacific Basin (excl Japan)
(or similar)

Emerging Markets 
Equity Index fund

3 FTSE All-World All Emerging
(or similar)

UK Conventional 
Gilts All Stocks fund

1.5 FTA British Govt Conventional Gilts 
All Stocks (or similar)

Index-Linked Gilts 
All-Stocks Index 
fund

10 FTA British Govt Index Linked Gilts 
All Stocks (or similar)

Sterling Corporate 
Bond All Stocks fund

8.5 Barclays Capital Sterling Aggregate 
(or similar) 

Page 218



Total 100

STATE STREET GLOBAL ADVISORS - Account 2
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Sterling Corporate 
Bond All Stocks 
Index Fund

50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
+/

-
10

%
 o

f 
B

en
ch

m
ar

k Barclays Capital Sterling Aggregate 
(or similar)

Sterling Liquidity 
sub-Fund

50

Total 100

UBS GLOBAL ASSET MANAGEMENT – EQUITIES 
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

UK Equities 100 40 - 100 FTSE All Share
Cash 0 0 – 10
Total 100

UBS GLOBAL ASSET MANAGEMENT - PROPERTY
Asset Class Benchmark

%
Ranges % Index

Property 100 +/- 25% IPD Index
Cash 0 0 - 10 LIBOR 7 Day
Total 100

UBS TACTICAL ASSET ALLOCATION - US TREASURY INFLATION PROTECTED  
SECURITIES (TIPS)

Asset Class Benchmark
%

Ranges % Index

TIPS 100 100 BARCLAYS CAPITAL US GOVT 
INFLATION-LINKED BOND INDEX

Cash 0 0 - 10 LIBOR 7 Day
Total 100

APPENDIX E

Stewardship Code 

Page 219



Principle Response
Principle 1 –
Institutional investors 
should publicly disclose
their policy on how they 
will discharge their 
stewardship 
responsibilities.

The London Borough of Hillingdon Pension Fund takes its 
responsibilities as a shareholder seriously. It seeks to adhere to 
the Stewardship Code, and encourages its appointed asset
managers to do so too. Stewardship is seen as part of the 
responsibilities of share ownership, and therefore an integral 
part of the investment strategy. 

In practice the fund’s policy is to apply the Code both through its 
arrangements with its asset managers and through membership 
of NAPF.

Principle 2 - Institutional 
investors should have a 
robust policy on 
managing conflicts of 
interest in relation to 
stewardship and this 
policy should be 
publicly disclosed.

The fund encourages the asset managers it employs to have 
effective policies addressing potential conflicts of interest. 

In respect of conflicts of interest within the fund, pension 
committee members are required to make declarations of 
interest prior to committee meetings.

Principle 3 - Institutional 
investors should 
monitor their investee 
companies

Day-to-day responsibility for managing our investments is 
delegated to our appointed asset managers, and the fund 
expects them to monitor companies, intervene where necessary, 
and report back regularly on activity undertaken. Reports from 
our fund managers on voting are received and engagement 
activity is reported to committee quarterly. 

Principle 4 - Institutional 
investors should 
establish clear 
guidelines on when and 
how they will escalate
their activities as a 
method of protecting 
and enhancing 
shareholder value.

As highlighted above, responsibility for day-to-day interaction 
with companies is delegated to the fund’s asset managers, 
including the escalation of engagement when necessary. Their 
guidelines for such activities are expected to be disclosed in 
their own statement of adherence to the Stewardship Code. 

Principle 5 - Institutional 
investors should be 
willing to act collectively 
with other investors 
where appropriate.

The fund seeks to work collaboratively with other institutional 
shareholders in order to maximise the influence that it can have 
on individual companies. 

Principle 6 - Institutional 
investors should have a 
clear policy on voting 
and disclosure of voting 
activity.

In respect of shareholder voting, the fund seeks to exercise 
votes attached to its UK equity holdings, and to vote where 
practical in overseas markets. 

Responsibility for the exercise of voting rights has been 
delegated to the fund’s appointed asset managers and this 
includes consideration of company explanations of compliance 
with the Corporate Governance Code. 

Page 220



Regular reports are received from the asset managers on how 
votes have been cast, and controversial issues can be 
discussed at panel meetings.

The fund does not currently disclose any voting data.

Principle 7 - Institutional 
investors should report 
periodically on their 
stewardship and voting 
activities

The fund reports annually on stewardship activity through a 
specific section on “Responsible Investing” in its annual report. 

Page 221



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13

Page 223

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 227

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 232

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14

Page 233

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 236

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting -11 December 2013
	5 Review on Performance Measurement of the Pension Fund
	Review on Performacne Measurement of the Pension Fund appendix 1.docx
	Review on Performacne Measurement of the Pension Fund appendix2 docx
	Review on Performacne Measurement of the Pension Fund appendix3 docx.pdf
	Review on Performacne Measurement of the Pension Fund appendix4 docx.pdf.docx
	Review on Performacne Measurement of the Pension Fund appendix5 docx.pdf.docx.xlsx

	6 Retirement Performance Statistics and Costs of Early Retirements Monitor
	7 Pensions Administration Performance
	8 2013 Actuarial Valuation Results
	LB of Hillingdon Pension Fund 2013 Final Valuation Report (1)

	9 Deloitte Annual Audit Plan
	Hillingdon Pension Planning Report 2014 (1)

	10 London Pensions Common Investment Vehicle (CIV) Proposals
	11 Local Government Pension Scheme - April 2014
	12 Revision Statement of Investment Principles
	13 Report from Investment Sub-Committee
	PART II - Market Review from end Q3 2014 - SJ

	14 Corporate Governance & Socially Responsible Investment

